OFFSHORE HELICOPTER SAFETY INQUIRY January 18, 2010 Tara Place, Suite 213, 31 Peet Street St. John's, NL

January 18, 2010

PRESENT:

John F. Roil, Q.C./
Anne FaganInquiry Counsel
John Andrews/ Amy Crosbie Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board (C-NLOPB)
Cecily Strickland/Ian Wallace Hibernia Management and Development Company (HMDC)
D. Blair PritchettSuncor (Petro-Canada)
Alexander C. MacDonald, Q.CHusky Oil Operations Ltd.
Nick Schultz Canadian Association of Petroleum Producers (CAPP)
Laura Brown LaengleGovernment of Newfoundland and Labrador
Norman J. Whalen, Q.CCougar Helicopters Inc.
Jamie MartinFamilies of Deceased Passengers
Kate O'BrienDavis Estate (Pilot) and agent on behalf of Douglas A. Latto for Lanouette Estate (Co-pilot)
V. Randell J. Earle, Q.CCommunications, Energy and Paperworkers Union
Robert Rutherford (without counsel)Offshore Safety and Survival Centre,

TABLE OF CONTENTSJanuary 18, 2010

MR. PAUL SACUTA (PREVIOUSLY AFFIRMED) MR. JOHN FRASER (SWORN)

Examination by John Roil, Q.C.Pgs. 1 - 293

CertificatePg. 294

Jar	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	P	age 1			Page 3
1	January 18, 2010	0	1		I suspect, to overnight prepare for the cross-
2	COMMISSIONER:		2		examination or the examination by other
3	O. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. Mr. Roil.		3		counsel tomorrow.
4	ROIL, O.C.:		4	COMN	MISSIONER:
5	O. Good morning. Thank you, Commissioner. Toda	v	5	0.	Okay, thank you.
6	we are hearing another of a series of panels.		6	ROIL.	0.C.:
7	This time it's a panel of two. We have two		7	0.	With that comment, I would ask that you admit
8	representatives of Hibernia Management and		8		as exhibits Exhibit No. 130, which is a public
9	Development Company Limited. One is Mr. Pau	1	9		exhibit, the HMDC PowerPoint presentation.
10	Sacuta, whom we have met on an earlier	1	10		which I will lead them through today, and in
11	occasion, and who is already sworn, and the	1	11		addition. Exhibits 131 through and including
12	other is Mr. John Fraser, and I would ask the	1	12		136, that series of six exhibits being
13	Register to administer the oath for Mr. Fraser	1	13		confidential exhibits. These are documents
14	only please	1	14		that are the proprietary interest of HMDC
15	MR PALIL SACUTA PREVIOUSLY SWORN MR IOHN FRAS	SER 1	15		They are of course sharing them with us and
16	SWORN EXAMINATION BY JOHN ROLL O.C.		16		with the parties in the room but they will
17	PEGISTRAP.	1	17		not be available to the public. There is of
18	O State your name please	1	18		course an understandable concern that their
10	Q. State your name, prease.	1	10		competitors not get a competitive advantage by
19	MR. FRASER.		20		social their documents and by comparing them
20	A. JOHN FLASEL.		20		to other documents and so on and so forth, but
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	COMMISSIONEK:		21		It think we have a process, that will allow us
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	Q. Okay, Mr. Koll.		22		I think we have a process that will allow us
23	ROIL, Q.C.:		23		to look at them, to the extent that we need
24	Q. Commissioner, before we proceed, 1 d like to		24	COM	necessary.
25	speak a fittle bit about the exhibits. There	2	25	COMM	MISSIONER:
	P	age 2			Page 4
1	are a small number of exhibits, although some	;	1	Q.	That will apply, of course, to the other
2	of them are quite lengthy, and I would like to		2		presenters as well.
3	ask that they be put up as exhibits in our		3	ROIL,	Q.C.:
4	proceedings, but before doing so, I would		4	Q.	The other presenters will be very similar.
5	I'd like to say that I've had a concern		5		There'll be some public documents and some
6	expressed by at least one counsel, who has		6		will be considered confidential. And at the
7	indicated a concern and a very legitimate		7		request of our staff, the Registrar has
8	concern about the timing of the posting of at		8		indicated that sometimes being surprised as to
9	least one of these exhibits. The PowerPoint		9		what exhibits need to come up is a problem, in
10	went up very late on Friday afternoon and I	1	10		terms of finding them rapidly. So as a
11	expressed my or he expressed his concern to	о 1	11		courtesy to our staff, I would indicate that I
12	me and I share it, and quite frankly, we will	1	12		will be looking, in the course of the
13	do our best to get them up as soon as they are	1	13		examination today, at: Exhibit No. 132, pages
14	final and 4:30 on Friday afternoon is not good	. 1	14		126 and 30; Exhibit 133 and Mr. Sacuta or Mr.
15	enough. So we'll make sure we do better than	ı 1	15		Fraser will have to take us to the page in
16	that. Additional exhibits for the next series	1	16		that case; Exhibit 135, which is a very short
17	will be started to be uploaded this morning	1	17		one; and Exhibit 136. So with all of that as
18	while we're here in hearing. We have a very	1	18		a preface, good morning, gentlemen.
19	compressed schedule, so getting approval of	1	19	MR. S	ACUTA:
20	documents, getting them up, getting them	2	20	А.	Good morning.
21	loaded as we go through the hardware and	2	21	MR. F	RASER:
22	software procedures does take some time	2	22	А.	Good morning.
23	sometimes, but certainly the presentation from	1 2	23	ROIL,	Q.C.:
24	Hibernia today will be, I suspect, all of the	2	24	Q.	Mr. Sacuta, you have been with us before, and
25	day, and so counsel will have an opportunity,	2	25		you are familiar with the process and I gather

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-l	Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 5		Page 7
1	you're going to lead us through a significant		1	safe facility, implementing the best safety
2	portion of this and that Mr. Fraser will jump		2	management system and training our people. I
3	in from time to time. So I'd let you take it		3	am proud of the safety culture at Hibernia. I
4	away and introduce Mr. Fraser and his		4	have worked all over the world and I can say
5	credentials and so on.		5	that this is one of the best operations I have
6	MR. SACUTA:		6	worked with when it comes to the commitment
7	A. Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Roil,		7	and engagement of the workforce and the
8	Commissioner Wells, when we presented as a	a 🛛	8	commitment and engagement of the operator.
9	joint panel last week, we talked about how the		9	The Hibernia Management and Development
10	events of March 12th impacted so many people	e 1	0	Company supports this Inquiry and is fully
11	in our province. Obviously this has been a	1	1	participating. Although we are very proud of
12	very difficult time for the families of those	1	2	our safety performance, we are always looking
13	who died on board Flight 491. After listening	1	3	for ways to improve that performance, which is
14	to Mr. Decker's testimony, it is clearly	1	4	among the best in the industry. We thank you
15	evident how he has been affected. It has also	1	5	for the opportunity to be here today.
16	been a difficult time for the industry and the	1	6	Last week I provided my personal bio and
17	broader community. It is the most difficult	1	7	I do not plan to review it again. I will hand
18	thing I have ever had to face in my career.	1	8	over to Mr. Fraser so he can provide a brief
19	The incident and the families are never far my	1	.9	overview of his work experience.
20	thoughts.	2	20 MR. FI	RASER:
21	I will be presenting today with John	2	21 A.	Thank you, Mr. Sacuta. Mr. Commissioner, my
22	Fraser, who is currently the offshore	2	22	name is John Fraser and I'm an offshore
23	installation manager on the Hibernia platform.	2	23	installation manager on the Hibernia Platform.
24	John was on board Hibernia on March 12th, 20	09 2	24	The offshore installation manager is the most
25	and did an outstanding job of talking,	2	25	senior position on the Hibernia Platform and I
		Page 6		Page 8
1	listening and watching out for the workford	e	1 :	report to Mr. Sacuta. My primary
2	during this difficult period. John and I are		2	responsibility as OIM is to ensure the safety
3	as impacted by the decisions HMDC make ar	ound	3	of everyone on the Platform.
4	helicopter transportation as any of our		4	I started working in the offshore oil and
5	workforce. John works a three-week-on thr	ee-	5	gas industry 30 years ago when I took some
6	week-off rotation, so he flies to and from		6	time off from university to go to work on an
7	work each shift change and I travel offshor	e	7	offshore drill rig. In that time, on the
8	up to ten times per year.		8	drill rigs, I worked in drilling operations,
9	The review by the Inquiry and the		9	maintenance, logistics and in safety. In the
10	recommendations by this Inquiry will impac	ct us 1	0	past 30 years, I've flown in over 400 offshore
11	directly as individuals and more so, it will	1	1	helicopter flights in Southeast Asia, the
12	impact us as leaders because we are ultimat	ely 1	2	North Sea, Alaska, Gulf of Mexico and the
13	responsible for the safety of all the people	1	.3	North Atlantic, both here in Newfoundland and
14	who work offshore and onshore Hibernia.	This 1	4	in Nova Scotia. I've flown on Bell 212 and
15	is our workplace. The Platform is also John	's 1	5	Bell 214 helicopters, various models of the
16	home for half of the year.	1	6	Super Puma helicopters in various places, the
17	We are focused on safety because it is	1	7	Sikorsky S-61s, S-76s and of course, the S-92s
18	the right thing to do. We know that if a	1	.8	here in Newfoundland.
19	company doesn't get safety right, it won't g	et 1	.9	15 years ago, I started work at Hibernia
20	the rest of its business right. It's as	2	20	and I've worked as a Platform services
21	simple as that. There is nothing more	2	21	supervisor, an onshore safety lead and a
22	important than the safety of our workforce	, 2	22	platform production supervisor. I'm currently
23	and this includes the safe and reliable	2	.3	one of the two offshore installation managers
24	transport of our employees and contractors	. 2	24	on Hibernia. There's two of every position,
25	We put significant resources into designing	a 2	25	so I'm here now and this time next week, I'll

Jaı	nuar	y 18, 2010 Mu	ılti-	Page	¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page	e 9		Page 11
1		be offshore on Hibernia, flying out there, and		1	aviation contract management, which will be to
2		my back-to-back will come in.		2	discuss third party services, Cougar as our
3		Like everyone involved in the tragic		3	helicopter service provider, how we monitor
4		events of March 12th, they've had a tremendous		4	Cougar's performance, and the selection of the
5		effect on my family and myself. Not a day		5	S-92 airframe.
6		goes by when I don't think of that day and the		6	Incident management, we will provide a
7		families of those who were involved. I'm not		7	very brief discussion on Hibernia's incident
8		sure that this Inquiry I am sure that this		8	investigation process. Emergency response,
9		Inquiry will have a positive effect on safety		9	we'll discuss the regulatory requirements,
10		and I will support you in your work in any way	1	10	Hibernia's emergency response structure and
11		that I can. Thanks for the opportunity to be	1	11	the response to March 12th, including any
12		here today.	1	12	lessons learned, and then I'll have a summary
13	COM	MISSIONER:	1	13	and some closing remarks.
14	Q.	Thank you.	1	14	I do not intend to read all the items on
15	ROIL	, Q.C.:	1	15	this slide, as a number of them were covered
16	Q.	Mr. Sacuta, I think you're going to do the	1	16	in the joint panel, but I would like to
17		outline and start the presentation, and as	1	17	highlight the following. Hibernia's peak
18		I've indicated to other witnesses, if at any	1	18	production occurred in 2002 when we achieved
19		time I ask a question and you wish to defer it	1	19	230,000 barrels a day from a facility that was
20		to Mr. Fraser because he has a greater	2	20	originally designed for 150,000 barrels a day.
21		knowledge of that particular area because	2	21	We have produced approximately 650 million
22		you're both affirmed and sworn as witnesses,	2	22	barrels of oil to date. When the project was
23		you can hand it back and forth as you see	2	23	originally sanctioned, it was sanctioned based
24		appropriate.	2	24	on recoverable reserves of 525 million
25	MR. S	SACUTA:	2	25	barrels. The current estimates of recoverable
		Page	10		Page 12
1	A	We have a number of sections to review today.		1	reserves on the Hibernia platform are between
2		First the Hibernia overview will talk about		2	950 million and 1.3 billion barrels, so more
3		the history, including the construction, the		3	than twice what the original project sanction
4		safety design, the helideck design, including		4	was.
5		the safety features of the helideck. We'll		5 ROIL	. O.C.:
6		talk about HMDC's organizational structure and		6 Q.	Is there a current life expectancy or is there
7		our statement of commitment to safety, health		7	any way we can, without offending the stock
8		and the environment.		8	markets of the world, talk about how long you
9		In the basis of safe operations section,		9	expect that facility to be out there?
10		we'll talk about the regulatory environment in	1	10 MR. S	SACUTA:
11		which we operate, Hibernia's safety plan and	1	11 A.	We're expecting it to be producing through
12		our safety management system. Our risk	1	12	2034.
13		management we'll talk about next, which is one	1	13 ROIL	, Q.C.:
14		of the key components of our operations	1	14 Q.	And that's based on known reserves?
15		integrity management system or our safety	1	15 MR. S	SACUTA:
16		management system. Personnel safety,	1	16 A.	Based on known reserves.
17		including personnel and training, regulatory	1	17 ROIL	, Q.C.:
18		requirements and the Hibernia offshore JOHS	1	18 Q.	Okay, and if additional reserves were found -
19		committee.	1	19 MR. S	SACUTA:
20		We'll then talk about helicopter	2	20 A.	That's correct.
21		operations and maintenance, our aviation		21 ROIL	, Q.C.:
22		operations guide, the helicopter operations		22 0.	- that might impact that?
23		manual, Hibernia's helicopter operations		23 MR. S	SACUTA:
24		manual, and offshore helicopter refuelling.		24 A.	That's correct.
25		arrivals and departures. I'll talk about		25 ROIL	, Q.C.:

January 18, 2010	Multi-Pag	e [™] Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 13	Page 15
1 Q. Okay. Thank you.	1 M	IR. SACUTA:
2 MR. SACUTA:	2	A. Yes. The GBS was towed into deep water and
3 A. I also talked about this slide in the joint	3	flooded and the topsides was towed over the
4 panel. One new picture on the bottom right	nt- 4	submerged GBS and the GBS was slowly raised to
5 hand portion is it shows the reservoirs which	ch 5	meet the topsides when the mating occurred.
6 the Hibernia Platform produces from. Th	ere 6	and at the time of the tow out, it was the
7 are two producing reservoirs, the Hiberni	a 7	the facility was towed offshore by nine of the
8 reservoir, which is the deeper, and the Be	n 8	world's largest tugboats.
9 Nevis Avalon, which is the shallower of t	he 9	The Hibernia Platform was designed to the
10 two reservoirs. The Hibernia formation is t	he 10	highest standards and incorporates a large
11 most prolific of the two producing reservoi	rs 11	number of significant safety features which
12 and produces the largest percentage of oil	1 12	includes as I've already mentioned an
13 currently from the Platform	13	iceberg resistant gravity-based structure a
14 ROIL OC:	14	temporary safe refuge protected by a blast
15 0 I think the other details of the Platform we	re 15	wall and our temporary safe refuge is actually
discussed in your -	16	the living quarters or the accommodations
17 MR SACUTA	17	module
18 A That's correct	18 P	
	10 K	O And what's a blast wall?
20 0 - in the joint panel we had with the other	20 N	Q. The what's a blast wall.
20 Q In the joint panel we had with the other 21 operators. Thank you	20 10	A The blast wall is a wall that's designed to
22 MD SACUTA:	21	withstand a certain size blast to protect the
22 MR. SACUTA.	22 25 23	occupants on the other side of the wall
24 facility The gravity-based structure was	23 24 D	
built in Bull Arm Newfoundland We crea	ted a 25	O So if something untoward happens -
	$\frac{1}{23}$	Q. So it something untoward happens
1 devide alt hu anasting a massive have assess	rage 14	rage 10
1 divdock by electing a massive bern across		IK. SACUIA:
2 Great Mosquito Cove. The GBS ice wait		A. If something were to happen on the other side
5 consists of a 50-100t tillek concrete beit with	5	of the wall, it's designed for a certain blast
4 10 ice teetin which are specifically designed	4	inside the accommodations module
5 for deflecting icebergs should one approach		
6 the Platonii. The base of the GBS is	0 K	OIL, Q.C.:
/ equivalent to the length of two football		Q. 1 see, mank you.
8 Heids to put its size in perspective. The	8 M	IK. SACUTA:
9 topsides consists of five super modules. Two	9	A. It includes thousands of highly sensitive
10 were built in Korea, two in Itary and one in 11 Dull Arm. The first surger modules are the	10	there's approximately 5,000 and devices on the
Buil Ann. The five super modules are the	11	Detform between fire smoke, gas and manual
12 process module, which we can MTO, the	12	Flationin, between me, smoke, gas and manual
13 weinleads module we can M20, the mud mode	10 15	can points. I ve nevel seen anything like it
14 which is associated with drining, M30, the	14	as far as the numbers. An order of magnitude
15 utilities module M40 and the fiving quarters	15	It has a water and foam delude system
16 module which is M30. The weineads module v	vas 10	It has a water and roam dende system
1/ actually the super module that was built in	1/	water per minute to verious locations of
18 INEWIOUNDIANU.	18	water per finnute to various locations, as
19 ROIL, Q.C.:	19	the modules. As I montioned there's
20 Q. The hendeck, is that a portion of one of 21 those modules or is it attached?		firewalls between the modules. The M10
21 unose modules of is it attached?		methans between the modules. The WHU
22 MR. SACUTA:		module, which is the process module, is the
25 A. It's attached to one of the modules.	23	mouthe that is farmest away from the
24 KUIL, Q.C.:		accommodations module by the design. It's the
1^{23} Q. Okay. We II talk about that later pernaps.	25	area machas me on and gas processing

Ja	nuary 18, 2010 M	Iulti-l	Page	TM Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	e 17		Page 19
1	equipment. So by design, it's located the		1	if they've got an injured party. So it's
2	farthest distance away from the module that		2	essentially doubled the reach in that area of
3	actual people actually live and sleep in. And		3	the Atlantic Ocean for the Coast Guard. It's
4	we have an automatic emergency shutdown		4	not uncommon at all to have the Coast Guard
5	system. Should the system detect an		5	come out, fly out and then wait for the
6	abnormality it has the ability of immediately		6	opportunity to carry on to recover a casualty.
7	shutting the Platform, shutting all the wells		7	for example.
8	and blow down the system to protect those that		8 ROI	IL, Q.C.:
9	are on board.		9 (Q. And their consumption of fuel and whatnot,
10	Based on the fact that this Inquiry is	1	0	we'll talk about perhaps a little later when
11	focused on helicopter transportation, we have	1	1	we talk specifically about fuel and the
12	prepared a couple of slides which describe the	1	2	reserves.
13	Hibernia helideck design and safety features.	1	3 MR.	R. SACUTA:
14	It's designed, and some of this we covered	1	4 A	A. Right.
15	last week, in accordance with Transport Canada	1 I	5 ROI	IL, Q.C.:
16	guidelines TP-4414. It's also designed to an	1	6 (Q. Just looking at the photograph there, the
17	API-RP-2L which is a recommended practice for	1	7	white portion that looks like a building or a
18	planning, designing and constructing heliports	1	8	hotel or a house, a rather large house.
19	for fixed offshore platforms. It is located	1	9 MR	. SACUTA:
20	on the southwest corner of the Platform at 149	2	0 A	A. Yes.
21	metres of elevation, and that 149 metres is	2	1 ROI	IL, Q.C.:
22	from the seabed floor. So 80 metres of water,	2	2 (Q. What is that?
23	69 metres above the water surface, and you can	2	3 MR	R. SACUTA:
24	see we've circled where the helideck is	2	4 A	A. That is the accommodations module. So it is a
25	located on that picture. It measures 22.8	2	5	hotel. It's the offshore hotel. It contains
	Page	e 18		Page 20
1	metres by 22.8 metres. It has a weight		1	140 rooms, each room with two beds in it, a
2	limitation of almost 16,000 kilograms and it		2	bathroom. So there would be a POB for 280
3	can accommodate large working class		3	personnel on board.
4	helicopters, including the Eurocopter AS332L,		4 ROI	IL, O.C.:
5	which is the Super Puma, the Sikorsky S-61,		5 (0. POB is persons on board?
6	the Sikorsky S-92 and the Cormorant, which is	;	6 MR	R. SACUTA:
7	the Coast Guard helicopter.		7 A	A. Personnel on board, yeah.
8	ROIL, O.C.:		8 ROI	IL, Q.C.:
9	O. I think all of us are aware, from the media,		9 (0. Okay, thank you.
10	of an incident last week where a Cormorant wa	as 1	0 MR	R. SACUTA:
11	used to get to 600 kilometres off our shore to	1	1 A	A. So the helideck design features, it does have
12	help an injured seaman.	1	2	water and foam firefighting equipment around
13	MR. SACUTA:	1	3	the perimeter of the helideck. It has
14	A. That's right.	1	4	lighting for visibility. There is a perimeter
15	ROIL, O.C.:	1	5	net which is a regulated requirement. It has
16	Q. This was the Platform that the Cormorant	1	6	a non-skid surface, which is supplemented
117	landed on?	1	7	during a netting, during the winter months.
18	MR. SACUTA:	1	8	During the winter months, we put a
19	A. That's right. The Hibernia installation has	1	9	crosshatched net for people to walk on when
20	significantly extended the reach to the	2	0	they get off the helicopter, in case it
21	Canadian Coast Guard. It is not uncommon fo	$r _2$	1	becomes if there's any ice on the deck or
22	the Canadian Coast Guard to fly to Hibernia.	2	2	it becomes slippery. So we do that during all
23	land, refuel if required and then carry on to	2	3	winter months and then it comes off during the
24	a ship in distress. Quite often they will	2	4	summer months because the non-slip surface is
25	order the ship to head towards the Platform,	2	5	adequate during the summer months.

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pag	ge™	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Р	age 21		-	Page 23
1	There are tie-down points. Should we		1		service people to get underneath the helideck
2	have to shutdown a helicopter, we can tie it	;	2		to inspect those beams, for example.
3	down, if it had to spend the night, for		3 R	OIL, Q).C.:
4	example. There's windsocks to determine w	vind	4	Q.	Okay, thank you.
5	direction, a helideck rescue kit, and there is		5 M	IR. SA	CUTA:
6	an emergency parking area. So if we had	a	6	A.	As discussed in the joint panel presentation,
7	helicopter that for any reason had to shutdow	wn	7		Hibernia is not operated by one of the co-
8	and could not be restarted, we could pull it		8		venturers, but rather by a separately
9	off to the side and still have access to the		9		incorporated company which is the Hibernia
10	platform so another helicopter could land.	1	10		Management and Development Company. It was
11	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	11		incorporated in 1988 by the co-venturers or
12	Q. And that is shown on the photograph?	1	12		the shareholders who entered into a joint
13	MR. SACUTA:	1	13		venture to develop the Hibernia oilfield. As
14	A. It's shown on the photograph at the top end	l, 1	14		I've mentioned, HMDC is the operator of the
15	the square or rectangular area at the top of	1	15		project. It is an integrated team of
16	the green helideck area.	1	16		specialists originally comprised of direct
17	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	17		hires, secondees from co-venturer companies
18	Q. And is that designed in such a way that eve	n 1	18		and contract staff. That was the original
19	if a helicopter is parked there, another	1	19		design of the Hibernia organization and I'll
20	helicopter can safely land or take off?	2	20		talk a little bit further about some of the
21	MR. SACUTA:	2	21		changes that have occurred over time.
22	A. Yes, that's correct. For information, Couga	r 2	22		HMDC president is myself. I do have a
23	does do a detailed annual helideck inspectio	on 2	23		management team which is a number of
24	using a designated in-house inspector. W	e 2	24		supervisors and then the boxes below are to
25	complete structural inspections by our	2	25		represent the departments that fall under
	P	age 22			Page 24
1	inspection contracting company, and these a	are	1		there. So we have an engineering and
2	validated as part of the annual inspection of		2		geoscience department, an operations
3	the helideck which is completed by Lloyd	's	3		department, a maintenance department, drilling
4	Register. Additionally, every day before		4		and well work, safety health and environment
5	helicopter's activities, the HLO, the		5		and business services, and each one of those
6	helicopter landing officer, does a visual		6		departments would have a supervisor which
7	inspection of the helideck. We also have		7		would be on the management team.
8	maintenance routines for all the lights. So		8 R	OIL, Q).C.:
9	there are a number of inspections that are		9	Q.	And then Mr. Fraser, which department would he
10	completed associated with the helideck on	a 1	10		work out of?
11	yearly basis.	1	11 M	IR. SA	CUTA:
12	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	12	А.	He would be in the operations department.
13	Q. In the area of the North Atlantic, surrounded	d 1	13 R	OIL, Q).C.:
14	by saltwater, are there any major challenge	s 1	14	Q.	Okay, that's part of operations, his OIM or
15	in terms of maintenance of the helideck?	1	15		offshore installation manager role.
16	MR. SACUTA:	1	16 N	IR. SA	CUTA:
17	A. The biggest challenge is inspecting the under	er 1	17	A.	Right.
18	deck structures which usually means you no	eed 1	18 R	OIL, ().C.:
19	abseilers or guys to get on ropes to actually	1	19	Q.	And that safety, health, environment and
20	do those inspections. But everything else is	2	20		security person, to whom do they report?
21	I mean, you're on a fixed installation in	2	21 M	IR. SA	CUTA:
22	our case, so to inspect the helideck lights	2	22	A.	Inere are a number of safety, health and
23	and the firefighting equipment, it's all on a	2	23		environment personnel and they do have a
24	non-moving part of the Platform. The	2	24		safety, health and environment supervisor who
25	structural components do require some spec	1ai 2	25		is a part of the management team.

January 18, 2010	Multi-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 25		Page 27
1 ROIL, Q.C.:			majority or essentially all of personnel that
2 Q. Okay.	2		work for HMDC in the office are secondees of
3 MR. SACUTA:	3		ExxonMobil Canada.
4 A. We have a much more flat organization	than 4		We have entered into a business services
5 some of the other operators in this area	a. 5		agreement with ExxonMobil Canada and its
6 Between myself and my management te	am, there 6		affiliates as necessary to support HMDC
7 are no other levels and there's no one ab	ove 7		operations, and what this has done is provided
8 me from an HMDC perspective.	8		HMDC with access to experienced personnel and
9 ROIL, Q.C.:	9		robust internationally tested policies and
10 Q. So there's not a series you're the	10		procedures, based on the fact that ExxonMobil
11 president of HMDC.	11		is the largest oil company in the world.
12 MR. SACUTA:	12	ROIL,	Q.C.:
13 A. That's correct.	13	Q.	So I take it, and these are my words not
14 ROIL, Q.C.:	14		yours, HMDC is run now as if it were run
15 Q. Are there a series of vice-presidents?	15		not as if it were, in a manner consistent with
16 MR. SACUTA:	16		the way that ExxonMobil manages its properties
17 A. No. There's myself as the president and	then 17		all over the world?
a number of supervisors for the departm	nents 18	MR. S.	ACUTA:
19 that are part of the management team.	19	Α.	Yeah. We've adopted the policies and
20 ROIL, Q.C.:	20		procedures that would be used by ExxonMobil's
21 Q. So who then is the Hibernia Executi	ive 21		operations around the world. So what that has
22 Committee? Because that's another expr	ression 22		allowed us to do is leverage off of the
23 that we will run across from time to time	. 23		strength of ExxonMobil's worldwide knowledge
24 MR. SACUTA:	24		and continuous improvement opportunities and
25 A. Yes. The HMDC president and the mana	igement 25		leverage off that as part of operating the
	Page 26		Page 28
1 team are accountable to the Hibernia Exec	utive 1		Hibernia Platform itself. We still have a
2 Committee which is composed of co-ve	nturer 2		dedicated or an incorporated company, HMDC,
3 company representatives and is responsible	le for 3		although we utilize ExxonMobil's policies and
4 the management and exercise of over	all 4		processes.
5 supervision and control of the joint ventur	re. 5	ROIL,	Q.C.:
6 So there'll be representatives from each	of 6	Q.	So prior to the ExxonMobil policies and
7 the co-venturers, ExxonMobil, Chevron, S	Suncor, 7		practices, what kind of policies, if there was
8 Canada Hibernia Holding Corporation, N	Aurphy 8		a personnel policy or a safety policy or
9 and Statoil. So I report to the HEC. We ha	ve 9		anything else, what kind of policies were in
10 regularly scheduled quarterly meetings w	here 10		place prior to 2003?
11 we review performance. We review sa	ifety 11	MR. S.	ACUTA:
12 statistics, production, drilling, and other	12	А.	HMDC had their own policies, were HMDC
13 factors that we do at a quarterly meeting.	13		specific, that were generated over time, from
14 Effective January 1st of 2003, the	14		the time of the original incorporation of HMDC
15 Hibernia Executive Committee authorize	d HMDC 15		as an entity. So they had their own set
to adopt and implement the policies, proc	adure 16		They had their own safety management system.
17 systems and business controls of Exxon	VIODII 17		Dut when this desision was made in 2002 was
18 Canada Properties, or Exxonitiobil Canada	1a. we 18		started to transition to the ExponMobil
nominate personnel for ULC managerial	and how 20		statice to transition to the EXXONWODI
20 nonline personner for HMDC manageman	and key $\begin{bmatrix} 20 \\ 21 \end{bmatrix}$	DOT	poneres and procedures.
22 the HEC's right of approval So in 2002		KUIL,	And that transition is fully affect now?
22 uncerne singlit of approval. So in 2005	$\frac{22}{22}$	ע. אף י	
24 any of the six co-venturers Basically in		Δ	Absolutely
25 2003, we're in a situation now where t	he 25	ROIL.	Q.C.:

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
F	Page 29	Page 31
1 Q. Okay.	1 Q.	That's the HMDC, got you, okay. Under the
2 MR. SACUTA:	2	total operations and maintenance on a normal
3 A. So this chart is not intended to show every	3	day?
4 offshore leadership position, but rather to	4 MR. S	ACUTA:
5 show the main employers on the Platform	and 5 A.	That is operations and maintenance.
6 where they are monitored from a leadersh	ip 6 ROIL,	Q.C.:
7 perspective. So you can see under operation	ns 7 Q.	Yes, sorry. So the total number, the 32 plus
8 and maintenance, there are four employers	that 8	the others?
9 are identified. They report in through the	9 MR. S	ACUTA:
10 production and maintenance supervisor.	So 10 A.	Baker Hughes would normally have one
11 HMDC does have all operations and mainten	ance 11	individual on board. The Newfoundland Service
12 employees offshore. We also have Baker H	ughes 12	Alliance depends on the activity. They are a
13 Canada, Newfoundland Service Alliance	and 13	contractor that provides specialized service,
14 Spectral Energy. For any of your information	on, 14	so that can vary, and Spectral Energy
15 the two hyflodraulics personnel who were	on 15	Services, which provide inspection services,
16 Flight 491 were called to the Platform unde	ra 16	would normally have two on board.
17 subcontract through the Newfoundland Ser	vice 17 ROIL,	0.C.:
18 Alliance.	18 O.	Okay. So not all be -
19 ROIL, O.C.:	19 MR. S	ACUTA:
20 O. Okay.	20 A.	The majority of personnel in that area would
21 MR. SACUTA:	21	be HMDC employees.
22 A. Under the drilling -	22 ROIL,	Q.C.:
23 ROIL, Q.C.:	23 Q.	Okay. So all of these various contract
24 Q. Sorry, before you go onto the drilling.	24	companies, they would not necessarily have any
25 MR. SACUTA:	25	or a very large workforce aboard at any point
F	Page 30	Page 32
1 A. Yeah.	1	in time?
2 ROIL, Q.C.:	2 MR. SA	ACUTA:
3 Q. How many persons would be working on	1 the 3 A.	Underneath operations and maintenance, when we
4 facility from the operations and maintenand	ce 4	get onto drilling, for example, Noble Drilling
5 side of things, in terms of comparing to the	5 5	is our company that runs our drilling
6 total?	6	operation.
7 MR. SACUTA:	7 ROIL,	Q.C.:
8 A. Around 32. So we'd have around 32 HM	VIDC 8 Q.	Yes.
9 employees. Any of the supervisory positio	ns 9 MR. SA	ACUTA:
10 that are offshore are normally ExxonMob	oil 10 A.	There'll be a large number of Noble Drilling
11 secondees. Below the supervisory level, the	ere 11	employees on board which would be contractors,
12 would not be ExxonMobil secondees. We'	ve got 12	for example.
13 HMDC as one of the employers and the oth	ier 13 ROIL,	Q.C.:
14 ones are the various employers that work un	nder 14 Q.	So the number of people depends on the kind of
15 each of the individual sections.	15	activity they're performing?
16 ROIL, Q.C.:	16 MR. SA	ACUTA:
17 Q. So that 32 would include the HMDC people,	the 17 A.	Kind of activity and what they've been
18 Baker, the Newfoundland -	18	contracted to do.
19 MR. SACUTA:	19 ROIL,	Q.C.:
20 A. No.	20 Q.	Okay.
21 ROIL, Q.C.:	21 MR. SA	ACUTA:
22 Q. No, okay.	22 A.	I wasn't going to go through all of the
23 MR. SACUTA:	23	employers, but I would like to highlight that,
A. That's just the HMDC.	24	as I mentioned, this is not intended to show
25 ROIL, Q.C.:	25	all the leadership positions offshore, for

Page 33 Page 33 1 example. We do have a safety health and environment lead who does report to the 00M, 3 and also reports to the onshore safety a supervisor. So that would be an example of a position that's not shown on this graph. They do not have any subcontractors underneath for them. They're out there, their sole purpose is to - for safety and to monitor the safe go operations of the Platform. A she project evolved through its growth for them. They're out there, their sole purpose is to - for safety and to monitor the safe go operations of the Platform. A she project evolved through its growth for the safe go operations of the Platform. 9 operations of the Platform. So more the 280 normal restriction. When we are producing, the maximum number of people on board changed. The current POB is anywhere go operations would be multiplied by two. 11 Q. And I think you tokl us earlier, each of those 12 In and Labradorians, and they are employed either 13 13 MR. SACUTA: 10 One for the 13 contractors engaged by iMDC to 14 14 A. That's correct. 14 MR bactTA: 15 ROIL, QC:: 15 In the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 10 20 Q. Deverybody works on the same sort of working 11 Is anta's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Farle refer to 2121. 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 19 Q. Okay. You've h	Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi	-Page	e [™] Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
1 example. We do have a safety health and environment lead who does report to the OM. 1 there was a very low risk of increasing the role above the 280 normal restriction. When we supervisor. So that would be an example of a position that's not shown on this graph. They do not have any subcontractors underneath them. They re out there, their sole purpose is to for safety and to monitor the safe operations of the Platform. 3 are producing, the maximum number of people on board changed. The current role is anywhere be beau or for safety and to monitor the safe operations of the Platform. 9 operations of the Platform. 9 beard changed. The current role is anywhere beau or for safety and to monitor the safe operations ould be multiplied by two. 10 And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 10 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 13 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 14 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 15 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 13 13 me of the 1 contractors congaged by HMDC to 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 15 10 O. Nome workforce any envery one Norkforce 16 10 13 MR. SACUTA: 19 Q. Clay, You' we heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 10 14 A. They for usually, you know, contracts that 24 400N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 21 MR. SACUTA:		I	Page 33		Page 35
2 environment lead who does report to the OIM, and also reports to the onshore safety position that's not shown on this graph. They do not have any subcontractors underneath there, their sole purpose 2 POB above the 280 normal restriction. When we are producing, the maximum number of people on bound is 280. 5 position that's not shown on this graph. They do not have any subcontractors underneath there, their sole purpose 3 as the project evolved through its growth plateau and decline cycle, our personnel on position that's not shown on this graph. They is to for safety and to monitor the safe 9 5 As the project evolved through its growth potent of the workforce are New/foundiander and Labradorians, and they are employed either 10 ROIL, QC: 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 13 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 13 13 MR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 provide specialty Services, and the workforce 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 2 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 15 not the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 2 20 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 2 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 2 1 1 Read Some 2 21 Q. How often do the specifics of the contract. 2 R. SACUTA:	1	example. We do have a safety health an	d	1	there was a very low risk of increasing the
3 and also reports to the onshore safety supervisor. So that would be an example of a position that's not shown on this graph. They do not have any subcontractors underneath them. They're out there, their sole purpose is to for safety and to monitor the safe 3 are producing, the maximum number of people on board changed. The current tools is anywhere 6 board hanged. The current tools is anywhere 5 As the project evolved through its growth 7 them. They're out there, their sole purpose is to for safety and to monitor the safe 5 between 220 and 240, depending on the activity operations of the Platform. 9 operations of the Platform. 9 beard changed. The current tools is anywhere 10 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those positions would be multiplied by two. 10 and Labaodorinas, and they are employed either 12 operations of the Platform. 10 and Labaodorinas, and they are employed either 13 MR.SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMC to 14 A That's right. 17 Local 60N. 18 MR.SACUTA: 18 ROL, QC:: 10 Q. And the them not change? What's 18 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 24 the nature of that? 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to <td>2</td> <td>environment lead who does report to the O</td> <td>IM.</td> <td>2</td> <td>POB above the 280 normal restriction. When we</td>	2	environment lead who does report to the O	IM.	2	POB above the 280 normal restriction. When we
4 supervisor. So that would be an example of a 4 board is 280. 5 position that's not shown on this graph. They 5 As the project evolved through is growth 6 do not have any subcontractors underneath 6 plateau and decline cycle, our personnel on 7 them. They're out there, their sole purpose 7 board is 280. 8 is to for safety and to monitor the safe 8 between 220 and 240, dependion on the activity 9 operations of the Platform. 10 90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 15 ROLL, Q.C: 13 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 17 Local 60N. 18 RRL, Q.C: 18 ROLL, Q.C: 18 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? What's 2 A. It as mesting of the mot change? What's 2 25 MR. SACUTA: 23 A. We have an agrecement in place with the L	3	and also reports to the onshore safety	7	3	are producing, the maximum number of people on
5 position that's not shown on this graph. They 5 As the project evolved through its growth 6 on to have any subcontractors underneath 6 7 them. They're out there, their sole purpose 8 8 is to for safety and to monitor the safe 8 9 operations of the Platform. 9 10 ROLL_QC: 10 90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by IMDC as 1 mentioned earlier, or 13 MR SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 15 ROIL, QC: 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 C. Everybody works on the same sort of working 17 Local 60N. 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 18 RR SACUTA: 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 How fore do these contractors change? Are 21 Q. How often do these contractor for 12 </td <td>4</td> <td>supervisor. So that would be an example of</td> <td>fa</td> <td>4</td> <td>board is 280.</td>	4	supervisor. So that would be an example of	fa	4	board is 280.
6 do not have any subcontractors underneath them. They're out there, their sole purpose 6 plateau and decline cycle, our personnel on 7 them. They're out there, their sole purpose 7 board changed. The current Pois is anywhere 9 operations of the Platform. 9 between 220 and 240, depending on the activity 9 operations of the Platform. 9 that's under way at the time. Approximately 10 Q. And 1 think you told us earlier, each of those 12 directly by HMDC, as I mentioned earlier, or 13 MR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 Now flen do these contractors change? Are 18 ROIL, QC: 21 O. How offen do these point for the contract. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 Now have an agreement in place with the Local 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 22 they anture of tha	5	position that's not shown on this graph. The	ey	5	As the project evolved through its growth
7 them. They're out there, their sole purpose 7 board changed. The current POB is anywhere 8 is to for safety and to monitor the safe 9 between 220 and 240, depending on the activity 9 operations of the Platform. 9 90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HNDC. as 1 mentioned earlier, or 13 MR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specially services, and the workforce 15 ROIT, QC: 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 17 Local 60N. 18 10 How often do these contractors change? Are 18 toaderstand the - 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 understand the - 22 they long-term commitments or do some of them 23 A. We hare an agreement	6	do not have any subcontractors undernea	th	6	plateau and decline cycle, our personnel on
8 is to for safety and to monitor the safe 8 between 220 and 240, depending on the activity 9 operations of the Platform. 9 that's under way at the time. Approximately 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HMDC, as 1 mentioned earlier, or 13 MR.SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors cnagged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specially services, and the workforce 15 ROLL Q.C: 15 on the Hiberinia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 17 Local 60N. 18 18 NGL, Q.C: 20 Is kat something different or do you 21 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Arc 21 understand the - 22 22 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 7<	7	them. They're out there, their sole purpose		7	board changed. The current POB is anywhere
9 operations of the Platform. 9 that's under way at the time. Approximately 10 ROLL, Q.C.: 10 90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HMDC. as I mentioned earlier, or 13 NR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 17 Local 60N. 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 18 NGL, Q.C.: 19 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 R. SACUTA: 18 Sout_Q.C.: 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 Is that something different or do you 23 change and some of them not change? What's 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 stablish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we 25 setablish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we 24 for the synchere is a	8	is to for safety and to monitor the safe		8	between 220 and 240, depending on the activity
10 ROIL, Q.C.: 10 90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander 11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HMDC, as I mentioned earlier, or 13 MR.SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 15 on the Hiberniai on Energy and Paperworkers Union. 17 Local 60N. 18 MR.SACUTA: 19 0. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 A. That's criptt. 19 0. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 understand the - 22 the nature of that? 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 23 change and some of them not change? What's 24 60N. 1 believe that they are hoping to 25 stablish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we 25 stablish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we 25 Deen our drilling contractor since we towed 6 1 Currently have in place is with Lo	9	operations of the Platform.		9	that's under way at the time. Approximately
11 Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of those 11 and Labradorians, and they are employed either 12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HMC, as I mentioned earlier, or 13 MR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 15 ROIL, Q.C.: 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 17 Local 60N. 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 17 Local 60N. 18 MR. SACUTA: 18 ROIL, Q.C.: 10 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 ROIL, Q.C.: 20 Is that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Mrei 21 understand the - 22 they long-term commitments or do some of them 22 MR. SACUTA: 23 change and some of them not change? What's 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 the nature of that? 240 GON. I believe that they are hopin	10	ROIL, Q.C.:		10	90 percent of the workforce are Newfoundlander
12 positions would be multiplied by two. 12 directly by HMDC, as I mentioned earlier, or 13 MR. SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 15 ROIL, Q.C: 14 provide specialty services, and the workforce 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 17 Local 60N. 18 MR. SACUTA: 19 0. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 ROIL, Q.C: 20 Is that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 understand the 22 they long-term commitments or do some of them 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 23 change and some of them not change? What's 23 A. We have an agreement in place is with Local 60N. 24 the nature of that? 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 fort. the reation. Fage 34 7 the sta five years, with extension 3 <td>11</td> <td>Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of thos</td> <td>e</td> <td>11</td> <td>and Labradorians, and they are employed either</td>	11	Q. And I think you told us earlier, each of thos	e	11	and Labradorians, and they are employed either
13 MR.SACUTA: 13 one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to 14 A. That's correct. 14 provide specially services, and the workforce 15 ROIL, Q.C.: 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 18 RDL, Q.C.: 18 MR.SACUTA: 19 A. That's right. 19 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 ROIL, Q.C.: 20 Is that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 understand the - 22 they long-term commitments or do some of them 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 the nature of that? 25 establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we Page 34 2 They're usually, you know, contracts that 3 Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks. 4 provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has 5 been our contractor for 12 7 years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the 7 developed this commitment to safety, health 8 outracts themsleves. There are opportunities 9 plan. It is shown to all new employees when 10 contracts already have extension provisions 11 safour new rine on the Platform. It's part of our 11 built into the contract. So it depends on the 12 John will be talking about later in the	12	positions would be multiplied by two.		12	directly by HMDC, as I mentioned earlier, or
14A. That's correct.14provide specialty services, and the workforce15ROLL, Q.C.:15on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the16Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working16Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union,17regime of 21-on-21-off?17Local 60N.18MR.SACUTA:19Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121.20ROIL, Q.C.:20Is that something different or do you21Q. How often do these contractors change? Are21understand the -22they long-term commitments or do some of them22MR.SACUTA:23change and some of them not change? What's2460N. I believe that they are hoping to24the nature of that?23A. We have an agreement in place with the Local25MR.SACUTA:2460N. I believe that they are hoping to25SMR.SACUTA:28Page 361A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.2ROIL, Q.C.:3would last five years, with extension3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has5MR.SACUTA:5been our drilling contractor for 127developed this commitment to safety, health9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts hreagivert or rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when11built into the contract. So it depends on	13	MR. SACUTA:		13	one of the 13 contractors engaged by HMDC to
15 ROIL, Q.C.: 15 on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the 16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, 17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 18 ROIL, Q.C.: 18 ROIL, Q.C.: 19 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 10 20 ROIL, Q.C.: 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 10 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 20 Is that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? What's 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 23 change and some of them not change? What's 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 24 the nature of that? 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 They're usually, you know, contracts that 2 ROIL, Q.C.: 3 would last five years, with extension 4 Where does this come from? 4 provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has 5 ME.SACUTA: 5 been our drilling contractor since we towed 5 MR.SACUTA:	14	A. That's correct.		14	provide specialty services, and the workforce
16 Q. Everybody works on the same sort of working regime of 21-on-21-off? 16 Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union, Local 60N. 18 MR. SACUTA: 17 Local 60N. 18 MR. SACUTA: 18 ROIL, Q.C.: 20 ROIL, Q.C.: 20 Js At That's right. 20 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are they long-term commitments or do some of them 23 20 Lis that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Mrat's 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 the nature of that? 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 25 MR. SACUTA: 25 establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we Page 34 1 A. It depends on the specifics of the contract. 1 currently have in place is with Local 60N. 2 mould last five years, with extension 3 Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks. 4 provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has 5 been our drilling contractor for 12 6 A. This comes from our operations plan. It's 7 years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the 5 MR. SACUTA: 7 developed this c	15	ROIL, Q.C.:		15	on the Hibernia Platform is represented by the
17 regime of 21-on-21-off? 17 Local 60N. 18 MR. SACUTA: 18 ROIL, Q.C: 19 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 ROW often do these contractors change? Are 20 Is that something different or do you 21 understand the - 22 23 change and some of them not change? What's 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 24 the nature of that? 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 the nature of that? 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we Page 34 7 years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the 8 contracts themselves. There are opportunities 3 9 at the end of a contract to rebid. Some 9 10 contracts already have extension provisions 10 11 built into the contract. So it depends on the 11 7 years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the 9 12 contracts themselves. There are opoportunities 9	16	Q. Everybody works on the same sort of work	king	16	Communication Energy and Paperworkers Union,
18 MR. SACUTA: 18 ROIL, Q.C.: 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 19 A. That's right. 19 Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121. 20 ROIL, Q.C.: 20 Is that something different or do you 21 Q. How often do these contractors change? Are 21 understand the - 22 they long-term commitments or do some of them 21 understand the - 23 change and some of them not change? What's 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 MR. SACUTA: 23 A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 24 the nature of that? 24 60N. I believe that they are hoping to 25 MR. SACUTA: 2 Page 36 1 A. It depends on the specifics of the contract. 1 currently have in place is with Local 60N. 2 They're usually, you know, contracts that 2 ROIL, Q.C.: 3 3 would last five years, with extension 3 Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks. 4 provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has 5 MR. SACUTA: 6 6 out. So they've b	17	regime of 21-on-21-off?	C	17	Local 60N.
19A. That's right.19Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121.20ROIL, Q.C.:20Is that something different or do you21Q. How often do these contractors change? Are21understand the -22they long-term commitments or do some of them22MR.SACUTA:23change and some of them not change? What's2460N. I believe that they are hoping to24the nature of that?2460N. I believe that they are hoping to25MR.SACUTA:25establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement wePage 341A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.2They're usually, you know, contracts that3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has4Where does this come from?5been our drilling contractor since we towed5MR.SACUTA:6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the7developed this commitment to safety, health8contracts themselves. There are opportunities8and the environment. It's in the operational9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the12John will be talking about later in the12circumstances. The majority of the people13presentation. I'm not planning to read the13	18	MR. SACUTA:		18 RO	DIL, Q.C.:
20ROIL, Q.C.:20Is that something different or do you21Q. How often do these contractors change? Are20Is that something different or do you22they long-term commitments or do some of them21understand the -23change and some of them not change? What's24A. We have an agreement in place with the Local24the nature of that?23A. We have an agreement in place with the Local25MR. SACUTA:2460N. I believe that they are hoping to26establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we2527They're usually, you know, contracts that2ROIL, Q.C.:3would last five years, with extension3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has5been our drilling contractor since we towed6out. So they've been our contract for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the8and the environment. It's in the operational9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the12John will be talking about later in the12circumstances. The majority of the people13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key compon	19	A. That's right.		19	Q. Okay. You've heard Mr. Earle refer to 2121.
21Q. How often do these contractors change? Are they long-term commitments or do some of them change and some of them not change? What's change and some of them not change? What's constracts for the contract.11Understand the - change and some of the contract of rol 12 contracts themselves. There are opportunities so it depends on the so contracts already have extension provisions21Understand the - contract. So it depends on the safety, health and environment. It's in the operational safety, health and environment handbook, which contracts already have extension provisions10Contract. So it depends on the safety, health and environment handbook, which contracts already have extension provisions10Understand the - contract. So it depends on the safety, health and environment handbook, which contracts already have extension provisions11Safety, health and environment ha	20	ROIL, Q.C.:		20	Is that something different or do you
22they long-term commitments or do some of them change and some of them not change? What's 2422MR. SACUTA:23A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 2460N. I believe that they are hoping to 2523A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 2460N. I believe that they are hoping to 2523A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 2460N. I believe that they are hoping to 252460N. I believe that they are hoping to 252460N. I believe that they are hoping to 2525700 <th< td=""><td>21</td><td>Q. How often do these contractors change? A</td><td>Are</td><td>21</td><td>understand the -</td></th<>	21	Q. How often do these contractors change? A	Are	21	understand the -
23change and some of them not change? What's 2423A. We have an agreement in place with the Local 60N. I believe that they are hoping to establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we2460N. I believe that they are hoping to establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we25MR.SACUTA:Page 341A. It depends on the specifics of the contract. 2Page 342They're usually, you know, contracts that 3would last five years, with extension 4Page 363would last five years, with extension 4Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has 5MR.SACUTA:5been our drilling contractor since we towed 6Out. So they've been our contractor for 12 4Mere does this come from?7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the 8contracts themselves. There are opportunities 9MR.SACUTA:8and the environment. It's in the operational 9plan. It is shown to all new employees when 1010contracts already have extension provisions 11built into the contract. So it depends on the 12It safety, health and environment handbook, which 1313that are on this list have been involved with 14Hibernia offshore workforce. The 15It mot planning to read the 1414Hibernia offshore workforce. The 15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore 17We all share the responsibility to 1718work bore performed, as I mentioned earlier. 18	22	they long-term commitments or do some of	them	22 MR	R. SACUTA:
24the nature of that?2460N. I believe that they are hoping to establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we25MR.SACUTA:Page 34Page 361A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.1currently have in place is with Local 60N.2They're usually, you know, contracts that3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.3would last five years, with extension3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has4Where does this come from?5been our drilling contractor since we towed5MR. SACUTA:6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the7developed this commitment to safety, health8contracts themselves. There are opportunities8and the environment. It's in the operational9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the11safety, health and environment handbook, which12John will be talking about later in the13presentation. I'm not planning to read the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.	23	change and some of them not change? WI	hat's	23	A. We have an agreement in place with the Local
25 MR.SACUTA:25establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement wePage 34Page 361A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.1currently have in place is with Local 60N.2They're usually, you know, contracts that2ROIL, Q.C.:3would last five years, with extension3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has4Where does this come from?5been our drilling contractor since we towed6A. This comes from our operations plan. It's6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the7developed this commitment to safety, health8contracts themselves. There are opportunities8and the environment. It's in the operational9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the11safety, health and environment handbook, which12circumstances. The majority of the people12John will be talking about later in the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.15The Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility t	24	the nature of that?		24	60N. I believe that they are hoping to
Page 34Page 341A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.1currently have in place is with Local 60N.2They're usually, you know, contracts that2ROIL, Q.C.:3would last five years, with extension3Q. Now there's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has4Where does this come from?5been our drilling contractor since we towed5MR. SACUTA:6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the7developed this commitment to safety, health8and the environment. It's in the operational9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the1safety, health and environment handbook, which12circumstances. The majority of the people12John will be talking about later in the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18commitment to safety, health and the	25	MR. SACUTA:		25	establish the 2121 Local, but the agreement we
1A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.1A. It depends on the specifics of the contract.2They're usually, you know, contracts that3would last five years, with extension4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has5been our drilling contractor since we towed6out. So they've been our contractor for 127years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the8contracts themselves. There are opportunities9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some10contracts already have extension provisions11built into the contract. So it depends on the12circumstances. The majority of the people13that are on this list have been involved with14Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997.15The Hibernia offshore workforce. The16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.10to safety, health and the		I	Page 34		Page 36
111	1	A It depends on the specifics of the contract	uge 34	1	currently have in place is with Local 60N
2Incl. (cc.)3would last five years, with extension4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has5been our drilling contractor since we towed6out. So they've been our contractor for 127years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the8contracts themselves. There are opportunities9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some10contracts already have extension provisions11built into the contract. So it depends on the12circumstances. The majority of the people13that are on this list have been involved with14Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997.15The Hibernia offshore workforce. The16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore17workforce varies depending on the scope of18work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18Work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.		They're usually you know contracts that	t	2 RO	$OII OC^{-1}$
4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has56. Now unlet's a statement in quotation marks.4provisions. For example, Noble Drilling has4Where does this come from?5been our drilling contractor since we towed5MR. SACUTA:6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the7developed this commitment to safety, health8contracts themselves. There are opportunities8and the environment. It's in the operational9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the11safety, health and environment handbook, which12circumstances. The majority of the people12John will be talking about later in the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's18work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18communicate, With the with the interior		would last five years with extension		3	0 Now there's a statement in quotation marks
 been our drilling contractor since we towed out. So they've been our contractor for 12 years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the contracts themselves. There are opportunities at the end of a contract to rebid. Some contracts already have extension provisions contracts already have extension provisions built into the contract. So it depends on the circumstances. The majority of the people that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with The Hibernia offshore workforce. The size and composition of the Hibernia offshore work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. that are on the subscience of the match of		provisions For example Noble Drilling h	as	4	Where does this come from?
6out. So they've been our contractor for 126A. This comes from our operations plan. It's7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the6A. This comes from our operations plan. It's8contracts themselves. There are opportunities8and the environment. It's in the operational9at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the11safety, health and environment handbook, which12circumstances. The majority of the people12John will be talking about later in the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18commitment to safety, health and the	5	been our drilling contractor since we towe	d d	5 MF	R SACUTA:
7years, almost 13 years. So it depends on the contracts themselves. There are opportunities at the end of a contract to rebid. Some contracts already have extension provisions7developed this commitment to safety, health and the environment. It's in the operational plan. It is shown to all new employees when they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the circumstances. The majority of the people that are on this list have been involved with H11safety, health and environment handbook, which user in the presentation. I'm not planning to read the entire commitment, but I would like to highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.17We all share the responsibility to commitment to safety, health and the entire commitment to safety, health and the	6	out So they've been our contractor for 12		6	A This comes from our operations plan It's
777710111213141413141413141413141413141414141415141414141415141415141415141415141414141414141997.14141414141414141997.14 </td <td></td> <td>vears almost 13 years. So it depends on the</td> <td>e l</td> <td>7</td> <td>developed this commitment to safety health</td>		vears almost 13 years. So it depends on the	e l	7	developed this commitment to safety health
at the end of a contract to rebid. Some9plan. It is shown to all new employees when10contracts already have extension provisions10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our11built into the contract. So it depends on the11safety, health and environment handbook, which12circumstances. The majority of the people12John will be talking about later in the13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997.14entire commitment, but I would like to15The Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18commitment to safety, health and the		contracts themselves. There are opportuniti	es	8	and the environment. It's in the operational
10contracts already have extension provisions10the shown to tail how employees when11built into the contract. So it depends on the10they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our12circumstances. The majority of the people11safety, health and environment handbook, which13that are on this list have been involved with13presentation. I'm not planning to read the14Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997.14entire commitment, but I would like to15The Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17work being performed, as I mentioned earlier.18commitment to safety, health and the	9	at the end of a contract to rebid. Some		9	plan It is shown to all new employees when
 built into the contract. So it depends on the circumstances. The majority of the people that are on this list have been involved with Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997. The Hibernia offshore workforce. The size and composition of the Hibernia offshore workforce varies depending on the scope of work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. We have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with that are on this list have been involved with the the original tow out in 1997. the Hibernia offshore the the this matched been involved with the the the the the the the the the the	10	contracts already have extension provision	ns	10	they arrive on the Platform. It's part of our
1112circumstances. The majority of the people11John will be talking about later in the1213that are on this list have been involved with13John will be talking about later in the14Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997.14entire commitment, but I would like to15The Hibernia offshore workforce. The15highlight a couple of key components.16size and composition of the Hibernia offshore16We all share the responsibility to17workforce varies depending on the scope of17communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's18We heat hand the18We heat hand the	11	built into the contract. So it depends on the		11	safety health and environment handbook which
 that are on this list have been involved with Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997. The Hibernia offshore workforce. The size and composition of the Hibernia offshore workforce varies depending on the scope of work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. We all share the responsibility to communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's commitment to safety, health and the 	12	circumstances The majority of the peopl	e	12	John will be talking about later in the
 Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997. The Hibernia offshore workforce. The size and composition of the Hibernia offshore workforce varies depending on the scope of work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. We all share the responsibility to communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's commitment to safety, health and the 	13	that are on this list have been involved with		13	presentation I'm not planning to read the
 The Hibernia offshore workforce. The size and composition of the Hibernia offshore workforce varies depending on the scope of work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. We all share the responsibility to communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's commitment to safety, health and the 	14	Hibernia since the original tow out in 1997		14	entire commitment but I would like to
 16 size and composition of the Hibernia offshore 17 workforce varies depending on the scope of 18 work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. 19 We all share the responsibility to 10 communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's 11 communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's 12 We all share the responsibility to 13 communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's 14 communicate, implement and the 	15	The Hibernia offshore workforce. The		15	highlight a couple of key components
 workforce varies depending on the scope of work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. We tal shale the responsibility to communicate, implement and live by Hibernia's commitment to safety, health and the 	16	size and composition of the Hibernia offsho	ore	16	We all share the responsibility to
18 work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. 18 Work being performed, as I mentioned earlier. 18 No 10	17	workforce varies depending on the scope	of	17	communicate implement and live by Hibernia's
With the performance, as a mentioned cannot be communed to survey, neutring the second s	18	work being performed as I mentioned earli	er	18	commitment to safety health and the
We have a maximum of 360 persons on board 119 environment. We have the right and the	19	We have a maximum of 360 persons on h	oard	19	environment We have the right and the
immediately prior to the first oil well in 20 responsibility to work safely. We will	$ _{20}$	immediately prior to the first oil well in	ouru,	20	responsibility to work safely. We will
21 late 1997. We have a POB, or a personnel on 21 regularly review and measure, our performance	$\frac{20}{21}$	late 1997. We have a POR or a personnel of	m	21	regularly review and measure our performance
board limitation of 280 beds Prior to first 22 against this commitment and continue to look	21	board limitation of 280 beds Prior to first		 22	against this commitment and continue to look
oil we had some extra beds brought out. We 23 for opportunities to improve our safety	23	oil we had some extra beds brought out N	Ve	23	for opportunities to improve our safety
weren't producing hydrocarbon at that point 24 health and environment management process and	$ _{24}^{23}$	weren't producing hydrocarbon at that point	nt	 24	health and environment management process and
	$\left \begin{array}{c} 25 \\ 25 \end{array} \right $	so we were able to convince the Board the	at	25	together we will foster a culture that
	25	so we were able to convince the Board that	at	25	together we will foster a culture that

January 18, 2010	Multi-P	age	^M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 37		Page 39
1 recognizes practices and promotes safe a	and 1	l	authorization requirement, certifying
2 environmentally responsible work b	v 2	2	authority, fitness for service verification,
3 implementing and supporting the individ	jual 3	3	continuous monitoring. They do provide
4 responsible safety system.	4	1	continuous monitoring. They do quarterly
5 Later on in this presentation, Mr. Fraser	5	5	audits and compliance assessments by both the
6 will be talking about some of the specifi	c e	5	C-NLOPB and the certifying authority, which is
7 tools, policies and practices which foster of	our 7	7	Lloyd's Register.
8 safety culture.	8	8 ROIL	, Q.C.:
9 ROIL, Q.C.:	ģ) Q.	I think these are some of the same concepts
10 Q. Now the Hibernia operational plan, that's	sa 10)	that we discussed in the committee of the
11 new concept that we have not yet gotten in	nto, 11	l	joint operators.
but I take it that this is a document that is	12	2 MR. 3	SACUTA:
13 part of the management processes of HMD	C? 13	3 A.	That's correct. The operator must submit
14 MR. SACUTA:	14	1	plans, including the following, to the C-NLOPB
15 A. We'll talk about it a little bit later, but	15	5	for approval prior to obtaining authorization
16 the Hibernia operations plan meets ou	r 16	5	for exploration, development and production: a
17 regulatory requirement for our safety plan	, as 17	7	development plan, a Canada-Newfoundland
18 well as some other components. So we d	lon't 18	3	benefits plan, a safety plan, a drilling
19 have a individual separate safety plan. W	Ve 19)	program, a reservoir depletion plan, and an
20 have an operational plan and contained wi	thin 20)	environmental protection plan.
the operational plan are all the requiremen	its 21	l	So the Board has provided the following
that the Board would expect to have in	a 22	2	work activity approvals to HMDC: a production
23 safety plan.	23	3	operations authorization, which is approved
24 ROIL, Q.C.:	24	1	every three years; a drilling program
25 Q. So when the Board asks you to submit y	your 25	5	authorization, also approved every three
	Page 38		Page 40
1 safety plan you submitted your operation	nal 1	1	vears: a well operations authorization
2 nlan?	7	,	approved every three years and then an
3 MR SACUTA	-	-	operating license, which is approved annually
4 A That's correct and the Board would appr	rove 4	1	The primary safety documents required and
5 that operational plan as part of any	5	5	approved by the Board as prerequisites to the
6 operations authorization process	f	ń	above authorizations are the concept safety
7 ROIL OC:	7	, 7	analysis which was done in the design phase
8 0 Okay	8	2	of the Hibernia Platform and a safety plan
9 MR SACUTA	c)	during the operations phase
10 A In the next section I'm going to describe t	the 10) ROII	
11 regulatory environment in which we oper	rate 11		So do I take it from this that the concept of
12 Hibernia's safety plan which is our	12	, <u> </u>	safety or that safety is important was even at
13 operational plan and I'll introduce the	12	2	the design stage of the Platform?
14 operations integrity management system y	which 14	, 1 MR :	SACUTA.
15 is Hibernia's safety management system		5 A	Absolutely and that's how we ended up with a
As I've previously mentioned I have	16	, <u>11</u> .	platform designed with over 5 000 gas smoke
17 worked in a number of areas around the w	orld 17	7	fire detectors for example In 2009 the
18 and it is my opinion that the Newfoundlan	d and 18	2	Board did combine all the authorizations the
19 Labrador area is one of the most regulate	d 19)	production operations the drilling program
20 It's certainly the most regulated I've)	and the well operations into a single
21 experienced	20	, 	operations authorization which was issued to
22 The Canada Newfoundland and Labra	dor $\frac{21}{22}$)	Hibernia on December 15th 2009 We just
23 Offshore Petroleum Board or the C-NL	OPB 22	-	received it last month I believe that
24 provides detailed regulations and guideling	$1 \text{ les} \qquad 23$	1	Hibernia was the first operator to obtain this
to the industry. They provide a work	25	5	combined authorization, and I think Howard

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi	-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 41			Page 43
1	Pike talked about the plans to go to that	U	1		conduct our work. It's a living document
2	during his testimony.		2		which is updated as needed to reflect
3	As far as oversight goes, the Board		3		operational changes, and at a minimum every
4	performs scheduled inspections and compli	ance	4		three years to maintain the operations
5	audits of HMDC to ensure compliance with	all	5		authorization as approved by the Board.
6	of the regulatory requirements and complia	nce	6		Updates require the Board's approval prior to
7	with any conditions imposed by the operati	ons	7		implementation. The Operational Plan serves
8	authorization, including the safety plan.		8		as a basis for audits by the C-NLOPB and a
9	The audits and inspection frequencies.		9		certified authority. So any commitments we
10	There is an annual audit. There are quarterl	У	10		make in the Operations Plan, the Board will
11	inspections and ad hoc inspections, as		11		measure compliance with.
12	required. As I mentioned last week, there a	ire	12	ROIL,	Q.C.:
13	opportunities for the Board to come out at a	any	13	Q.	I'm not going to take you to the document
14	time. If they have any issues, they'd request	st	14		right now, but I have it in front of me, it's
15	a seat. We get them a seat on the helicopte	r	15		Exhibit 131, and I believe that we have it
16	and out they'll go. There have been no		16		unredacted and it's 375 pages. Would that
17	significant findings to date with respect to		17		seem about right?
18	helicopter operations during any of those	•	18	MR. S.	ACUTA:
19	individual audits. For your information, w	e	19	А.	That would seem about right, yes.
20	also provide the Board a daily report whic	h	20	ROIL,	Q.C.:
21	covers all aspects of the activities on the		21	Q.	So it's a lengthy document?
22	Platform, from safety to drilling to		22	MR. S.	ACUTA:
23	production. They receive it every day.		23	А.	It's a very detailed document, yes. So the
24	Mondays usually we get the weekend, Frie	day,	24		Operations Plan consists of five sections.
25	Saturday, Sunday, sent to them on Monday	•	25		The first section is an introduction. The
		Page 42			Page 44
1	ROIL, Q.C.:	-	1	5	second section talks about a description of
2	Q. What kinds of information about helicopter		2	t	the installation. The third section talks
3	transportation, if any, would be in that daily		3	ä	about the organization and management systems.
4	report?		4	r	That would include our safety management
5	MR. SACUTA:		5	5	system. Section 4 is on the basis of safe
6	A. Only if there had been an issue with		6	(operations, and Section 5 is the basis of
7	helicopter transportation. For example, if		7	(environmental and environmentally responsible
8	there were no flights because of fog, that		8	(operations, and this is not applicable in
9	would be in a daily report. If there had been		9	t	terms of the context of helicopter safety.
10	some type of an incident, it would be		10	2	Section 2, the description of the
11	highlighted in the safety section. So if		11	i	installation, it describes the installation
12	helicopter operations are normal, the comment		12	ä	and the safety design philosophy used to
13	may be "just completed two flights", for		13	(ensure a safe platform design. Hazards that
14	example.		14	(could affect the safety of personnel and the
15	ROIL, Q.C.:		15	i	ntegrity of the installation are identified,
16	Q. Yes, okay.		16	ä	and appropriate measures taken to prevent
17	MR. SACUTA:		17	(occurrence or minimize consequences. The main
18	A. In the Hibernia safety plan, the Hibernia		18	(objective of the safety design philosophy was
19	Operational Plan has been approved by the		19	1	to ensure a safe working environment for
20	Board as meeting the requirements of a safety		20	1	personnel by minimizing the potential for
21	plan. It was based on the concept safety		21	1	nazardous occurrences, avoiding exposure to
22	analysis. It formalized Hibernia's commitment	-	22	1	potential hazards, containing and minimizing
23	to operate in a safe and environmentally		23	t	he effects of hazards in the event of an
24	responsible manner. It lays out the		24	(emergency, and providing a satisfactory means
25	management system or framework under whic	h we	25		of escape from all work areas. Section 2

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page [™] Offshore Helicopter Safe	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
	ze 45	Page 47	
1 includes a description of the helideck	1 which is utilized by Exxon at all th	heir	
2 location, the size, and the weight	2 worldwide producing facilities.		
3 limitations. Section 3 describes HMDC's	3 ROIL, Q.C.:		
4 organizational structure and its safety	4 Q. What advantages I think you name	d some of	
5 management system. HMDC has adop	them, but what advantages do you	get or	
6 ExxonMobil's operations integrity manage	ent 6 disadvantages do you get by havi	ng an	
7 system. We sometimes call it OIMS.	7 integrated management system that is	belonging	
8 ROIL, Q.C.:	8 to such a large company that operates	all over	
9 Q. OIMS.	9 the world?		
10 MR. SACUTA:	10 MR. SACUTA:		
11 A. Not to be confused with Offshore Installati	11 A. It allows you to capture lessons learne	ed from	
12 Manager.	12 all over the world. One of the process	es that	
13 ROIL, Q.C.:	13 occurs in our evaluation of OIMS is	s an	
14 Q. Like I say, in this industry that is replete	14 evaluation, a feedback mechanism, a c	continuous	
15 with acronyms, we have an OIMS.	15 improvement opportunity, and so	that	
16 MR. SACUTA:	16 information gets relayed around the w	orld when	
17 A. That's right.	17 we have those type of opportunities.	So you	
18 ROIL, Q.C.:	18 get a worldwide view of how to imp	prove the	
19 Q. In the early stages of this proceeding, I	19 operations integrity management syst	tem based	
20 asked your legal counsel to produce your O	s 20 on the number of areas that may be u	sing it.	
21 thinking it was a document that I could brin	21 You also get the potential for hav	ving	
22 up here and lay down. I take it it's somewh	22 personnel outside of your organization	n come in	
23 more extensive than that?	to assess your compliance with OIMS,	and I'll	
24 MR. SACUTA:	talk about that a little further in the	e	
A. Much more extensive, and I'll talk a little	25 presentation as well.		
	ve 46	Page 48	
1 bit further about the number of elements a		ruge io	
2 the number of management systems that	e = 2 0. Okay. Are there any disadvantages,	such as.	
3 associated with that It's not a simple	3 you know the ability to change? If you	ou need	
4 document that we can produce. It's a large	4 to make change is that a difficult pro	ocess	
5 number of policies procedures guideline	5 because it calls for a change all over	r the	
6 that are used depending on the various	6 world?	. the	
7 elements and I'll talk a little bit about it	7 MR SACUTA:		
8 a little bit further in the presentation	8 A I mean it is a very regimented proces	s but I	
9 ROIL OC ·	9 think if you've got an item that needs	s to be	
10 0 To put it in context because other people m	10 looked at and required there's certai	nly a	
11 have systems that they have that they call	11 process by which you can bring it up	and say	
12 information or integrated management syst	12 we need to consider whether or not th	ere needs	
there might be 100 or 200 how many page	13 to be a change made to this integ	rity	
14 if we were to download all the documents	d 14 management system. It is a worldwide	e process	
15 print them all what sort of volume would	15 so with that comes the benefits and th	en also	
16 have?	16 a little bit maybe of a snail's pace wh	en it	
17 MP SACUTA:	10 a nucle of a maybe of a shart's pace with	meath the	
17 MR. SACUTA.	17 comes to enange, if needed, but under	can build	
19 hundreds of pages but hundreds of documents, no	19 your own documents as well that fit is	to that	
20 ROIL O.C.	20 process	no mai	
21 0 Okay and this is the Evyon one that is use	$\begin{array}{c} 20 \\ 21 \text{ ROH } \Omega C \end{array}$		
21 Q. Okay, and this is the EXAMPTION one that is use	21 NOIL, Q.C 22 0 Okay so it doesn't distate avery single	e thing	
22 wondwhile, is it? 23 MD SACUTA:	22 Q. Okay, so it doesn't dictate every siligit	c unig	
23 with SACUTA.	25 you call up:		
1^{24} A. That's context. So what it is, it's a	24 IVIN. SACUTA.		

January 1	18, 2010 Multi	-Pag	e TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 49			Page 51
1 or	policies within the Operations Integrity	1		operations, which includes the concept of
2 M	Ianagement System.	2		safety analysis completed during the design
3 ROIL 0.0	C.:	3		phase, the development of the original
	kav.	4		operational plan, pre-start readiness reviews
5 MR SAC	UTA:	5		prior to 1997, an updates to the operations
6 A OI	IMS provides Hibernia Management with the	6		plan that have been completed since start up
7 fr	amework for meeting the safety health and	7		and aviation operation sorry aviation risk
8 en	vironment statement of commitment which we	8		assessments as required by our Operations
9 ha	ad talked about earlier. Section 3	9		Integrity Management System, and I'll talk
	immarizes processes and procedures used to	10		about that a little bit further in the
11 en	nsure safe helicopter operations and	11		presentation as well.
12 do	ocuments commitments made regarding	12 R	OIL.	0.C.:
13 he	elicopter services, including adherence to	13	0.	Okay. The Integrated Management System, is it
14 th	e Hibernia Helicopter Operations Manual and	14	Č.	designed specifically toward helicopters, or
15 OU	r Aviation Operations Guide, to provide	15		is it designed towards a larger piece of
16 fli	ight tracking by satellite-based flight	16 M	R. S.	ACUTA:
17 fo	llowing system, which you've heard last	17	Α.	It's designed to overall operations of the
18 we	eek, the Blue Sky System.	18		Hibernia Platform, not just helicopters:
19 ROIL, 0.0	C.:	19		maintenance, production, drilling, safety,
20 O. Tł	hat's the Blue Sky, is it?	20		incident investigations, emergency response.
21 MR. SAC	CUTA:	21		It's all encompassing when it comes to safety.
22 A. Ye	es.	22 R	OIL,	Q.C.:
23 ROIL, Q.0	C.:	23	Q.	Okay, so if I said that by reading the
24 Q. Ye	eah, okay.	24		operational plan, for example, you wouldn't
25 MR. SAC	CUTA:	25		find a whole pile of references to
	Page 50			Page 52
1 A. A.	nd then we also have the commitment for a	1		helicopters, or if I looked at any of the
2 sta	andby helicopter in St. John's, and a	2		other processes under the OIMS System, would I
3 sta	andby vessel at the Hibernia Platform 24	3		expect to see a lot of references to
4 ho	ours, seven days a week, to respond to	4		helicopters, or is it directing me to
5 en	nergency events.	5		processes that would apply to helicopters and
6 ROIL, Q.	C.:	6		other things?
7 Q. A	nd we'll talk about those in a little more	7 M	R. S.	ACUTA:
8 de	etail as we proceed, I gather.	8	A.	I mean, it would it would direct you to
9 MR. SAC	CUTA:	9		documents. For example, the Helicopter
10 A. Se	ection 4, the basis of safe operations	10		Operations Manual, which is a document within
11 de	escribes the hazard assessments and safety	11		the OIMS System, a lower level document. It
12 stu	udies carried out during both the design and	12		would also have the Aviation Operations Guide.
13 op	perational phases of the Hibernia Platform.	13		Risk assessment, for example, might not
14 It	describes the Hibernia installation and	14		specifically be associated with helicopter
15 op	perational systems that prevent, control, and	15		operations, but it provides you the foundation
16 m	itigate hazards and their escalation. It	16		under which you could do a risk assessment
17 de	escribes Hibernia's risk assessment process	17		associated with helicopter operations.
18 an	nd the assessment criteria, and it summarizes	18 R	OIL,	Q.C.:
19 th	e detailed assessment of each potential	19	Q.	Or any other operation?
20 m	ajor hazard identified. Section 4 does	20 M	R. S.	ACUTA:
21 in	clude a summary of the studies and risk	21	A.	Or any other operation, that's correct. So
22 as	ssessments of helicopter transportation.	22		Safety Management System provides a systematic
23 He	elicopter transportation risks have been	23		approach to managing safety. The Safety
24 re	eviewed at all phases of the Hibernia	24		Management System identifies hazards and
25 pr	roject, from conceptual design to current	25		ensures associated risk is eliminated or

Januar	ry 18, 2010 Mult	i-P	age™	¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 53			Page 55
1	effectively managed. A typical Safety	1		what they are, what they deal with, so that we
2	Management System includes an integrated	2		understand the whole
3	organizational structure, responsibilities and	3	MR S	ACUTA
4	accountabilities, policies and procedures, and	4	A	I'll talk about the ones we will be touching
5	a measurement feedback and continuous	5		on. We'll be talking risk assessment and
6	improvement process. So as I mentioned HMDC	6		management personnel and training operations
7	safety management system is called the	7		and maintenance third party services
8	Operations Integrity Management System It's	8		incident investigation and community
9	a systematic and structured approach to the	9		awareness and emergency preparedness, will be
10	management of safety, health, environment, and	10		the ones we'll be discussing today.
11	security. It is focused on identifying	11	ROIL	0.C.:
12	hazards and managing risk, and it is a mature	12	0.	Okay, what do the ones you have not mentioned.
13	and globally tested system through	13	Č.	iust to give us a
14	ExxonMobil's worldwide operations. As far as	14	MR. S.	ACUTA:
15	stewardship and sustainment go, there's a high	15	A.	Facilities design and construction
16	level of management involvement and	16	ROIL,	0.C.:
17	accountability. It ensures safety and	17	Q.	A one line sort of explanation as to what they
18	environmental compliance with applicable laws	18		do.
19	and regulations and drives continuous	19	MR. S.	ACUTA:
20	improvement. Workforce participation is key	20	Q.	Facilities design and construction would be if
21	to OIMS effectiveness, and OIMS is fully	21		you're building something new on the Platform,
22	integrated into HMDC's operations and impacts	22		adding some equipment. That would be the
23	all work activities on the Platform.	23		element that would be applicable. Information
24 ROIL	<i>.</i> , Q.C.:	24		documentation is how we maintain our records
25 Q.	So workforce participation, I take it,	25		and our files, for example. Management of
	Page 54			Page 56
1	somewhere in this presentation we will get to	1		change is how you manage change at your
2	how that is	2		facility. We have a process in place to
- 3 MR. S	ACUTA:	3		document process for managing change on a
4 A.	Yes, we're going to talk about personnel	4		facility.
5	safety and accountability in Mr. Fraser's	5	ROIL	. O.C.:
6	section.	6	Q.	So if something changes, there's a process to
7 ROIL	Q.C.:	7		undertake that change?
8 Q.	Good, okay. Thank you.	8	MR. S	SACUTA:
9 MR. S	ACUTA:	9	A.	Right. If you were to add a new compressor,
10 A.	So there are eleven elements of OIMS and they	10		for example, on a facility, you would have to
11	are listed on this slide. Management	11		follow the management of change process.
12	leadership, commitment, and accountability is	12	ROIL	, Q.C.:
13	the driver. Execution is provided by a number	13	Q.	And then the 11th, the evaluation process?
14	of specific elements, a number of which I will	14	MR. S	SACUTA:
15	be discussing in the next set of slides, and	15	А.	The evaluation, integrity assessment, and
16	including Mr. Fraser. The evaluation is also	16		improvement, that's where you actually
17	key as it provides the opportunity to assess	17		evaluate compliance with OIMS. You have a
18	compliance, identify opportunities for	18		team come in, and I'll talk a little bit
19	improvement, review them with management, and	19		further about auditing and how you identify
20	track any actions to closure. This allows a	20		areas for improvement, how you implement an
21	continuous improvement cycle to exist.	21		action plan and track those areas to closure.
22 ROIL	Q.C.:	22	ROIL	, Q.C.:
23 Q.	Okay, of these eleven elements then, which	23	Q.	So, in fact, the audit process would be a part
24	ones will be not be touching on in our further	24		of the 11?
25	discussion, and perhaps you can just mention	25	MR. S	SACUTA:

Jan	uary 18, 2010	Multi	-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 57			Page 59
1	A. That's correct, and any report that comes out		1	А.	Of the 11 elements, that's correct.
2	of that Element 11 would then go back to		2	ROIL.	0.C.:
3	Element 1, which is management. They would	be	3	0.	Okay, and then the guidelines
4	provided with the results of the audit with		4	MR. S	ACUTA:
5	the recommendations for improvement.		5	A.	When you get down to the 40 management
61	ROIL O.C.:		6		systems, for example, like Element 3, as I
7	O. And the circle begins again?		7		mentioned previously, which would be facility
81	MR SACUTA:		8		design and construction, would have three
9	A. And the circle begins.		9		management systems under Element 3.
10 1	ROIL O.C.:		10	ROIL	0.C.:
11	O. Okav. The next slide. I think, is a		11	0.	Right.
12	particularly useful one in terms of trying to		12	MR. S	ACUTA:
13	visualize a large document like your OIMS.		13	Α.	Broken down between quality control, project
14 1	MR SACUTA		14		management. So some of the elements have
15	A. Right. So underneath the 11 elements there		15		management systems underneath them. Risk
16	are 64 expectations and 223 guidelines and		16		management for example is its own element
17	then from there these are all covered under		17		It's Element 2 and risk assessment and
18	40 management systems Those 40 managem	ent	18		management is the only thing that's under that
19	systems 24 of them are associated with		19		element
20	production and 16 of them are associated with		20	ROII	
20	drilling Within the management systems are		20	NOIL,	But some of the other elements have
$\begin{vmatrix} 21 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	objectives procedures resource and		21	MR S	
22	responsibilities a verification and		22	Δ	Have multiple management systems underneath
23	measurement process and a feedback and		23	А.	them. Element 6 would be the best example
24	improvement process. So that's a		24	RUII	OC:
		D 50		RolL,	D ₁ = 2 (0)
	having the it is a harmal and a firm of	Page 58		0	Page 60
	basically, it just shows now you go from t	ne inte		Q.	is there any way to sort of identify now many
	If elements and come down with mult	ipie	2		of these expectations of guidelines of
3	the tan and then it expended from them as the	IS 1S	3		management systems might impact helicopter
	the top and then it expands from there as t	.0		100	operations? Can you draw that kind of a line?
5	the expectations of OIMS.		5	MR. S	ACUIA:
61	KOIL, Q.C.:		6	А.	I don't think I can draw that kind of a line.
	Q. So these are cascading sort of levels of				I mean, certainly anything any of the
8	direction?		8		guidelines potentially could impact hencopter
91	MR. SACUTA:		9	DOU	operations, depending what the guideline is.
	A. Correct.		10	ROIL,	
	ROIL, Q.C.:		11	Q.	Okay.
12	Q. Okay, because I think others will use thin	gs	12	MR. S	
13	like triangles and what not to describe thei	r	13	A.	So without getting into specific details of
14	regimes, so		14		the 223 guidelines, there are expectations
15 1	MR. SACUTA:		15		that you audit contractors, for example,
16	A. Right.		16		may be one of the guidelines, and as Cougar is
17 1	ROIL, Q.C.:		17		a contractor, that would be one that would
18	Q. So this is the way that you've explained th	15	18		follow under helicopter operations. So the
19	one.		19		III alscuss would be Element I,
$ ^{20}$ 1	MR. SACUTA:		20		which is management leadership, commitment,
21	A. Kight.		21		and accountability. Management establishes
$ ^{22}$	ROIL, Q.C.:		22		policy, provides perspective, sets
23	Q. So the 64 expectations, they are a further	-	23		expectations, and provides the resources for
$ ^{24}$	detail of the 11 elements?		24		successful operations. Assurance of
25 1	MR. SACUTA:		25		operations integrity requires management,

January 18, 2010	Multi-I	Page ¹	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 61		Page 63
1 leadership, and commitment visible to t	the	1 MR.	SACUTA:
2 organization, and accountability at all		2 A	. There's two ways. There are certain people
3 levels.		3	that would be on a controlled document list
4 ROIL, Q.C.:		4	that would get controlled copies of those
5 Q. So that is the statement of Element 1?		5	polices, like the OIM, for example, or myself,
6 MR. SACUTA:		6	but we also have an information management
7 A. That is the statement for Element 1.		7	website that would allow access so that you
8 ROIL, Q.C.:		8	could go online and actually look at the
9 Q. Okay.		9	policy. So there's key people that are
10 MR. SACUTA:	1	0	identified as requiring hard copies, which is
11 A. Underneath it would be the expectation, w	which 1	1	the controlled distribution, and then there's
12 is systems for operations integrity manage	ement 1	2	the information management website that would
13 are established, communicated, and supp	orted 1	3	allow any number of individuals to go online
14 at every level in the organization. So that	t 1	4	and actually see the document.
15 would be the expectation under Element 1	. 1	5 ROI	L, Q.C.:
16 ROIL, Q.C.:	1	6 Q	And the employees on board, on the 21 day
17 Q. So Element 1 would only have one expect	tation? 1	7	rotation, do they have regular access to that
18 MR. SACUTA:	1	8	kind of website?
19 A. This expectation would be under Elemer	nt 1, 1	9 MR.	SACUTA:
20 that's correct.	2	20 A	. A large number of them would, depending on
21 ROIL, Q.C.:	2	21	whether or not they had an e-mail address set
22 Q. Could there be others?	2	2	up, for example. Some of our employees come
23 MR. SACUTA:	2	.3	on and don't have the need to have an actual
A. In some cases, we haven't identified all of	of 2	.4	e-mail address, but anybody who does have a
25 the expectations, and in some cases there :	may 2	.5	LAN ID, a local area network ID, would then
	Page 62		Page 64
1 only be one.		1	have the opportunity to have access to the
2 ROIL, Q.C.:		2	information management website.
3 Q. Yes, okay.		3 roil	2, Q.C.:
4 MR. SACUTA:		4 Q	. And if an employee didn't have the familiarity
5 A. So guidelines, OIMS is used throughout t	the	5	with electronic servicing, are there paper
6 organization. We maintain and public pol	licies	6	copies available?
7 that address safety, health, the environment	nt,	7 MR.	SACUTA:
8 and security, that are consistent with OIM	1S	8 A	. There are paper copies available. He can go
9 expectations and guidelines. Managers er	isure	9	see the OIM. Sometimes his supervisor will
10 that business objectives are consistent wi	th 1	0	have a controlled copy. So there are hard
11 OIMS expectations and guidelines, and sys	tems 1	1	copies available to employees on the facility.
12 are established to address the OIMS	1	2 ROIL	., Q.C.:
13 expectations and guidelines consistent w	ith 1	3 Q	. Okay, thank you.
14 the characteristics of management syste	ems 1	4 MR.	SACUTA:
15 defined in OIMS.	1	5 A	. So as far as performance reviews go, we want
16 ROIL, Q.C.:	1	6	to obtain feedback from the following sources
17 Q. Now just taking, for example, the seco	nd 1	7	to ensure continuous improvement. We get
18 bullet under guidelines, you maintain an	nd 1	8	feedback from the workforce and the users,
19 publish policies.	1	9	management stewardship by regular verification
20 MR. SACUTA:	2	20	and measurement feedback, we do annual company
21 A. Yes.	2	.1	assessments, and the way OIMS is set up is
22 ROIL, Q.C.:	2	2	that you have to do an annual assessment.
23 Q. How would HMDC publish in this electr	onic 2	3	Every third year it must be done by a team
24 world? Are these done by printing and po	osting 2	.4	external to your organization. So year one
in places or are they on a website, or how	2	5	and year two, you would put together an

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi	i-Page TM		¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
]	Page 65			Page 67
1	internal team to do the assessment.	0	1		permits, we make sure that the permits are
2	ROIL, Q.C.:		2		done properly, that the work is done safety,
3	O. That's a self-assessment?		3		they all realize that they have an opportunity
4	MR. SACUTA:		4		to provide feedback or improvement
5	A. Self-assessment.		5		opportunities to any process or procedure we
6	OROIL, O.C.:		6		use offshore.
7	Q. Yes.		7	ROIL	, Q.C.:
8	MR. SACUTA:		8	Q.	This work permit, that's an internal permit
9	A. With HMDC personnel, and then in the third		9		you're talking about there, is it?
10	year what we do is bring in a team from		10	MR. S	SACUTA:
11	outside of the HMDC organization, usually a		11	A.	That's an internal it's how you control
12	series of ExxonMobil specialists from various		12		work, make sure the worksite is safe before
13	areas around the world, and they come in and		13		you start work.
14	measure compliance with the OIMS expectations		14	ROIL	. O.C.:
15	That team would be made up of a number of wh	nat	15	0.	Okay, the next section we're dealing with now
16	I would call OIMS experts that are familiar		16		is the risk management area.
17	with the system that would be able to come in		17	MR. S	SACUTA:
18	and measure that you are meeting the		18	A.	Yes. In this section, I'm going to describe
19	expectations and the guidelines identified in		19		how Hibernia's risk assessment and management
$ _{20}$	the various OIMS documents. We also have the		20		process work, and then specifically discuss
21	certifying authority, Lloyd's Register, doing		21		risk assessments associated with aviation
22	quarterly inspections and audits, and also the		22		operations. As you can see, this is OIMS
23	C-NLOPB does quarterly inspections based on		23		Element 2, risk assessment and management. So
24	our commitments in the ops plan, which		24		the purpose of OIMS Element 2 is to prevent or
25	outlines OIMS. They would measure us against		25		mitigate the undesirable consequences of
		Dogo 66			Dago 68
1	those commitments and any supportin	age 00	1		notential incidents by identifying
	documentation that is tied to the Operation	s s	1 2		evaluating and controlling bazards and
	Integrity Management System	.5	2		evaluating, and controlling hazards, and
			3		and prudent manner. It's important to note
	What did you meen with the bullet workfor	raa	4		that not all hazards can be aliminated and
	and user input?	лсе	5		therefore must be managed. Accordingly a
	MD SACUTA.		7		rick management process is required. The
	MR. SACUTA. $for example one of A At any point in time for example one of A At any point in time for example one of A At any point in the time of A At any $	f	/ 0		objectives are to perform formal risk
	the systems that is an OIMS system is wor	ı İz	0		assessments for ongoing operations projects
10	management on the Platform the control	of	9		and maintenance activities, and manage risk to
	work system permitting system. If they have	va	10		a level that is as low as reasonably
	some concerns or issues with the process		11		a level that is as low as reasonably
$ _{12}^{12}$	use they can provide feedback as to an	we	12	DOIL	
13	improvement opportunity. So there's alw	ave	13	KUIL	If L can just ston you there because that
14	the opportunity for the work force to opport	ays	14	Q.	avpression " as low as reasonably practicable"
15	this process and recommend improvements	to our	15		comes up. I think in other presentations as
17	processes and procedures	10 001	10		well. Is that an industry expression that is
10	POL OC:		1/		used sort of by other companies as well?
10	0 NOLL, Q.C		10	МРС	ased soft of by other companies as well:
219	v = 0. Is more a process that the outlages that, of is it a $-$ how is that known by the workforce?	,	19 20	IVIK. 2	It's a well used expression in the oil and gas
$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	MD SACUTA:		20	A.	husiness certainly and I believe it's used in
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. SACUIA:		21		other industries as well
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	A. I UNIK UNE WOIKIOICE, JUST DASEU ON THE		22	DOIL	
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{vmatrix}$	to safety and to for example work	C	23 24		Right and what relationship does reasonably
$\begin{vmatrix} 24 \\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$	management and the fact that we audit of	ur	24 25	Q.	nracticable have to do with costs?
Ľ	management and the fact that we addle 0	u1	<i></i>		Practication in a volto at writin costs:

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-P	Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 69		Page 71
1	MR. SACUTA:		1	evaluation, and control, is the first step in
2	A. I mean, I think there are times when you ca	an't 2	2	the process. Depending on the results of the
3	ignore the cost when you're looking at as l	ow 3	3	first step will determine if a risk assessment
4	as reasonably practicable, but I wouldn't sa	i y 4	1	is required, and this is a very simplistic
5	cost is the major factor in looking on wheth	ner 5	5	drawing; basically, hazard identification,
6	or not the risk is as low as reasonably	6	5	evaluation, and control. Depending on the
7	practicable. We don't ignore cost, but it's	7	7	results of that, you may have to do a formal
8	not the major factor.	8	3	risk assessment which would include risk
9	ROIL, Q.C.:	9)	management that came out of that risk
10	Q. Okay. Perhaps we'll come back to that be	cause 10)	assessment, any follow-up and stewardship of
11	I think you have heard presenters here	11	1	actions that were required, and those three
12	recently say that cost should never be the	12	2	boxes at the bottom are basically the feedback
13	driver, cost should not be a consideration	13	3	for continuous improvement process that you
14	when safety of the workforce is at play.	14	1	would follow during any hazard identification
15	MR. SACUTA:	15	5	process. As I've mentioned, periodic risk
16	A. Right.	16	5	assessments of major ongoing activities,
17	ROIL, Q.C.:	17	7	including helicopter transportation, have to
18	Q. Okay, so we'll just keep our eye on that	18	3	be conducted a minimum of every five years.
19	expression and see how it gets applied.	19) ROIL,	Q.C.:
20	MR. SACUTA:	20) Q.	So I take it that during the past five years
21	A. Okay. We want to manage the risk assess	ment 21	1	we should find an assessment of helicopter
22	process and associated activities to ensure	22	2	operations?
23	timely close-out of findings. We want to	23	3 MR. S	ACUTA:
24	ensure that risks are communicated to th	e 24	4 A.	Yeah, 2005 sorry, 2006 was the last one
25	relevant parties affected by the risk and any	y 25	5	done by Hibernia. So risk assessment of
		Page 70		Page 72
1	learnings are shared, and periodic risk		1	Hibernia's helicopter transportation was
2	assessments are conducted on a minimum	n of 2	2 1	undertaken in 2006 to identify potential
3	every five years for major ongoing operation	ons, 3	3]	hazards and risks, define safeguards, and
4	such as helicopter transportation offshore.	4	1 1	recommend improvement opportunities. As far
5	ROIL, O.C.:	5	5 8	as the risk assessment team goes, proper
6	0. So risks are communicated to relevant part	ies 6	5 1	representation on any risk assessment team is
7	affected. How would that take place in ter	ms 7	7	essential to ensuring hazard scenarios are
8	of helicopter transportation or helicopter us	se 8	3 1	properly identified and assessed. The
9	or helidecks or anything?	ç)	Hibernia aviation operations risk assessment
10	MR. SACUTA:	10) 1	team included the following representation;
11	A. I mean, there's various methods under whi	ch we 11	1 :	from HMDC, a risk mitigation engineer; the
12	could communicate risk. We could do	it 12	2	logistics coordinator, who is an onshore
13	through the JOHS Committees, we could d	o it 13	3	position; the services supervisor, who was an
14	through the independent departmental saf	ety 14	4	offshore employee working a 21 day on, 21 day
15	meetings which John will be talking abou	ta 15	5	off rotation; one of our offshore installation
16	little bit later, we can do it through town	16	5 1	managers, also working a 21 on, 21 off; an
17	halls, and we can do it through providing	g 17	7	ExxonMobil aviation advisor out of our
18	PowerPoint presentations, for example, th	iat 18	3	ExxonMobil corporate aviation department; Risk
19	would be posted on bulletin boards offsho	re. 19)	Management Research Institute representatives,
20	There are a number of methods that we co	ould 20) 1	they're the contract service provider for risk
21	communicate those risks.	21	1 1	management that we use at Hibernia; and it
22	ROIL, Q.C.:	22	2	also included Cougar personnel. the flight
23	Q. Okay.	23	3	operations manager, the base aviation safety
24	MR. SACUTA:	24	1 (officer, and the base operations manager. I
25	A. So at a high level, hazard identification.	25	5 ,	wanted to be sure that when you looked at that

January 18, 2010 Mul	ti-Page TM Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
Page 7	3 Page 75
team that you realized there were frequent	1 regulatory not regulatory is the systems
2 users of the helicopters on that team both	2 requirement?
3 the services supervisor and the offshore	3 MR SACUTA
4 installation manager, would travel every three	4 A. You can't go longer than five years, but
5 weeks to or from the Platform.	5 there's nothing to stop you from doing it
6 ROIL O.C.:	6 after five months if there's been a change in
7 0. Yes. I think we've had other presenters, and	7 any of the hazard scenarios.
8 through questioning by other counsel the	8 ROIL O.C.
9 question has come up about worker	9 0. Right. Okay, we'll probably do one more slide
10 representatives Is there any non-management	10 and that will be a place to break
11 person who's a worker representative on this	11 MR. SACUTA:
12 group?	12 A. Okay, well, this will be a long slide, but I
13 MR SACUTA:	13 will do it, yeah.
14 A Not on the group that did this risk	14 ROIL O.C.:
15 assessment, but certainly there were users of	15 0. Well, if it's a long slide and it's going to
16 the helicopters between the services	16 take more than five minutes, maybe we should
17 supervisor and the offshore installation	17 break now and come back.
18 manager.	18 MR SACUTA:
19 ROIL O.C.:	19 A. Okay. I think we should probably break now.
20 0. So your position is that the interest of any	20 ROIL O.C.:
21 traveller is covered by the fact that there	21 0. We should probably break. Commissioner.
22 are managers who travel?	22 (RECESS)
23 MR. SACUTA:	23 ROIL O.C.:
24 A. That's correct.	24 0. Mr. Sacuta, by the fact that we have slide 29
25 ROIL O.C.:	25 back up. I take it there's something you
Page 7	A Bage 76
1 0 The other question that Lyas going to ask you	r age 70
2 about this risk assessment that was done in	discussion?
2 about this fisk assessment that was done in 2 2006 L take it that that was done as a part	2 UISCUSSION:
4 of your ordinary cycle?	5 MR. SACUTA:
5 MD SACUTA.	4 A. Tean, I just wanted to clarify, the 11
6 A That's correct	5 ciclinents, the 04 expectations, the 225
7 POIL O.C.	the framework under which we operate but
8 O Every five years a major operation is risk	where the rubber bits the road from an HMDC
a generation of the second of	 where the rubber links the road from all himber perspective is the pext level in particular
7 assessed. If there were an incident of a	the procedures HMDC is responsible for the
10 reason, could a fisk assessment, of have you	10 development the undefine the issuance of the
12 type being performed out of sequence?	12 procedures themselves. So we are responsible
12 type being performed out of sequence:	12 procedures themselves. So we are responsible
14 A Absolutely and I think after March 12th we	14 procedures have to not contradict any of OIMS
15 did get together and do a revisit of this risk	15 framework So for example the Heliconter
16 assessment to see if there was anything that	16 Operations Manual is a Hibernia specific
10 assessment to see if there was anything that 17 needed to be outlined or improved as part of	10 Operations Manual is a Theenia specific to
18 that risk assessment. There was a crosscheck	18 Hibernia
19 with a smaller team than was done for the main	
20 risk assessment but we did get together and	20 = 0 So that would would that be a procedure?
21 see if there was anything that was missed in	21 MR SACUTA:
the risk assessment done in 2006 based on what	22 A That would be a procedure
23 we experienced in March of 2009	23 ROIL O.C.:
24 ROIL O.C.:	24 0. And that's in our little cascading pictures
25 Q. Okay, so once every five years is the	25 here, that would be underneath the 40

Ja	nuary 18, 2010 Mult	i-Pa	age™	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 77			Page 79
1	management systems?	1	0.	If HMDC said it didn't want to have a
2	MR. SACUTA:	2		Helicopter Operations Manual, that might
3	A. Correct.	3		require if one of the management systems
4	ROIL, Q.C.:	4		said "thou shalt have a helicopter operations
5	Q. Yes.	5		procedure".
6	MR. SACUTA:	6	MR. S	ACUTA:
7	A. Now, for example, the Helicopter Operations	7	А.	If there was something that specific.
8	Manual which is specific to Hibernia's	8	ROIL,	Q.C.:
9	helicopter operations, the helicopter landing	9	Q.	Yeah, or if we
10	officer would have a copy of it, the services	10	MR. S	ACUTA:
11	supervisor would have a copy of it, the	11	A.	If we wanted to put something in that document
12	offshore installation manager would have a	12		that was outside of the OIMS framework, that
13	copy of it, and at any point in time if any of	13		would be something that would be a concern for
14	those individuals wanted to make a change or	14		us, but just as long as we stay within the
15	an improvement, there is the opportunity for	15		OIMS framework, we can write our own
16	that to be done. We don't have to go through	16		procedures for our own specific requirements
17	all the way up through the chain of command to	17		because OIMS does not know where you operate.
18	get that from an ExxonMobil perspective.	18		it's basically the framework under which you
19	Depending on the nature of the procedure, for	19		operate. So we are responsible for providing
20	example the offshore installation manager	20		our own procedures and can update them at any
$ _{21}^{20}$	could approve a change	21		point in time
$\begin{vmatrix} 21 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$		$\begin{vmatrix} 21 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	ROII	
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	O Yes	$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	NOIL,	So your comment that "slowness sometimes comes
$ _{24}^{23}$	Q. TOS.	23	Q.	with the structure" that applies a higher
24	A I could approve a change but it doesn't have	24		level is knocked down at the procedures?
25	A. Teourd approve a change, but it doesn't have	25		level is knocked down at the procedures.
	Page /8			Page 80
	to go any night than mysell to make those		MR. S.	ACUTA:
	established from every it's up to UNIDG to put		A.	On the framework.
	to act here their own proceedings to most the	3	ROIL,	Q.C.:
	together their own procedures to meet the		Q.	On the framework.
5	expectations and the guidelines that are	5	MR. S.	ACUTA:
6	contained with OIMS. OIMS does not dictate	6	A.	Where the rubber hits the road, from my
7	the specifics of what the procedures have to	17		perspective, we have ample opportunity and no
8	say. They just have this overlying framework	8		hindrance on time for us if we want to change
9	as to what you have to meet. So when I	9		one of our procedures.
10	discussed it this morning, I didn't think I	10	ROIL,	Q.C.:
11	did a very good job of making sure you	11	Q.	Okay, I think that's a good clarification.
12	understood that from an HMDC perspective, we	12		Thank you. Okay, now I guess we can move back
13	are responsible for developing our own	13		to slide 38.
14	procedures, for maintaining them, for	14	MR. S.	ACUTA:
15	soliciting feedback on those procedures, and	15	A.	Right.
16	for change in them if required based on that	16	ROIL,	Q.C.:
17	feedback.	17	Q.	Your aviation operations risk assessment
18	ROIL, Q.C.:	18		discussion.
19	Q. Okay, so I take it that from what you've now	19	MR. S	ACUTA:
20	said that if you needed a change in your	20	A.	Right. So the aviation operations risk
21	Helicopter Operations Manual, that can be done	21		assessment methodology was a scenario-based
22	site specific?	22		approach, which included identifying a hazard,
23	MR. SACUTA:	23		defining the risk scenario, defining any
24	A. Absolutely.	24		existing safeguards that are in place, and
25	ROIL, Q.C.:	25		I'll go through some of those in detail in my

	January	y 18, 2010 N	Aulti-Pa	age	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
ſ		Pag	re 81		Page 83
	1	subsequent slides. Determining the	1		and say three months from now I have a planned
	2	consequence and the probability, plotting that	2		shutdown of the entire facility which would
	3	on our risk matrix, identifying any	3		provide a better opportunity to coordinate
	4	improvement opportunities to mitigate those	4		this activity without having a significant
	5	risks, and then distribute those improvement	5		impact on production, but the risk associated
	6	opportunities to closure. You will notice	6		with doing that would be that you could have a
	7	that the Hibernia risk assessment is a four by	7		more significant failure of the bearing, no
	8	five matrix. We've heard five by five, seven	8		safety risk associated with that, but it may
	9	by seven. Ours is a four by five, which has	9		cause additional damage to the equipment,
	10	the highest level of risk in the top left hand	10		which would increase the length of time under
	11	corner. So the black risk would be considered	l 11		which you would have to repair the compressor.
	12	the highest, the grey risk would be considered	12		So you're taking a black financial risk
	13	a medium risk, and the white risk would be	13		because of the added down time component based
	14	considered the lowest risk on our matrix.	14		on comparing it against delaying the repair
	15 ROIL,	Q.C.:	15		for three months until you can schedule it
	16 Q.	Okay. Are there any rules about this black,	16		during a planned activity. So within those
	17	grey, and white in other words, if an	17		three months, if it did have a failure, then
	18	activity, even after risk management, still	18		you may have an extended shutdown over what it
	19	stays up in A1, in that quadrant there	19		would normally take if you had a planned
	20 MR. S	ACUTA:	20		opportunity. So that would be an example of a
	21 A.	Right.	21		black risk, a financial risk.
	22 ROIL,	Q.C.:	22	COM	MISSIONER:
	23 Q.	Still be undertaken?	23	Q.	But if there was a safety aspect to it
	24 MR. S	ACUTA:	24	MR. S	SACUTA:
	25 A.	So the consequence has four different	25	A.	Right, if we had a piece of equipment that had
ľ		Pag	re 82		Page 84
	1	categories when we look at consequence. One	2 1		a safety component should it fail, that placed
	2	is health and safety. one is environmental			our workforce at risk, we would shut it down
	3	impact, one is public disruption, and one is	3		immediately and repair it immediately. We
	4 1	financial impact. We would not operate in the	4		would not operate with a black safety risk.
	5	black area if it was a health and safety	5		On a probability perspective, there are five
	6	issue. There may be times that the financial	6		levels of probability. "A" is defined as the
	7 1	risk may end up as a black risk. We would	7		possibility of repeated incidents, which is
	8	operate in that situation provided there were	8		defined as 20 or more times in the facility
	9 1	no black safety risks. So as an example, I	9		life. "B" is the possibility of isolated
	10	can give you an example, we have gas	10		incidents, which is between 5 and 20 times in
	11 (compressors on the Platform that we have full	11		a facility life "C" is the possibility of
	12 i	instrumentation to monitor vibration, and we	12		occurring some time. 1 to 5 times in a
	13	could have a trend that indicated that a	13		facility life "D" is not likely to occur in
	14	bearing on a gas compressor may be slowly	14		the life of a facility, and "E" is practically
	15	increasing in vibration and you could have	15		impossible or extremely unlikely to occur in
	16 1	two options. You could shut down the	16		the life of a facility. All risk assessments.
	17	compressor and change that bearing out prior	17		regardless of the risk assessment rating, are
	18 1	to a failure. When we shut down gas	18		approved by the HMDC President, myself.
	19	compressors offshore, it does have a	19		Depending on the level of risk, may require
	20 1	production impact because the gas that is	20		higher level managerial endorsement, such as a
	- 1 21 1	produced is re-injected, and if we can't re-	21		technical supervisory endorsement or a safety
	- 1 22 i	inject it, then we can't flare it so	2.2		health and environment endorsement. depending
	23	generally you have to cut production. So you	23		on the level of risk, but all risk assessments
	24 1	may decide to shut it down immediately to	24		are approved by myself.
	25 1	replace that bearing, or you may look at it	25	ROIL	, Q.C.:
1			1		

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page [™]	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
Pas	ge 85	Page 87
1 0. So you personally sign off that you've seen.	1	are measured already in place to prevent the
2 you understand, and you accept?	2	hazard scenario from occurring or to reduce
3 MR SACUTA:	3	the potential impact Some of the safeguards
4 A Lunderstand the risk and Laccept	4	related to helicopter operations include the
5 ROIL OC:	5	key preventative safeguards which reduce the
6 0 0 kay	6	probability of occurrence would be under the
7 MR SACUTA:		equipment the fact that we have twin turbine
 MR. SACOTA. Any improvement opportunities identified ar 		angine balicopters balicopters with twin
a signed to an appropriate person with a due		engines such that if one failed it was still
10 date. They are stewarded to closure, and they	10	able to fly. The fact that we have two pilots
10 date. They are stewarded to closure, and they 11 do require the HMDC President's approval to	10	on the cockpit such that if one becomes
aither close or to extend that due date. So	11	inconscituted we have a backup to fly back
12 entitier close of to extend that due date. So	12	We have believe to have a backup to hy back.
15 we fly to steward to a due date. If for some	15	halidaak ta aid in visibility. Wa have deised
14 Teason, mey cannot close that improvement	14	aspekle sizereft should they some into an
then there have to submit non-service for more	15	capable allerant should they come into an
16 then they have to submit paperwork for my	16	icing situation. We have an alternate
approval to extend that due date. At any time	1/	Ultramine there are flag around a Tame Name the
18 the risk assessment improvement opportunity	18 18	Hibernia, they can fly over to Terra Nova, the
19 closed of recommended for closure, it takes in	1y 19	Sea Rose, and if there are tankers in the
20 endorsement or my approval for them to clos	e 20	area, the tankers that service our operations
21 that risk assessment action.	21	do have helidecks and they can land on the
22 ROIL, Q.C.:	22	tankers.
23 Q. Okay, if the Commissioner doesn't have any	y 23 ROIL,	Q.C.:
24 further questions, we'll move on to the next	24 Q.	Okay, let's just discuss that. So at Terra
25 one.	25	Nova, depending on whether that was drilling,
Pag	ge 86	Page 88
1 COMMISSIONER:	1	they were drilling and producing, there could
2 Q. It's really a matter what you do then is	2	be two sites there, and would you use the
3 balancing things, isn't it, to find an	3	facilities?
4 appropriate balance?	4 MR. S	ACUTA:
5 MR. SACUTA:	5 A.	For example, right now Terra Nova isn't doing
6 A. Correct.	6	any drilling, but the Husky operation has two
7 COMMISSIONER:	7	drilling rigs that are in service. So you
8 Q. Between not exactly competing interests,	8	could have the Terra Nova facility, the White
9 but risks or opportunities?	9	Rose facility, and potentially two drilling
10 MR. SACUTA:	10	rigs as alternate landing sites.
11 A. I mean, I think that when it comes to safety,	11 ROIL,	Q.C.:
12 we're not going to operate in a black risk.	12 Q.	And as well what are these tankers? Are
13 We just won't do that. There are times, as I	13	these the shuttle tankers?
14 mentioned financially, that we may operate in	14 MR. S	ACUTA:
a black risk just based on the fact that we	15 A.	The shuttle tankers that take oil from
have an opportunity to defer something and tr	y 16	Hibernia, for example, and Terra Nova, into
17 to tie it to another work activity, but when	17	NTL, they are also equipped with a helideck,
it comes to safety and health, we will not	18	so the helicopter could land on the back of a
19 operate in a black risk.	19	tanker if it had to.
20 ROIL, Q.C.:	20 ROIL,	Q.C.:
21 Q. Okay, now I think we're going to be bring thi	s 21 Q.	Okay, and in terms of placement, how often
down to a more concrete discussion about	22	I don't think we've discussed tankers before.
23 aviation risk.	23	How often would there be a tanker in or around
24 MR. SACUTA:	24	the facilities that are part of the Ben Nevis
25 A. Right. So safeguards or existing safeguards	25	Field or the Jean D'Arc Basin, sorry, the

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
Pag	ze 89	Page 91	
Pag 1 area that we've been speaking of up until now 2 MR. SACUTA: 3 A. At our current production rate at Hibernia, we 4 would have a tanker about every six days. I 5 think Terra Nova's would be a little less than 6 that, maybe every seven days, and Husky, 7 probably around the same, six or seven days. 8 So depending on the production profiles and 9 the storage volumes in the vessels, you could 10 have three tankers out there all at the same 11 time loading, or you could have a tanker 12 today, a tanker tomorrow, and a tanker the day 13 after. So there is potentially a tanker	ge 89 1 helic 2 train 3 comp 4 with 5 helic 6 crew 7 for a 8 Coug 9 servi 10 ROIL, Q.C.: 11 Q. So al y 12 13 MR. SACUT	Page 91 opter pilots at any given time. From a ing perspective, we do have training and betence assurance of all personnel involved helicopter operations, from the opter landing officer to the helideck s, and we have annual simulated training ill pilots, which is a function that gar provides as part of their contract ces. l of these are the safeguards that what, ry to put it A:	
14 available at each installation every basically	14 A. Redu	ice the probability.	
 once a week taking a load, but they may overlap. We also have we talked last week about the HUMS system, the Health and Usag Monitoring System, which monitors performa of the helicopters. From an operational perspective, a key preventative safeguard is the fact that we have operational maintenance inspection and testing procedures for our 	15 ROIL, Q.C.: 16 Q. The 17 occu 18 one? 19 MR. SACUT 20 A. That 21 ROIL, Q.C.: 22 Q. Okay	probability, the likelihood of an rrence happening that is a more dramatic A: 's right.	
23 offshore helicopter equipment, like, for	23 MR. SACUT	A:	
24 refuelling, for example. We have maintenanc	e 24 A. We	also have safeguards that reduce the	
25 of our equipment, maintenance of the	25 conse	equences.	
Pag	ge 90	Page 92	
1 helicopter lights, et cetera.	1 ROIL, Q.C.:		
 2 ROIL, Q.C.: 3 Q. But by operation, you don't means hands on 4 operation of the helicopters themselves? 5 MR. SACUTA: 	2 Q. So if 3 MR. SACUT 4 A. Righ 5 ROIL, Q.C.:	something happens? A: t.	
6 A. I mean, Cougar has their own operational.	6 Q. Okay	7.	
 a documents. 9 ROIL, Q.C.: 10 Q. Right, but your assurance to the workforce is 11 that there are operational maintenance and 12 inspection procedures, either you have them of 	7 MR. SACUT 8 A. So fr 9 three 10 helid 11 They pr 12 fixed	A: om an equipment perspective, we've got dedicated foam water monitors on the eck which have three modes of operation. can be fired manually, they can be fired and they can be fired automatically.	
14 MP SACUTA:	13 The	h provide foam and water to the belideck	
15 A That's correct	15 shou	Id there be an incident	
16 ROIL, O.C.:	16 ROIL, O.C.:		
17 Q. Okay.	17 Q. Oka	7. It's obvious to you, but a foam water	
18 MR. SACUTA:	18 mon	tor is what?	
19 A. Weather monitoring and adverse weather flyin	ng 19 MR. SACUT	A:	
 procedures, basically there's visibility restrictions, wind restrictions, and freezing rain restrictions on helicopter operations, 	 20 A. It's 1 21 it als 22 the v 	ike a fire nozzle that sprays water, and o has the ability to spray foam. One of yays that you can put out a hydrocarbon	
and we do have Platform communication with	the 23 fire i	s to blanket it with foam. The foam	
24 helicopter pretty much throughout the flight.	24 separ	rates the fire from oxygen, which is what	
25 Our radio operator can communicate with the	e 25 vou !	need to continue fire, so it puts a laver	

Ja	anuary 18, 2010	Multi-H	Pa	ge TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
Γ		Page 93			Page 95
	1 of foam over any spilled fuel, for example	e.	1		One is to standby the rig itself?
	2 that would then extinguish the fire.		2 1	MR. S	ACUTA:
	3 ROIL, Q.C.:		3	A.	Uh-hm.
4	4 Q. So the land-based equivalent would be fi	re 4	4]	ROIL,	Q.C.:
4	5 hoses and fire extinguishers?	4	5	Q.	And what's the other standby that relates to
(6 MR. SACUTA:		6		helicopter transport?
	7 A. Right, but in our case we have the added	d ,	71	MR. S	ACUTA:
8	8 luxury or the added ability to put foam do	wn s	8	A.	It has to be in close proximity during any
9	because sometimes if you were to spray wa	ater,	9		helicopter landing, which I believe is half a
1	what it would do is just the fire would	10	0		mile and 10 degree offset to the incoming
1	1 continue to burn because it still had an	1	1		flight path. So it's actually a more
12	2 ignition source, the oxygen. So the foan	n 12	2		restricted requirement during helicopter
13	3 removes and separates the fire from the ox	ygen 13	3		landing operations.
14	4 source. We also have all seats are	14	4]	ROIL,	Q.C.:
1.	5 equipped with a four point quick release	e 1:	5	Q.	So during helicopter landing, there is a more
10	6 harness system which is for the protection	of 10	6		defined location for the standby vessel?
17	7 the passengers, and our helicopters are	11	7]	MR. S	ACUTA:
18	8 equipped with floatation. We talked abo	ut 18	8	A.	Yes, it has to be in a predefined location,
19	9 that last week and we're currently in the	19	9		which is closer to the Platform than it may be
20	process of upgrading that floatation.	20	0		during normal standby duties.
2	1 Operationally, we have fully trained	2	1 1	ROIL,	Q.C.:
22	2 helicopter landing officers and a helideck	x 22	2	Q.	And what is its relationship to the flight
23	3 crew to provide rapid response to inciden	ts 23	3		path of a helicopter?
24	4 should one happen on the helideck, and we	also 24	4]	MR. S	ACUTA:
2	5 have flight following and tracking system	n, 2:	5	A.	It's set 10 degrees offset, such that the
F		Page 94			Page 96
.	which is the Blue Sky System Training	all	1		helicopter will fly in it will be 10 degrees
	2 personnel under BST basic survival training, a	or /	1 2		offset so that if there were any issues with
	including training on heliconter safety and	g, l	2		the incoming landing that it would be able to
	4 underwater escape the HUET training	u .	э 1		respond very quickly based on and it's also
	 Dersonal protective equipment all passang 	ore	+ <		used as a observation technique that the pilot
	wear beliconter passenger transportation su		5		can get his bearing to the belideck by seeing
<u>ן</u>	2 equipped with emergency light and a person	onal 7	7		the standby vessel because it's set half a
	locator beacon. There is not reference to		/ 0		mile from the Platform. So it's almost like a
	HUERA on this because this is the risk		0		crosscheck on your final approach to the
	assessment that was done in 2006	11	9		Platform
		1	11		
	$\gamma = 0$ Ves okay	1.	יי ר	NOIL,	Okay so if the helicopter is coming from the
	2 Q. 1CS, 0Kay.	11	2	Q.	northwest
	A MR. SACUTA.	andby 1	э л 1	MD C	ACUTA:
	A. Emergency response, we always have a su		-+ 1 	MR. 5	Pight
	standby beliconter based in St. John's whi	a 1	ן הי		
	is part of the Cougar contractual requirement	nt $1'$	7	KUIL,	Then it would be 10 degrees off from that
	and our commitment in the operations plan	and 1	/ 0	Q.	northwest direction?
	then we also have the Dopertment of Netice	1, and 10	o n	MD C	
	Defence's SAD resources available should		ן ג ח	MIK. S	ACUIA: Right from the direction it approaches the
	Detence s SAK resources available should need them		1	A.	halidack
			ו רי	ייסם	
	2 KUIL, U.L.:	$ ^2$	21	KUIL,	Q.C.: Dether then sitting on the other side?
$\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$	Diptform again we use the word "stor they"	and 2	י ג י ג	Q. MD C	
24	4 Flatform, again we use the word standby	, and $\begin{bmatrix} 2^2 \\ 2^4 \end{bmatrix}$	4] ~	MR. S	ACU1A: Diaht
12	5 I gamer mat standby has two aspects to r	ι. [2:	3	Α.	Rigiit.

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM Offshore He	licopter Safety Inquiry
F	age 97	Page 99
1 ROIL, O.C.:	1 signed off by the Preside	ent?
2 0. And why is it 10 degrees off?	2 MR. SACUTA:	
3 MR. SACUTA:	3 A. It had to be identified.	here's what the
4 A. We don't want the helicopter flying right ov	er 4 improvement opportunit	ty was, here's how we
5 the top of the vessel.	5 have met the intent of	that improvement
6 ROIL O.C.	6 opportunity If it's not	specifically the
7 O Okay So again another management risk?	7 same as what the impro	wement opportunity is
8 MR SACUTA:	8 there would be words ar	ound why that was the
0 Another management risk yeah	Q case and basically what	I read to you was the
10 ROIL O.C.	10 reason why it was felt	that it was better
11 0 0 (key now then the slide is dealing with the	10 reason why, it was left 11 managed by Cougar thr	ugh a flight operations
results of the 2006 aviation operations risk	12 memo The Hibernia I	President at the time
12 results of the 2000 aviation operations fisk 13 assessment?	12 memo. The moethan	av ves Lagree with
14 MD SACUTA.	14 that and he would si	an off that the
14 MR. SACOTA.	15 improvement opportunit	y was closed
16 POIL O.C.		ly was closed.
10 KOL, Q.C	10 KOIL, Q.C	a President would have
17 Q. Night.	17 Q. And you, as the medinin	ng i resident, would have
10 MR. SACUTA.	nt 10 MP SACUTA:	
A. So confing out of that aviation fisk assessing	ant 20 A Absolutoly yes I have	access to all the
20 completed in 2000, a number of improver	21 improvement opportunit	ty closure forms
to develop and adopt a site specific wind	22 non o.c.	ty closure forms.
22 to develop and adopt a site specific wind 23 speed versus direction matrix to formalize	22 KOIL, Q.C.:	re deal with the $S_02\Lambda$
23 speed versus direction matrix to formalize	25 Q. Okay, the next three the	ie deal with the S-92A
25 regarding weather limits. The matrix was	25 MP SACUTA	
25 regarding weather mints. The matrix was	25 Mic. 5/100 1/1.	D 100
	ige 98	Page 100
the recommendation identified that the mati	A. That's right. Although	at the time we did the
2 was to be included in the Hibernia Operatio	s 2 Fisk assessment in 2006.	, we weren't currently
3 Manual. This wind speed matrix was devel	ped 3 flying the S-92, we ki	new we were very
4 by Cougar. It was not added to the Hiberni	4 interested in the S-92, and	nd eventually we felt
5 Helicopter Operations Manual as it was	5 we would be transitionin	ig to the S-92. So as
6 determined that aviation operational limits	6 part of that fisk assessin	ent, we identified
7 for Hibernia are best managed by Couga	7 the needs to ensure th	at the helicopter
8 through the issuance of a flight operations	8 landing officer and the r	ielideck crews had had
9 memo. So Cougar issued a flight operatio	s 9 S-92 aircraft familiariza	ition. There was
10 memo which all their phots would have acc	$\frac{10}{11}$ always the possibility w	iin Terra Nova Ilying
11 to. we did not update our Hencopter	11 the S-92, that the S-92	nay have to faile of
12 Operations Manual, and when that particul	at 12 share or should they be	for a formed in a formed
13 Improvement opportunity was signed on, t		rogged in at rena
14 was identified off the close-out form, it was	14 Nove when they get out	there they comptime
	14 Nova when they got out 15 come over and land on u	there, they sometimes
approved by the molernia resident at the till as meeting the original intent of that action	14 Nova when they got out 15 come over and land on u 16 clear	there, they sometimes is to see if the fog can
as meeting the original intent of that action.	11 Image: Sinarc, of should they be 14 Nova when they got out 15 come over and land on the 16 clear. So we wanted to 17 crews were familiar with	there, they sometimes us to see if the fog can o make sure that our the the S 92 So that
 as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: So the answer is L take it, that if not 	11 Image: Strate, of should they be 14 Nova when they got out 15 come over and land on the 16 clear. So we wanted to 17 crews were familiar with 18 was completed both the	there, they sometimes as to see if the fog can be make sure that our the the S-92. So that be second and third
 as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under 	14 Nova when they got out 14 Nova when they got out 15 come over and land on u 16 clear. So we wanted to 17 crews were familiar with 18 was completed, both th 19 actions and we wanted	there, they sometimes as to see if the fog can be make sure that our the the S-92. So that he second and third to make sure that our
 as meeting the original intent of that action. as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under aviation operations assessment, it was solved 	at13share, of should they be14Nova when they got out16come over and land on the16clear. So we wanted to17crews were familiar with18was completed, both the19actions, and we wanted20Hibernia documentation	there, they sometimes us to see if the fog can o make sure that our the the S-92. So that we second and third to make sure that our o included information
 as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under aviation operations assessment, it was solved by another way? 	InternationInternation14Nova when they got out14Nova when they got out15come over and land on u16clear. So we wanted to17crews were familiar with18was completed, both th19actions, and we wanted10Hibernia documentation21relevant to the S-92 and	there, they sometimes there, they sometimes to see if the fog can make sure that our the second and third to make sure that our mincluded information
 as meeting the original intent of that action. as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under aviation operations assessment, it was solved by another way? MR. SACUTA: 	at13share, of should they be14Nova when they got out14Nova when they got out15come over and land on the16clear. So we wanted to17crews were familiar with18was completed, both the19actions, and we wanted10Hibernia documentation21relevant to the S-92 and22with the Aviation Or	there, they sometimes as to see if the fog can o make sure that our the the S-92. So that he second and third to make sure that our in included information assure consistency perations Guide as
 as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under aviation operations assessment, it was solved by another way? MR. SACUTA: A. Correct. 	at13share, of should they be14Nova when they got out15come over and land on u16clear. So we wanted to17crews were familiar with18was completed, both th19actions, and we wanted10Hibernia documentation21relevant to the S-92 and22with the Aviation Op23required, and that was a	there, they sometimes is to see if the fog can o make sure that our the the S-92. So that we second and third to make sure that our in included information assure consistency perations Guide as lso closed. The fifth
 as meeting the original intent of that action. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. So the answer is, I take it, that if not solved by the way that was suggested under aviation operations assessment, it was solve by another way? MR. SACUTA: A. Correct. ROIL, Q.C.: 	at13share, of should they be14Nova when they got out15come over and land on the16clear. So we wanted to17crews were familiar with18was completed, both the19actions, and we wanted20Hibernia documentation21relevant to the S-92 and22with the Aviation Op23required, and that was a24one on this list was to	there, they sometimes as to see if the fog can o make sure that our the the S-92. So that as second and third to make sure that our in included information assure consistency perations Guide as lso closed. The fifth to install ground

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-P	Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 101			Page 103
1	applicable aircraft This is a device that	1	1		goes through the same level of training
	lets you know when you're too close to	the 2	2		they're all exposed to the same original
	ground it's like a warning system. That	was 2	2 2		orientation video and so it was not
	implemented of well. The sixth one w	was 5	э 1		implemented based on that fact, and that was
	modify the Dive Site which is the treat	$\frac{15}{10}$	4		also signed off by the Hibernia President at
3	modify the Blue Sky, which is the track	ang 5	5		also signed off by the Hibernia President at
6	system, to automatically alert Cougar dis	patch 6	6		the time.
1	of an unplanned deviation from plan	ned 7	7	ROIL,	Q.C.:
8	altitudes. That was closed and not	8	8	Q.	And again to restate just to make sure we're
9	implemented, and the reason was is that	we 9	9		clear, then the conclusion was reached that a
10	could not modify the Blue Sky System	n to 10	0		first time traveller or a 50 time traveller,
11	provide this service. It was identified in	1 11	1		all had the same exposure to the same training
12	the close-out form that it was impossible	to 12	2		with respect to helicopter evacuation?
13	modify Blue Sky to meet this intent. So	not 13	3	MR. S.	ACUTA:
14	being able to do that, the action was close	sed 14	4	A.	That's correct.
15	without being implemented and approved	1 by the 15	5	ROIL,	Q.C.:
16	Hibernia President at the time.	16	6	Q.	And that perhaps other than Robert Decker,
17	ROIL, Q.C.:	17	7		there's nobody that has had to go through the
18	Q. So I take it that a feature of Blue Sky di	d 18	8		actual evacuation of an aircraft that's
19	not allow that to be implemented?	19	9		submerged?
20	MR. SACUTA:	20	0	MR. S	ACUTA:
21	A. Correct, there was no way that the Blue	Sky 21	1	Α.	That's right. They all watch the orientation
22	System could be modified to meet the	hat 22	2		video they all undergo the same level of
23	improvement opportunity	22	- 3		training so everyone is basically the same
$\begin{vmatrix} 2J \\ 2A \end{vmatrix}$		23	л Л		when it comes to getting on the heliconter and
24	O Is Blue Sky something that's proprietar	v to 25	- -		taking a seat on that heliconter. So the
23	Q. Is Dide Sky something that's proprietary	y to 25	5		taking a seat on that hencopter. So the
		Page 102			Page 104
1	somebody other than Cougar and/or HMD	C? 1	1		benefit was thought to be minimal of having
2	MR. SACUTA:	2	2		people identified with an armband, based on
3	A. I believe that is the case, yes. It's a	3	3		the fact that everybody undergoes the same
4	software system that you go out and purc	hase. 4	4		level of training.
5	ROIL, Q.C.:	5	5	ROIL,	Q.C.:
6	Q. Okay, perhaps we can ask Cougar about	that for ϵ	6	Q.	Okay, there is, I understand, an additional
7	more specific detail.	7	7		way in which new workers are identified once
8	MR. SACUTA:	8	8		they get to the facility?
9	A. Yeah.	Ş	9	MR. S.	ACUTA:
10	ROIL, Q.C.:	10	0	А.	Yes. We've got a yellow hat policy, which Mr.
11	Q. Okay.	11	1		Fraser will talk about in his section.
12	MR. SACUTA:	12	2	ROIL,	Q.C.:
13	A. And the last one was to develop and impl	lement 13	3	0.	Okay, but that's designed towards the
14	a program that requires all first time	14	4		identification of a person who's the first
15	passengers to wear visible identification.	As 15	5		time on the facility?
16	an example, a coloured armband attached	to the 16	6	MR S	ACUTA:
17	flight suit. This recommendation was	not 15	7	Δ	Correct So I'm going to hand off now to Mr
18	implemented A review of the check-in t	rocess 15	, 8	11.	Fraser for the next two sections of the
10	and also recognizing that all personne		0		presentation
20	complete the same level of training who	n it 2	2 0	DOIL	
$ _{21}^{20}$	comes to beliconter ascene, and all watch	$\frac{1}{20}$	1	NUIL,	V.V Thank you Mr. Sacuta, Walaama Mr. Erasar
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	proflight video, indicated the banefit of the	$ 21 \\ 22 \\ $	1 2	ע	
$ _{22}^{22}$	abance was minimal. The slage set for	115 22	2	MK. F	We're going to talk shout OD / Element 5
23	change was minimal. The close-out for	in was 23	5	A.	we le going to talk about OIMS Element 5,
24	filled out with those exact statements, th	at 24	4		personnel and training, and a key component of
25	everybody that gets on a helicopter gener	ally 25	5		Element 5 is personnel safety management as

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pa	ge TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 105			Page 107
1	part of this. Go to the next slide, Paul, So		1		be a discussion on safety. So we'll look at -
2	Element 5 provides the framework for sa	afety	2		-
3	processes activities, and provides structure	re	3]	ROIL.	0.C.:
4	for implementing, maintaining, and contin	nually	4	0.	So safety is actually a subject item on the
5	improving personal safety performance.	So in	5		agenda?
6	this slide I'll take a few minutes and I'll g	0	6]	MR. F	RASER:
7	through how we meet these management	t system	7	А.	Yes, sir, there's probably 100 slides in that
8	requirements that OIMS lays out here a	t	8		meeting, and 30 of them are around safety,
9	Hibernia, and show how the requirement	ts are	9		probably 20 to 30 of them are around safety.
10	met offshore. This is part of what Mr. Sa	cuta	10		So what we'll do is we'll look at obviously
11	talked about, the rubber meeting the road.		11		any incidents that we've had in the past
12	ROIL, Q.C.:		12		month. This is a monthly meeting, so any
13	Q. So with respect to offshore workers, when	n you	13		incidents we've had in the last month, we'll
14	are in the offshore installation manager ro	ole,	14		look those incidents, the specifics around
15	you are the person that is ultimately		15		them. We'll look at our reporting statistics,
16	responsible for these items?		16		you know, our level of incidents that we've
17	MR. FRASER:		17		had, where we are for the year, where we were
18	A. Yes, sir.		18		for the past month. So a general sort of high
19	ROIL, Q.C.:		19		level leadership discussion on safety, a brief
20	Q. And you can tell us that you have person	nal	20		on any new programs that are coming up,
21	knowledge of all this?		21		anything like that. Additionally to that,
22	MR. FRASER:		22		we'll have another monthly meeting that's
23	A. Personal knowledge of all this stuff, year	h. 2	23		specifically around safety. So at that
24	So we'll take you this will take a few	, <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	24		meeting will be basically the same group of
25	minutes to go through this, but it shows	2	25		people, the same leadership people, plus we
	I	Page 106			Page 108
1	it's not specific to helicopter operations,		1		will get the SH&E Department.
2	but it's in general how we do all our day t	0	2 1	ROIL,	Q.C.:
3	day business from a safety perspective on	the	3	Q.	What is the SH&E Department?
4	Platform. So it'll give you a good overvie	W	4]	MR. F	RASER:
5	of how we do that. Helicopter issues are	e	5	А.	Oh, sorry, Safety Health and Environment
6	certainly part of that. The system addresse	s	6		Department.
7	the following key safety aspects, a structur	ed	7]	ROIL,	Q.C.:
8	safety organization at the management a	ind	8	Q.	Okay.
9	operational levels. So at Hibernia, safety is		9 1	MR. F	RASER:
10	embedded in our organization in everyth	ing	10	А.	Safety Health and Environment Security it is
11	that we do. The offshore asset level tean	n [11		now, so each person in that department will
12	consists of operations and maintenance, a	ind	12		come into that meeting also. We do the same
13	offshore and onshore leadership personnel	. 50	13		type of video conference link to the Platform,
14	Mr. Sacuta is in charge of the asset level		14		and we ll go through in detail the incidents
15	learn at Hibernia, and I m part of that learn	n,	15		we ve had in the past month, any outstanding
10	and what we do is once a month we will have	ive a	10		action items from those incidents, and who s
1/	hy talaconference with the onshore leaders	ll hin	10		some action items take some time to close out
10	and offshore leadership, and we'll go through	inp	10		as you can understand. We'll also look at any
20	all the broad range of business at Hibernia		19 20		audit items that have come up, anything that's
$\begin{vmatrix} 20 \\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	from reservoir management to drilling	ι, <u>΄</u>	20 21		come up from say the Roard or from Lloyd's
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 $	results to construction activities and a last		21 22		the status of those issues where they all
$\begin{vmatrix} 2^{2} \\ 2^{2} \end{vmatrix}$	niece of that the first probably $-$ it's a two		23		are We'll look at the statistics that come
$ _{24}^{23}$	hour meeting so probably the first twent	v	 24		from I'll talk about some of our safety
25	minutes to half an hour of that meeting wo	uld	25		programs that generate some statistics. and
1		- 1	-		1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Page™	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	P	age 109		Page 111
1	we'll look at those statistics and see if we		1	safety observations, any hazard IDs, and I
2	need to come up with any new programs a	round	2	will talk about those things, and any issues
3	that kind of stuff So we'll go through all		3	that have come up from a safety perspective
4	that. We also review the JOHS Minutes at t	hat	4	the supervisor may have knowledge of a safety
5	meeting any issues that have come up in	a	5	alert that's come out or something like that
6	general review of the IOHS Minutes not i	n	6	and had passed that on to the workforce
	detail but you know any issues any		7	They'll talk about things like you know it's
	outstanding items		, 8	cold tonight or it's just snowed and the decks
			9	are slippery be careful or it's windy those
10	0 What sort of things are you looking for it	, ₁	0	types of things in a safety perspective and
11	terms of the IOHS meetings? Is it something	ι 1σ 1	1	there's input from the workforce there the
12	that must attract your attention because it's	15	12	guys can talk about what happened during the
12	interesting or is it what kind of things	1	12	day from a safety perspective
11	do you look for?	1		
15	MR ERASER	1	14 KOIL	You told us about two times of more than
15	Λ It'll give the onshore folks a chance if they	7	15 Q.	that three types of meetings all of which
17	have any questions about it because typica	/ 11 11v 1	10	safety is always the first item discussed?
10	there will be actions assigned to the onshor		19 MD 1	ED A CED.
10	safety people around things that are discuss	ed 1		Ves safety is always the first discussion at
20	in the IOUS meetings. So we will assign		19 A.	any of these meetings. Sometimes it's an in
$ _{21}^{20}$	actions to the SURE supervisor and his follow		20	depth discussion obviously and sometimes
$\begin{vmatrix} 21 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	will take a look at those actions, and that's	.5 2	21	it's just a brief discussion depending on
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	an opportunity where they can give us a	n $\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	22	what the purpose of the meeting is
$\begin{vmatrix} 2.3 \\ 2.4 \end{vmatrix}$	undate on where they are with those action		23 24 DOIL	what the purpose of the meeting is.
25	We'll talk some more about the IOHS meet	$\frac{1}{100}$	24 KOIL 25 0	But if I looked at any agenda for any of these
-		110		
	Picture of the second sec	age 110	1	Page 112
	bow of c	•	1	needings, safety is on the top, it doesn't
	ROIL, Q.C.:		2	
	Q. ICS.		5 MK. 1	rkasek: Vash and wa don't lika some of the
	MR. FRASER:	-01	4 A.	meetings are like the hendover meeting
	A. On a daily basis, we also have department	r	5	for instance there's no Minutes to that
	mastings. So what happens at the and	L	0	right That'll be you know we'll get
	POULOC.		/ 0	together in a room you and L and wheever
	KOIL, Q.C.:		0	also is on our work team and wa'll have a
10	Q. Soffy, what s a handover meeting?	1	9	discussion around the stuff Liust described
	MR. FRASER.	1	10	not a formal meeting
12	crew of folks that are working and then	1		
12	they're going off shift and there's a crew of	f	12 KOIL	Right
14	folks that are coming on shift. So we work	24	13 Q. 14 MR 1	FRASER.
15	hours a day People do their 12 hours and	1 1	14 MIC.1	Ongoing safety programs is another thing that
16	iust before the end of their shift depending		15 M.	OIMS requires us to have So we talked about
17	on which department they're in they will h	ave 1	17	our safety department and looking at
18	a meeting with the folks that are coming of	n 1	18	statistics, so our safety department will look
19	shift and will have a discussion around.	1	9	at the trends from our incident database. So
20	obviously, you know, what's gone on durir	ig the	20	that's things that have already happened, and
$ _{21}^{-5}$	day and what work remains outstanding.	what 2	21	we've got a couple of programs we'll talk
22	the plan for the work is for that evening.	2	22	about a little bit that look at potential
23	Also as part of that there will be a	2	23	things that we need to nip in the bud, so to
24	discussion around any safety issues. So th	e 2	24	speak, and they will look at safety programs
25	first part of that meeting will be around any	/ 2	25	to try and address those things. So if we

,	January	y 18, 2010 Mu	ılti-Page ^T	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 1	13	Page 115
	1	have in our hazard program, if we're seeing	1	of those bulletin boards is dedicated to the
	2	an incident with loose stair treads, for	2	JOHS Committee, so any JOHS issues, the JOHS
	3	instance, that they will initiate a program to	3	Minutes would go up there on that board. We
	4	go out and check the stair treads, for	4	also take our incident reports and safety
	5	instance, or something of that nature. If we	5	alerts and those types of things and we put
	6	get an incident that reports of, you know,	6	them in a binder, take the names and stuff,
	7	issues with folks not putting their safety	7	obviously, take that kind of information,
	8	glasses on in the appropriate areas, then	8	personal information off it, but that goes in
	9	we'll initiate a program, maybe go around, and	9	a binder and we put those in our coffee shops
	10	the theme of the month may be, you know, eye	10	and smoke room so folks can read through those
	11	protection and we'll initiate a program around	11	at their leisure while they're having a coffee
	12	that kind of stuff.	12	or a snack. Also part of that is every
	13 ROIL.	0.C.:	13	morning there's a meeting in the OIM's office,
	14 O.	Are these programs reactive to issues or are	14	in my office, and Mr. Sacuta talked about we
	15	they also proactive? In other words, there's	15	have a report that goes to the Board, the
	16	nothing happening, but we think we should	16	first piece of that report is safety issues.
	17	reinforce them?	17	any incidents we've had, briefs, safety
	18 MR. F	RASER:	18	statistics and some information like that, and
	19 A.	Both. Obviously, if we had an incident where	19	environmental information. and that goes
	20	people were getting injured because of my	20	every morning we have a discussion with the
	21	example, eve protection, then we would	21	leadership team and one of the members of the
	22	obviously institute a program there. We also	22	JOHS Committee comes to that meeting. It's a
	23	have our behaviour based safety program, which	1 23	small group, six people, seven if you include
	24	will give us insights into people are	24	the safety rep. They will come to my office
	25	seeing people without safety equipment on, and	25	and we'll go through what happened the
	-	Page 1	14	Page 116
	1	then we'll initiate a program to highlight	14	previous day, what we're planning on doing the
	1	then we in initiate a program to inglinght that to the workforce, and I'll talk a little		next day, and any safety issues that have come
	2	bit about how that program works. Then next	2	up throughout the day, and the IOUS rep. they
	3	requirement for OIMS is safety emphasis		have a rota that they manage themselves, the
	5	through ongoing communications. So we talked	5	safety reps manage and they will send
	5	about the shift handovers at the starts and	5	somebody down every morning to that meeting
	7	beginning of each shift start and end of		and we'll go through that and they have the
	9	each shift. We also have a large computer	8	opportunity there if there's any safety
	0	screen in the galley that shows our booked	0	concerns that any members of the IOUS
	9	up to a dedicated computer and it shows a	10	Committee have they can bring that up at that
	10	slide show a PowerPoint show that has	10	time The next bullet point and this was
	11	different safety messages on it. It'll show	12	your question about the orientation is safety
	12	some of our trends, some of our statistics	12	orientations for site visitors and new
	13	it'll show information of hazard reports and	13	contract workers So anybody that comes to
	15	safety alerts that we get from other	15	the Platform when they arrive on the
	15	facilities or from outside the company or	15	Platform they get a video presentation at
	10	anywhere around the world. We have a process	17	Heli-Admin which shows generally all the
	19	where we take those safety alerts and give	17	safety aspects of the Platform. You get to
	10	them out to the appropriate people on the	10	hear what an emergency alarm sounds like see
	20	Platform We also have typical office type	20	the various alarm lights and it shows you
	20	workplace things where we have bullating	20	what you're supposed to do in the event of an
	21	hoards. So we have bulletin board outside the	$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	emergency a little hit around the health and
	22	coffee and smoke rooms and outside the gallow	22	safety aspects of the Platform. Then once you
	23	there's a hallway goes down between those two	23	leave there you go down to my well you
	24	areas and there's bulletin boards there. One	24	actually go on a tour of the Platform. The
	25	areas and more s bunchin boards more. Olle	23	actuary go on a tour of the flattorn. The

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 117		Page 119
1	Heli Admin personnel take you on a mini tou	ur 1		your mentor, and he would be working with you.
2	of the Platform, show you where your life boa	at 2		showing you around, taking you to and from the
3	is, show you where your muster station is, and	d 3		worksite, and showing you how the system works
4	muster station is where you report in an	4		on the Platform. Part of that process is what
5	emergency, and shows you we have a system	to 5		we talked about, the yellow hard hat process.
6	track people at an emergency, shows people h	iow 6		So when you're new on the Platform, you get a
7	they participate in that. It shows them the	7		yellow hard hat, if you're a visitor, or a new
8	lay of the land, sort of where the coffee shop	8		employee, you get a yellow hard hat, and
9	is, where the galley is, the important pieces,	9		that's to help identify you as somebody who
10	the smoke shop, if you're so inclined, and	10		may not be familiar with the entire layout of
11	shows you that and tells you the rules of, you	11		the Platform. So primarily if you're in an
12	know, no coveralls in the galley, no coveralls	12		emergency, if you're outside with your hard
13	in your room, that kind of stuff. So the	13		hat on and there's an emergency, that you will
14	second piece of that is that you come to my	14		get special attention to get back into the
15	office. I go through a list of about ten	15		safe refuge if there's an emergency, and part
16	things that I go through with any new worker	: 16		of that process is we have a test after you've
17	on the Platform.	17		been there for a certain length of time, then
18	ROIL, Q.C.:	18		you have to sit down and actually write a
19	Q. So every new worker comes to your office?	19		little test to make sure that you can describe
20	MR. FRASER:	20		it's primarily around how to get back to
21	A. Every new worker comes to my office, yeah,	and 21		the TSR for an emergency and a few other
22	there's a so we sit down for a few minutes	22		things like that, but primarily around how to
23	and just go through, you know, basically talk	23		respond in an emergency. We have a book too
24	about our safety model is "nobody gets hur	t 24		that we give everybody. That's the Offshore
25	at Hibernia", and we talk a little bit about,	25		Safety Health and Environment Handbook. It's
	· · · · ·	Page 118		Page 120
1	you know his responsibilities or her			one of the things that we give out to all the
	responsibilities around meeting those			folks when they newly come on the Platform
	expectations and what my expectations are	a and $\begin{bmatrix} 2\\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$		It has our statement of commitment that we saw
	what Mr. Sacuta's expectations and every	body 4		on the slide show. It goes through things
	else's expectations around safety, and we t	talk 5		like the Platform rules that we talked about
6	about the basics of reporting things			earlier fire protection emergency
	immediately you know if they see a haze	ard 7		procedures, occupational health and hygiana
	if there's any injuries that type of thing			safety at work, the general kind of stuff and
	You know talk about our philosophy on	the 0		refers them to this tells them this is just
10	Platform no barassment no horsenlay th			the real basics, refers them, back to talk to
	types of things. So just a brief outline on	10		the supervisor, or see the actual procedures
	our expectations of what we'd like them to	11		that govern these particular activities
12	The next step of that orientation is the	12	MDS	ACUTA:
13	person would go to their supervisor. So i	if 14	MR. 5	Included in that handbook would be the
14	you were a maintenance, contractor comin	a out	А.	discussion around the right to refuse process
15	to do some maintenance, especially mainte	g Out 15		as well, so that employees, are made aware of
10	work on the Distform, you would go to t	the 17		that process
1/	supervisor and the supervisor would go the	rough 19	DOII	nat process.
10	hasically the same things that we have also	adv 10	NUIL,	This is as good a place as anybody or
19	acono through but more site specific me	ro 19	Q.	anywhere to address this and Linvite either
$ _{21}^{20}$	specific to your role on the Distform			any where to address this, and I myne entiter
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	you'd get assigned a montor So if	$ ^{21}$		one of you, in the context of the Killa of
$ _{22}^{22}$	you u get assigned a mentor. So if you w	22 NON		volume you seem to be describing here, can
23	going to work on the gas compressor and	you 23		you understand or explain why some people
$ _{24}^{24}$	were an instrument person, you would	gei 24		would be inclined to say to others outside of
125	assigned an instrument tech probably to	125		your organization, well, I in airaid to talk

Page 121 Page 121 about something at the rig. I'm afraid to talk 1 me when I'm out there are -you know, they're informed, they're well educated people, informed, they're well educated people, informed, they're not shy. If they have an issue, 4 A. I can just speak from my experience that when I 3 the SACUTA: 3 they're not shy. If they have an issue, 5 I go offshore, poople know me. I mean, I 5 ROIL, OC: 6 Q. Thank you, Okay, I didn't mean to interrupt, 6 spent five years offshore, but I have not see experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 6 Q. Thank you, Okay, I didn't mean to interrupt, 10 talk to me about any issue, whether it's a labour 1 A. So the next bullet point that OMS requires us 12 relations related issue, whether it's a labour 13 ask me whether I think the Leals or the employees that are new, I'm a big up, but 17 that's one of the reasons that when I go 15 U. So of the reasons that when I go 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 10 Contractors, if their contract says that they 21 that's and and suff, and we expect our 20 nead last standard, and safety 22 come are outcacace o	Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pa	ge TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
1 about something at the rig. I'm afraid to talk 1 me when I'm out there are you know, they're well educated people, informed, they're well educated people, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're not shy. If they have an issue, they're well educated people, they're well they're mean they are they're to they server they're well they're mean they are they're they're people at they were people at they're may be some they sent they re they were they are are reluctance of anybody the I've are and they oviously they's been lots of fistory. First, workplace hazard identification and reporting they were they are are are they're got a statement that if a server they are are are they're got a statement they are and they have are areporting. We have wellaway, soy ou'd walk we		Pas	ge 121			Page 123
2 about safety for fear I might lose my job? 2 informed, they're well educated people, 3 MR.SACUTA: 3 they're not shy. If they have an issue, 5 I go offshore, poople know me, I mean, I 5 KOLL, QC: 6 Offshore, poople know me, I mean, I 5 8 ROLL, QC: 7 years offshore, and I recognize there may be 6 Offshore, bata dava 8 some new people offshore, but I have not 9 eustion because it did stand out from what we 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 10 10 MR.FRASFR: 11 a. So off enery limit stop 11 A. So ofte next bullet point that OMS requires us 12 relations related issue, or whether it's a tolour 11 A. So ofte next bullet point that OMS requires us 13 ask me whether I think the leards or the 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People lat I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract asys that they 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 18 kind of standard, sutil, and we expect our 15 our PPE, so like our work hoots haree 10 contract	1	about something at the rig. I'm afraid to talk	5	1		me when I'm out there are you know, they're
3 MR_SACUTA: 3 they're not shy. If they have an issue, 4 A 1 can just speak from my experience that when 1 5 7 years offshore, pople know me. 1 mean, I 6 S (00), QC: 8 some new people offshore, but I have not 8 S (00), QC: 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 1 6 Q. Thank you. Okay, I din't mean to interrupt, 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and talk to me about any issue, whether it's a 1 A. So the next bullet point that OMS requires us 11 safety related issue, whether it's a 10 MR_FKASER: 10 MR_FKASER: 11 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 10 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 10 10 the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 10 to talk to as many people as I can, and I 10 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 11 18 kind of standard staff, and we speet our 21 nas deca reluctance of anybody that I've 11 18 kind of standard staff, and we speet our	2	about safety for fear I might lose my job?		2		informed, they're well educated people,
4 A I can just speak from my experience that when 4 they'll come and talk to you. 5 I go offshore, people know me. I mean, I 5 ROIL, OC.: 7 years offshore, and I recognize there may be some may people offshore, but I have not a space to inject that 0 0. Thank you. Okay, I didh't mean to interrupt, to whether i's is to a space to inject that 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 0 0. Thank you. Okay, I didh't mean to interrupt, to whether i's is to a space to inject that 12 relations related issue, or whether i's is to a ask me whether i link the Leads or the 10 N. REASER: 13 ask me whether i's in think the Leads or the 10 N. Representation that out and standard, and safety 16 employees that are new, I'm a big uy, but 17 Ha's one of the reasons that when I go 17 16 oto talk to a smany people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract says that they 17 have not experienced a situation where there 20 contractors, if their contract says that they 18 kind of standard, the helicopter with standard. Also ot any issue. They ask 23 point, workplace harard if and we experienced to the people that work foore with tat, our 18 bastone a reluctance of anybod	3	MR. SACUTA:		3		they're not shy. If they have an issue,
5 I go offshore, people know me. I mean, I 5 S ROIL, Q.C.: 6 spent five years offshore, all recognize there may be C. Thank you. Okay, I din't mean to interrupt, 7 years offshore, but I have not 9 8 some new people offshore, but I have not 9 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 10 11 safety related issue, whether it's a 10 12 relations related issue, or whether it's to 10 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 12 to the rest bullet point that OMS requires us 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 16 C.SA approved to a certain standard, and safety 12 ont talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 have not experience of anybody thar I've 12 ont alk to as many people as I can, and I 11 has been a reluctance of anybody thar I've 12 need to suppl their workforce with that, our 21 has one experience when I go 13 part of that standard, as ont a's laid out in 22 come across to talk hoo and the propeit that work offshore 14 proint, workploce has that wheth </td <td>4</td> <td>A. I can just speak from my experience that wh</td> <td>en</td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td>they'll come and talk to you.</td>	4	A. I can just speak from my experience that wh	en	4		they'll come and talk to you.
6 spent five years offshore, just about five 6 Q. Thank you. Okay, I didn't mean to interrupt, 7 years offshore, and I recognize there may be some new people offshore, but I have not 9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and a 10 talk to me about any issue, whether it's a a 11 safety related issue, or whether it's a a 12 relations related issue, or whether it's a a 13 ask me whether I think the Leads or the ask me whether I think the Leads or the 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 14 procedure that lays out the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 15 our PPF, so like our work boots have got to be 16 engloyees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 17 kis kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to lalk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract syst that they 20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 21 that's bacause it's not 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 22 come across to talik about any issue. They	5	I go offshore, people know me. I mean, I		5	ROIL,	Q.C.:
7 years offshore, and I recognize there may be some new people offshore, but I have not experienced a reluctance of people to stop and talk to me about any issue, whether it's a relations related issue, or whether it's to relations are a better team. People talk to removed to a certain standard, and safety to do to talk to as many people as I can, and I read to tage the standard, and safety regorder that lasses, respiratory protection, all of that read to supply their workforce with that, our contractors have to meet that standard. Also read to supply their workforce with that, our read to supply their workforce with that and reporting. We have two meet to supply reporting that I experience when I go reporting that I experience when I go reporting that I experience when a large preventage of the people that work offshore reporting. We have two methods, two kind of things that we report. One thing is a - this sister related issue and there has ever been to discussion and und that and you could write soft barrard to program, and we've got a card that we use so people can reporti, just a safety related issue and there has v	6	spent five years offshore, just about five		6	Q.	Thank you. Okay, I didn't mean to interrupt,
8 some new people offshore, but I have not experienced a reluctance of people to stop and talk to me about any issue, whether it's a line asfety related issue, or whether it's to ask me whether I think the Leafs or the Canadians are a better team. People talk to the employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but that's one of the reasons that when I go employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but that's one of the reasons that when I go oto talk to as many people as I can, and I that's one of the reasons that when I go that's one of the reasons that when I go employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but that's one of the reasons that when I go oto talk to as many people as I can, and I that's one of the reasons that when I go that's one are cluctance of anybody that I've come across to talk about any issue. They ask tough questions when I have town halls. So people are reluctant to talk because it's not 18 Kind's fatad and', si ald out in that standard, so that's laid out in that standard, so that's laid out in that standard, so that's laid out in the perpendend that the alarge Page 122 1 sandering that I experience when I go offshore. I'm familiar with a large 1 standard. Just to talk about the ext bullet 2 offshore as requered on york offshore is aftey related issue and ther has ever been of discipline. That does not happen on our if facilify. We encourage all of our employees to contribute, if they's egot a acrefy to downere any employee has brought up a sidety related issue and there has ever been if downey any employee has brought up a singet to	7	years offshore, and I recognize there may be	e	7		but it seemed to be a place to inject that
9 experienced a reluctance of people to stop and 9 heard last week. 10 talk to me about any issue, whether it's a labour 10 MR_FKASER: 12 relations related issue, or whether it's to 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 16 on two is appropriate and well maintained 16 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 17 glasses, respiratory protection, all of that 18 offshore – I go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract says that they 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our contractors have to meet that standard. Also 21 nas been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors have to meet that standard. So that's taid out in 24 T'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously - there's been lots 25 people are reluctance when I go of discussion around that, they have to meet ta 25 off	8	some new people offshore, but I have not	t	8		question because it did stand out from what we
10 lalk to me about any issue, whether it's a labour 10 MR. FRASTR: 11 safety related issue, whether it's a labour 11 A. So the next bullet point that OLMS requires us 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 14 procedure that lays out the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 15 our PPE, so like our work boots have got to be 16 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 16 CSA approved to a certain studard, and safety 17 that's one of the reasons that when I go 17 glasses, respiratory protection, all of that 18 offshore -I go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard suff, and we expect our 21 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 23 part of that standard, so that's laid out in 23 tougd questions when I have town halls. So 23 part of that standard, so that's laid out in 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously there's been lots	9	experienced a reluctance of people to stop an	nd	9		heard last week.
11 asfety related issue, whether it's a labour 11 A. So the next bullet point that OMN requires us 12 relations related issue, or whether it's to 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 14 procedure that lays out the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 16 CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety 17 that's one of the reasons that when I go 17 glasse, respiratory protection, all of that 18 kind of standard suff, and we expect our contractors, if their contract says that they 20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 22 contractors, if that' contract says that they 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 23 part of that standard, the helicopter suits are 23 popel are reluctant to talk because it's not 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 24 fram a little perplexed by the statement hat 25 of discussion around	10	talk to me about any issue, whether it's a		10	MR. F	RASER:
12 relations related issue, or whether it's to 12 to have is appropriate and well maintained 13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 14 procedure that lays out the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 15 our PPE, so like our work boots have got to be 16 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 16 CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety 18 offshoreI go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors have to meet that standard. Also 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors have to meet that standard. Also 22 oug questions when I have town halls. So 23 part of that standard, the helicopter suits are 23 tough questions when I are 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 24 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 25 of discusion around that, they have to meet a 3 percentage of the people that work offshore 3 reporting. We have two methods, two	11	safety related issue, whether it's a labour		11	А.	So the next bullet point that OIMS requires us
13 ask me whether I think the Leafs or the 13 personal protective equipment, so we have a 14 Canadians are a better team. People talk to 14 procedure that lays out the requirements for 15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 15 our PPE, soil ke our work boots have got to be 16 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 16 CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety 17 that's one of the reasons that when I go 17 glasses, respiratory protection, all of that 18 offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract says that they 20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 21 have not experienced by the statement that 23 part of that standard, standard. Also 23 percentage of the people that work offshore 37 reporting. We have to meet that standard, and stately 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 25 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 10 point, workplace hazard id	12	relations related issue, or whether it's to		12		to have is appropriate and well maintained
14Canadians are a better team. People talk to us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 6 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 17 that's one of the reasons that when I go offshoreI go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard startf, and we expect our 17 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors have to meet that standard. Also 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 23 tough questions when I have town halls. So 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 25 people are reluctant to talk because it's not 26 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 27 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 28 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 29 percentage of the people that work offshore 3 percentage of the people that work offshore 4 because I travel back and forth to the 4 because I travel back and forth to the 4 situation where any employee has brought up a 9 safety related issue and there has ever been 19 di day out, but I ann on aware of any 11 facility. We encourage all of our employees 11 facility. We encourage all of our employees 11 facility. We encourage all of our employees 11 facility. We encourage all of our employees 12 to contribute, if they've got a safety 13 concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little 14 perplexed by those statements. 15 mar to saide a talk is a down, bow, even if folks have an 16 A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here 17 to mit side to talk about. There's ample 18 opportunity, you know, even if folks have an 19 ins with talking to theirs upervisor or 20 talking to mysEif or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 21 else, there's ample opportunity where they 22 as got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 23 as got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24 everybody has access to a phone.	13	ask me whether I think the Leafs or the		13		personal protective equipment, so we have a
15 us. Now I do recognize that there may be some 15 our PPE, so like our work boots have got to be 16 employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but 16 CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety 18 offshore I go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract says that they 20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their work/force with that, our 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors, if their contract says that they 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 22 in that standard, so that's laid out in 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 25 people are reluctant to talk because it's not 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 2 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 2 point, workplace hazard identification and 3 percentage of the people that work offshore 3 reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 4 birsore arous on tange and of ouremployee 3 reporting. We	14	Canadians are a better team. People talk to		14		procedure that lays out the requirements for
16employces that are new, I'm a big guy, but that's one of the reasons that when I go16CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety glasses, respiratory protection, all of that think of standard stuff, and we expect our on the supply the statement hat 2219do to talk to as many people as I can, and I have not experienced a situation where there 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 thas been a reluctance of anybody that I've 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 23 tough questions when I have town halls. So 2419contractors, if their contract says that they 20 contractors have to meet that standard, and safety 22 in that standard, the helicopter suits are 23 people are reluctant to talk because it's not 2423part of that standard, so that's laid out in 2425meething that I experience when I go 22point, workplace hazard identification and 22offshore. I'm familiar with a large 4 because I travel back and forth to the 4 51standard. Just to talk about the next bullet 4 63reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 4 9 1610provide his perspective because he's there day 634station where any employee has brought up a 9 9 16 163reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 105Platform with them, and I think can probably 16 165is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 45so the hazard to program, and we've got a card 17 1610you come across it could be as simple as a 116so the hazard Metre has ever been 19 </td <td>15</td> <td>us. Now I do recognize that there may be so</td> <td>ome</td> <td>15</td> <td></td> <td>our PPE, so like our work boots have got to be</td>	15	us. Now I do recognize that there may be so	ome	15		our PPE, so like our work boots have got to be
17that's one of the reasons that when I go17glasses, respiratory protection, all of that18offshore I go offshore as frequently as I18kind of standard stuff, and we expect our19do to talk to as many people as I can, and I19contractors, if their contract says that they20have not experienced a situation where there20need to supply their workforce with that, our21has been a reluctance of anybody that I've21contractors have to meet that standard. Also22come across to talk bout any issue. They ask23part of that standard, the helicopter suits are23tough questions when I have town halls. So23part of that standard, so that's laid out in24I'm a little perplexed by the statement that24there and they obviously there's been lots25people are reluctant to talk because it's not25of discussion around that, they have to meet a26offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we regort. One thing is a this6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this10	16	employees that are new, I'm a big guy, but	t	16		CSA approved to a certain standard, and safety
18 offshore - I go offshore as frequently as I 18 kind of standard stuff, and we expect our 19 do to talk to as many people as I can, and I 19 contractors, if their contract says that they 20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors, have to meet that standard, he helicopter suits are 23 tough questions when I have town halls. So 23 part of that standard, he helicopter suits are 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously - there's been lots 25 people are reluctant to talk because it's not 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 26 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 2 point, workplace hazard identification and 3 percentage of the people that work offshore 3 reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 4 bicause I travel back and forth to the 4 things that we report. One thing is a - this 5 Platform with them, and I think can probably 5 is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 6 otrattion where any employee has brought up a 8	17	that's one of the reasons that when I go		17		glasses, respiratory protection, all of that
19do to talk to as many people as I can, and I19contractors, if their contract says that they20have not experienced a situation where there20need to supply their workforce with that, our21has been a reluctance of anybody that I've21contractors have to meet that standard. Also22come across to talk about any issue. They ask22in that standard, so that's laid out in23tough questions when I have town halls. So23part of that standard, so that's laid out in24I'm a little perplexed by the statement that24there and they obviously there's been lots25people are reluctant to talk because it's not25of discussion around that, they have to meet a24I something that I experience when I go1standard. Just to talk about the next bullet2offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4theirs ghat we report. One thing is a this5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard iD program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10 <td< td=""><td>18</td><td>offshore I go offshore as frequently as I</td><td></td><td>18</td><td></td><td>kind of standard stuff, and we expect our</td></td<>	18	offshore I go offshore as frequently as I		18		kind of standard stuff, and we expect our
20 have not experienced a situation where there 20 need to supply their workforce with that, our 21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors have to meet that standard. Also 22 come across to talk about any issue. They ask 22 in that standard, the helicopter suits are 23 tough questions when I have town halls. So 23 part of that standard, so that's laid out in 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 26 The alittle perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 26 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 27 in and a percentage of the people that work offshore 3 reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 4 because I travel back and forth to the 4 things that we neport. One thing is a this 5 platform with them, and I think can probably 5 is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 6 provide his perspective because he's there day 7	19	do to talk to as many people as I can, and I		19		contractors, if their contract says that they
21 has been a reluctance of anybody that I've 21 contractors have to meet that standard. Also 22 contractors have to meet that standard. Also in that standard, the helicopter suits are 23 tough questions when I have town halls. So 23 part of that standard, so that's laid out in 24 I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 24 there and they obviously there's been lots 25 people are reluctant to talk because it's not 25 of discussion around that, they have to meet a 2 offshore. I'm familiar with a large 2 point, workplace hazard identification and 3 percentage of the people that work offshore 3 reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 4 because I travel back and forth to the 4 things that we report. One thing is a this 5 Platform with them, and I think can probably 5 is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 6 provide his perspective because he's there day 7 that we use so people can report it, just a 8 situation where any employee has brought up a 8 brief description of what happened and this 9 helps initiate the tracking process. So if 10 you come across it could be as simple as	20	have not experienced a situation where there	e i	20		need to supply their workforce with that, our
22come across to talk about any issue. They ask22in that standard, the helicopter suits are23tough questions when I have town halls. So23part of that standard, so that's laid out in24I'm a little perplexed by the statement that24there and they obviously there's been lots25people are reluctant to talk because it's not25of discussion around that, they have to meet aPage 1221something that I experience when I go1standard. Just to talk about the next bullet2offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card19safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety1313concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little1314perplexed by those statements.1415get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16	21	has been a reluctance of anybody that I've		21		contractors have to meet that standard. Also
23tough questions when I have town halls. So23part of that standard, so that's laid out in24I'm a little perplexed by the statement that24there and they obviously there's been lots25people are reluctant to talk because it's not25of discussion around that, they have to meet a26Page 122Page 1222offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9helps initiate the tracking process. So if9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16	22	come across to talk about any issue. They as	k í	22		in that standard, the helicopter suits are
24I'm a little perplexed by the statement that 2524I there and they obviously there's been lots of discussion around that, they have to meet a25Page 122Page 1241something that I experience when I go 21standard. Just to talk about the next bullet 22offshore. I'm familiar with a large 22point, workplace hazard identification and 33percentage of the people that work offshore 41standard. Just to talk about the next bullet 24because I travel back and forth to the 51standard. just to talk about the next workind of reporting. We have two methods, two kind of 45Platform with them, and I think can probably 65is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 66so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card 7in and day out, but I am no aware of any 8situation where any employee has brought up a 89safety related issue and there has ever been 10discipline. That does not happen on our 11facility. We encourage all of our employees 1211facility. We encourage all of our employees 1311hose in the walkway. We have walkways, 1213concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little 131314perplexed by those statements. 151415get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard, 1616A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here 18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an 1919issue with talking to their supervisor or 201920<	23	tough questions when I have town halls. So	o 1	23		part of that standard, so that's laid out in
25people are reluctant to talk because it's not25of discussion around that, they have to meet aPage 1221something that I experience when I go2offshore. I'm familiar with a large3percentage of the people that work offshore4because I travel back and forth to the5Platform with them, and I think can probably6provide his perspective because he's there day7in and day out, but I am no aware of any8situation where any employee has brought up a9safety related issue and there has ever been9safety related issue and there has ever been10discipline. That does not happen on our11facility. We encourage all of our employees12to contribute, if they've got a safety13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little14perplexed by those statements.15MR. FRASER:16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here17on this slide to talk about. There's ample18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an19issue with talking to their supervisor or20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody21else, there's ample opportunity where they'22could report something anonymously. They've23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.25also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,24ever	24	I'm a little perplexed by the statement that		24		there and they obviously there's been lots
Page 122Page 1241something that I experience when I go1standard. Just to talk about the next bullet2offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,15MR.FRASER:16and then you would write a card up just to16not their supervisor or19Soets that require a person to sign his or her19issue with talking to their supervisor or20	25	people are reluctant to talk because it's not		25		of discussion around that, they have to meet a
1something that I experience when I go1standard. Just to talk about the next bullet2offshore. I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR.FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to		Pag	ge 122			Page 124
2offshore.I'm familiar with a large2point, workplace hazard identification and3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an18down on the card that it was closed.19issue with talking to myself or Mr	1	something that I experience when I go		1		standard. Just to talk about the next bullet
3percentage of the people that work offshore3reporting. We have two methods, two kind of4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an18	2	offshore. I'm familiar with a large		2		point, workplace hazard identification and
4because I travel back and forth to the4things that we report. One thing is a this5Platform with them, and I think can probably5is more equipment related, piece of equipment,6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here1717on this slide to talk about. There's ample1818opportunity, you know, even if folks have an1919issue with talking to their supervisor or1920q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,2424 <td>3</td> <td>percentage of the people that work offshore</td> <td>e</td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td>reporting. We have two methods, two kind of</td>	3	percentage of the people that work offshore	e	3		reporting. We have two methods, two kind of
5Platform with them, and I think can probably provide his perspective because he's there day in and day out, but I am no aware of any 85is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 67in and day out, but I am no aware of any 85is more equipment related, piece of equipment, 69safety related issue and there has ever been 97that we use so people can report it, just a 89safety related issue and there has ever been 109helps initiate the tracking process. So if 910discipline. That does not happen on our 1010you come across it could be as simple as a 1111facility. We encourage all of our employees 1211hose in the walkway. We have walkways, 1212to contribute, if they've got a safety 1312designated walkways, and somebody has laid a 1313concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little 1413water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk 1414up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way, 1515get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard, 1616and then you would write a card up just to 17record that you did that and you could write 1819issue with talking to their supervisor or 20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 2122could report something anonymously. They've 23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop <td>4</td> <td>because I travel back and forth to the</td> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td>things that we report. One thing is a this</td>	4	because I travel back and forth to the		4		things that we report. One thing is a this
6provide his perspective because he's there day6so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card7in and day out, but I am no aware of any7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR.FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an19ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they22Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,23A. No,	5	Platform with them, and I think can probabl	y	5		is more equipment related, piece of equipment,
7in and day out, but I am no aware of any situation where any employee has brought up a7that we use so people can report it, just a8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an19ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her22could report something anonymously. They've23A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to	6	provide his perspective because he's there da	ay	6		so the hazard ID program, and we've got a card
8situation where any employee has brought up a8brief description of what happened and this9safety related issue and there has ever been9helps initiate the tracking process. So if10discipline. That does not happen on our10you come across it could be as simple as a11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an19ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they22could report something anonymously. They've23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,24No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	7	in and day out, but I am no aware of any		7		that we use so people can report it, just a
9safety related issue and there has ever been discipline. That does not happen on our facility. We encourage all of our employees to contribute, if they've got a safety to contribute, if they've got a safety concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little perplexed by those statements.9helps initiate the tracking process. So if you come across it could be as simple as a hose in the walkway. We have walkways, 1213concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little perplexed by those statements.11hose in the walkway. We have walkways, and somebody has laid a 1314perplexed by those statements.12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a 1314perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way, 1416A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here 17if does not halppen on on this slide to talk about. There's ample 18if ecord that you would write a card up just to 1718opportunity, you know, even if folks have an 19issue with talking to their supervisor or 20if ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 21else, there's ample opportunity where they 22could report something anonymously. They've 23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.2424everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	8	situation where any employee has brought up	pa	8		brief description of what happened and this
10discipline. That does not happen on our facility. We encourage all of our employees to contribute, if they've got a safety concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little perplexed by those statements.10you come across it could be as simple as a hose in the walkway. We have walkways, designated walkways, and somebody has laid a 1314perplexed by those statements.12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a 1314perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way, up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way, 1416A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here on this slide to talk about. There's ample issue with talking to their supervisor or 201519issue with talking to their supervisor or could report something anonymously. They've 231924everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.10you come across it could be as simple as a hose in the walkway. We have walkways, also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 2411	9	safety related issue and there has ever been		9		helps initiate the tracking process. So if
11facility. We encourage all of our employees11hose in the walkway. We have walkways,12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an18down on the card that it was closed.19issue with talking to their supervisor or20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they21name?22could report something anonymously. They've23A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	10	discipline. That does not happen on our		10		you come across it could be as simple as a
12to contribute, if they've got a safety12designated walkways, and somebody has laid a13concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14perplexed by those statements.13water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample17record that you did that and you could write18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an19ROIL, Q.C.:19issue with talking to their supervisor or19ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they21name?22could report something anonymously. They've23A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	11	facility. We encourage all of our employees	s	11		hose in the walkway. We have walkways,
 concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little perplexed by those statements. MR. FRASER: A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here on this slide to talk about. There's ample opportunity, you know, even if folks have an issue with talking to their supervisor or talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody else, there's ample opportunity where they could report something anonymously. They've also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 	12	to contribute, if they've got a safety		12		designated walkways, and somebody has laid a
14perplexed by those statements.14up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,15MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here16and then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample16and then you would write a card up just to18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an18down on the card that it was closed.19issue with talking to their supervisor or19ROIL, Q.C.:20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they21name?22could report something anonymously. They've22MR. FRASER:23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,23A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	13	concern, to bring it up. So I'm a little		13		water hose across the walkway, so you'd walk
15 MR. FRASER:15get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,16A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things hereand then you would write a card up just to17on this slide to talk about. There's ample16and then you would write a card up just to18opportunity, you know, even if folks have an17record that you did that and you could write19issue with talking to their supervisor or18down on the card that it was closed.20talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody20Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her21else, there's ample opportunity where they21name?22could report something anonymously. They've22MR. FRASER:23also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone,23A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got24everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr.24boxes around the Platform where you can drop	14	perplexed by those statements.		14		up to it, you'd move the hose out of the way,
 A. Yeah, and I've got a couple more things here on this slide to talk about. There's ample opportunity, you know, even if folks have an issue with talking to their supervisor or talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody else, there's ample opportunity where they could report something anonymously. They've also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 	15	MR. FRASER:		15		get rid of the hazard, the tripping hazard,
 17 on this slide to talk about. There's ample 18 opportunity, you know, even if folks have an 19 issue with talking to their supervisor or 20 talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 21 else, there's ample opportunity where they 22 could report something anonymously. They've 23 also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24 everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 	16	A. Yeah, and I ve got a couple more things her	re	16		and then you would write a card up just to
 18 opportunity, you know, even it folks have an 19 issue with talking to their supervisor or 19 talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 20 else, there's ample opportunity where they 21 could report something anonymously. They've 22 also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24 everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 	17	on this slide to talk about. There's ample		17		record that you did that and you could write
 19 KOIL, Q.C.: 20 talking to myself or Mr. Sacuta, or anybody 21 else, there's ample opportunity where they 22 could report something anonymously. They've 23 also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24 everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 19 KOIL, Q.C.: 20 Q. Does that require a person to sign his or her 21 name? 22 MR. FRASER: 23 A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got 24 boxes around the Platform where you can drop 	18	opportunity, you know, even if folks have a	11	18	DOT	uowii oli the caru that it was closed.
 20 Construction of Nr. Sacura, of anybody 21 else, there's ample opportunity where they 22 could report something anonymously. They've 23 also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, 24 everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 20 Q. Does that require a person to sign fils of her 21 name? 22 MR. FRASER: 23 A. No, you don't have to. You can we've got 24 boxes around the Platform where you can drop 	19	talking to musclf or Mr. Society or or or the f	.,	19 20	KUIL,	Q.C.: Does that require a nerson to sign his or her
 could report something anonymously. They've also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, boxes around the Platform where you can drop 	$ _{21}^{20}$	also there's apple apportunity where they	y i	20	Q.	nome?
 also got the C-NLOPB is available by phone, everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. boxes around the Platform where you can drop 	$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	could report something anonymously. The	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	∠1 22	мог	
24 everybody has access to a phone. I echo Mr. 24 boxes around the Platform where you can drop	$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	also got $_{}$ the C-NLODE is available by phone		22 72	IVIK. F.	Naser. No you don't have to You can we've got
2^{-1} = 1000 around the rational where you can drop	$\begin{vmatrix} 23\\ 24 \end{vmatrix}$	everybody has access to a phone I acho M	r, .	25 24	A.	hoxes around the Platform where you can drop
25 Sacuta's statement. The folks that work with 25 them off and they get picked up at a certain	$ _{25}^{24}$	Sacuta's statement. The folks that work with	h	25		them off and they get picked up at a certain

Ja	nuary 18, 2010 N	Iulti	-Page ^{TN}	¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	125		Page 127
1	designated time, but most people sign them.		1	sure the safety equipment is in place and
2	There's a spot there to designate a few key		2	nothing is blocked in. So there's some
3	things, and we use that information as part of		3	general kind of themes that we use, and then
4	our database to track. You know, if we showed	1	4	there's a specific theme of the day type of
5	a lot of housekeeping issues, which that would	l	5	issue that we'll look at. So if we had if
6	be, then maybe we would put a program in pla	ce	6	we had an issue like we talked about, the hose
7	for housekeeping, like we talked about		7	in the walkway thing, if we had an issue
8	earlier, right. So that's you can		8	around that, that we would emphasize to the
9	anonymously put you can submit this		9	team that was going on, take a look for, you
10	anonymously, but most people sign it.		10	know, hoses improperly stored, that might be
11	ROIL, Q.C.:		11	the theme. That happens every week. The same
12	Q. Just hold that up so that the camera can see		12	thing, if you see a hazard, you put a hazard
13	it as well. Just a little card		13	card in and that helps track that. There's a
14	MR. FRASER:		14	formal meeting at the end of it where we go
15	A. Just a little card, yeah. It's got a few		15	through any issues that we looked at what
16	things. It's got, you know, description of		16	happened the last week's inspection, if those
17	what the hazard was, what the action taken,		17	issues were closed, if they're still
18	and suggestion to prevent occurrence, and ther	1	18	outstanding, and any new issues that come up.
19	there's some tick boxes to describe it a		19	Like I said, the JOHS worker rep, there's one
20	little bit and there's a spot at the bottom of		20	of those folks participates in that meeting.
21	the close out of the incident. So you can		21	Also when senior personnel like Mr. Sacuta
22	close it out yourself, or you could if it		22	come on board, they have a program where they
23	was a bigger issue, a loose stair tread, for		23	will go around and do an inspection of the
24	instance, that required some maintenance, som	ie	24	Platform, walk around and do a site survey,
25	intervention, then you would what we try to		25	and report back if they see any issues. Also,
	Page	126		Page 128
1	do is get people to encourage people to		1	of course, the Board comes out and they'll do
2	take action immediately, so barrier the area		2	that same function when they're on the
3	off with some barrier tape, or have somebody		3	Platform.
4	stand there until you could go get some kind		4 MR. F	FRASER:
5	of a sign to put up, and then it would get		5 A.	The next bullet point is behaviour based
6	entered into our maintenance program if it was		6	safety programs. So that's our Stop program,
7	something that had to get longer term		7	and we've got a similar kind of card that we
8	issue, and our maintenance program has a way		8	use for that, similar type issue, and this is
9	to track these issues to make sure they're		9	around behaviour. So we have a system, and
10	designated as a hazard ID. All these go into		10	this is it's a I believe it came from
11	a database and they're all tracked to		11	Dupont, was the company that developed this,
12	completion. The next piece is the next		12	but we use it on Hibernia, and basically what
13	bullet point is worksite safety assessments.		13	they do is it's to get people in the workforce
14	So OIMS requires that we do that, and the way		14	talking with each other about safety. So, you
15	we meet that requirement is every week the		15	know, what will happen is everybody gets a
16	Platform leadership gets together at 9 o'clock		16	basic training on how this works and the idea
17	on Saturdays usually, and we have a we have	;	17	is that if I go out on the work site and Mr.
18	the Platform divided up into teams, into		18	Sacuta doesn't have his safety glasses on, and
19	areas. Each supervisor is responsible for		19	he's had people come up to him because he's
20	certain area on the Platform, and one of the		20	forgotten to put his safety glasses on when
21	safety reps will come to that meeting and he		21	he's walked out of the TSR, the safe refuge
22	will participate he or she will participate		22	accommodations, sorry about the acronym, and
23	in that inspection and we'll go out and		23	so the idea is that we'll have a discussion
24	inspect the whole Platform, and it's general,		24	that say "hey, Paul, you didn't have your
25	like we talked about, housekeeping, and making	g	25	glasses on" and then he'll say "yeah, okay"

Ja	nuary 18, 2010 M	ulti-P	age™	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	29		Page 131
1	and he'll put them on So both sides know the	1	0	How many of these cards that was a red one
	spirit of which the intent of that is and		Q.	The other one is a blue or green
	then I would go back and make a card out that			
	save you know it's got safe acts observed		MK. FI	Vash so the heard ID reports we get
	says you know, it's got sale acts observed		· A.	really so the hazard in reports, we get
3	or unsale act observed. So this was an unsale	0		probably 15 of those a week, on average. Some
6	act. I would put down observed a worker	6		weeks you get more. If there was a
17	without his safety glasses on. I can put my	17		maintenance shutdown, you'd probably get more.
8	name on it. I don't put his name on it. And	8		You'd have more people, more activities. So
9	then I would tick off on the box for the	9		probably around 15 a week of these, and these
10	statistics, I would tick off that somebody	10)	observations, the people talking about safety
11	without the proper PPE.	11		and documented that they're talking about
12	ROIL, Q.C.:	12		safety, about 300 a week. So thousands
13	Q. So you wouldn't have to identify the person?	13		throughout the year.
14	MR. FRASER:	14	ROIL,	Q.C.:
15	A. You don't identify the person, no.	15	Q.	And what happens with them when they're handed
16	ROIL, Q.C.:	16		in?
17	Q. Just the fact that -	17	MR. FI	RASER:
18	MR. SACUTA:	18	А.	Yeah, so they go into -
19	A. It had nothing to do with me being the person.	19	ROIL	0C:
20	You wouldn't identify any person	20	0	Just follow up so that we understand what the
$ _{21}^{20}$	MR FRASER	20	<u>ح</u> ،	ultimate trail is for these
	A You wouldn't identify any person. So if the	21	MD EI	
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	MD SACUTA:	22		So these go to town to our SURE department
23	M. SACUTA.	23	А.	onshore and there's some tick bayes
24	A. Tou identify what the actual unsafe act was,	24	роц	onshore and mere's some tick boxes -
23	of a safe act.	23	KUIL,	
	Page	30		Page 132
1				- 181 - 18
1	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	Q.	By town, you mean St. John's?
1 2	ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person.	1 2	Q. MR. F	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER:
1 2 3	ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA:	1 2 3	Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes,
1 2 3 4	ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right.	1 2 3 4	Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah.
1 2 3 4 5	ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER:	1 2 3 4 5	Q. MR. F A. ROIL,	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.:
1 2 3 4 5 6	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, 	1 2 3 4 5 6	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would 	1 2 3 4 5 6	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla" 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 cc. 14	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off That would go into the database and
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place " Again no names are 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 ce 14	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month the SH&E department
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 ce 14 15	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saving "hey, we've got
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it 	1 2 3 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 12 13 ce 14 15 16	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25. improper lifting, techniques, unsafe
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was but if it was you and I beying the 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 12 13 15 16 17	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and than we would saw
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction. I wouldn't put your name. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 12 13 16 17 18	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it, but I could put my name on it, but I could put my name on it, 	1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 17 18 19 20	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we need to make ourse that we got to here, we here to here, the set of here, we here to here, the set of here, we here the to here, the set of here, we here to here, the set of here, we here to here, the set of here, we here the set of here, the set of the set of the set of here, we here the set of here the set
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 20	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to have we need to make sure that we get a
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it. So the idea is to get people talking back 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to have we need to make sure that we get a program out there to remind people of safe
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it, but I could put my own name on it. So the idea is to get people talking back and forth about safety on a day-to-day basis, with the analytic and the safety on a day-to-day basis, with the same table. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to have we need to make sure that we get a program out there to remind people of safe lifting techniques" and that may be posters.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workpla with all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it, but I could put my own name on it. So the idea is to get people talking back and forth about safety on a day-to-day basis, right, and at the real grassroots level type 	1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to have we need to make sure that we get a program out there to remind people of safe lifting techniques" and that may be posters. It may be get somebody from onshore that's an
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	 ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Yeah, the focus is on the act, not the person. MR. SACUTA: A. Right. MR. FRASER: A. The focus is on the act, not the person, right, and in the same respect, somebody would come out and see Mr. Sacuta with his glasses on and say "I see you got all your PPE on. You got the proper gloves, the proper gear. Good job, and I'll do a Stop card on that" and then the guy would do the same thing. There's a spot for you for safe acts observed. So you'd write down "observed worker in workplawith all PPE in place." Again, no names are used. There's a spot on it where you can put your name. I could put my name on it if it was, but if it was you and I having the interaction, I wouldn't put your name on it, but I could put my own name on it. So the idea is to get people talking back and forth about safety on a day-to-day basis, right, and at the real grassroots level type thing. 	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Q. MR. F A. ROIL, Q. MR. F A.	By town, you mean St. John's? RASER: St. John's, sorry. We just call it town, yes, so it's St. John's, yeah. Q.C.: I call it town sometimes too. RASER: You call it town too, yeah. So we sent it to St. John's, to our office in St. John's and all this goes into a database and there's like this one here, there's positions of people is one of the classes, and it might be improper lifting, right. So you'd tick that box off. That would go into the database and at the end of the month, the SH&E department would generate a report saying "hey, we've got 25 improper lifting techniques, unsafe behaviours observed" and then we would say "that's our leading indicator. We need to have we need to make sure that we get a program out there to remind people of safe lifting techniques" and that may be posters. It may be get somebody from onshore that's an expert in it, and we've had them come out,
January 18, 2010	Multi-Page	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
---	------------------	---		
	Page 133	Page 135		
1 for people on proper lifting technique	ues. 1	So the next bullet point is safety		
2 MR. SACUTA:	2	performance trending. So we talked about		
3 A. I think the key component of ser	iding it 3	you know, we talked about that, that we'd take		
4 onshore is it is sent onshore after o	ffshore 4	the information. So an incident report, for		
5 has done their review. So offshore	gets the 5	instance, is a lagging indicator, so something		
6 opportunity to look at the Stop car	d, talk 6	has already happened and we obviously are		
7 about it. It's brought up at safety m	eetings. 7	going to take whatever measures we can do to		
8 It's brought up at shift handovers	. So 8	make sure that that doesn't happen again, but		
9 there's an opportunity for immediat	e feedback 9	the information from the hazard IDs and the		
10 to the workforce on anything that's	identified 10	observation programs of that type of stuff		
11 on the card.	11	goes into a leading indicator numbers and that		
12 ROIL, Q.C.:	12	will give us some indication of areas where we		
13 Q. Again, this question is not neces	ssarily 13	potentially could have a problem with		
14 applicable now, but it seems a very	good place 14	injuries.		
15 for it. Would issues surrounding s	afety or 15	So all that safety performance trending		
16 lack of safety or concerns with res	pect to 16	is done by our onshore SH&E department. They		
17 helicopter transport, would that be i	dentified 17	do the administration of that and send us the		
18 on these kinds of cards or do the	y tend 18	results offshore.		
19 generally to be about the condition	ons and 19	The last bullet point in this section is		
20 concerns and good, the bad and the	ugly on the 20	recognition program. So what we do to		
21 facility itself, rather than as a part o	f the 21	encourage folks to participate in these		
22 transit out?	22	programs is we'll have a random draw once a		
23 MR. FRASER:	23	week, the SH&E lead and he'll get somebody		
A. The vast majority are on the Platf	orm. I 24	from one of the worker reps or somebody else		
25 guess, you know, you spend three w	/eeks on the 25	to just randomly draw one of these cards out,		
	Page 134	Page 136		
1 Platform and you spend an hour an	d a half on 1	and if there's a name on it, which there		
2 the helicopter. So the time frame is	s there, 2	usually is, of the person that submitted it,		
3 you know. I spend most of my tin	ne on the 3	then they'll give them something like, you		
4 helicopter asleep, so you know. I	here are 4	know, a flashlight or a baseball hat or a I-		
5 some that have come up from helico	opter issues. 5	shirt or something like that, a small token of		
6 We had hazard IDs on I believe	on the 6	appreciation for participating in the program.		
7 headsets, the older model helicopte	rs had a 7	Same thing with the hazard ID report. We'll		
8 neadset on them that you could list	en to the 8	also take the SH&E lead will go through and		
9 announcements from the pilot and	there was 9	pick out a particularly good observation and		
10 Issues with that, and we -	10	give that for the pick of the week as not a		
11 KOIL, Q.C.:	hility to	does a good job of a good guality observation		
12 Q. By issues, you mean the lack of a		and they'll get same kind of a token for that		
15 IICAL	13	Additionally we have a program called		
15 A Vesh Sometimes you couldn't	hear the 15	the President's Safety Award and what that is		
16 messages and the system gradually	what we did 16	is once a month a person or a group that's		
17 was with the S-92s we replaced th	at system	contributed to safety on the Platform and the		
18 eventually with a we tried boost	ing the 18	wellbeing of the workforce will get nominated		
19 power on the headsets and stuff like	that, and 19	and the prize for that is a donation of \$1,000		
20 now we have the PAs in the S-92 ha	s got enough 20	in their name to the charity of their choice		
21 speakers and they're powerful enou	igh that we 21	as a token of our appreciation for their good		
don't use that system any more. An	d you know. 22	work and participation in the safety programs		
23 like in helicopter operations, maybe	somebody 23	on the Platform.		
24 not using the handrail coming dow	n from the 24 RO	IL, Q.C.:		
25 helideck, but not a lot generated fro	m that.	Q. So it's not just a rules based approach.		

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Р	age 137			Page 139
1	There's a rewards and incentive approach	as	1		and it doesn't matter if we how the
2	well?		2		schedule of drilling that well goes, it won't
3	MR. FRASER:		3		be a successful well if somebody gets hurt
4	A. Yeah, there's a rewards, yeah. You don't v	vant	4		drilling the well.
5	to make it too one way or another, but it's		5	ROIL	, Q.C.:
6	you know, it's a pretty good program, yeah	ı.	6	Q.	When I come to work in the morning, I drive in
7	ROIL, Q.C.:		7		my car and I come in here and I don't start
8	Q. Do you ever get the complaint from emplo	oyees	8		work until I arrive. What is your
9	that there's too much focus on safety, that	t	9		understanding that the employees or that the
10	it's in my face all the time and I can't		10		workers have in terms of when do they start
11	you know, you're getting to the stage who	ere	11		work?
12	I'm saturated, I'm tired of hearing about it	?	12	MR. F	RASER:
13	MR. FRASER:		13	А.	When do they start work?
14	A. Sometimes you do. It's like anything. Peo	ple	14	ROIL	, Q.C.:
15	will get you know, I think our folks all		15	Q.	Yeah, in terms of the helicopter ride, is that
16	want to get stuff done, right. Everybody	1	16		part of work?
17	wants to get the job done. They all		17	MR. F	RASER:
18	understand how important safety is and, y	/ou	18	А.	Yeah, so they start work when they check in at
19	know, normally I think that most people w	vill	19		the heliport.
20	say, you know, that sometimes it gets ye	ou	20	ROIL	, Q.C.:
21	know, sometimes your job gets delayed be	cause	21	Q.	There's no question about that anywhere?
22	you're waiting for the permit to get put in	L I	22	MR. F	FRASER:
23	place and stuff like that, and you just got to)	23	А.	There shouldn't be.
24	wait, and you know, people want to get w	ork	24	MR. S	ACUTA:
25	done, but in general, I think everybody		25	A.	And certainly they're exposed to our
	Р	age 138			Page 140
1	accepts that that's part of life offshore is	0	1		expectations on safety from the time they
2	that, you know, you have to do it safe befo	re	2		check in right through until the time they
3	you do it, right. We'd rather wait and sit		3		depart the Platform.
4	there and wait until the job is ready to go		4	ROIL	, Q.C.:
5	than take a shortcut.		5	Q.	Yeah. Yeah, just want I'm trying to
6	ROIL, Q.C.:		6		establish whether there's a crack in the -
7	Q. You mentioned earlier, and I see in the slice	le	7	MR. F	FRASER:
8	there the "Nobody Gets Hurt". That, I tak	xe 🛛	8	A.	No.
9	it, is a slogan or a byline or something?		9	ROIL	, Q.C.:
10	MR. FRASER:		10	Q.	- in the period when maybe helicopter
11	A. Yeah, that's our safety slogan. You know,	we	11		transportation isn't considered part of work.
12	put it on those, you know, the ball hats and	d	12		I haven't heard that.
13	if we give out t-shirts for something and sa	ıy	13	MR. F	FRASER:
14	"nobody gets hurt." That's our safety moth	io.	14	А.	No.
15	That's our objective in everyday and when	you	15	ROIL	, Q.C.:
16	come into the OIM's office your first day	r	16	Q.	I'm just wondering if that's a possibility.
17	there, then we talk about "nobody gets hu	rt"	17	MR. S	ACUTA:
18	and that's our objective, that we think that,	,	18	А.	Shouldn't be.
19	you know, that you should be able to work	here	19	ROIL	, Q.C.:
20	everyday for the rest of your life and not g	et	20	Q.	In terms of as you gentlemen understand work
21	hurt and none of your coworkers can get h	urt,	21		at HMDC.
22	and that's the objective in every task that v	ve	22	MR. F	FRASER:
23	do. The primary objective is, what I tell		23	A.	No. When they show up at the heliport, when
24	folks is, you know, you may be here to do	o a 🔤	24		they check in, they're at work, and they're at
25	specialty job up in drilling and drill a well		25		work until they get their boots back and their

January 18, 2010	Multi	-Page [™]	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 141		Page 143
1 jacket and leave the h	reliport. Sometimes	1	locally on how we do that, right. So the
2 their boots are late, but	normally that's when	2	offshore safety health and environment
3 when you're finished	l, when you walk out the	3	handbook, and we showed you that, and that's
4 door, that's when it end	ds. So arrival at the	4	one of our procedures that we use, because
5 heliport, departure from	n the heliport, in that	5	that's an official HMDC document. It's got a
6 three-week cycle, that'	s when you're at work.	6	document number on it.
7 MR. SACUTA:		7	The Joint Occupational Health and Safety
8 A. And we certainly end	courage all of our	8	Committee, there's a procedure that governs
9 employees to take the	practices and policies	9	that committee, how that committee operates,
10 and procedures and the	steps related to safety	10	how you nominate people, how they get elected,
11 home with them, so that	it they utilize them at	11	how the minutes are kept, what it's
12 home, and I think that,	, you know, there are	12	responsibilities are. All that is in a
13 people that treat safety	different at home	13	document that we have.
14 than they do at work. E	But I'd like to see the	14	Platform safety meetings, we've got a
15 day when it doesn't ma	tter if you're at home	15	document that outlines how we do our Platform
16 or you're at work, you	treat safety the same,	16	safety meetings.
17 and we encourage that	as part of our day-to-	17	Personal protective equipment, including
18 day responsibilities off	shore.	18	transportation suits, we talked about that,
19 ROIL, Q.C.:		19	that all that, the standards of all that
20 Q. Okay.		20	personal protective equipment is outlined.
21 MR. FRASER:	, , .	21	Training requirements, so all of our
22 A. So the objective of this	management system is	22	workforce, everybody that works on Hibernia
23 obviously the ultimate	bious on incident free	23	has what we call a road map and it outlines
24 personal safety is to act	dy gets, burt by reducing	24	that role and what the key, compatencies are
	by gets mult by reducing	25	that fole and what the key competencies are
	Page 142		Page 144
1 at-risk behaviour and	managing hazards	1	for that role, and that's all up to the TQG,
2 associated with the work	« environment, hazard	2	Training and Qualifications guidelines. So
3 identification and correct	tion programs which	3	all that's documented, so everybody from
4 are comprehensive and	widely used. So that s		like I said, from the chef to the roughneck
5 Our objective in that, in	that whole system,	5	for training and that's all documented
6 light.	oppon We talked	0	Next slide, slide 46, so now we'll talk a
7 Salety Just doesn't h	appent a lot of safety	0	little bit about the Hibernia Joint
about, you know, taked	about a fot of safety.	0	Occupational Health and Safety Committee So
⁹ It shard work. Having a	es lots of work and	10	the safety committee is a legislated
11 effort by everybody on	a day-to-day basis	11	requirement The Occupational Health and
12 from Mr. Sacuta to mys	elf you know from the	12	Safety Committee is mandated by Sections 37
13 chef to the roughneck.	Everybody in that	13	38 and 39 of the Newfoundland and Labrador
14 everybody there, every	day, every shift needs	14	Occupational Health and Safety Act. So 37
15 to be you know, need	s to work at it. It's	15	outlines that ten or more employees, if the
a lot of work to keep ev	verybody safe all the	16	workplace has ten or more employees, you need
17 time, and that's our obje	ective, that we don't	17	to have a committee. So obviously we've got
18 want anybody to get hu	rt ever.	18	way more than that. Section 38 is the
19 Going to go to the r	next slide there,	19	composition of the committee and the necessary
20 Paul. So some of the pr	ocesses and procedures	20	training, and I'll talk a little bit about
21 that are used in Elemen	nt 5, personnel and	21	that later, and Section 39 is the duties of
22 training, and we talked a	about this that these	22	the committee, so we'll have a little
are our procedures that a	are at our level. The	23	discussion on that.
24 management system out	lines what we should do	24	The other thing, legislative
and then we have to des	ign our procedures here	25	requirements, worker representatives are

Janu	uary 18, 2010 Mul	ti-Page [™]	¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 14	5	Page 147
1	nominated and elected by their coworkers as	1	then three weeks later, everybody changes out
2	per a set of standards and procedures, and	2	and they have a JOHS meeting with the other
3	we'll talk about that. All JOHS committee	3	shift that's off and L think the legislation
4	representatives receive training with respect	4	is every three months, but we have one every
5	to their responsibilities in incident	5	three weeks a IOHS committee meeting
6	investigation	6 ROII	
		7 0	And again at the risk of being a little
8	O What kind of training is that? I mean is it	8	repetitions is there any question that issues
9	iust an on-the-committee training or is there	9	relating to the transport portion of my
10	a formalized training?	10	employment that that's a place where that
П11 м	R FRASER	11	should and can get raised if I have concerns?
12	A No there's a formalized committee that the	12 MR F	RASER.
13	Workplace Health and Safety Commission lays	13 A.	Yeah, we've talked about issues at the
14	out. There's certain service providers in	14	heliport and the heliport and the
15	Newfoundland, the people that are certified to	15	transportation offshore are all have all
16	do that So we send all of our IOHS reps and	16	been raised at the IOHS committee at one time
17	that's workers so I've attended and our	17	or another Not a lot I guess it's the same
18	workers I'm management I guess	18	kind of thing There's you know a small
19	Management and workers both go to the same	19	component of our time is related to
20	course and get it teaches them you know	20	helicopters but there has been some
21	what their duties are, outlines the Act and	21	discussion on JOHS.
22	talk about regulations and the Act and what	22	So another duty of the committee is to
23	they're supposed to do and a little bit around	23	make recommendations to management and workers
24	committee interaction, how to work on a	24	to enforce health and safety in the workplace.
25	committee, so a little component of that, and	25	So like I said, the JOHS committee is a key
	Page 14	5	Page 148
1	we also do two days of training on incident		component of our safety culture getting to
2	investigation So we have a system called	2	where we are Our safety record you know we
3	TapRooT a proprietary system that we use to	3	wouldn't be where we are if it wasn't for the
4	investigate incidents and everybody that's on	4	IOHS committee. That's a key piece of the
5	the JOHS committee, worker or management, gets	5	work. You know, there's not enough
6	trained in TapRooT incident investigation	6	supervisors out there to do that. The
7	technique.	7	workforce is a big key component of that, and
8	Just going to go to the next slide there.	8	the JOHS is the driver behind that from the
9	slide 47. So the Hibernia Platform has a	9	workforce perspective.
10	mature, well-established JOHS committee	10	Establish and promote health and safety
11	providing Platform wide representation since	11	programs for workers. So the JOHS committee
12	1997. You know, our JOHS ensures that the	12	has you know, we've had lots of programs
13	workforce is involved in what's going on on	13	where the JOHS committee has participated and
14	the Platform safety wise, from day one, day-	14	been the driver for it. Recently we had our
15	to-day, you know, they're involved in	15	H1N1 was as everybody knows, was in the
16	everything that we do offshore. The committee	16	news. We had an H1N1 program that the JOHS
17	has responsibilities for identifying aspects	17	committee was a key in implementing that, and
18	of the workplace that may be unhealthy or	18	we had great success with that offshore.
19	unsafe, receive complaints, concerns, issues	19	Provide C-NLOPB with minutes, copies of
20	from workers and maintain records of issues	20	minutes and action lists, and we talked about
21	and resolutions, so that the JOHS committee	21	that, and to meet with the C-NLOPB twice
22	has a you know, we have a form of minutes	22	annually. So we've had and I believe the
23	that we keep and those minutes go to the C-	23	Commission -
24	NLOPB every three weeks we have a JOHS	24 ROIL	, Q.C.:
25	meeting. We have a meeting when I'm there and	25 Q.	We've actually attended.

Jan	uary 18, 2010 N	Iulti-P	age	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	149		Page 151
1 1	MR. FRASER:	1	ROIL	, Q.C.:
2	A. Yeah, the Commission attended one of those	2	Q.	And what would a vote be required for? To
3	sessions. So what we do is the Board gets all	3		implement something new or to change
4	the JOHS committees from all the platforms in	4		something?
5	the area, the facilities, everything that's	5	MR. I	FRASER:
6	under the Board's jurisdiction, and the JOHS	6	A.	Yeah, if there was something, an issue had
7	committees, both workers and management, come	7		come up around like when we had the recent
8	in for two days and they have it says two	8		right to refuse issues, we made sure that we
9	meetings, but it is two meetings, but it's one	9		adhered very closely to that, to the
10	meeting for one shift and one meeting for the	10)	legislation on that. But in general, when
11	other shift. So they do it three weeks	11		we're going to have a safety discussion that
12	offset, so everybody gets to attend, and they	12		involves everybody, the more participation the
13	get everybody in there and have and it's	13		better.
14	been evolving. The Board's been they've	14		The OIM, the production supervisor,
15	been tweaking the process, I guess, as we go	15		maintenance supervisor, services supervisor,
16	and this year we had the Board, we came in	16	i	drilling supervisor, and the safety health and
17	and we had discussion. We had break we had	17		environment lead are all members of the JOHS
18	general discussion and then had breakout	18		committee. Elected worker representatives
19	groups and discussed specific issues and those	19		come from all departments throughout the
20	groups were broken out. The management	20)	Platform to ensure maximum worker
21	representatives went in one group and the	21		participation and representation. So we have
22	worker representatives went in the other group	22		right now on the Platform, there's 26
23	and then they have discussions within those	23		safety representatives from worker reps and -
24	groups and then come back to the general	24	ROIL	, Q.C.:
25	session, and it's a pretty good process. It's	25	Q.	26 on each of the two shifts?
	Page	150		Page 152
1	worked well. There's been some you know,	1	MR. I	FRASER:
2	there's been some growing pains with it, but	2	Α.	No, 13 on each shift. So there's 13 on and 13
3	it's worked very well, I think.	3		off.
4	The committee structure, we'll talk a	4	ROIL	, Q.C.:
5	little bit about the Hibernia JOHS committee	5	Q.	Right.
6	is structured in accordance with the Joint	6	MR. I	FRASER:
7	Occupational Health and Safety Committee	7	A.	There could be a time when there's 11 on and
8	document, which I talked about earlier, and	8		14 off, but just because of the shift
9	includes the following representation. Equal	9)	rotations and they're divided up. Production
10	attendance from management and workforce. I	f 10)	operations, Platform services, production
11	we were going to have a meeting where we had	d 11		maintenance, drilling operations, drilling
12	to vote on something, we would be very we	12		maintenance, drilling services and
13	would adhere to that rule very closely. We	13		construction are all represented at that
14	have if there's if we're going to have a	14		group. Some of the bigger groups like
15	general safety discussion at our JOHS	15		drilling operations have three on board at one
16	meetings, we would get you know, if there's	16		time. Some of the smaller groups, like
17	however many safety reps are available,	17		drilling services, may only have one.
18	show up to the meeting, we don't say "well,	18		The worker reps also have a meeting where
19	we've got ten supervisors and we got 11 safety	19		they go every Friday at 1:00 and the workers,
20	reps. We're going to send somebody away." W	'e 20)	worker reps go by themselves. There's no
21	get everybody to participate as much as	21		management there, and -
22	possible. But for instances where we'd have	22	ROIL	, Q.C.:
23	to have a vote on something, which has	23	Q.	Now by worker reps, I take it those would be
24	happened very rarely, then we would make sure	e 24		the same people that are members of the CEP,
25	that we adhered to that equal representation.	25		the union?

January 18, 2010 Mult		^M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
Pas	ge 153	Page 155
1 MR. FRASER:	1	is chaired by two people or is it back and
2 A. Yes.	2	forth alternately?
3 ROIL, Q.C.:	3 MR.	FRASER:
4 Q. They're all bargaining unit people?	4 A	. We tend to go back and forth, yeah.
5 MR. FRASER:	5 ROII	, Q.C.:
6 A. All bargaining unit people, yeah. Yes, our	6 Q	. Okay, yeah.
7 elected safety reps are all bargaining unit	7 MR.	FRASER:
8 people. They have a meeting where they g	30 8 A	. Okay. Next slide, Paul, please. So some more
9 without any management at 1:00 every even	ery 9	on the JOHS committee. The Hibernia JOHS
10 Friday at 1:00, unless there's something goin	ng 10	committee has developed and enhanced numerous
11 on, and they'll go there and have a meeting	11	safety initiatives including the hearing
12 where they will sit down and discuss any	12	protection programs, the loss prevention
13 issues that have come up from their	13	observation program, Platform shutdown safety
14 constituents. Typically, that meeting, at the	14	monitor program, transportation by vessel
15 end of that meeting, the co-chair will come	15	guidelines, and promoting worker participation
down and talk to myself, if there's any	16	in Platform wide safety programs, Stop, Hazard
17 issues. So you know, typically she'll come	17	ID and injury and near miss reporting.
down after the meeting, at usually 2:30 in the	e 18	So the hearing protection program, just
19afternoon or she'll call me up and say "I got	19	to give you a flavour for a couple of these,
20 some things I want to talk to you about" and	1 20	is when we first went offshore, the vision was
21 then have a general discussion. Usually it's	21	that there were certain areas that were noisy
just things on a you know, next meeting w	re 22	and people had to wear hearing protection in
23 need to have a status on where this is or	23	those areas. What we found through our
24 where that item is, but you know, generally a	a 24	observation program was that people were going
25 good discussion. We encourage the worke	rs 25	from quiet areas to noisy areas, not wearing
Pag	ge 154	Page 156
1 obviously to discuss anything with their	1	their hearing protection. So the JOHS
2 supervisors first, and most of the time that	2	committee got together and came up with some
3 happens. The JOHS committee tends to dea	ıl 3	guidelines and basically what we decided was
4 with more general Platform wide issues.	4	that every time you go outside the office
5 So the JOHS committee has a secretary	5	areas or the accommodations, you have to wear
6 that keeps the minutes obviously, and the	6	your hearing protection, and that eliminated
7 minutes are generated after each meeting. Th	ie 7	the hazard of people forgetting to put their
8 co-chair and myself sign off on each page	8	hearing protection on. So the JOHS committee
9 after we agree on what the items that were	9	was a key to getting that out and, you know,
10 discussed and everybody's nappy with it and	I we 10	hearing metastice at some times, right They
11 have an action list that would also go with		figured they wouldn't do that and the JOUS
12 Utat. 12 It's jointly shoired by the ODA and an	12	appreciately would to that and the JOHS
13 It's jointly changed by the OIM and an	r 14	committee was the key in senting that idea and
15 representatives have what they call a co chai	1 14	That was ten years ago we did that
15 representatives have what they can a co-chan 16 that they've elected amongst themselves and	we 16 ROII	
17 alternate back and forth who is the chair	10 KOI	So the message I take it is that this is not
18 Basically the chair gets to read the minutes	18	just a committee that sits and talks. It
19 from the last meeting is what it is right	19	actually produces?
20 ROIL O.C.:	20 MR	FRASER:
21 O. The chair doesn't have a lot of authority	20 MIC.	Produces, yeah. Another good example of that
22 MR. FRASER:	22	is the transportation by vessel guidelines.
A. The chair doesn't have a lot of authority. no.	23	So when we first went offshore, there was a
24 ROIL, Q.C.:	24	vision that we would never have to transport
25 Q. To control things. Is it so each meeting	25	people back and forth on a supply vessel.

January 18, 2010 Multi			age	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Pag	e 157		Page 159
1	Well, you know, the fog here, pretty quickly	1		12th?
2	we realized that that wasn't going to be the	2	MR.	FRASER:
3	case. So we had some guidelines established	1 3	А	Yeah. The main discussion was around the
4	on how we would transport people back ar	nd 4		comfort of the suits. I think you guys have
5	forth how long we would wait before we pu	it 5		heard that the zippers were really stiff
6	people on the boat what kind of issues what			really difficult to pull up, and we had to
	kind of safeguards we would have to have a	nd 7		some people had trouble with that Some
	all that kind of stuff was all the IOHS			people didn't but there were people that had
	committee was a key component in establish	ing 0		trouble with it. When they were new they
10	all that			were really stiff and they
		10	ROI	
12	O Okay I think rather than deal with all of	11		By new you mean when the suits are?
12	Q. Okay. I think father than dear with an of	12		EDASED.
13	MD_EDASED.	13	MIK.	When the suits were new the suits are
14	MR. FRASER.	14	A	well I guess some of them probably still are
15		15		now but the suits are now. When they're now
10	KOIL, Q.C.:	10		they're really stiff. The zippers are stiff
10	Q we should move on a fittle off.	1/		So wa you know based on feedback from the
10	MR. FRASER.	ad 10		IOHS committee we went back to onshore and
20	A. Tean. And also, the JOHS committee address			said "we need to do something about this " So
$ _{21}^{20}$	including the frequency and location of basic	[3,]20		we initiated the L think you, guys talked
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	survival training, potable water quality E452			the other day about putting lubricant. I think
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	passanger suit comfort issues. We talked the			it's because on the zinners and looking at
23	balicoptor raturn to service when the	23		different issues, way we could make sure
24	helicopter return to service was going on	24		everybody was trained in how to put them up
25	nencopter retain to service was going on,	1.70		everybody was trained in now to put them up,
	Pag	je 158		Page 160
	after the incident in March, what happened w	as 1		now to put it up and then we put the zipper up
$ ^2$	that the issues that the workforce had on	2		and then we had issues that at the heliport
	Hibernia got funnelled to the JOHS committe	e 3		everybody would have to sit down and
4	and the JOHS committee submitted lists into	. 4		demonstrate that they could zipper the hood
5	the Task Force and then the Task Force had	1 5		up. So that was around the the issues
6	sessions with the JOHS committee and reporte	ed 6		around the suit and you know, they're bulky
7	back on the status of different items and	7		and there was some issues with that. The
8	where we were and where we were going v	vith 8		wrist seals were tight and there was issues
9	that particular return to service. So the	9	_	with that.
10	JOHS committee was involved in that, and the	en 10	ROI	L, Q.C.:
	they took the issues back, to their	11	Q	As the OIM and primarily responsible for
12	explanations and issues back and forth. So	12		persons travelling to and from your facility,
13	that was our way to communicate to the	13		was it ever a concern of yours that these
14	workforce. I think is that any questions?	14		kinds of concerns, which you described as
15	ROIL, Q.C.:	15		comfort, would have engaged a situation where
16	Q. I guess because we've talked about it a lot,	16		the suit was not fitting and that somebody was
17	and you haven't been here before, I'll give	17		at risk?
18	you the opportunity to make comment on the	he 18	MR.	FRASER:
19	E452 passenger transport suit comfort issues.	. 19	A	. No. My personal experience, I went to my BST
20	MR. FRASER:	20		retresher shortly after we started using those
21	A. Oh yes, sorry.	21		suits. I can't remember exactly when, but
22	ROIL, Q.C.:	22		when I used my suit, it was the first time
23	Q. What can you tell us about your knowledge	ot 23		that I had used a suit in the pool for the
24	the concerns of the workers of HMDC about th	ne 24		dunk that I didn't get really wet. I got a
25	E45 suit prior to the incident on March the	25		small amount of water, like about that big, on

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-F	Pa	ge TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 161			Page 163
1	my chest. The suits were new. The suit	that	1	0.	Good. okay.
2	I had was new and one of the issues I d	on't	21	MR.F	RASER:
3	know if they talked about it the Marin		 3	Α	Cougar takes care of that right
4	Institute talked about it but the suits that		2 4 1	ROIL	
5	they use in the pool the chlorine breaks t	hem	5	0	Yeah understood
6	down. So they tend to leak more than a r	ormal	6 I	∼. MRF	RASER.
	suit So I didn't have any from a perso	nal	7	Δ	So Flement 6 has a the nurnose is operating
	nerspective and from what I was talking	to s	, 8	71.	and maintenance procedures are identified
	the workforce around the suits, it was around	und 0	9		developed and maintained quality assurance
	the comfort of they were uncomfortabl	e when 10	0		processes for replacement equipment and
	you had them zinnered up. They w	ere 11	1		materials is in place. Objective is operating
12	uncomfortable The zippered up. They w	lit 12	1 2		and maintenance procedures are identified
12	kept your neck over to one side and they	i in 12	2 3		classified developed and approved and
11	not very comfortable. That's what y		л Л		available at all locations Improvements to
15	know if you got it zinnered up to land or	the 14	- -		operating and maintenance procedures are
16	Platform or take off from the Platform		6		identified and communicated and OA/OC plans
17	know you had to take it down after a w	hile 17	7		ensure that replacement equipment and
18	because it would be uncomfortable to lea	ve it	، و		materials used in operations and maintenance
10	for a long period of time. But in an		0		activities meet design specifications
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \\ 0 \end{vmatrix}$	emergency that comfort wouldn't matter	in an 20	, 0 1		
$\begin{vmatrix} 20 \\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	emergency right So that's my experie	nce 21	1	NOIL,	0.1/0C may be another acronym that not
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	with it Does that answer your question?		1 ว	Q.	everybody is familiar with
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	POIL O.C.		2 3 1	MD E	
$\begin{vmatrix} 23\\ 24 \end{vmatrix}$	O Ves it does I think we've given the oth	ar	л 1 Л	A	Ouality assurance and quality control
$\begin{vmatrix} 24\\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$	witnesses from time to time the opportu	nity 2^{2}		ROII	
	withesses, nom time to time, the opportu	$\frac{1}{2}$		KOIL,	Q.C
		Page 162		-	Page 164
	to reflect on that issue and I m glad to ha	ve	1	Q.	Quality control.
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	you to have your opportunity as well. w	e ve	21	MR. F	RASER:
	got another five minutes, and I think in t	ne :	3	A.	And in this, and again, this is not around
	act into the next section		4		quality control and quality assurance of
3	get into the next section.		5 6 1		operating the hencopter.
	MR. FRASER:		6 I 7	RUIL,	Q.C.: No
			/ 0 1	Q. MDE	
	O I think you're going to lead us through the	not (01	МК. Г. Л	RASER: Processes and procedures related to belicoptor
10	Q. I think you is going to read us through th		9	A.	operations. So we have a couple of documents
	MD EDASED.	11	1		that we have at Hibernia, that are related to
$ _{12}^{11}$	MR. FRASER. Λ Ves sir So go to $-$ L guess we just go to	11	1 2		heliconter operations. The aviation
12	A. Tes, sil. So go to I guess we just go to slide 51. So again talking about the OI	/S 12	2		operations guide the beliconter operations
11	Flement 6 operations and maintenance	and I 1/	3 1		manual and the helideck operations procedure
15	guess we're going to go through it. Hibe	rnia 14			and a process for control for helifuel
16	has a large number of procedures that de	tail 16	5 6 1	ROIL	
17	how we operate and maintain the Platfor	n So 17	7	0	Okay now just getting back to our sort of
18	OIMS' Element 6 talks about operations	and 18	8	χ.	comments and Mr. Sacuta's explanation that
19	maintenance and what I'm going to talk	about	9		some things are HMDC specific. The aviation
20	here is how we service the heliconters at	the 20	0		operations guide, is that a HMDC one or is
$ _{21}^{-3}$	Platform, how a helicopter lands and ta	kes 21	1		that an ExxonMobil?
22	off, people get on and off and we refuel	it. 2	21	MR F	RASER:
23	It's not about how the operator mainta	$\frac{1}{2}$	3	Α.	It is an this, we have a Hibernia version
$ _{24}$	helicopters.	24	4		of the aviation operations guideline in our
25	ROIL, Q.C.:	25	5		document control system, but it is a
					-

January 18, 2010	Multi-P	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 165		Page 167
1 ExxonMobil corporate aviation guideline.	1		And the Aviation Operations Guide, the AOG as
2 ROIL, O.C.:	2		we cal it, another acronym, is a compilation
3 O. And it's been adopted by HMDC?	3		of petroleum industry aviation best practices.
4 MR. FRASER:	4		It assists us in planning and development and
5 A. It's been adopted by HMDC.	5		conduct of safe and efficient air transport
6 ROIL, O.C.:	6		activities. And the AOG ensures that the
7 O. Okay. What about the operations manual	? 7		company has high standards everywhere we
8 MR. FRASER:	8		operate because obviously it's an SMO
9 A. So the helicopter operations manual is	a 9		procedure that we've adopted and it's used all
10 Hibernia specific manual that details how	we 10		over the world, and what we do is we use it to
11 do that. It talks about what goes on at the	2 11		make sure that we meet the regulations or the
heliport, what's required to be done at th	e 12		AOG, whatever is the highest standard.
13 heliport, and once you get offshore, but i	t 13	ROIL.	0.C.:
14 doesn't go into the details. It's just in	14	0.	Okay. So if the AOG is below the regulation.
15 general terms. You know, you need to	be 15	Č.	clearly the regulations -
16 checked in. You need to be weighed. Co	ugar. 16	MR. F	RASER:
17 I'm sure, when they come in, they'll tell y	ou 17	А.	Clearly we meet the regulations, yeah. So AGO
18 the specifics around that, but it's just a	18		provides for, there's other bullet points.
19 general requirement of what HMDC require	es. 19		I'll give vou some of the. I guess, more
20 The next one, the helideck operations	20		pertinent ones and I think Mr. Sacuta is going
21 procedure, so that's what goes on on the	ie 21		to talk about some of these later. Evaluation
22 Platform on the helideck.	22		of helicopter services, service providers by a
23 ROIL O.C.:	23		qualified aviation advisors, the conduct of
24 0. And that's a HMDC specific document?	24		contract initial and periodic aviation
25 MR. FRASER:	25		reviews, including familiarization with
	Daga 166		Page 168
1 A That's an HMDC specific document yes	sir 1		organizational structure review of safety
And the process for control of Platform	n γ		performance aircraft condition and flight
2 And the process for control of Haton 3 helifuel is another HMDC specific docume	nt 2		crew and engineering standards Another one
4 POIL O.C.			is personal qualifications and training for
5 O Okay Well that probably is as good a pl			pilots and craw, the AOG has guidance on that
6 as any Commissioner to stop for a lunch	leon 6		and it also gives us guidance on emergency
7 break			response planning and survival equipment
8 COMMISSIONER	8	RUII	
9 O O kay then So we'll come back at 2:00	9		So for example one of the bullets says
10 ROIL OC:	10	Q.	"Aviation standards and recommended
11 0 2.00 thank you	11		equipment " If the AOG didn't recommend
$12 \qquad (LUNCH BREAK)$	12		HUEBA then the local standard of having the
13 ROIL O.C.	12		HUEBA would apply?
14 O Good afternoon Commissioner Mr Fras	er I 14	MR F	RASER.
15 think we finished with slide No. 51	15	Δ	Ves that's correct
16 MR_FRASER	15	ROIL	
17 A Yeah and we'll go on to slide 52	10	0 KOIL,	Okay next slide
18 ROIL OC:	18	MR F	RASER.
19 0 52	10	A	Okay next slide slide 52 we talk about the
20 MR FRASER	20	11.	Hibernia Helicopter Operations Manual and this
21 A. So as we talked about before lunch we're	iust 20		is one of the documents that we talked about
22 going to go through some of the processes	and 27		in our management system is specific to
23 procedures related to heliconter operation	s on 23		Hibernia, so we've created this document here
the Platform. And the first one we want	to 23		It's a key information resource for Hibernia's
talk about is the Aviation Operations Gui	de. 25		specific helicopter operations. It provides

January 18, 2010	Multi-P	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
Pa	ge 169		Page 171
1 guidance to ensure all helicopter operations			helicopter operations on the Hibernia Platform
2 are conducted in accordance with Hibernia	's 2		are preformed safely, HMDC provides the
3 contract specification and applicable	3		following: a certified helideck, we talked
4 regulatory requirements and safe work	4		about that this morning, a certified
5 practices. And it covers activities relating	5		refuelling system with personnel trained in
6 to helicopter operations, both on shore and	6		aircraft refuelling, testing of the fuel and
7 offshore, defines roles and responsibilities,	7		system maintenance, a comprehensive radio
8 provides procedures to ensure adherence to	o 8		communication facility to provide
9 regulations and standards and reduce risk,	9		communications with all aircraft. Site
10 details safe work practices, and it obviously	10		specific weather observations and reporting,
11 works in conjunction with the Aviation	11		so that's done at our site. Comprehensive
12 Operations Guide and we'll talk about the	e 12		emergency response capabilities to deal with
13 specifics of what, how this outlines what we	e 13		aircraft emergencies on the Platform,
do on the Platform when a helicopter gets	14		helicopter landing officer and helideck crew
15 here. It does talk about onshore and it talks	15		trained in all aspects of aircraft and
about the basics, that the cargo and	16		passenger cargo handling and refuelling and
passengers have to be weighed and manifes	ted 17		firefighting rescue and emergency response on
and those types of things in general terms an	nd 18		the Platform. We also have personnel trained
19 Cougar, I'm sure, will have more specific	: 19		in processing passengers and cargo, including
20 guidance.	20		the carriage of dangerous goods by air and
21 ROIL, Q.C.:	21		standby vessel with rescue capabilities is
22 Q. And we're also aware or are you aware of the	he 22		also part of that operations manual.
helicopter pooling arrangement that takes	23	ROIL,	, Q.C.:
24 place?	24	Q.	So when we haul out the Helicopter Operations
25 MR. FRASER:	25		Manual, which we have here as an exhibit, we
Pa	ge 170		Page 172
1 A. Ah yes.	1		went through the various pages, are these the
2 ROIL, Q.C.:	2		things that we -
3 Q. Yes, so that all the helicopters are pooled to	3	MR. F	FRASER:
4 get flights to the various facilities every	4	А.	These are all the things that are covered in
5 day.	5		there, that's specifically for offshore
6 MR. FRASER:	6		operations, yes.
7 A. Yes, sir.	7	ROIL,	, Q.C.:
8 ROIL, Q.C.:	8	Q.	Okay, thank you.
9 Q. Okay, does the Operations Manual anticipa	ate 9	MR. F	FRASER:
10 that or is that something that it obviously -	10	A.	The next couple of slides we'll go through and
11 MR. FRASER:	11		they outline the people involved with the day-
12 A. No, that's not in there, this is just	12		to-day helicopter operations on the Platform.
basically how we get people offshore and ba	ack. 13		Most of these jobs, sometime in my career I've
14 that type of arrangement isn't mentioned -	14		done most of these jobs. The offshore
15 ROIL, Q.C.:	15		installation manager, obviously that's what I
16 Q. Yeah, that part of the operation doesn't	16		do now, the two main things on this slide
17 that's not in the plan there.	17		pertaining to OIM is safer helicopter
18 MR. FRASER:	18		operations on the Hibernia Platform, the OIM
19 A. Yeah, that's not in -	19		is responsible for that. And also the
20 ROIL O.C.:	20	1	authorization of all non-scheduled flights. I
21 O. Okay, thank you. Now, the next slide.	21		think that's it for that slide. I will go on
22 MR. FRASER:	22		to the next slide.
23 A. The next slide. Slide 54 is heliconter	2.3	ROIL	. O.C.:
24 operations, a little bit more detail around	24	0	If there's anything I want to draw your
the Operations Manual, to ensure all	25	×.	attention to, I will as we go through.

January 18, 2010	Multi-P	age	^M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 173		Page 175
1 MR. FRASER:	1		the helideck, but he's the supervisor that
2 A. Yes, yes, certainly.	2		reports to me of all this helicopter
3 ROIL, Q.C.:	3		operations, the logistics on the Platform,
4 Q. The authorization of all non-schedule	d 4		vessels and helicopters are his
5 flights, what's the difference between	ı 5		responsibility.
6 scheduled and non-scheduled?	6	ROIL	, Q.C.:
7 MR. FRASER:	7	Q.	. Tell me, who would on the vesselon the
8 A. So we have a scheduled laid out of basica	ally 8		vessel, on the facility, sometimes they're
9 it's a flight a day, Monday to Friday. If	9)	vessels, sometimes they're not, yours floats
10 there's a flight not on that schedule, then 1	I 10)	very poorly I take it, it sits at the bottom.
11 have to authorize that flight, so that could	1 11		Who is responsible for making decisions about
12 be, you know, there's a number of reasons	s why 12		weather? We all know that the weather is
13 we would needwe'd have extra people to	o move 13		sometimes sketchy in Newfoundland and if
14 back and forth or whatever the reason we	ould 14		flights are cancelled or, you know, if
15 be.	15		attempts are made, those kind of things, who
16 ROIL, Q.C.:	16		is the person that gets engaged in that on a
17 Q. So anything that's not part of the regula	r 17		daily basis from the HMDC perspective?
18 schedule, you personally have to sign off	on? 18	MR.	FRASER:
19 MR. FRASER:	19	A.	So what happens is the weather information,
20 A. That's right, because obviously there's a c	cost 20)	the radio operator and we'll talk about the
21 associated with flying a helicopter and	1 21		radio operator on Hibernia, the radio operator
22 there's some operational issues also, right	. 22		is the person that gives the weather
23 ROIL, Q.C.:	23		observations.
24 Q. Okay, thank you.	24	ROIL	, Q.C.:
25 MR. FRASER:	25	Q	. Uh-hm.
]	Page 174		Page 176
1 A. The Platform services supervisor is the ne	ext 1	MR.	FRASER:
2 one we'll look at and basically the service	e's 2	A.	. That information gets relayed to Cougar and
3 supervisor responsible for the OIM for	3		the pilots and the dispatch at Cougar make the
4 ensuring helicopter operations comply with	th the 4		decision on whether they can fly and whether
5 helicopter operation's manual, the AOG, t	the 5		they will fly and the services supervisor
6 Aviations Operations Guide and all relev	vant 6	i	deals with that on a day-to-day basis, like
7 guidelines and regulations and close liais	on 7		they would keep him informed on whether they
8 with Cougar regarding the provision of s	afe 8		were going to fly or not fly, but, you know,
9 and efficient helicopter transportation	9)	it's primarily the weather that guides that,
10 services, so the services supervisor is the	2 10)	whether they fly or not.
11 person responsible for the day-to-day	y 11	ROIL	, Q.C.:
12 helicopter operations. So the services	12	Q	. So the Platform services supervisor doesn't
13 supervisor reports to me and they talk t	o 13		make any decisions on whether to fly or not or
14 Cougar obviously every day and they ha	ve a 14		does he or she?
15 short teleconference just to go through w	hat 15	MR.	FRASER:
16 the plan is for the day on Monday to Frid	day 16	A.	. Well he can make a decision on whether, you
17 type flying and then the rest of the people	e, 17		know, he can talk to me about whether we're
18 we'll talk about the rest of the roles here,	18		going to fly a flight or not, but usually if a
19 report up to the services supervisor.	19		flight is scheduled -
20 ROIL, Q.C.:	20	ROIL	, Q.C.:
21 Q. Okay, so this is the senior person right o	n 21	Q.	. Yes.
22 the helideck, if you will, or responsible fo	r 22	MR.	FRASER:
the helideck.	23	A.	. Then unless there is a weather issue or an
24 MR. FRASER:	24		issue with the aircraft, then it flies. So
A. He's on the Platform, there's other people	e on 25		the weather can stop it or obviously a

Jar	nuary 18, 2010 Mul	ti-P	age	⁴ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 177	,		Page 179
1	maintenance issue with the heliconter can stop	1		the crew under the guidance of the HI O stands
	it but if it's scheduled to fly it will fly	2		by The heliconter lands and we'll go through
3	ROIL OC:	3		the process of how we do that but they're the
	O Yeah I think I you know we'll hear from			people that move the baggage refuel the
5	Cougar later as to who their persons are that	5		heliconter do the safety standby
6	are engaged in that discussion so you're	6	POII	
	saving in terms of the HMDC side of things it		NOIL,	Okay, how many people would be involved in the
	would be the radio operator would be providing		Q٠	helideck craw including the fire safety fire
0	information	0		sensitive people and the baggage handlers and
	MR_FRASER:	10		that sort of thing
11	A The radio operator would provide the	11	MR F	TRASER.
12	information on the weather conditions on the	12	Δ	So you have the HI Q in charge, you'd have two
12	Platform So if a flight is scheduled to come	12	А.	firefighters with the bunker gear on and then
11	today and unless the weather cancels it or	13		you would have at least three people there to
14	delays it or there's an issue with-that	14		handle the fuel and the baggage and stuff like
16	Couger has an issue that they can't fly then	15		that Typically we'll try to get a few more
17	normally that flight would fly out. I guess we	17		people up there. They're all trained and we
18	could cancel the flight myself or the	18		have a pool of people that we draw on and
10	services supervisor could cancel the flight if	10		usually we like to turn the haliconter around
20	there was another issue but that's usually	20		and get everybody off the baliconter and get
$ _{21}^{20}$	not_{-i} it's usually the weather	20		them headed back to town, as expeditiously as
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	POIL O.C.	$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$		we can right
22	O Okay thank you	22	POII	
23	Q. Okay, mank you.	23	NOIL,	What happens in terms of the helicopter being
25	A The next we'll talk about the heliconter	24	Q.	shut down or not shut down during a stop? Is
	Page 1/8	5		Page 180
	landing officer, so the helicopter landing	1		there any rule or any practice that governs
2	officer is responsible for the on-site	2		that?
3	supervision of the helideck crew, so he s the		MR. I	FRASER:
4	person in charge of the helicopter deck, hands	4	A.	There's rules around restarting the
5	on, he's got a radio, he stands out on the	5		helicopter, but as far as shutting it down,
6	helideck and guides the crew and supervises,	6		normally we don't shut it down, the helicopter
7	stands back, he s a kind of a hands-off person	7		lands and we take the passengers off and
8	that watches what's going on. He's got a	8		refuel it and put the passengers back on all
9	radio, he's in communication with the captain	9		while the machine is running.
10	of the helicopter and also with the radio	10	ROIL	,, Q.C.:
11	operator down below, right, so responsible for	11	Q.	So the rotors are turning.
12	getting the bags on and off, the people on and	12	MR. I	FRASER:
13	off and the refuelling done. All right?	13	A.	Rotors are turning, yean.
14	ROIL, Q.C.:	14	ROIL	And have long would that are seen take
15	Q. Tes, mank you.	15	Q.	And now long would that process take,
10	MR. FRASER:	10		
10	A. Okay, and the next side is the hendeck crew	10	MK. I	FRASER: Twonty minutos half an hour kind of
10	the helideck that there will be two when the	10	А.	i wonty minutes, nan an nour Kinu Or timeframe Obviously if it's in had woother
20	heliconter comes, there will be two people	20		or something like that it might take a little
$\begin{vmatrix} 20 \\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	dressed in firefighters hunker gear same as	20		bit longer it would depend on how much fuel
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	vou see the City of St. John's Eiro Donartmont			and how many people. Okay the part slide
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	you see the City of St. John's File Department wear and they're trained to be offehore	22		this is the radio operator slide, so we talked
$\begin{vmatrix} 23\\ 24 \end{vmatrix}$	firefighters and they standby for the	23		about that a little bit already All
2^{2+}_{25}	firefighting equinment and then the rest of	24		helicopter related communications so the
		125		

January 18, 2010	Multi-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 181		Page 183
1 radio operator is in the radio ro	oom in		Okay Just toall of these people that we
2 communications with town with t	he heliconter 2		talked about earlier all have training
and does the monitoring reporting	a of the 3		depending on what their role is specialized
4 actual weather conditions on the P	latform so		training so the radio operator has the radio
5 they're a pretty key person in the	s whole 5		operator's license in weather training and
5 they ic a pictry key person in th			averybody in this that we just talked about
	0		we talked about earlier a read man, so they're
/ KOIL, Q.C.:	ditiona ia		all trained there's certain courses that they
8 Q. They report the actual weather con the radio energies the weather	antions, is 8		all have to take and they're all competent and
9 the radio operator also the weather	monitor or 9		an nave to take and they re an competent and
10 Is the monitor another person?	10	роц	there's vertification of their competency.
II MR. FRASER:	11	ROIL,	
12 A. Yes. No, on Hibernia it's a single	person. 12	Q.	And all that training is provided where, by
13 ROIL, Q.C.:	13		whom?
14 Q. Same person, okay.	14	MR. F	RASER:
15 MR. FRASER:	15	А.	Some of it is on-the-job training, some of it
16 A. Okay, the next slide is the heli-ad	min clerk 16		is at the Marine Institute and some of it is,
17 and basically the heli-admin cleri	c has two		like the helideck crew goes to Cougar as part
18 functions, we talked about the	Hibernia 18		of their competency, they go into Cougar and
19 Platform is like a big hotel, 280 pe	rson hotel 19		spend time with a pilot and a machine so they
20 and they're the check-in clerk, so t	hey check 20		can, you know, have lots of time to look at
21 in people from that perspective fi	om giving 21		everything in the quiet, in the hanger, and
them a room and they also have	a safety 22		see how all the doors work and all that kind
23 function in that that they make s	ure that 23		of stuff. So we do a portion of it there, so
everybody that gets on board h	as their 24		there's a range, some of it's at the Marine
25 induction that we talked about ear	lier, that 25		Institute, some of it is other specialized
	Page 182		Page 184
1 you get the video induction and th	ey're part 1		trainers and some of it's on the job.
2 of that process. They also do the n	nanifesting 2	ROIL,	Q.C.:
3 and the weighing of the people bet	fore they go 3	Q.	Okay, thank you.
4 to town, so if it's your turn to go	back to 4	MR. F	RASER:
5 town, then he'll handle checking	you in, 5	А.	The standby vessel, the last component of
6 weighing your baggage, gettir	ig your 6		that, the standby vessel and we talked about
7 information on the manifest, that	type of 7		that already, that they have a duty to standby
8 stuff.	8		in certain locations when the helicopter is
9 ROIL, Q.C.:	9		arriving and departing the Platform.
10 Q. What happens to the Helly Hanser	i, another use 10	ROIL,	Q.C.:
11 of the word heli, the Helly Hansen	n suits, is 11	Q.	I think we discussed what close proximity
12 there somebody in heli-admin	that has 12		means in terms of the ten percent off and
13 responsibility for the travel suits	s, the 13		within, I think you said half a mile
14 transportation suits?	14		approximately?
15 MR. FRASER:	15	MR. F	RASER:
16 A. No, you take your suit back to ye	our room. 16	Α.	Yeah, that's the standard location for them,
17 When you arrive on the Platform,	you take the 17		yes. So the next one is a little bit on
18 HUEBA and the PLB come off, they	get turned 18		helicopter refuelling arrivals and departures.
19 into heli-admin.	19		I think Mr. Sacuta talked about aviation fuel,
20 ROIL, Q.C.:	20		that we had some for Search and Rescue, so we
21 Q. So those are the parts that go into	o heli-		store aviation fuel on the Platform for
22 admin.	22		refuelling our helicopters. We're responsible
23 MR. FRASER:	23		for the maintenance and quality control of the
A. They go into heli-admin and we'l	l talk about 24		offshore refuelling facility and the fuel
that a little bit next couple of sl	ides. 25		delivered to us. It comes out in tote tanks.

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Р	age 185			Page 187
1	transit tanks for bulk delivery and we have	a	1		and the HLO and the helideck crew standby
2	direct to aircraft fuel delivery system, so		2		fully suited and prepared for firefighting
3	the transit tanks come, sit on the Platform.		3		duties. So the HLO when the helicopter is
4	we have a pumping and filtering skid the	at	4		distant from the Platform, the HLO is radioed,
5	pumps the fuel up to the helicopter as need	led.	5		he can't talk to the helicopter until the
6	ROIL, Q.C.:		6		helicopter gets within close proximity, so the
7	Q. Directly from the tanks.		7		radio operator keeps the HLO and the crew
8	MR. FRASER:		8		informed on what's going on, where the
9	A. Directly from the tanks, yes, sir. So the		9		helicopter is, what the ETA, estimated time of
10	next slide -		10		arrival for the helicopter and then when it
11	ROIL, Q.C.:		11		gets within a close, a certain range, then
12	Q. I'm sorry, the arrangement of fuel to be he	ld	12		that responsibility is turned over to the HLO
13	is 4500 litres, in terms of usage, how man	ıy	13		and he can communicate directly to the -
14	refuellings would that give you?		14	ROIL,	Q.C.:
15	MR. FRASER:		15	Q.	And so the radio operator stands aside once it
16	A. It depends on the weather, but usually three	ee	16		gets that close.
17	to four hundred litres of fuel, I would say,		17	MR. F	RASER:
18	you know, sometimes it's none, and some	times	18	A.	Yeah, they're involved, they're still there
19	it's more than that, but that's around the		19		and they're listening and watching and they
20	average.	,	20		have it on close circuit TV, they have a
21	ROIL, Q.C.:		21		camera that watches the helideck, so it's kind
22	Q. So there's always moresorry, there's alw	ays	22		of a team effort, but the handover goes to the
23	a quantity sufficient for four, five or maybe	e i	23		HLO when it gets close enough.
24	up to 10 flights.	,	24	ROIL,	Q.C.:
25	MR. FRASER:		25	Q.	Good.
	Р	age 186			Page 188
1	A. Yeah, well one tank will hold 4500 litres a	nd	1	MR. F	RASER:
2	we have space for four tanks.		2	A.	Okay, after landing, the pilot indicates the
3	ROIL, Q.C.:		3		all clear by switching off the helicopter's
4	Q. Okay.		4		anti-collision light, so that's a flashing
5	MR. FRASER:		5		light on the helicopter. The HLO gives
6	A. So fuel is not an issue. I'll just go through		6		permission for the helideck crew to approach
7	the next slide, we'll just go through what	t	7		the aircraft and insert the wheel chock, so
8	happens when a helicopter arrives, the pro-	cess	8		the helideck crew stands back off the helideck
9	for a helicopter arrival on the Platform and	d	9		a distance because the helideck is not that
10	this is a condensed version of what's in th	e	10		big really, in terms of the helicopter, so the
11	Helicopter Operations Manual.		11		helicopter can land, they stand back off to
12	ROIL, Q.C.:		12		the side and then once they get the all clear,
13	Q. So these are the kinds of things any perso	n	13		then they approach the helicopter. The
14	would see if they were taking a flight -		14		helideck crew remove the baggage from the
15	MR. FRASER:		15		cargo compartments and direct the passengers
16	A. Well some of it occurs before you, so some	e of	16		to remove their seatbelts and depart the
17	it you might not see, but yeah, this will be		17		aircraft. So they go up and actually open the
18	kind of an overview of what goes on behin	d the	18		door, the passengers don't open the door, you
19	scenes and in front of the cameras, I guess	5.	19		sit in the helicopter and the door gets opened
20	Helicopter arrives on the Hibernia Platform	m, 2	20		and then you get waved out of the helicopter
21	so the helicopter landing officer, the HLO a	ind 2	21		if you can remember, we did that. So the
22	crew inspect the helideck and emergen	cy 2	22		helideck crew members escorts the arriving
23	response equipment and make ready for	the	23		passengers to the heli-admin reception area
24	incoming helicopter. The HOL gives th	e	24		for processing, so we make sure that
25	incoming helicopter final clearance to lan	d 2	25		everybody, like most people have been there

January 18, 2010 Multi		M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 189	Page 191
1 many times, they know their way, but we	e'd make 1 C). Yes.
2 sure that somebody takes everybody do	wn the 2 MR	FRASER:
3 stairs and down to the heli-admin's arri	val 3 A	A. So that announcement will go out and if you're
4 area.	4	waiting to go home, you're listening for it,
5 ROIL, Q.C.:	5	so that announcement will go out and then an
6 Q. So a brand new person couldn't wander	off to 6	hour before, there will be another
7 the side?	7	announcement go out to tell people to report
8 MR. FRASER:	8	to the heli-admin and passengers, cargo and
9 A. That's the idea, yeah, so everybodyand	part 9	baggage are all weighed, departing passengers
10 of the induction is follow the deck crew	when 10	sign a security declaration declaring their
11 you get off the Platform. So that's in th	ie 11	baggage is free of hazardous or unauthorized
12 video that people are told to follow the d	eck 12	material. Passengers are issued a personal
13 crew. In heli-admin the passengers a	re 13	locator beacon, a PLB, and a helicopter
14 assigned rooms and muster stations, so	the 14	underwater escape breathing apparatus and
15 muster station is where you go in an eme	rgency 15	shown a Transport Canada approved pre-flight
16 if the alarms go off, you're instructed of	on 16	safety video. So the same video that they see
17 what to do. Personnel arriving at Hiber	nia 17	on the way out at the heliport, we show them
18 for the first time get the safety orientation	n 18	that same video on the way in and we talked
19 by the heli-admin staff and we talked at	bout 19	about that already. The passenger and cargo
20 that process this morning.	20	manifest is prepared by the heli-admin clerk,
21 ROIL, Q.C.:	21	so the clerk in heli-admin, we have a
22 Q. Yes, indeed.	22	computerized system that does that for us,
23 MR. FRASER:	23	keeps track of what room people are in and all
A. Once all passengers are clear of the helid	leck, 24	that kind of information, and that's part of
25 any additional cargo, baggage has be	en 25	that process, the names will go in and the
	Page 190	Page 192
1 unloaded, the aircraft refuelling takes pla	ice. 1	weights will go in there and that information
2 So there's a process there thatI won't	go 2	will be given to the pilots. Once refuelling
3 into great detail, but basically the pilot	3	is completed, departing passengers are
4 gets out, one of the pilots, two pilots wil	1 4	escorted to helideck where they hand over
5 get out and they will do a check of the fu	lel 5	their baggage to the helideck crew and then
6 sample, the HLO takes a sample of the fu	el and 6	board the aircraft. The baggage is loaded
7 the helicopter pilot will verify that it's a	7	into the aircraft and a helideck crew member
8 good sample and they'll proceed with	the 8	ensures that seatbelts are properly fastened,
9 refuelling. The next slide, just kind of th	le 9	so one of the helideck crew will go into the
10 reverse of this while process. We ll tal	K 10	helicopter and assist people, make sure
about departures from the Hibernia Plat	orm, 11	everybody has got their seatbelt fastened
12 so one nour prior to the alternat arrival, a	11 12 min 12	every and adjusted correctly. When
departure lounge so tunically the radi		the helicopter and they will alose the the
14 departure founge, so typically the fact	14	helideck grow closes the door and the
helicopter has left town and he will make	E 15	helicopter landing officer will give the
17 throughout the whole Platform so th	ara 10	nilots the "all clear" for departure and the
everybody knows the helicopter is on its	way 18	process then the pilots will when they're
19 ROIL OC:	10 19	ready they will get the helideck crew
20 O O Ray and the approximate flight time is	? 20	they'll give the HIO a signal and he will
21 MR. FRASER:	20	remove the wheel chocks. everybody will move
22 A. Is an hour and thirty minutes, an hour a	and $\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	off the helideck and the helicopter will
twenty minutes, somewhere in that ra	nge. 23	depart.
Again, it's weather dependant, right.	24 ROI	L, Q.C.:
25 ROIL, Q.C.:	25 0	2. Now, I think you mentioned earlier in this

January 18, 2010	Multi-	-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 193			Page 195
explanation of what happer	ns. particularly on a	1	Q.	And again. I don't want to pin you because I
2 departure where you said a	bout an hour before	2		don't think I've indicated in advance I would
the aircraft arrives, it's know	own because it	3		ask this question. so it's unfair to pin
4 has departed from St. John'	's already -	4		precise numbers. but what sort of, you know,
5 MR. FRASER:		5		doin that period are you down significantly
6 A. Yes		6		below vour eighty percent estimate for the
7 ROIL. O.C.:		7		rest of the year?
8 Q. And you said subject to we	ather, you know, it	8	MR. S.	ACUTA:
9 should get there in an hour	and a half. You	9	A.	I can speak from my experience when I was the
also indicated with a smile	and I understand	10		installation manager years ago, the longest
11 that, that you know, every	body knows when a	11		stretch that I ever experienced where we
helicopter is going home be	ecause "home" has a	12		didn't get helicopter flights was two weeks.
13 meaning for all of us.		13		We went a Friday to a Friday without a
14 MR. FRASER:		14		helicopter flight due to fog. Now that would
15 A. Yes.		15		be considered highly unusual, that was a
16 ROIL. O.C.:		16		unique circumstance, we had a weather pattern
17 O. What percentage of flights	and vou can break	17		that had a dense spot of fog that never moved
this up by season if it's m	ore appropriate,	18		off because there was no wind, which in
19 what percentage of your s	scheduled flights	19		Newfoundland. no wind is very unusual, but
20 actually get there and get t	back without any	20		that's the worse that I've ever known that
21 maior weather interruption	ns? Is it two	21		we've had a continuous two-week stretch
22 percent or twenty percent o	or eighty percent?	22		without being able to get a flight offshore.
23 MR. FRASER:	()) P	23		It's typically a couple of days.
A. What percent get there? I c	don't know, eighty	24	ROIL,	0.C.:
25 percent?		25	Q.	I guess typically it's a matter of days.
	Page 194			Page 196
1 MR SACUTA	1 450 171	1	MR. S.	ACTITA.
2 A I think yeah, the majority of	of flights we get	2	A.	Yeah
3 there are scheduledwe cer	rtainly have during	-	ROIL.	
4 fog season challenges with	getting the flights	4	0.	And I think we may have addressed this, Mr.
5 out. soand that's in the A	pril. May. June	5		Sacuta, in the joint panel and so Mr. Fraser
6 timeframe is when the mos	st fog is. so under	6		to the extent that you are more there all the
7 normal circumstances, pro	ovided we've got	7		time now. or at least 50 percent of the time.
8 helicopter availability, the	majority of times	8		how many are dedicated flights that just go to
9 the heliconters would get	there under the	9		and from Hibernia? Is that the vast majority
10 schedule. There are times	during the winter	10		as opposed to -
if there's a storm in St. Joh	n's like a snow	11	MR. F	RASER:
day for the kids, that also	normally means	12	А.	Vast majority, veah, the scheduled flights
there isn't helicopter flying	on those days.	13		Mondav to Fridav go to, typically just go to
14 ROIL, Q.C.:		14		Hibernia, it's not very often that we deviate
15 Q. Right. So weather in St.	John's and the	15		from that. Sometimes what we call an ad hoc
16 weather at the facility both	impact -	16		flight, a flight that's a non-scheduled
17 MR. SACUTA:		17		flight, sometimes they will stop at other
18 A. Yes.		18		places, but we have such a large POB that it's
19 ROIL, Q.C.:		19		very rare that our helicopters aren't full.
20 Q. But your difficult season is	the April to June	20	ROIL,	0.C.:
season, is it, in terms of f	og or weather	21	Q.	Yeah. So if your flight is full with your
22 conditions?	-	22		people, then there's no reason for it to go
23 MR. SACUTA:		23		anywhere -
A. Fog is the big issue then.	2	24	MR. S.	ACUTA:
25 ROIL, Q.C.:		25	А.	There's no reason for it to go anywhere else,

January 18, 2010	Multi-Pa	age [™] Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 197	Page 199
1 yeah.	1	services are effectively managed and third
2 ROIL, Q.C.:	2	party performance is monitored and assessed,
3 Q. Okay, that's it for your portion now,	thank 3	feedback is provided and deficiencies are
4 you very much and we turn back to M	Ir. Sacuta. 4	corrected. So the processes and procedures we
5 MR. SACUTA:	5	use is that we have an evaluation and
6 A. Okay, I'm going to move into aviation	n contract 6	selection of third party service providers,
7 management. In this section I am g	oing to 7	certainly a performance monitoring system and
8 describe OIMS Element 8, which is thi	rd party 8	a reporting and feedback process. So the
9 services. I'll talk about the process	by 9	competitive bid selection process, there is a
10 which Cougar was selected as HMDC'	s helicopter 10	detailed description of a scope of work. We
11 service provider. I'll talk about how	v we 11	develop a set of rigorous pre-qualifications
12 monitor Cougar's performance and t	hen I'll 12	to identify potential service providers.
also have a sort discussion on the sele	ection 13	Formal bid proposals are requested from pre-
14 of the S-92A aircraft. So HMDC	hires 14	qualified global service providers. A
15 contractors to provides goods and spe	cialized 15	detailed analysis is completed on each formal
16 services required to support the oper	ation. 16	bid package to identify the preferred service
17 We require as contractors to comply	with all 17	provider, which consists of a safety and
18 applicable legislative requirements, in	cluding 18	environmental assessment, a technical analysis
19 those of the Board and other appli	cable 19	and an economic and benefits analysis. The
20 regulatory agencies, Transport Cana	da, for 20	helicopter services contract was awarded to
21 example. Helicopter transportation is	carried 21	Cougar in 1995 and the contract award was
22 out by a specialized service provider a	and that 22	reviewed and validated by the Board at the
23 specialized service provider for us is	Cougar 23	time of that award. I'd just like to
24 Helicopters.	24	highlight that the safety and environmental
25 ROIL, Q.C.:	25	assessment is a screening which identifies the
	Page 198	Page 200
1 Q. Is that the norm for the oil industry in	your 1	minimum requirements from an SH&E perspective.
2 experience as you've travelled throug	hout the 2	This could include reviewing the company's
3 world that helicopter services are prov	vided by 3	total recordable incident rate performance,
4 outside contractors, as opposed to -	4	checking their training programs, seeing how
5 MR. SACUTA:	5	they handle safety meetings, if they've got a
6 A. Every place I've worked, that's been	the case. 6	safety meeting process, seeing if they have an
7 ROIL, Q.C.:	7	accident investigation process, those are the
8 Q. Every place.	8	types of things that would go in a SH&E
9 MR. SACUTA:	9	screening. If a potential bidder does not
10 A. Yes. And lastly, HMDC's contracto	rs are 10	meet HMDC's SH&E expectations, they would not
11 evaluated, selected and monitored	1 in 11	progress to the potential bidder expression of
12 compliance with OIMS Element 8. S	o here's 12	interest process and would not be given the
13 OIMS Element 8, third party services	. The 13	opportunity to bid. So we always check
14 purpose of OIMS Element 8 is to ensu	re third 14	compliance with our expectations on SH&E. If
15 party service providers perform in a	manner 15	a contractor does not meet those expectations,
that is consistent and compatible with	HMDC's 16	they would not even be given the opportunity
policies and our business objectives.	The 17	to bid on our contracts.
18 objective is that third party services	are 18	ROIL, Q.C.:
19 evaluated and selected using criteria	that 19	Q. Do you have any personal or corporate history
20 include an assessment of capabilitie	es to 20	familiarity with the bid in 1995; in other
21 perform the work in a safe and enviro	nmentally 21	words, my question that comes out of that
sound manner, that third party perfo	ormance 22	preamble is were there other bidders for the
23 requirements are defined and comm	unicated, 23	contract at that time, do you know?
24 such as contract, interfaces betw	reen 24 !	MR. SACUTA:
25 organizations providing the receipt	t of 25	A. Other bidders than Cougar?

January	v 18, 2010 Mu	lti-Pag	ge TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 20)1		Page 203
1 ROIL,	Q.C.:	1	star	dby helicopter and personnel. That was a
2 Q.	Yes.	2	req	airement of our contract and it's certainly
3 MR. SA	ACUTA:	3	ar	equirement of our operations plan.
4 A.	Yes, I believe there were three bidders, I	4	Tra	ining for all pilots and flight dispatchers
5	don't have any specific knowledge, but I	5	as c	etermined by the helicopter operations
6	believe there was three bidders at the time.	6	mai	nual and the aviation operations guide. The
7 ROIL,	Q.C.:	7	avia	tion operations guide is actually attached
8 Q.	And is Cougar living into the same contract	8	to	he contract we have with Cougar. An
9	now or have there been renewals of the	9	airc	raft hangar and workshop facility to do
10	contract?	10	mai	ntenance on the Cougar aircraft. Aircraft
11 MR. SA	ACUTA:	11	mai	ntenance in accordance with the
12 A.	There have been extensions and renewals of the	12	mai	nufacturer's maintenance schedule performed
13	contract over that period.	13	by	trained, licensed aircraft engineers.
14 ROIL,	Q.C.:	14	Sup	port aircraft and engineers to undertake
15 Q.	And I think we have an exhibit 00132, if I	15	airc	raft repair offshore in the event of an
16	could ask the Registrar to bring up. For	16	airc	raft becoming unserviceable. So in other
17	those who are not in the room, I've asked for	17	WOI	ds, they had to be able to mobilize
18	the exhibit which appears to be a contract	18	per	sonnel to transit offshore should we have
19	between ExxonMobil Canada Properties and	19	an a	ircraft on the helideck in the parking
20	Cougar Helicopters Inc. This is the current	20	area	that required service before returning to
21	Cougar contract?	21	tow	n. And a provision of an alternate landing
22 MR. SA	ACUTA:	22	site	with all necessary personnel and
23 A.	That's correct. Originally we had a contract	23	faci	lities to support flight operations.
24	between HMDC and Cougar. Based on the	24	The	re are times when, it may be hard to
25	relationship that we've established with	25	beli	eve, but the St. John's airport is fogged
	Page 20)2		Page 204
1	ExxonMobil, as I talked about earlier, and the	1	in.	and they have an alternate which is Long
2	fact that there were there was the	2	Po	nd is the designated alternate for Cougar's
3	potential for ExxonMobil to have other	3	op	erations.
4	activities in the Newfoundland basin,	4 R	ROIL, Q.C	·
5	potential for some exploratory drilling, it	5	Q. Ok	ay. So the alternate landing site is
6	was decided to move to a contract between	6	SO	nething other than the other facilities that
7	Cougar and ExxonMobil, which would allow us to	7	are	in the basin?
8	use this contract for ExxonMobil dedicated	8 N	AR. SAC	JTA:
9	operations and for the Hibernia operations.	9	A. Ye	ah. We need an alternate landing site for
10	So it was ability to increase the flexibility	10	on	shore as well as the fact that we have the
11	for future work that may happen in the	11	op	portunity for other landing sites offshore
12	Newfoundland basin.	12	wł	en we transit offshore.
13 ROIL, Q	Q.C.:	13 R	ROIL, Q.C	
14 Q.	Okay. Let's just keep that document	14	Q. Ok	ay. So there is an alternate land-based
15	available, but we'll go back to the slide	15	lar	ding site at Long Pond?
16	presentation, please.	16 N	AR. SACU	JTA:
17 MR. SA	CUTA:	17	A. At	Long Pond.
18 A.	Okay. So the scope of services. Helicopter	18 R	ROIL, Q.C	·
19	transportation services using only aircraft	19	Q. Ok	ay. Now just if we can take a moment to go
20	and equipment that is fit for purpose and	20	ba	ck to the document, first response standby
21	meets all regulatory and industry standards	21	he	icopter and personnel. I just want to have
22	was a condition of the contract. It also	22	a l	book to see how that gets defined in the
23	included passenger terminal services,	23	co	ntract. I'd ask the Registrar, if she
24	administration and cargo transport, flight	24	co	uld, to go to page 30.
25	tracking services. Blue Sky, a first response	25 R	REGISTR	AR:

January 18, 2010 Multi		Multi-H	-Page TM		Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
	р	age 205			Page 207	
	1 O. Exhibit number?		1		"during non-core hours, wheels up response	
	2 ROIL, O.C.:		2		time shall be at most one hour."	
	3 Q. Sorry, the one we just called up.		3 N	AR. S	ACUTA:	
4	4 REGISTRAR:		4	A.	Yes.	
	5 Q. 132?		5 F	OIL,	Q.C.:	
	6 ROIL, Q.C.:		6	Q.	Are you telling us that the way this contract	
'	7 Q. 132, please.		7		is lived is that that is the -	
	8 REGISTRAR:		8 N	AR. S	ACUTA:	
	9 Q. And the page number?	9	9	A.	It's 24/7 the response time is one hour wheels	
1	0 ROIL, Q.C.:	10	0		up.	
1	Q. Page 30 of our pagination, which is page 1	3 of 1	1 F	OIL,	Q.C.:	
12	2 the contract, but page 30, and I think the	12	2	Q.	Is there a hope or an expectation that during	
1	alternate landing site is mentioned there ar	nd 13	3		the core hours, that that time would be	
14	4 then below that, I believe, is first response	14	4		shorter?	
1:	5 capability.	1:	5 N	/R. S	ACUTA:	
1	6 MR. SACUTA:	10	6	A.	I mean, I -	
1'	7 A. That's correct, under Section 11 of the	11	7 F	OIL,	Q.C.:	
1	8 contract.	18	8	Q.	Or has any thought been given to whether or	
1	9 ROIL, Q.C.:	19	9		not it would be shorter during other periods?	
2	0 Q. Okay, if we could just get Section 11.1	? 20	0 N	AR. S	ACUTA:	
2	1 We're not quite just scan up a tiny bit.	2	1	A.	I think Cougar has demonstrated the ability to	
2	2 Okay, that's fine. Now because there ar	e 22	2		exceed or be less than that one hour. On	
2	people who are not able to see this, perhap	os 23	3		March 12th, they were in the air wheels up 40	
2	4 Mr. Sacuta, if you could read the contractu	al 24	4		minutes roughly after the helicopter hit the	
2	5 requirement with respect to first response	e 25	5		water. So Cougar is going to do the best and	
	^	Page 206			Раде 208	
	1 capability?	age 200	1		the fastest job that they can but	
	2 MR SACUTA		2		contractually the maximum time they can take	
	A Sure "The contractor shall provide all		2		is one hour	
	4 personnel equipment permits and/or	- 2	у 4 Б			
	5 authorizations required to provide first		5	0	Yeah So if they're longer than an hour	
	6 response to owner-specific incidents on a	24-	6	Q.	they're in breach of your contract?	
	7 hour 7-day-a-week basis During non-c	ore	0 7 N	AR S		
	hours wheels up response time shall be	at s	8	Δ	Absolutely	
	9 most one hour " and as we've testified las	at o	9 F		00.	
	week it's a $24/7$ one hour wheels up respo	inse 10	0	.01L, 0	And I think 11.2 defines and perhaps we	
1	time for the Cougar first response search a	nd 1	1	χ.	should read that in as well to what exactly	
	2 rescue capability.	1	2		first response is in support of.	
	3 ROIL OC	12	- 3 N	AR S	ACUTA.	
1	4 0 I was going to ask you during non-core	· 14	4	A	Sure "Contractor shall be staffed and	
	5 earlier in the contract it defines the core	1	5		equipped to respond to an incident by locating	
	6 hours I think it's seven a m to ten p m	10	6		the casualty assisting with air deployable	
	7 MR SACUTA:	11	7		equipment and recovering personnel through	
	8 A Um-hm	1	8		the use of a rescue winch and a winch	
	9 ROIL, O.C.:	10	9		operator. Potential first response missions	
	0 = 0 Sorry that's eight n m 700 hours to 200	$0 \qquad \begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	0		shall include but not be limited to Platform	
$\left \frac{z}{2} \right $	hours.	2	1		or other drilling platform vessel medevacs	
$\left \tilde{2} \right $	2 MR. SACUTA:	2	2		support vessel medevacs " So in other words	
$\left \frac{1}{2} \right $	3 A Right	2	-		if one of our supply vessels had a medevac	
$\left \frac{1}{2} \right $	4 ROIL O.C.:		4		"Tanker medevacs " supporting the tankers that	
14		12-	•			

Jan	uary 18, 2010	Multi-l	Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 209			Page 211
1	ditching, the location and potential recover	erv	1	A.	If we had an abandonment situation, for
2	of personnel and a location of lifeboats a	nd	2		example, where we actually had to abandon the
3	fast rescue craft and potential recovery of	of	3		Platform.
4	personnel."		4	ROIL,	Q.C.:
5	ROIL, Q.C.:		5	Q.	Yes.
6	Q. So first response includes at least those		6	MR. S	ACUTA:
7	kinds of services?		7	A.	People abandon using the lifeboats. There
8 1	MR. SACUTA:		8		could be a case where we would have a man
9	A. That's right.		9		overboard where we may have a fast rescue
10	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	0		craft trying to go around the area to locate
11	Q. And do I take it that some of those service	es 1	1		the individual. In those circumstances, we
12	would require the rescue winch and som	e of 1	2		may want to call out a helicopter to aid in
13	those services might not require the resc	ue 1	3		that search as well.
14	winch?	1	4	ROIL,	Q.C.:
15	MR. SACUTA:	1	5	Q.	Right, okay. Okay, that's all, I think.
16	A. That's correct. For example, a medevac	on the 1	6		Thank you for the for right now. So I
17	Platform wouldn't require the winch, bu	t it 1	7		think we've dealt with slide 70, yeah.
18	would require the ability to put a stretche	r 1	8	MR. S	ACUTA:
19	on the helicopter, for example. And up us	ntil 1	9	Α.	Yeah. As far as performance monitoring goes,
20	March 12th, essentially all of our first	2	20		third party performance is monitored and
21	response requests were due to medevacs.	2	21		periodically assessed to confirm that the
22	ROIL, Q.C.:	2	22		performance meets the established criteria and
23	Q. Medevacs from the facility?	2	23		that feedback is provided and deficiencies are
24]	MR. SACUTA:	2	24		corrected. The aviation operations guide
25	A. From the facility, yeah.	2	25		review requirements states that all aviation
		Page 210			Page 212
1 1	ROIL, Q.C.:		1		operators should be subject to initial and
2	Q. But as I read it here, so that we are all		2		periodic technical and operational reviews
3	clear, because I think we tend to talk in		3		conducted by an external qualified aviation
4	terms of first response as being a SAR-ty	pe .	4		adviser, and I'll talk a little bit about how
5	activity. So medical evacuations from t	he	5		we do that in our operation in subsequent
6	drilling platform or the vessels, support	t l	6		slides. All ongoing long-term aviation
7	vessel medevacs, so that's from the stand	dby	7		operations should be reviewed annually. Just
8	vessels that we spoke of. Tanker medeva	ac is	8		for you information, the aviation operations
9	from the -		9		guide actually defines what a long-term
10 1	MR. SACUTA:	1	0		aviation operation is, as continuous
11	A. Yeah, there could be a circumstance wi	here 1	1		operations greater than one year in length.
12	we've got a tanker loading oil and they h	ave 1	2	ROIL,	Q.C.:
13	somebody that gets injured or somebody	that 1	3	Q.	So anything longer than one year is long term?
14	has a medical condition, appendicitis of	or 1-	4	MR. S	ACUTA:
15	something, that requires them to be mede	vac'd. 1	5	Α.	It would be considered a long-term aviation
16	That would be included in Cougar	s 1	6		operation.
17	responsibility as part of this first response	2 1	7	ROIL,	Q.C.:
18	capability.	1	8	Q.	Okay.
19 1	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	9	MR. S	ACUTA:
20	Q. And then helicopter ditching, we are all t	00 2	20	Α.	HMDC does conduct performance reviews, audits
21	familiar with what is exactly involved the	re. 2	21		of Cougar in accordance with Element 8 and the
22	And then location of lifeboats, fast rescu	le 2	22		aviation operations guide, and we'll talk
23	craft. What's the fact scenario that would	ld 2	23		about those performance reviews in the
24	drive that?	2	24		subsequent slides.
125]	MR. SACUTA:	2	25		So annual audits. Now we have completed

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
P	age 213	Page 215
1 11 aviation audits since the Hibernia Platfo	$\overline{\text{prm}}$ 1 five m	edium findings that were referred to on
2 start up in September of 1997. We hav	re 2 the ear	lier page?
3 contracted ExxonMobil's corporate aviat	tion 3 MR. SACUTA	
4 services to conduct the annual audits. W	e 4 A. Yes.	
5 have been fortunate enough that the individ	dual 5 ROIL, Q.C.:	
6 that has done the audits has been the same	one 6 Q. Okay,	and then the 6 is the one that was done
7 during that 11-year period. What we'v	e 7 a little	late into the year.
8 highlighted here is the findings in the last	8 MR. SACUTA:	
9 five years. You can see that in the period	9 A. Right.	
10 between 2005 and 2009, there were r	10 ROIL, Q.C.:	
11 significant findings. The medium findin	gs 11 Q. And th	en we have the 7's, the 8's and the 9.
12 ranged between five and zero over the vari	ous 12 MR. SACUTA:	
13 years, and then the lower, we had eight in	n 13 A. Correc	t.
14 2005 and then one, three, three, and two, a	nd 14 ROIL, Q.C.:	
15 I have a summary of some of those finding	s in 15 Q. Okay,	and we're now looking at only the
16 my subsequent slides. It should be we'	d 16 medium	n.
17 like to note that the 2006 audit was actually	y 17 MR. SACUTA:	
18 completed in February of 2007, due to so	ome 18 A. These	are the medium, all the medium findings
19 scheduling issues with the aviation advisor	. 19 during	that five-year period.
20 ROIL, Q.C.:	20 ROIL, Q.C.:	
21 Q. Yes, okay. But these are separate annua	l 21 Q. Okay.	What is the nature of significant,
22 reports. It's just that that report came in a	22 medius	m and lower, in terms of your
23 little later?	23 unders	tanding of the relative importance or
24 MR. SACUTA:	24 sensiti	vity?
25 A. That's correct.	25 MR. SACUTA:	
P	age 214	Page 216
1 ROIL, Q.C.:	1 A. I'v	e actually got a definition that the
2 Q. Okay.	2 aviation	advisor stewards findings to, so if I
3 MR. SACUTA:	3 could, I	'd like to read it.
4 A. It was done in February of 2007 and then	the 4 ROIL, Q.C.:	
5 2007 audit was done later that year.	5 Q. Ye	eah.
6 ROIL, Q.C.:	6 MR. SACUTA:	
7 Q. Okay, and when did the new airframe, the	S-92, 7 A. A	significant finding is a recommendation to
8 come into use for your operation?	8 correct,	repair or improve an item of
9 MR. SACUTA:	9 equipm	ent, a document, a process or a
10 A. 2007.	10 situation	n that in the opinion of the advisor,
11 ROIL, Q.C.:	11 if not u	ndertaken near term could affect the
12 Q. 2007 was the year that the S-92 was	12 integrity	y of operations in the near future or
13 introduced.	13 that pos	sesses a higher risk to safety, health
14 MR. SACUTA:	14 and env	ironment.
15 A. Yes.	15 A me	dium finding is a recommendation to
16 ROIL, Q.C.:	16 correct,	repair or improve an item of
17 Q. Okay. Now we'll move to number -	17 equipm	ent, document, process or situation that
18 MR. SACUTA:	18 in the	opinion of the advisor can be
19 A. So I'm not planning to review all of thes	e 19 reasona	bly expected to further reduce
20 findings, but what I've done is selected a	20 associat	ed risk to a level as low as
21 couple or three on each of the next set of	21 reasona	bly practicable.
22 slides.	22 An	d a low finding is a recommendation to
23 ROIL, Q.C.:	23 correct,	repair or improve an item of
24 Q. Okay. So just so we look at the slide in an	n 24 equipm	ent, document, process or situation that
25 overview, the first 1-2-3-4-5, those are the	25 in the o	pinion of the advisor could improve

Janua	ary 18, 2010 Mi	ilti-Page	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 2	17	Page 219
1	efficiency, reduce costs or eliminate risk	1	you know that we did not move to the S-92
2	exposure entirely.	2	until 2007, but PetroCanada began the S-92 in
3	I'd like to comment that all the findings	3	2005. So as part of the review, the aviation
4	are sent to Cougar for their action and	4	advisor actually took a look at the aircraft
5	they're tracked to closure and the aviation	5	and there were no indications that the seats
6	advisor must endorse the closure prior to the	6	weren't aligned with the windows, but you have
7	HMDC president approving any closure.	7	the ability to position the seats, move them
8 RO	IL, Q.C.:	8	in and out. He just wanted to make sure that
9	Q. And this advisor you tell us is the same	9	it was that Cougar was aware that our
10	person that you started with in 1997?	10	expectations were when you have the seats put
11 MR	R. SACUTA:	11	in the aircraft, the seats will line up with
12	A. Yeah, he's done all 11 audits over the years.	12	the windows. It wasn't because he had
13 RO	IL, Q.C.:	13	observed the seats not being lined up in the
14	Q. Okay, and I believe that we may have seen that	14	window. He just wanted to be sure they
15	gentleman's work also in the HOTF. Was he	15	understood that from HMDC's perspective, each
16	involved?	16	and every time that aircraft would be used
17 MR	R. SACUTA:	17	sometime in the future, we would like those
18 .	A. Yeah, he was on the aviation safety review	18	seats to line up with the windows.
19	team. There was a person that led that	19	The second one is assess the ability to
20	aviation safety review. That individual is	20	comply with the aviation operations guide
21	our aviation advisor that we use for these	21	regarding night currency for pilots. Night
22	audits.	22	currency requirements for pilots, the AOG
23 RO	IL, Q.C.:	23	recommends that you have three landings in a
24	Q. And that's the Exxon -	24	90-day period which is more onerous than
25 MR	R. SACUTA:	25	Transport Canada's which is five landings in a
	Page 7	18	Page 220
1	A The ExxonMobil aviation advisor that's	10	90-day or in a six-month period. So, it was
	correct	2	difficult for Cougar to meet the requirements
		3	during the summer months due to extended
	• And I think we have his credentials in the -		daylight hours. So during those summer months
		5	where we have days where the sun gets comes
6	A In the HOTE report	6	up at five and sets after ten there's a
		7	limited number of night time flying hours. So
	0 - HOTE report thank you	8	what Cougar has done has been able to
	SACUTA:	0	demonstrate an equivalent level of competency
10	A = 40 years experience among a whole hunch of	10	using a simulator, which basically when you're
11	other things including being a helicopter	10	in the simulator, it's just like you're flying
12	pilot in Vietnam	12	an aircraft. So they presented that as a way
12 12 PO		12	to most this or close this finding which
13 KO	11, Q.C Q. I take it that you're impressed with his	13	was ordered by the eviction advisor
14	g. I take it that you is impressed with his	14	The third one I wanted to talk about was
15 16 MD		15	recommend Course incorporate homing devices in
10 MR	A Extramely impressed yeah	10	the cockrists of cirfromes designated for SAR
	A. Extremely impressed, yean.	10	Vou con see that
18 KU	IL, Q.C.:	18 10 DOU	You can see that -
19	Q. I unitk mey are, mey require creatore.	19 KOIL	, Q.C.: That's the second last and there?
20		20 Q	
$\begin{bmatrix} 21 & \text{MR} \\ 22 \end{bmatrix}$	$A = O[x_0, y_0] = O[y_0] = O$	21 MR. S	Second last one. That was done during the
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	A. OKAY, SUI II JUSI I VE got INFEE INALI II like to talk about. In 2005, the finding was	$\begin{vmatrix} 22 & A \\ 22 & A \end{vmatrix}$	reconclusion and a conclusion of the second and the second s
23	The to talk about. In 2005, the finding was	23	recently completed 2009 audit. That is still
24	Cougar to ensure that S-92 passenger seats are	24	snown as an open action. The current status -
25	property anglied with the window exits. Now	25	- a noming device, just so you understand, has

January 18, 2010 Multi		lti-P	age	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 2	21		Page 223
1	the ability to track the signal from a PLB.	1	C) retain height. I guess.
2	So it gives you direction of signal with a	2	2 MR.	SACUTA:
3	homing device. Currently, one of the three	3	3 A	. What the auto hover capability does is removes
4	aircraft that Cougar has, one of the three S-	4	ļ.	the pilot having to be the person that
5	92s actually has a homing device and the other	5	5	maintains station. In order for a pilot to
6	two don't. So the other two would have to	6	5	maintain a height, they have to have a visual
7	kind of fly a pattern and measure location	7	7	reference to know where they are. Auto hover
8	based on the strength of the signal. So he's	8	3	removes the requirement for that visual
9	recommended that we put the homing device in	9)	reference, and auto as we mentioned in the
10	all three aircraft, which would be you'd be	10)	joint panel, auto hover needs to be certified
11	able to more quickly identify the location of	11		by Transport Canada and then we are planning
12	an individual if he was in the water and his	12	2	to install that on our aircraft, so that we've
13	PLB was activated. Cougar has provided a cost	13	3	got full auto hover capability, which will
14	estimate to provide the other two aircraft and	14	ŀ	allow us to winch in night time hours.
15	we're currently reviewing the cost estimate	15	5 ROI	L, Q.C.:
16	with the other area operators. We expect a	16	5 Q). Right, and that would include any or all of
17	decision and this item to be closed some time	17	7	the airframes that are dedicated to SAR or
18	in the near future. So we've progressed it	18	3	sorry, first response issues?
19	with Cougar and now it's with the operators to	19	MR.	SACUTA:
20	make this happen.	20) A	. That would be correct. Any airframe that was
21	ROIL, Q.C.:	21		in a SAR configuration to be the first
22	Q. And then at some point in time, again will the	22	2	response SAR helicopter would be equipped with
23	solution that is found be signed off by the	23	3	auto hover.
24	gentleman who's your aviation advisor?	24	ROI	L, Q.C.:
25	MR. SACUTA:	25	5 Q	Okay. So if more than one helicopter was
	$P_{age} \gamma$	22		Page 224
1	A Veah He would endorse it Normally we do			heing configured and set aside -
	the endorsement process by e-mail because he's		MR	SACUTA:
	located in Dallas and then we would attach			That's correct
	his endorsement to the close out form and then			
	I would sign off for closure			, then more than one would have to have it?
		6	, v Mb	
	O I've made a note here. It isn't tied into		γ wite.	That's correct
	this page but I know in the earlier evidence			
	we talked about the auto, hover feature and I			A Okay and that's different than the homing
10	think that was indicated to be something that	10		device? That's a different -
	was being sought	11	, MD	SACUTA:
$ _{12}^{11}$	MR SACUTA	12		That's different. The homing device is
12	A Correct	12	2 1	hasically once you're in the air and
13		1.	,	somebody's in the water and their DI B goes
14	C For the Cougar equipment	14	+	off it points you in the direction of where
15	MD SACUTA:	1.	,	they are
10	MR. SACUTA.	17		
11		11		L, Q.C A Okay That's the aviation medium findings
10	• NOIL, Q.C	10		and then I think the next page we get to the
20	it very much of a lavperson's to measure the	20	,)	lower findings
$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$	distance from the water in a night time	20	, МД	SACUTA.
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	restricted visibility) A	Veah I've got a couple of lower findings a
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	MD SACUTA:		2 A	couple of pages of lower findings so 1'll
23	A What the auto hover	23	, I	talk about just a couple. By nature of the
$\begin{vmatrix} 24 \\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$		24	r K	classification obviously lower findings are
140		4.5	,	chapsification, obviously lower findings are

Janua	ry 18, 2010 Mul	ti-Pag	ge [™]	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 22.	5		Page 227
1	less significant. In 2005, Cougar was to	1		extended that liability insurance.
2	provide evidence of renewable liability	2		Now the second one is to recommend HMDC
3	insurance, which was due to expire November	3		consider replacing the current yellow helideck
4	1st, 2005. At the time of the audit, it was	4		lighting with green perimeter lights. So
5	before November 1st, but the aviation advisor	5		green, my understanding is that green
6	noticed that their liability insurance was	6		perimeter lights have more visibility than
7	going to expire, so he wanted to make sure	7		yellow, so that was done. It was in order to
8	that Cougar provided evidence to us that they	8		enhance visibility and that's been closed as
9	had extended that liability insurance and that	9		well, as having been implemented on the
10	was done by Cougar and that item has been	10		Hibernia. So you can see that the aviation
11	closed.	11		advisor's findings aren't just with Cougar.
12 ROI	L, Q.C.:	12		They're also findings associated with our
13 (Okay. So we should not take it that there was	13		helicopter operations on the Platform itself.
14	ever a period of time that -	14 F	ROIL,	Q.C.:
15 MR	SACUTA:	15	Q.	So his view of helicopter is not just the
16 A	A. No.	16		airframe or the operator? It's the holistic
17 ROI	L, Q.C.:	17		operation of helicopters to and from?
18 Q	2 there wasn't liability insurance?	18 N	AR. S	ACUTA:
19 MR	SACUTA:	19	А.	That's correct.
20 A	A. It was just that at the time he did this	20 F	ROIL,	Q.C.:
21	audit, it was so close to November 1st. He	21	Q.	Okay. If he were this may be a question
22	wanted almost to remind Cougar that, you know,	22		that you can't answer, but would something
23	your liability insurance expires November 1st.	23		like the suits that people wear and the gear
24	You need to demonstrate to the HMDC that you	24		that they wear, would that be a part of the
25	have new liability insurance available prior	25		things that he would look at?
	Page 22	6		Page 228
1	to November 1st.	1 1	AR. SA	ACUTA:
2 ROI	L. O.C.:	2	А.	I mean, he would look at that as part of
3 0	O Okay. So even though there was not a	3		compliance with the helicopter operations
4	deficiency -	4		manual or the aviation operations guide. So
5 MR	SACUTA:	5		he would look to ensure that we were using
6 A	A. No.	6		suits.
7 ROI	L, Q.C.:	7 6	ROIL, O	Q.C.:
8 0) at the time of the inspection, he would	8	Q.	Yes, okay.
9	still describe that as a lower finding?	9 N	AR. SA	ACUTA:
10 MR	SACUTA:	10	A.	The second set of lower findings, I've got a
11 A	A. Exactly.	11		couple here. In 2008, when he reviewed
12 ROI	L, Q.C.:	12		Cougar's emergency action plan, he noticed
13 (2. Just trying to get a sense as to what lower	13		that there were no contact numbers, telephone
14	findings might include.	14		numbers for HMDC in that action plan. So he
15 MR	SACUTA:	15		recommended that Cougar update their emergency
16 A	A. That's right, and I mean, I talked about in	16		action plan and make sure there were contact
17	the definition that, you know, reduce costs,	17		numbers for various people at HMDC. So that
18	eliminate risk exposure entirely, could	18		has been done. And also in 2008, no random
19	improve efficiency. They're very lower level	19		drug and alcohol testing for Cougar safety
20	significance findings and this was just more	20		sensitive positions, which is a requirement in
21	of a highlight by the aviation advisor to	21		our contract, and he discovered that there
22	Cougar to remind them that their liability	22		hadn't been the random drug and alcohol
23	insurance and there was no indication that	23		testing. So Cougar has now implemented that
24	they didn't know, but he just wanted to make	24		for safety sensitive personnel. A pilot, for
25	sure that they let us know that they had	25		example, would be considered a safety

January 18, 2010 Multi		Multi-H	Pa	ige	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
		Page 229			Page 231		
1	sensitive personnel and they now have a	random	1		action plan. ASRAP, is attached. The overall		
	drug and alcohol testing program in plac	e.	2		recommendation is that aviation services		
3	The offshore logistics superintendent		3		recommends CHI for continued use. The		
4	sorry, the onshore logistics superintende	ntis	4		operator should address the items tabulated in		
5	the focal point between the aviation adv	isor	5		the attached action plan. The advisor		
	and Cougar to ensure findings are tracke		6		recommends HMDC forward the plan to Cougar		
	approve any closure forms after endorse	ment by	7		Heliconters together with a request that it		
	the aviation advisor As you know Mr	Roil	8		return a written response within a reasonable		
	and Commissioner Wells we had an	audit	0		time frame"		
	completed in October of 2009 and I wou	ild like	0	RUII			
	to read a comment from the cover letter	based 1	1	NOIL,	And under "significant findings"?		
	on the fact that we did have the accident	t in 1	י ר	Q.			
12	March		2	MIK. 5.	"No significant findings". There are no		
		1.	3 1	А.	significant items		
14	$K_{\rm out}$, Q.C	\mathbf{a}	4 5	DUI			
	little bit. We have actually two audits the	ot 1.	5 6	KUIL,	And I think in the next nerver and we'll just		
	L have asked, you to pull up the reports of		07	Q.	stop there, we won't read the whole, thing		
	and they are Exhibits # 125 and 126 I'll	ock 1	/ 0		under the first line of sefety what does it		
	the Degistrer to take up Exhibit 125 first	ask 10	0		cov ²		
	all and this is the report of your		9	MD C			
	MD SACUTA:	20	1	MK. 5.	ACUIA: It cause "Since the last visit in the fourth		
	MR. SACUTA.	$\sum_{i=1}^{2}$	1 2	А.	quarter of 2005 CIII has not had any		
$\begin{vmatrix} 22\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$	A. The 2000 addit that we received the repo	$\frac{1}{2}$	2		accidente"		
	Estimated of 2007, because it was done		3	DOII			
$\begin{vmatrix} 24 \\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$	S ROIL O.C.	2-	5	NOIL,	And then attached to that two page report		
-23			5	Q٠			
		Page 230			Page 232		
1	Q. So this is an audit before the March inclu	lent?	1		there's a number of schedules, including a		
2	2 MR. SACUTA:		2		list of items. Do I take it that those are the		
3	A. Correct.		3		list of items that the advisor wanted		
4	ROIL, Q.C.:	4	4		addressed?		
5	Q. And then the second one which we'll lo	ok at	5	MR. S.	ACUTA:		
6	5 later is one after the incident?		6	A.	That's correct.		
7	MR. SACUTA:		7	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
8	A. That's correct.		8	Q.	Okay, and to your knowledge, have all of those		
9	P ROIL, Q.C.:	9	9		items been addressed since that audit?		
10	Q. Okay. Now just perhaps if we take the	tront 10	0	MR. S.	ACUTA:		
11	page of this, and again because there a	ire 1	1	А.	Yes, they have.		
12	people who will hear who will not be at	le to	2	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
13	read this document, I'd ask you to read	just 1:	3	Q.	Now then there's also another audit which was		
14	the first two paragraphs so we ll get a se	nse 14	4	~	done in November of 2009, Exhibit 136.		
15	as to what it is that this is from Mr.	1:	5	MR. S.	ACUTA:		
	James Such, who s your aviation advisor	. 10	6	A.	This was addressed to myself, and what I was		
	MR. SACUTA:		7	DOU	going to do is read a paragraph.		
	A. Correct, The undersigned completed	an 18	8	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
19	aviation safety review of Cougar Henco	pters 19	9	Q.	Okay, again you might read the opening		
$ ^{20}$	15th of Eabruary 2007 As per task	$\frac{10}{40r}$	0	MD C	paragraph.		
	EMCETO 010 as Uibornia Managemen	t and $\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	ר ר	WIK. S.	ACUIA: Okay I'll do that		
$\begin{vmatrix} 2^{2} \\ 2^{2} \end{vmatrix}$	Bevelopment Company HMDC authori	τ and $ 2\rangle$	2	A. ROU	ORay, 1 11 00 mai.		
$\begin{vmatrix} 2 \\ 2 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	work under WAE which is a work author	ization 2	1	NUIL,	Yeah just so we have the contact of the		
$\begin{vmatrix} 24 \\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$	form 2007-037 the aviation safety rev	iew 2	5	Q.	letter and the tone that it's written in		
140	ionin, 2007 007, the aviation surety lev		-				

January 18, 2010 Mu		Multi-P	age TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
	Pa	age 233		Page 235		
1	MR. SACUTA:	1		awareness after March 12th, and so there's a		
2	A. "The undersigned complete an aviation saf	ety 2		lot of focus and attention paid on Cougar's		
3	review of Cougar Helicopters Incorporate	ed, 3		helicopter operations by each of the three		
4	CHI, during the period 22nd to 24th of	4		operators. We all have our own auditing		
5	October, 2009, as per task order, EMCETO-0	29, 5		processes, and I think it's placed a strain on		
6	and HMDC WAF, 2009-101. Attached is the	e 6		Cougar in terms of having the time and the		
7	aviation safety review action plan, the ASRA	AP, 7		people taking their people away from their		
8	Cougar Helicopters". Do you want me to c	arry 8		day to day responsibilities, which is to		
9	on?	9		maintain helicopters. So what they		
10	ROIL, Q.C.:	10		recommended is that we consider doing not		
11	Q. Yeah, carry on.	11		necessarily a joint audit, but schedule our		
12	MR. SACUTA:	12		audits all the same time so that the focus		
13	A. "The advisor acknowledges that one dire	ct 13		that we placed on Cougar during these audits		
14	result of the Cougar accident of March 9th	has 14		all comes at one time instead of spread out at		
15	been a heightened awareness and interest	by 15		three different times during a year, and what		
16	multiple parties in many areas related to the	e 16		we have done from my perspective is I've		
17	transportation services CHI provides, and to) 17		talked to my logistics coordinator about we		
18	demand a manufacturer and ongoing mainte	enance 18		need to look at that and see if we can work		
19	program of the Sikorsky S-92 helicopter. T	The 19		with the other operators and see if we can		
20	customer demand for information from Co	ougar 20		arrange that as part of our yearly audits,		
21	and Sikorsky has increased exponentially.	Гhe 21		that we try to get each individual operator		
22	advisor believes CHI personnel are doing the	eir 22		doing it at the same time.		
23	best to meet this demand, but that one effect	rt 23	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
24	has been elevated stress in individual	24	Q.	Okay, notwithstanding that challenge, and I		
25	workers. While this may be unavoidable in	the 25		think that's understandable in light of the		
	Pa	age 234		Page 236		
1	near term, the challenge for the customer	1		incident on March 12th and the incredible		
2	groups and Cougar for the longer term is to	2		focus on this company, what was the		
3	establish an acceptable process to provide	3		recommendation of the auditor?		
4	required information without significantly	4	MR. S	ACUTA:		
5	distracting individuals away from their	5	А.	"Aviation Services recommended CHI, Cougar		
6	primary responsibilities and focus areas".	6		Helicopters Incorporated, for continued use.		
7	ROIL, Q.C.:	7		The advisor recommends that HMDC forward the		
8	Q. And the next paragraph, and then I'll stop you	8		ASRAP to CHI, together with a request that it		
9	and ask you for some comment.	9		return a written response within a reasonable		
10	MR. SACUTA:	10		period. There are no significant items".		
11	A. Okay. "Consistent with this goal, CHI	11	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
12	suggested timing customer safety reviews to a	12	Q.	Okay, and perhaps again the next two		
13	single period when the customer advisors or	13		paragraphs, and then I'll I think we just		
14	consultants can visit and conduct their	14		need to get once again the factual background		
15	reviews concurrently. Aviation Services takes	15		to this particular inspection.		
16	no exception to this idea provided it's able	16	MR. S	ACUTA:		
17	to offer and render to HMDC an individual, not	17	A.	I can't page down for some reason. Okay, this		
18	a joint report".	18		is actually what I wanted to talk about.		
19	ROIL, Q.C.:	19		"Since the last review in November, 2008, CHI		
20	Q. Okay, now as the senior person in Newfoundlar	nd 20		experienced a significant fatal accident,		
21	responsible for the operation of helicopters	21		March, 2009. Subsequent to the accident, an		
22	to and from HMDC, what were you understandin	g 22		aviation safety review team, ASRT, made up of		
23	this issue to be about here?	23		aviation advisors and consultants, conducted a		
24	MR. SACUTA:	24		joint aviation safety review by request of the		
25	A. I think the issue is that there's a heightened	25		end user companies. The focus of the aviation		

Ja	nuary 18, 2010	Multi-	i-Page [™]		Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
	I	Page 237			Page 239		
1	safety review team was to assess whether	the	1		devices and we are progressing and having		
2	organization was ready to return to servic	e.	2		Cougar look at the other medium finding, which		
3	The aviation safety review team repor	t	3		was to recommend Cougar consider for the		
4	affirmed that the Cougar organization w	vas	4		purposes of customer information development		
5	ready At the time of this review the		5		of a spreadsheet listing the directives of the		
6	advisor was unable to discern any signific	ant	6		manufacturer and civil aviation authorities		
	differences in the posture of the company	with	7		together with an initial assessment of the		
	regard to safety of operations. It is the		, 8		relative importance and impact for the user		
9	advisor's belief that safety of operations		9		group. So I know Cougar is looking at that as		
10	remains the foremost goal of Cougar perso	nnel 1	10		well.		
11	and that its systems, processes, and	1	11	ROIL.	0.C.:		
12	methodologies support that goal".	1	12	0.	So for the purpose of customer information.		
13	ROIL. O.C.:	1	13		what do you who are the customers that are		
14	0. The expression. "The advisor was unable	to 1	14		being referred to there?		
15	discern any significant differences in the	1	15	MR. S	ACUTA:		
16	posture of the company", do you take that	as 1	16	A.	That would be us and our workforce.		
17	being a positive statement?	1	17	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
18	MR. SACUTA:	1	18	Q.	And your workforce.		
19	A. I take it as a positive statement, yes.	1	19	MR. S	ACUTA:		
20	ROIL, Q.C.:	2	20	A.	Yeah.		
21	Q. I think the way it's worded, somebody m	ight 2	21	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
22	try to interpret it otherwise, but	2	22	Q.	I think we spoke earlier in the joint		
23	MR. SACUTA:	2	23		presentation of the desire to provide more		
24	A. I didn't read it sorry, I didn't write it,	2	24		information to the workforce where they're		
25	so you'd have to talk to the aviation advise	or, 2	25		travelling and just in relation to that.		
	Ι	Page 238			Page 240		
1	but I see that as a positive statement.	0	1	MR. S	ACUTA:		
2	ROIL, Q.C.:		2	A.	Yes, and we have done that as a matter of		
3	Q. Yes.		3		course. When Cougar received the alert		
4	MR. SACUTA:		4		service bulletin to change out the filter bowl		
5	A. I mean, he speaks around the fact that hi	s	5		assembly, that was communicated to our		
6	belief is that the safety of operations		6		workforce because of the significance of that		
7	remains the foremost goal of Cougar perso	onnel.	7		to the event of March 12th. So we have been		
8	I think that says it all.		8		working with Cougar to make sure we keep our		
9	ROIL, Q.C.:		9		workforce aware of those situations.		
10	Q. Yeah. Now that's scant well, not scant,	I 1	10	ROIL,	Q.C.:		
11	guess, in terms of the fact that flights are	1	11	Q.	Okay, thank you. I think that's all for the		
12	flying every day, but it's only done a mor	th 1	12		time being on the issue of audits and		
13	and a bit ago. Do you know the status of a	iny 1	13		performance monitoring. We can now move		
14	of the outstanding items on the list at this	1	14		perhaps through slide 76.		
15	point in time?	1	15	MR. S	ACUTA:		
16	MR. SACUTA:	1	16	А.	Okay, the Sikorsky S-92, as the next		
17	A. Yeah, as far as the findings go, there was	a 1	17		generation of helicopters, offered a number of		
18	recommendation to review the company	route 1	18		technical improvements over the Super Puma.		
19	book and aircraft MCH, which is the seria	.l 1	19		It was recommended by Cougar. The S-92 is		
20	number of the aircraft. That has been	2	20		fully compliant with the ExxonMobil Aviation		
21	completed. We're just working through	the 2	21		Operations Guide and was indorsed by		
22	approvals and the sign off process. The	e 2	22		ExxonMobil's Corporate Aviation Services. As		
23	management diagram in the low section, the	ney´re 2	23		I mentioned, in 2005 Petro Canada was the		
24	also working on that. I talked about the tw	'O 2	24		first to go with the S-92. We wanted some		
25	medium findings, the fact that the home	ng 2	25		more run time on it, we were very interested		

January 18, 2010 Mult		-Page TM		Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
		Pag	re 241			Page 243
1		in the aircraft, but based on the consultation		1		facilitate the proper management of incidents
2		with Aviation Services, they wanted to see		2		so that valuable information and lessons
3		some more run time, and we got that addition	nal	3		learned are available to improve operations
4		run time and then we transitioned to the		4		and avoid recurrence. The objective is
5		aircraft in 2007. So moving to a common	1	5		safety, health, and environmental, security,
6		aircraft type with Suncor and Husky will		6		process and equipment related incidents are
7		enhance synergies, improve safety and		7		reported, investigated, and analyzed to
8		reliability, and it would be more cost		8		identify the root cause. Corrective actions
9		effective.		9		are identified and implemented to prevent
10	ROIL,	Q.C.:		10		reoccurrence and lessons learned are
11	Q.	If you had determined in light of the		11		communicated.
12		pooling and sharing of this resource within		12 F	ROIL,	Q.C.:
13		the industry, if HMDC had concluded that it		13	Q.	So here you're speaking of generally incidents
14		wanted to stay with the Super Puma or son	ne	14		with which your company are involved?
15		other airframe, a 61 or a 76, would that have		15 N	AR. S.	ACUTA:
16		been logistically possible?		16	A.	Right, it can be a safety, health, environment
17	MR. S	ACUTA:		17		incident, it could be an incident associated
18	A.	Yes.		18		with equipment, with the process, a wide range
19	ROIL,	Q.C.:		19		of incident definitions.
20	Q.	So you have the ability to control your		20 F	ROIL,	Q.C.:
21		airframe?		21	Q.	Perhaps we need to get into some definitions
22	MR. S	ACUTA:		22		and some expressions here because I know that
23	А.	Absolutely.		23		particularly with the aviation industry there
24	ROIL,	Q.C.:		24		are certain expressions that are used there
25	Q.	In terms of telling them we want this		25		that you may use in an entirely different
		Pag	ge 242			Page 244
1		particular one?		1		context and I want to make sure that we
2	MR. S	ACUTA:		2		understand the context in which you use them.
3	A.	That's right.		3 N	AR. S.	ACUTA:
4	ROIL,	Q.C.:		4	А.	Sure, and I think I can maybe give some
5	Q.	I want to make sure that we understand that		5		clarification that I had on this slide. So
6		this is not when one person triggers it, the		6		the incident notification and investigation
7		others have to go?		7		reporting process, I would comment that
8	MR. S	ACUTA:		8		helicopter related incidents are reported and
9	А.	If we weren't satisfied wit the transition to		9		investigated and analyzed in accordance with
10		the S-92, or if during that period between		10		OIMS Element 9. So in this chart, you can see
11		2005 and 2007 we hadn't been satisfied with	h	11		an unsafe event occurs. That could be a near
12		its performance, we would have stayed with	the	12		miss or an incident, and I'll give you a very
13		Super Puma, but we were very satisfied with	h	13		simplistic view of what a near miss and an
14		the S-92's performance, and as I mentioned,	it	14		incident or a hazard is. You've got a book
15		had a number of technical improvements ov	ver	15		shelf and you've got a book teetering on the
16		the Super Puma. So we thought it was the be	st	16		edge, that would be a hazard, potential for
17		aircraft for our service in Newfoundland.		17		the book to fall. If the book was to fall,
18	ROIL,	Q.C.:		18		land on the floor and hadn't hit anybody, that
19	Q.	Okay, thank you.		19		would be a near miss, and if the book was to
20	MR. S	ACUTA:		20		fall and hit somebody and that individual was
21	А.	So in this section I'm going to briefly		21		injured, that would be an incident. Very
22		describe HMDC's incident investigation and	1	22		simplistic, but I can probably relay that to
23		also the process. It will be a very brief		23		you as far as helicopter operations go. Let's
24		description. It is Element 9, incident		24		say a helicopter landed on the helideck and
25		investigation. So the purpose is to		25		when the helideck crew went to the baggage

January 18, 2010 Multi		Multi-	-Page TM		Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
	I	Page 245			Page 247	
1	compartment, they found a bag or a box	that	1		under which that incident occurred.	
2	was extremely heavy and it hadn't been m	arked	2	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
3	properly, that would be a hazard and the	y'd	3	0.	Now with respect to the March 12th incident in	
4	report it as such. Let's say they're removing	ng	4		the broadest sense, would this kind of process	
5	a box out of the helideck area and the bott	om	5		had been undertaken by HMDC?	
6	of the box fell out and whatever was in the	ere	6	MR. S	ACUTA:	
7	fell onto the deck, that would be a near mi	ss.	7	A.	It was agreed after the March 12th incident	
8	Let's say when they were removing a b	oox,	8		that based on the fact that this was a Husky	
9	whatever was in the box fell out and lande	d on	9		flight, scheduled flight, in discussions with	
10	somebody's foot and caused an injury, t	hat	10		the Board, it was agreed that Husky would take	
11	would be an incident.		11		the lead on it, being a Husky incident. So	
12	ROIL, Q.C.:		12		Husky was responsible for completing the	
13	Q. So the expression, "near miss" doesn't tak	e on	13		incident review and submitting the report to	
14	the common jargon that we have in avia	tion	14		the Board.	
15	culture, I guess, that near miss is two		15	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
16	aircraft that are coming close to one anoth	er?	16	Q.	Would HMDC, in any of its efforts, have done	
17	MR. SACUTA:		17		any lessons learned or anything as a result of	
18	A. Exactly.		18		this incident to	
19	ROIL, Q.C.:		19	MR. S	ACUTA:	
20	Q. You're not talking about that at all?		20	А.	I think the aviation safety sorry, the HOTF	
21	MR. SACUTA:		21		Report had lessons learned in it. Husky kept	
22	A. No, no. So after the unsafe event occurs	5, 1	22		us up to date throughout this whole process.	
23	there is an incident notification and a repo	rt i	23		As part of Husky's incident reporting, Cougar	
24	form initiated. The incident is classified		24		had done an incident investigation, and, of	
25	and there's a reporting structure. So it cou	ld	25		course, the TSB is still their	
	I	Page 246			Page 248	
1	be classified as a near miss, it could be a	n	1		investigation is still underway. So what Husky	
2	incident that may be an injury type incide	ent,	2		submitted to the Board wouldn't have been a	
3	it could be a gas release type incident.		3		final document because we're waiting for the	
4	There are many different things that it co	uld	4		TSB report to be issued.	
5	be. The investigation and root cause ana	lysis	5	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
6	is completed, corrective actions are		6	Q.	The next section takes us perhaps into the	
7	identified and implemented. Any corre-	ctive	7		end. I know Commissioner, I see down here	
8	actions have to be stewarded to closure, s	such	8		by the little note that is put in front of me	
9	that if it says you're going to do, A, B, and	nd	9		that we normally don't have the afternoon	
10	C, that each one of those activities are do	ne	10		break until 3:30, but I think this will be a	
11	and they're stewarded to closure and sig	gned	11		good time, and I think, quite frankly, I need	
12	off as being completed. The communi	cation	12		a bit of a break.	
13	concerning the lesson learned on the Hib	ernia	13	COM	MISSIONER:	
14	Platform, it's part of our safety meetin	g	14	Q.	Okay, we'll come back in fifteen minutes.	
15	structure that you review incidents that r	nay	15	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
16	have occurred in your area as part of the	JOHS	16	Q.	Fifteen minutes. Thank you.	
17	Committee. So whenever we've had an in	ncident,	17		(RECESS)	
18	we try to communicate with our workfo	rce so	18	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
19	that we avoid recurrence of that incider	it.	19	Q.	Okay, Mr. Sacuta, I understand that you're	
20	Then there's a report goes out and a debr	ief.	20		going to take us through the slides from page	
$ ^{21}$	A debrief would be required, for example, y	vitn [21	105 -	δ1.	
$ ^{22}_{22}$	onshore. If we had had a significant	t l	22	MR. S	ACU1A:	
$ ^{23}_{23}$	monocompart inst to male some that		23	А.	manage in this section l'an arise to	
$\begin{vmatrix} 24 \\ 25 \end{vmatrix}$	up to data with what ware the singurate		24 25		discuss Hibernio's emergency and response	
123	up to date with what were the choundsta	11005	<i>_</i> J		unscuss indenna s emergency and response	

January 18, 2010 Mult			Iulti-	Page	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page	249		Page 251
1		process, so this will include the regulatory		1 A	. Yes.
2		requirements, OIMS Element 10, which is		2 ROII	
3		community awareness and emergency		3 Q	. But they talk to one another because of the
4		preparedness, the Hibernia emergency respons	e	4	fact that they could
5		structure and how its activated, and the		5 MR.	SACUTA:
6		specific responses to March 12th, 2009. So		6 A	. There could be that overlap or interface
7	,	from a regulatory perspective, the operators		7	during an emergency response situation. So a
8		are required to prepare and submit a safety		8	key component of Element 10 is the emergency
9	1	plan to the chief safety officer of the C-		9	preparedness and response. The purpose is to
10)	NLOPB for approval. The safety plan must	1	0	ensure effective emergency response plans are
11		provide for all matters related to the safety	1	1	established, that equipment is well
12		and health of personnel and the integrity of	1	2	maintained, and trained personnel are
13		the installation. This includes contingency	1	3	available to deal with emergency situations.
14		plans for emergency response to and mitigation	n 1	4	The objective is the emergency response plans
15		of accidental events. The Hibernia Operations	1	5	are documented. resourced. accessible.
16		Plan references the Hibernia emergency	1	6	current, and clearly communicated. Required
17	,	response plan which contains operational	1	7	emergency response drills are conducted to
18		guidance on emergency response activities. So) 1	8	test the adequacy of response plans. The
19)	within our operations plan we make reference	1	9	process is to develop and update an emergency
20)	to our Hibernia emergency response plan, whi	ch 2	0	response plan which we have a document, as I
$ _{21}^{-0}$		is a dedicated document.	2	1	mentioned, and to conduct emergency response
22	ROIL	0.C.:	2	2	drills. So we've got a little flow chart
23	0	That's another dedicated HMDC document?	2	3	here. The first step in the flow chart is to
$ _{24}^{-2}$	MRS	SACUTA:	2	4	understand the regulatory requirements and the
25	A.	That's correct. So as you can see, community	2	5	response organization's training needs. From
-		Page	250	-	Page 252
		r age	250	1	there you develop a list of drill scenarios
	DOIL	awareness and emergency preparedness		1 2	for the uncoming period Vou would select a
		First of all that combination of titles		2	drill scenario
	Q.	sounds a little odd to me, but perhaps not to		л Л роп	
		you Perhaps you could explain how they com		4 KOII	This is for a drill for a practice?
		to be related?		JQ 6MD	
				0 MIK.	This is for a practice and I think the key
		Vas Although community awaranass and	1	/ A	component is on an annual basis. Hibernia
	, А.	amorgoney response are contained under Elem	ant	0	completes a major aversise where we test both
10		10 of the Operations Integrity Management		9	the onshore, and offshore amorgoney, response
		System they actually have their own	1	1	organizations. From an offshore perspective
		management systems. So underneath Element	10 1	1 2	the Distform holds weekly muster drills where
12	, ,	there's two management systems: 10.1 which	$\begin{bmatrix} 10, \\ 10 \end{bmatrix}$	2	they test fire teams, they do table tons. So
13	1	community awaraness and 10.2 which is	15 1	3 1	they is an over living process that we
14	•	community awareness, and 10-2, which is	1	4 5	continually train and avaraisa, our amarganay
15		there may be times where these two managem	ant 1	5	response organizations. Now we also do
10	,	systems are field closely together, such as at		0 7	onshore. We do table top everyings to provide
		a refinery where an emergency could have an		0	additional training for people to fill
10		impact on the surrounding communities. So		0 0	positions because in any organization you have
219		that's why they're basically covered under the) 0	people move in and out. We want to make sure
$\begin{vmatrix} 20\\ 21 \end{vmatrix}$,	same Element 10 although they have their ow	$n \Big _{2}^{2}$	1	that if for example I as the President
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$		same Lienen 10, autough tiley have tilell Ow	11 2	2	moves on to another opportunity there's
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 22 \end{vmatrix}$				∠ 3	always somebody that's trained to do that
23	- KUIL	, y.v So each system is senarate?			role. So there's a number of people that can
$ _{2^{2}}^{24}$. Ų. мр.	So cach system is separate?		-+ 5	fill various emergency response duties in our
143	1VIK. 2	DACUIA.	12	5	ini vanous emergency response dudes in our

January 18, 2010 Multi		i-P	age TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
	Page 253			Page 255	
1	organization. Certainly when you conduct a	1		and we go through one of them is a	
2	drill, there's always a debrief afterwards to	2		helicopter incident, and typically the	
3	evaluate the effectiveness. We document the	3		exercise that we would do on the Platform	
4	drill just so that we can say here's what the	4	L	would involve a helicopter emergency on the	
5	specific situation was the mobilization	5		helideck because that would involve more	
6	times which and we'll talk a little bit	6		neonle	
	later about the specific emergency response	7	ROIL		
	organizations we have related to HMDC			Yes	
	There's also you incorporate any learnings		, Q. MRF	FRASER.	
10	There's always a debrief after an emergency	10		And so we drill and I can't remember the	
11	response drill For onshore and I'll talk	11		exact frequency of it but we do it on a	
12	about it a little bit later in the exercise	12	•	fairly regular basis that we we get the	
13	You get together and talk about what worked	13		helideck crew and they simulate that there's	
14	well what needs to be improved. We	13		an issue with a helicopter and it can be	
15	incorporate those learnings into the emergency	15		various scenarios that we work out and	
16	response plan so it's an ever green document	16		typically the SH&E lead will manage that and	
17	that continues to be undated as required	17	,	come up with some scenarios so we somebody	
18	Then there's always, the follow up, and close	18	2	has to run the exercise and he'll do that and	
10	out of improvement actions and then we share	10		we do that quite frequently	
$ _{20}^{1}$	learnings and one of the things we did after	20	MPS		
$ _{21}^{20}$	March 12th it was in the HOTE Report was	20	Δ	So as far as Hibernia's emergency response	
$ _{22}^{21}$	actually some learnings on the three	21		goes it's a multi-chaired system with well	
$ _{23}^{22}$	operator's response to the March 12th	23		defined rules and responsibilities Response	
$ _{24}^{23}$	incident	24		teams are on call 24 hours a day. As I	
25	ROIL O.C.:	25		mentioned, routine drills are conducted to	
_	Page 254			Dogo 256	
₁	$\Gamma agc 2J4$	1		rage 230	
	Q. So that wash t a trin, that was the real			teams have access to external resources, such	
	MD SACUTA:		•	as the PCMP and the joint coordination	
	A That was a real thing. We do the same thing		•	centre which we certainly communicated with	
	on real incidents		- -	during the March 12th incident and the focus	
6		6		during emergency situations is to protect our	
	O I was going to say what kind of fact	7	,	neonle protect the environment safeguard our	
	situations do you develop for your drills?		2	assets and maintain our corporate reputation	
	Would you ever have prior to March 12th		,)	So on the right hand side of this it shows the	
10	would you have ever identified an incident	10		HMDC President and underneath we've got the	
11	with a helicopter or with a vessel or	11		HMDC offshore emergency response organization	
12	something as a part of what you would be	12		That's John, for example, his team would have	
13	drilling on drilling exercising. I mean	13		an emergency response organization.	
14	MR. SACUTA:	14	ROIL	, O.C.:	
15	A. In our emergency response are a number of	15	0.	So in the event an incident happened while he	
16	scenarios that we will drill on a regular	16	i È	was on watch, he would be the offshore	
17	basis, and perhaps John can talk about the	17	,	emergency response organization team lead?	
18	helicopter crash perspective. I think that's	18	MR. S	SACUTA:	
19	one of the scenarios that they look at	19	A.	Right, and I've got some slides on that coming	
20	offshore as part of their weekly exercises,	$ _{20}$)	up. We've got the onshore emergency response	
21	the response to that.	21		organization, which I would be the lead of,	
22	MR. FRASER:	22	!	and then we have the opportunity as part of	
23	A. Yes. So part of our regular emergency	23	;	this relationship we have with ExxonMobil to	
24	exercises, we have a schedule, as Paul said,	24	Ļ	utilize ExxonMobil's emergency support group,	
25	of different events that we could have happen	25	i	and there's some additional information on	

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
	Page 257	Page 259		
1 that as we move forward.	1	radio operator generally stays in the radio		
2 ROIL, Q.C.:	2	room upstairs on the highest level of the		
3 Q. Okay.	3	accommodations, and he would also be in		
4 MR. SACUTA:	4	communication with the vessels, any aircraft,		
5 A. So from an offshore emergency res	ponse 5	and he does have a direct communication line		
6 perspective, the emergency response tea	am deals 6	into the emergency control centre, the ECC.		
7 with all Platform emergencies, the OIM	1, Mr. 7	We have an incident recorder who's in there		
8 Fraser, if he was out there as back to ba	ıck, 8	writing down anything he hears that's		
9 would be in overall command of the P	latform 9	happening, anything that comes in on the		
10 emergency response. The primary consi	deration 10	radio's communication with fire teams, for		
in any emergency response is the safety	of the 11	example. We have a ECC-CCR communications		
12 personnel on board, the protection of	the 12	person. The CCR is the Central Control Room.		
13 environment, and the integrity of the	he 13	These are two separate areas, but we need		
14 Platform. So they have offshore what's	called 14	someone to communicate back and forth between		
15 the emergency coordination centre whi	ch is a 15	the ECC where the OIM is located, and the CCR,		
16 dedicated room offshore only used	for 16	which would be where all your distributed		
17 emergency response purposes, which i	ncludes 17	control systems, your fire and gas panels, all		
all the required communication equipm	ient, so 18	that. So there needs to be communication back		
19 it would have satellite phones, the abilit	y to 19	and forth between those two centres. The		
20 do PA announcements. All the commun	nications 20	drilling supervisor looks after the weather,		
21 that you would need during an emergen	cy are in 21	the plot plan, making sure that we've got the		
22 that dedicated room, and that room's	sole 22	weather conditions, sea state conditions all		
23 purpose is for emergency response.	23	identified on the map, so that the OIM has		
24 ROIL, Q.C.:	24	that available to him, and then the		
25 Q. Okay, and where is that room in relation	on to 25	maintenance supervisor is the communication		
	Page 258	Page 260		
1 the fire wall and the blast wall?	1	between the offshore ECC and the shore		
2 MR. SACUTA:	2	communications, which I'll talk about next,		
3 A. It's in the accommodations module on t	the same 3	but basically he would be the one that would		
4 level of all the offices of the offshore	e 4	be communicating with the emergency operations		
5 leadership team, and on the same level	of the 5	centre in town.		
6 central control room.	6 ROIL	, Q.C.:		
7 ROIL, Q.C.:	7 Q.	Okay, so he's the link into the onshore?		
8 Q. And this room is dedicated solely to h	as no 8 MR. S	SACUTA:		
9 other use?	9 A.	Yes.		
10 MR. SACUTA:	10 ROIL	, Q.C.:		
11 A. Has no other use.	11 Q.	Before we go on, I think the point needs to be		
12 ROIL, Q.C.:	12	made that it seems to me that while we in the		
13 Q. Other than for emergency	13	Inquiry look at the use of helicopters in the		
14 MR. SACUTA:	14	offshore, there's really two issues in terms		
15 A. For emergency response. So there's not	ody ever 15	of emergency. One is, I think, that the		
16 sitting in that room, that room is it's	s 16	helicopter can be the cause of the emergency,		
always open, but there are no desks in t	here. 17	or it could be a support		
18 It's a room that is used during emerge	ency 18 MR. S	SACUTA:		
19 response situations. Underneath the OI	$M, in \qquad 19 A.$	It could be a response.		
20 that room you may have the services su	pervisor 20 ROIL	, Q.C.:		
21 who is responsible for the POB, or the	ne 21 Q.	A response to an emergency.		
22 personnel on board status, making sure	we've 22 MR. S	SACUTA:		
23 accounted for all persons on board duri	ng an $\begin{vmatrix} 23 & A. \end{vmatrix}$	Right, we could call our helicopters to		
24 emergency. They communicate with th	e vessels 24	downman the facility, for example. If you		
and understand the helicopter status.	The 25	wanted to get non-essential personnel off the		

January 18, 2010 Mult			Pa	age™	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
		Page 261			Page 263
1	Platform, you could call Cougar and sav	, you	1		there's always somebody who's adequately
2	know, send us out as many helicopters a	s you	2		trained to stand in for me as the head of the
3	got available because we'd like to star	t	3		emergency operations centre.
4	precautionary downman of our facility.	You'd	4	ROIL,	Q.C.:
5	have some options. You could downmar	them to	5	Q.	And where is the emergency operations centre?
6	some of the other facilities in the area, or	r 🛛	6	MR. S	ACUTA:
7	you could send them back to town, deper	iding on	7	A.	It's located in our office building in town on
8	the situation.		8		the 5th floor of Cabot Place.
9	ROIL, Q.C.:		9	ROIL,	Q.C.:
10	Q. Have the helicopters ever been used in t	hat 1	10	Q.	So it's in the same building that you operate
11	kind of advance guard style of operation	ı in 🛛 🛛 1	11		your business from?
12	terms of getting people off in anticipation	ı of 1	12	MR. S	ACUTA:
13	an incident or a problem arising?	1	13	А.	That's right. It is also a dedicated room
14	MR. SACUTA:	1	14		that is used solely for emergency response.
15	A. I'm aware of one situation back in 1998	where 1	15		The EOCT members are selected based on
16	we did a precautionary downman, but b	esides 1	16		experience, work skills, and leadership
17	that, I'm not aware of any others.	1	17		qualities, and they are trained in emergency
18	ROIL, Q.C.:	1	18		response duties and conduct regular drills
19	Q. Was that precautionary down as a result of	of an 1	19		involving helicopter ditching, fire and
20	operational problem?	2	20		explosion, and potential security threats. So
21	MR. SACUTA:	2	21		there's two ways that we can do some training.
22	A. It was an operational problem, yes. There	was 2	22		We can do it in an interface training exercise
23	an operational issue at the time, and the	y 2	23		with offshore where we have the full
24	decided to take non-essential personnel	and 2	24		established communications, and then there's
25	they downmanned them to an adjacent ra	$\frac{\text{curry.}}{2}$	25		what we call table top exercises, where
		Page 262			Page 264
1	At the time I think there was a drilling ri	g	1		we'll have a group of people in another
$ ^2$	drilling at the time, and we moved peopl	e to	2		conference room, for example, mimicking being
	the drilling rig until we knew exactly w	nat	3		the offshore Platform, just to train us
	was going on on the Platform. That was	s the	4		separately. So we use that a lot to train our
5	off the Distform	inei	с С		response organization to provide that training
			0		prior to a real amorgonov happoning
	O But there wasn't ultimately an emergen	ev at	/ 0	DOIL	o C :
	that time?	sy at	0	KOIL,	So in some emergencies they actually call from
10	MR SACUTA:	1	9 10	Q.	the Platform: in other cases they call from
	A No I mean there was a situation that ne	eded 1	11		the room next door?
12	to be addressed but very quickly after it	was 1	12	MR S	ACUTA.
13	addressed, the workforce was brought ba	ack to 1	13	A	Yeah. I mean when we're doing a drill.
14	the Platform.	1	14		sometimes we have a joint exercise where it
15	ROIL, O.C.:	1	15		involves the offshore organization and
16	Q. Okay, thank you.	1	16		onshore, and sometimes we'll let offshore run
17	MR. SACUTA:	1	17		the day to day business and we'll do a table
18	A. So from an onshore emergency resp	onse 1	18		top exercise, which basically just has a few
19	perspective, we have what's called the	ne 1	19		people in a room that simulate the OIM and
20	emergency operations centre, which pro	vides 2	20		they simulate the maintenance supervisor, and
21	direct support the Hibernia Platform w	hen 2	21		they make the calls to tell you what's
22	required. The HMDC President, myself,	or a 2	22		happening, but you're still acting in the EOC
23	designate manages the response in the	EOC. 2	23		like it's a real emergency, just with role
24	There may be circumstances where I'm	n not 2	24		players.
25	available or I'm needed for other purpose	es, so 2	25	ROIL,	Q.C.:

January 18, 2010 Mult		age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
Page	e 265		Page 267	
1 Q. Right.	1		of ExxonMobil Canada and its affiliates to	
2 MR. SACUTA:	2		support emergencies, and the HMDC President	
3 A. And as I've already mentioned, these drills	3		does retain the overall responsibility for	
4 may involve major contractors and other	4		Hibernia's emergency response activities.	
5 support organizations, such as the JRCC, the	5		So this triangle shows the relationship. At	
6 RCMP, and other operators, and during the	6		the bottom of that triangle would be	
7 March 12th incident there was a lot of	7		ExxonMobil Canada's ESG group. It is also in	
8 communication between the various operator	rs. 8		a dedicated room in the same office building	
9 I was in direct communications with Husky'	's 9		as Hibernia. It's a -	
10 emergency response team, the JRCC was beir	ng 10	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
11 contacted, we updated the Board, and I'll talk	: 11	Q.	But a separate room?	
12 about that a little bit later in the slides as	12	MR. S	ACUTA:	
13 to the direct response of March 12th. Under	13	A.	Separate room.	
14 the EOC, we've got a technical coordinator, a	14	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
15 safety coordinator, human resources	15	Q.	Yes.	
16 coordinator, public affairs, a logistics	16	MR. S	ACUTA:	
17 coordinator, and operations coordinator, an	17	А.	It's generally staffed by ExxonMobil personnel	
18 event recorder, and all of those people have	18		or ExxonMobil personnel that have been	
19 dedicated responsibilities in that EOC centre.	19		seconded to HMDC. So we do have ExxonMobil	
20 For example, the operations coordinator woul	ld 20		only personnel that work in St. John's. So	
be the one that was in communication with th	le 21		it's a combination of either dedicated	
22 Platform with the maintenance supervisor.	22		ExxonMobil personnel or some ExxonMobil	
23 There are times when I would be communicat	ting 23		personnel that have been seconded to HMDC.	
24 with John directly if he was out there, just	24	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
to make sure that we've got open communica	tion 25	Q.	Okay. So nobody who's a part of your	
Page	e 266		Page 268	
1 between both.	1		organization in the EOC is the same person	
2 ROIL, O.C.:	2		who's ascribed duties in the ESG?	
3 Q. And who is the section manager that's in	3	MR. S	ACUTA:	
4 charge of the emergency operations centre?	4	A.	That's correct. They're separate roles,	
5 MR. SACUTA:	5		separate organizations.	
6 A. That's me.	6	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
7 ROIL, Q.C.:	7	Q.	And I think you said as president, you or the	
8 Q. That would be the if you were available?	8		person who is president, retains control and	
9 MR. SACUTA:	9		responsibility?	
10 A. If I was available generally it would	10	MR. S	ACUTA:	
always be me unless I was on vacation, and	11	A.	Overall responsibility, yes.	
12 when I go on vacation, I designate an	12	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
13 alternate, for example.	13	Q.	So this is a support, rather than -	
14 ROIL, Q.C.:	14	MR. S	ACUTA:	
15 O. Right.	15	A.	It is a support organization.	
16 MR. SACUTA:	16	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
17 A. So as I mentioned, we talked about	17	Q.	This is not decision making out here?	
18 ExxonMobil's emergency support group or the	18	MR. S	ACUTA:	
19 ESG. HMDC has contracted ExxonMobil Canada to) 19	A.	No, absolutely not.	
20 be available to provide additional support	20	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
21 services during incidents if requested by	21	Q.	Okay.	
22 HMDC. Hibernia's EOC section manager, myself,	22	MR. S	ACUTA:	
has the ability to activate the ExxonMobil	23	А.	So I mean, some of the things they would do	
emergency support group at any time during any	24		is, you know, updating partners, for example.	
25 incident. It provides access to the resources	25		They do have access in the pyramid there at	

January 18, 2010 Multi			e^{TM} C	offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	e 269		Page 271
1	the bottom, they do have access to ExxonMol	bil 1	centre or	sorry, the offshore emergency
2	production companies ESG which is in Houst	on 2	coordination	n centre, the ECC, can also
3	and also access to ExxonMobil's corporate ES	SG. 3	initiate the I	EOC activation process. If they
4	which is in Dallas. During the March 12th	4	have a signi	ficant enough event offshore. John
5	incident, we did activate the production	5	can inform	the maintenance supervisor
6	companies ESG in Houston We did not activa	ite 6	"activate the	EOC We don't need to talk to
	the ESG in Dallas but they were kept aware		Paul You i	ust need to go activate and we'll
	throughout the incident of what was going on	8	get everybo	dy in there "
	So the protocols for mobilizing emergency	. 0	As part	of its emergency response
	response teams Hibernia has a 21-hour per	10	procedures	Cougar Helicopters can also
	day 7-day per week activation canability for	10	activate the	EOC If they have an incident
	offebore emergency operations centre the EO	C 12	that they w	ould like to have us activated
$ _{12}^{12}$	toom mombers		that they we	the same constility to phone
13		15	Talalink and	he same capability to phone
14	KOIL, Q.C.:	14	Libornio EO	and depending on the nature of
15	Q. So now does that actuary happen?	15	the incident	the onshore emergency sympart
10	MR. SACUTA:	16		, the onshore emergency support
	A. we use a company called Telefink and if I wa		group, ESG,	can also be activated at the
18	to be informed of an incident offshore, for	18	request of it	iysell.
19	example, and based on whatever the	19	So as a re	sponse to March 12th. During a
20	circumstances of that incident are, I have the	20	routine airc	raft monitoring, the Platform
21	ability to contact Telelink and tell them to	21	radio operat	or on Hibernia became aware that a
22	mobilize the EOC. I also have the ability to	22	Cougar heli	copter was in trouble and as per
23	tell Telelink to mobilize the ESG, if I think	23	normal prot	ocol informed the OIM, who was Mr.
24	it's required, and then they have a call list	24	Fraser at th	e time. The OIM immediately
25	that goes out to all the various people that	25	contacted n	hyself to inform me of the
	Pag	e 270		Page 272
1	are on call during that period and then those	1	situation.	The radio operator reviewed the
2	individuals, if it was off hours, would come	2	helicopter j	passenger list and noted that two
3	down to the Hibernia office and accumulate in	n 3	employees	of an HMDC contractor were on board
4	the EOC centre.	4	the aircraft	and notified the OIM, and the OIM
5	ROIL, Q.C.:	5	updated my	yself. At the time of the initial
6	Q. And if it's during on hours?	6	discussion	between John and I, we weren't sure
7	MR. SACUTA:	7	whether or	not we knew it was a Husky
8	A. Usually you're just in your office and you hop	p 8	flight, but v	we weren't sure if there were any
9	up the stairs or down the stairs, depending	9	HMDC pers	onnel or contractors on the facility.
10	where you are, to the actual location of the	10	The radio of	operator confirmed that to John and
11	EOC.	11	then John u	ipdated me.
12	ROIL, Q.C.:	12	I immedi	ately contacted our senior
13	Q. Okay. So once you go to the EOC centre, do	13	emergency	preparedness and response advisor
14	you stay there?	14	and inform	ed him of the event. At the time, I
15	MR. SACUTA:	15	was on by	way to the C-NLOPB for a meeting, so
16	A. You're dedicated. We do have people who c	an 16	I was walk	ing down towards TD Centre when I
17	come in and relieve if you're there for an	17	got the firs	t call.
18	extended period of time, and that's one of the	18	DIL, Q.C.:	
19	responsibilities of my job is to monitor the	19	Q. You do ren	nember that day?
20	effectiveness of the team. If I see people	20	R. SACUTA:	
21	are getting tired or they're getting stressed,	21	A. I remember	r that day. I'll remember it for the
22	then I would then look at the next person	22	rest of my	life. The decision was made to
23	that's on the list and get them to come and	23	activate bo	oth the EOC and the emergency
24	spell the person and give them some time off.	. 24	support gro	oup, based on the nature of the
25	So the onshore emergency coordination	25	event, and	the Hibernia senior EP and our

January 18, 2010 Mu			Page	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry		
		Page 273		Page 275		
1	emergency preparedness and response a	dvisor	1	efforts, were shared with the workforce.		
2	initiated the emergency team call out.		2 ROI	L, Q.C.:		
3	ROIL, Q.C.:		3 Q	. In our modern world where everybody has a		
4	Q. And what sort of a time frame would that	t have	4	computer and everybody has a cell phone and		
5	taken from first to that stage?		5	people are talking to and linking to the		
6	MR. SACUTA:		6	worldwide web, was the accuracy of information		
7	A. I think the first call that I received was		7	a challenge for you?		
8	around 10:04 and we had the response ac	tivated	8 MR.	SACUTA:		
9	within a matter of minutes. Of course, I	was	9 A	. There was some stuff out like in the press.		
10	a ways away, so I had to actually run bac	k to 1	0	What we're trained to do is not listen		
11	the office, but so by the time I got to the	ne 1	1	necessarily to all the press and take it as		
12	EOC, it was fully staffed.	11	2	for real. We wanted to get the accurate		
13	Given the location of the incident, the	1	3	information and what we used for it is the		
14	OIM determined that the Hibernia Platform	m was 14	4	communication between Husky's emergency		
15	too distant to offer any direct support wi	th 1	5	response centre and ourselves and the		
16	the standby vessel. Personnel and equip	ment 1	6	communications we were having with the Coast		
17	were put on standby to assist in any w	ay 1	7	Guard. When we had that communication, we		
18	possible. The helicopter had just bee	n 1	8	knew that that interface would be accurate.		
19	approximately 30 to 35 miles off of the c	oast 1	9	There was a lot of stuff on the press. It was		
20	of Newfoundland, so it was a long dista	ance 2	0	on CNN. It was on just about every channel		
21	away from the Hibernia Platform. We w	veren't 2	1	and I know that the TVs offshore were all		
22	able to offer the assistance of our stand	by 2	2	focused on that. So that's one of the reasons		
23	vessel, but we put all of our resources, bo	oth 2	3	that we wanted John to do the town hall that		
24	onshore and offshore, put them in ready	status 2	4 ~	night, was to make sure that he could relay to		
25	in case they needed to be used.	2	5	the workforce the accurate information that we		
		Page 274		Page 276		
1	Actually, the Platform had shut down the	ne	1	had available as far as what had happened and		
$ ^2$	day before March 12th, in preparation fo	ra	2	what the plans were going forward.		
	major maintenance campaign. Based on	that	3	So as far as the onshore emergency		
	fact, all non-critical work activities on	، ۱	4	operations centre goes, at approximately		
5	board the Platform were suspended.	he	5	10:30, it says, March 12th, the Hibernia EOC		
	Obviously there was not focused on their wo	rk.	6	modifized. The actual call out, I believe,		
	Obviously there was a lot of concern when	n unis	/	there and it was fully aparticipal it was		
	event happened and so we basically stood	down	8 0	alose to 10:20. The UNDC family and madia		
10	Communications between the onsh		9	telephone response teams were activated to		
	emergency operations centre and the OIM	Were 1	1	address incoming calls. Certainly during a		
11	conducted regularly through that process	Δc 1	1 2	situation like that there's always going to		
12	I got more information I kept John availa	hle 1	2	be a stream of people calling people whose		
11	If John got anything he kent me informed	and 1	3 4	work members were scheduled to fly that day or		
15	the OIM kept the offshore workforce info	med 1	 	their family members. There was a lot of that		
16	of the situation and the recovery efforts a	t 1	6	type of call		
17	that time The OIM did hold a town hal	1 1	7	The communications links were quickly set		
18	meeting with all Platform personnel on	the 1	, 8	up between the Hibernia EOC, the Coast Guard.		
19	evening of March 12th. Obviously there	was a 1	9	the JRCC. Husky and other support		
20	lot of concern amongst the workforce. W	e got	0	organizations. HMDC's vessels were made		
21	John all the information we could at that	u 2	1	available to the Coast Guard to support rescue		
22	point in time, as to what had happened a	ind 2	2	efforts. Information was quickly provided to		
23	what the status was, what the look ahead	was, 2	3	Hyflodraulic, who was the employer of the two		
24	and he held that town hall. We provide	ed 2	4	passengers that were on board Flight 491 that		
25	information about the incident, the recover	ery 2	5	were Hibernia contractors and updates were		
Januar	y 18, 2010	Multi	-Pa	ige TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry	
----------	--	--------------	-----------------	--------------------------	--	
	Р	age 277			Page 279	
1	provided when information became avail	able.	1	0.	You've got me using all your acronyms now.	
2	We had a lot of communication with	h	2		It's getting scary.	
3	Hyflodraulic during that period to let the	n	3	MR. S.	ACUTA:	
4	know what we knew, because, you know.	they	4	A.	We've got a spot for you on the EOC. So post	
5	were devastated by this. It was a family ru	in	5		incident activities, we assisted HMDC	
6	business.		6		employees, contractors and employees and their	
7	We did make myself available to the med	dia	7		families. We arranged grief counselling both	
8	at news conferences that were held on the	12th	8		onshore and offshore. We had a grief	
9	and the 13th during those two days. Grid	ef	9		counsellor go offshore by boat to help with	
10	counsellor services were offered to employ	yees	10		John and the guys offshore because obviously	
11	of Hyflodraulic and employees of HMDC a	ind we	11		there was a lot of concerns. We monitored the	
12	stood down the EOC at 5:30. We did do	a	12		search and rescue efforts and provided	
13	debrief that day. That certainly didn't mea	ın	13		assistance where possible. As I previously	
14	the end of the day for myself and a number	r of	14		mentioned, we provided support for JRCC,	
15	other people that worked in the office. Yo	ou	15		certainly for Husky and for Cougar during this	
16	know, we were engaged through the nigh	t and	16		period. We communicated with the government	
17	the next day and through the weekend as	we	17		agencies, including the TSB and the Hibernia	
18	looked forward.		18		co-venturers. Supported the incident	
19 ROIL	, Q.C.:		19		investigations, ensured accurate and timely	
20 Q.	So I take it that the stood down expressio	n	20		information was supplied to the media, and we	
21	means that the entire structure that is in the	e	21		certainly suspended helicopter operations.	
22	EOC was no longer needed to be used as	а	22		There were no helicopter flights to be	
23	resource?		23		completed until we knew the circumstances	
24 MR. S	SACUTA:		24		under which Flight 491 had the accident.	
25 A.	That's correct. But as I mentioned, you kn	now,	25	ROIL,	Q.C.:	
	P	Page 278			Page 280	
	there was a number of people that were in	the	1	0	Who actually made that decision or who was a	
2	office until very late hours on that night	liic	2	×۰	part of it? How would it come about? Clearly	
3 ROIL			3		the helicopter that ditched or crashed more	
	Yes.		4		correctly put were there any other flights	
5 MR	SACUTA:		5		that were in the air at that time, to your	
6 A.	You know, getting information as we could	d. As	6		knowledge?	
7	I mentioned the ESG was also activated a	at	7	MR S	ACUTA	
8	roughly the same time as the EOC. The E	sg	8	A.	There was a flight that was returning from the	
9	provided strategic planning and support	to	9	11.	Terra Nova facility I understand and we had	
10	myself They monitored the events Th	ev	10		a flight that was getting ready to leave. Of	
11	monitored media coverage and they al	so	11		course our flight didn't leave Cougar	
12	communicated incident information to the	2 CO-	12		their first response helicopter dispatched	
13	venturers and to the Provincial Governm	ent	13		Cougar, the returning flight from Terra Nova	
14	during this window. So that took the burd	len	14		actually was the second helicopter to respond	
15	off of the EOC to communicate and ESG t	ook	15		to the incident, so there were two heliconters	
16	that on themselves and made sure that the	co-	16		that arrived on the scene prior to the IRCC	
17	venturers and the government were kept u	n to	17		actually or prior to the Coast Guard showing	
18	date through this process	.р со	18		up so the first two heliconters on the scene	
19 ROIL			19	ROIL	0°	
20 0	So if you didn't have the resource of an FS	G	20	0. KOIL,	So in terms of first response there were two	
21	that would become part of the responsibility	ties	21	ر .	first response helicopters dispatched?	
22	of the EOC?		22	MR S	ACUTA·	
23 MR	SACUTA:		23	Δ	I mean Cougar dispatched the first one	
23 111.	That's correct		$\frac{23}{24}$	11.	immediately and when the second heliconter had	
25 ROI			25		returned from offshore, it was fully kitted up	

Jar	nuary 18, 2010 Mult	i-Pa	age	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page 281			Page 283
1	and also responded. So the first two	1		debrief notes from the helicopter incident.
2	helicopters on the scene on March 12th were	2		So the ESG did a debrief session and the EOC
3	both Cougar heliconters	3		did a debrief session and what we did is sat
4	ROIL OC:	4		down and went around the room and asked
5	O Was there any debate or discussion as to	5		everybody what worked well what had you
6	whether beliconters should continue to fly	6		struggled with what are the improvement
	nersonnel out there at that time?			opportunities and those were all captured and
	MD SACUTA:			then we got together to talk about all the
0	Λ As far as personnel goes, there was no debate	0		improvement opportunities and assign you
	We weren't going to fly personnel. Cougar was	10		know actions for who would follow up on
11	focused on the rescue and recovery efforts and	11		those
11	so and thereafter, once that was completed	11	DOII	
12	Cougar made the decision that they were not	12	KUIL,	What sort of time frame would those
13	going to fly their belicenters until they knew	13	Q.	debriefings take?
14	the circumstances under which Elight 401 had	14	MD C	
15	creehed	15	MIK. 5	That would have happened the cresh happened
10	As for as communications with the	10	А.	That would have happened the clash happened Thursday morning and that would have been late
1/	As fai as communications with the	1/		Thursday afternoon, around the 5:20 time
18	workforce goes, we field induspie town half	18		from from a from
19	As I mentioned on March 12th, the OIM had a	19	DOIL	
20	As I mentioned, on March 12th, the Olm had a town hall mosting with the Distform personnal	20	KUIL,	Q.C.: So it homeons on the years day that the
	On Merch 13th Load two town hall meetings		Q.	So it happens on the very day that the -
	one with the onshere UNDC and contractor		MR. S	ACUTA:
23	personnel and then later that afternoon I	23	A.	n happened on the very day in this situation.
24	personnel, and then later that alternoon, I	24	KOIL,	Q.C
25	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who	25	0	Vec
25	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who	25	Q.	Yes.
25	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282	25	Q.	Yes. Page 284
25	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and	25	Q. MR. S	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA:
25 1 2	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently	25 1 2	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have
25 1 2 3	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just	25 1 2 3	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well?
25 1 2 3 4	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what	25 1 2 3 4	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel
25 1 2 3 4 5	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plane ware. A let of	25 1 2 3 4 5	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of quantient at those town hells, but we thought	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was wary important based on what hed	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that IMDC does a lot of is we train for
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for omergeney response and that page dividends we
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date.	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency Hibernia's
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.:	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point?	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point?	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A Obviously not because why did the belicopter	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash at that point in time the helicopter	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed FOC and a fully staffed FSG we
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there were some questions obviously that I couldn't 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there were some questions obviously that I couldn't answer.	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor give them an
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there were some questions obviously that I couldn't answer. 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor, give them an update so they could take, them back to their
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions obviously that I couldn't answer. So from the lessons learned perspective. Debrief sessions. All Hibernia emergency 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor, give them an update so they could take them back to their own individual floors and provide their
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there were some questions obviously that I couldn't answer. So from the lessons learned perspective. Debrief sessions. All Hibernia emergency response teams held debrief sessions following	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor, give them an update so they could take them back to their own individual floors and provide their employees with an update. those that weren't
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	 had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions obviously that I couldn't answer. So from the lessons learned perspective. Debrief sessions. All Hibernia emergency response teams held debrief sessions following the incident to review potential issues and 	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor, give them an update so they could take them back to their own individual floors and provide their employees with an update, those that weren't part of the emergency response teams. but were
25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	had one for any offshore HMDC workforce who Page 282 were off duty and invited their families and families of those members who were currently offshore at the time. Basically, it was just an information session to let them know what we knew about the accident and what the looking forward plans were. A lot of questions at those town halls, but we thought it was very important, based on what had happened, to keep our workforce up to date. ROIL, Q.C.: Q. Were you able to answer all the questions at that point? MR. SACUTA: A. Obviously not, because why did the helicopter crash, at that point in time the helicopter hadn't been recovered. So I was able to answer the questions that I could and there were some questions obviously that I couldn't answer. So from the lessons learned perspective. Debrief sessions. All Hibernia emergency response teams held debrief sessions following the incident to review potential issues and areas of improvement. The Hibernia Management	25 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Q. MR. S A.	Yes. Page 284 ACUTA: Prior to standing down the EOC, we would have done the debrief. What worked well? Hibernia's emergency response personnel performed their roles skilfully. Previous training received during drills provided to be effective, and I think that that's one of the things that HMDC does a lot of is we train for emergency response and that pays dividends we actually have an emergency. Hibernia's emergency response processes and procedures worked as planned. HMDC's management sit at meetings with employees on each floor in Cabot Place to keep them informed of ongoing rescue efforts. Aside from the fact that we had a fully staffed EOC and a fully staffed ESG, we had a number of employees that were still at work. So what we did is provide select an individual from each floor, give them an update so they could take them back to their own individual floors and provide their employees with an update, those that weren't part of the emergency response teams, but were still at the office.

Janua	ry 18, 2010 M	Iulti-Page [¬]	M Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Page	285	Page 287
1 (). How many HMDC employees would be in Cabot	1 MR.	SACUTA:
2	Place in St. John's?	2 A	. Right. So on March 12th, everybody would have
3 MR.	SACUTA:	3	bene trying to activate around the same time.
4 A	A. It's a good question. I think you're talking	4	So the last section I'd like to cover today is
5	somewhere between 100 and 200.	5	some summary and closing remarks. I'd like to
6 ROI	L, Q.C.:	6	talk about Hibernia's safety performance. I'd
7 0	2. Yeah. So not quite as large as the offshore	7	like to talk about helicopter transportation
8	work site, but a significant number of	8	safety and then I have some closing remarks.
9	personnel.	9	Hibernia has achieved its strong safety
10 MR.	SACUTA:	10	record by the following: utilizing mature,
11 A	A. Yes. And onshore employees were given the	11	globally tested safety management systems to
12	option to go home to their families or talk to	12	drive continuous improvement, the operations
13	grief counsellors on site, you know. We just	13	integrity management system; by maintaining
14	thought "guys, work today is not important.	14	our facilities and securing best available
15	If you want to help us" a lot of people	15	technologies; relying on comprehensive risk
16	stayed around to help and a lot of people	16	assessments and management processes to
17	decided to go home. From an improvement	17	identify and eliminate or mitigate hazards;
18	opportunities perspective, one of the key	18	documenting and clearly stating safety
19	learnings was monitoring the stress placed on	19	policies and procedures; driving
20	response team members. During the debrief of	20	accountability for safety at every level in
21	the EOC, there was a few people that talked	21	the organization, we are all responsible for
22	about how stressed they were, how hard it was	22	our safety and the safety of those working
23	to do their roles as information came in about	23	around us; having a highly skilled committed
24	the circumstances, and that would certainly be	24	and engaged workforce, and I fully believe we
25	one of my primary responsibilities in that	25	have that in the Hibernia organization; hiring
	Page	286	Page 288
1	role is making sure that if somebody is	1	industry leading specialized service
2	stressed, that we continue to monitor them and	2	providers, such as Cougar Helicopters;
3	get somebody to spell them, and we also	3	believing that it is possible to have a work
4	encouraged all our employees to, you know, to	4	environment without injuries, I believe that.
5	speak up if they were having problems focusin	g 5	It takes a lot of hard work, but I believe we
6	on the job they had at hand.	6	can have a work environment where we do not
7	All operators have their emergency	7	have injuries; striving every day to learn
8	response teams activated by one service	8	from our past experiences, to achieve a
9	provider, as I mentioned a company called	9	reality where no one gets hurt. You've heard
10	Telelink. With all operators mobilizing at	10	that a lot. We believe that we can work every
11	one time, the service response time could be	11	day and no one will get hurt.
12	impeded. We have worked closely with our	12	The safety of our workforce is our
13	service provider to improve their response to	13	greatest responsibility. HMDC uses top
14	initial activation. Equipment upgrades were	14	quality service providers and leading edge
15	not required, just a more structured approach	15	technology for helicopter transportation.
16	was implemented and this has been tested and	16	From an operational safety perspective, we've
17	so this improvement opportunity has been	17	got a world class operator who's been
18	closed.	18	certified by Transport Canada. We have highly
19 ROI	L, Q.C.:	19	skilled flight crews with pilot training
20 0	Okay. So all three of the producing operators	20	exceeding the industry norms, which are
21	out there use the same service to -	21	already very heavy, the training requirements
22 MR	. SACUTA:	22	under the regulations. We have certified
23 A	A. Kight.	23	aircraft maintenance facility with skilled,
24 ROI	L, Q.C.:	24	licensed aircraft engineers. We clearly
125 () to activate emergency response.	25	document and contractually require operational

Janua	ary 18, 2010	Multi-	Page	¹ Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
	Р	age 289		Page 291
1	procedures. We have rigorous oversight a	nd	1	Newfoundland and Labrador. our safety
2	monitoring by HMDC and ExxonMobil's av	iation	2	performance was significantly better than
3	services and we talked about our annual		3	other industries.
4	review, and we expect compliance with a	11	4	For example, in the five years between
5	regulatory requirements.		5	2004 and 2008, Hibernia experienced only two
6	From an aircraft safety perspective, we		6	situations that resulted in a lost time
7	have the latest generation twin engine harsh	n	7	incident. During this period, we had between
8	environment helicopter, the S-92. We have	/e	8	200 and 250 personnel on board the facility on
9	leading edge aviation technology, the		9	a daily basis. We completed three major
10	helicopter usage monitoring system, HUMS	as	10	shutdowns in this period where a significant
11	we've heard repeatedly over the last couple	of	11	amount of labour intensive work was completed
12	weeks. We have flight tracking capability a	ind	12	and our total number of people on board
13	emergency locator transmitters on our		13	increased from approximately 250 to near 350
14	helicopters, the Blue Sky for the flight		14	during these shutdown periods. Just think
15	tracking and the E-PERBs for the transmitter	s,	15	about this. More than 200 people working on
16	and the latest generation helicopter safety		16	an offshore facility around the clock, seven
17	equipment.		17	days a week, out in the middle of the North
18	From a personnel safety perspective,		18	Atlantic every day for five years, and we only
19	highly qualified basic high quality basic		19	experienced two situations where a Hibernia
20	survival training and helicopter underwate	r í	20	worker had to miss a day's work due to work-
21	escape training, certified survival suits	,	21	related injury. The system is working.
22	appropriate for the Newfoundland environm	nent,	22	It is very sad that we experienced the
23	cold water environment, state-of-the-art	,	23	tragedy of March 12th, but we can't lose sight
24	personal protection equipment, which include	des	24	of the focus and the effort that everyone has
25	PLBs and the HUEBA. Helicopter and vessel	on	25	put into safety since we started producing in
	Р	age 290		Page 292
1	emergency standby staffed by skilled person	ns.	1	1997. Although I'm very proud of the effort
2	We have a standby vessel on site $24/7$ and	a	2	and commitment of our workforce and the robust
3	first response search and rescue helicopter in	n	3	safety management system we have in place, we
4	St. John's which we believe is a world clas	s	4	are always looking for ways to improve this
5	first response system, and we also have acce	ess	5	performance. Quite simply, our goal is nobody
6	to the Department of National Defence's sea	arch	6	gets hurt. I believe this is possible, but it
7	and rescue support.		7	will take the continued effort of everyone in
8	In closing, Mr. Roil and Commissioner		8	the Hibernia organization. Said another way,
9	Wells, during this Inquiry and in particular		9	safety is a journey not a destination and I am
10	in the media, there have been statements ma	ide	10	confident this Inquiry will help us move
11	that question the oil industry's commitment	to	11	forward on that journey. Thank you very much.
12	safety. I find these statements inaccurate		12 ROIL	, Q.C.:
13	and there is nothing as there is nothing		13 Q.	Thank you, Mr. Sacuta.
14	more important than the safety of our		14 COM	MISSIONER:
15	workforce. I realize we had a tragic event of	n	15 Q.	Thank you, Mr. Sacuta.
16	March 12th and I realize the loss was great	t l	16 ROIL	, Q.C.:
17	and that it impacted many people and change	ged	17 Q.	Commissioner, I have no further questions at
18	many lives, but our industry is still a safe		18	this time.
19	one. We have robust safety management sy	stems	19 COM	MISSIONER:
20	in place. We have an engaged workforce, b	oth	20 Q.	Thank you. Well, it's quarter past four. I
21	offshore and onshore, and our injury		21	don't think I'm going to invite anybody to ask
22	statistics have been much lower than the		22	questions now. You might want to think of it
23	provincial averages. In fact, prior to 2009,		23	and we'll go through the list tomorrow morning
24	if you compared the offshore oil industry's	s	24	at 9:30.
25	safety performance against other industries	in 🛛	25 ROIL	, Q.C.:

January 18, 2010	Multi-Page TM	Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry
 Q. That's fine. So we're adjourned u tomorrow? 3 COMMISSIONER: Q. Yes. I don't think it would be parts productive to start now before peop chance to think about what they mig ask. All right then, 9:30 tomorrow 	Page 293 intil 9:30 icularly ple have a ght wish to morning.	
1 CERTIFICATE 2 We, the undersigned, do hereby certify 3 the foregoing is a true and correct transcrift 4 hearing heard on the 18th day of January, 5 Tara Place, 31 Peet Street, Suite 213, St. J 6 Newfoundland and Labrador and was trans 7 to the best of our ability by means of a s 8 apparatus. 9 Dated at St. John's, NL this 10 18th day of January, 2010 11 Cindy Sooley 12 Discoveries Unlimited Inc. 13 Judy Moss 14 Discoveries Unlimited Inc.	Page 294 y that pt of a 2010 at John's scribed by us sound	

Multi-PageTM

- actual Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				copter surety inquiry
	18th [2] 294:4,10	25 [1] 132:17	69 [1] 17:23	279:24 282:5
	1988 [1] 23:11	250 [2] 291:8,13		accidental [1] 249:15
# [1] 229:18	1995 [2] 199:21 200:20	26 [2] 151:22,25	7-	accidents [1] 231:23
	1997 [7] 34:14,21 51:5	280 [5] 20:2 34:22 35:2,4	7's ^[1] 215:11	accommodate [1] 18:3
-\$-	146:12 213:2 217:10	181:19	7-day [1] 269:11	accommodations [8]
\$1 000 (11 136.19	292:1	29 ^[1] 75:24	7-dav-a-week [1] 206:7	15:16 16:5,24 19:24
	1998 [1] 261:15	2:00 [2] 166:9,11	70 m 211:17	128:22 156:5 258:3 259:3
	1:00 [3] 152:19 153:9,10	2:30 [1] 153:18	700 [1] 206:20	accordance [6] 17:15
-0-	1st [6] 26:14 225:4,5,21		76 [2] 240:14 241:15	212.21 244.9
00132 [1] 201:15	223:23 220:1			Accordingly 11 68.6
1	2	3 [4] 45:3 49:9 59:6,9	-8-	accountabilities
-1-	-4-	30 [9] 4:14 8:5,10 107:8	9 107 9 109 12 12 14	53:4
1 [8] 57:3 60:19 61:5,7,15	Z [5] 44:10,25 59:17 67:23	107:9 204:24 205:11,12	0[5] 197.8 198.12,13,14	accountability [6]
61:17,19 84:12	0/:24	273:19	8's (1) 215.11	53:17 54:5,12 60:21 61:2
1-2-3-4-5 [1] 214:25	20[3] 84:8,10 107:9	300 [1] 131:12	80 (1) 17:22	287:20
1.3 [1] 12:2	200 [4] 46:13 285:5 291:8	31 [1] 294:5	81 (1) 248-21	accountable [1] 26:1
10 [11] 95:10,25 96:1,17	2000 [1] 206·20	32 [4] 30:8,8,17 31:7	GI [I] 240.21	accounted [1] 258:23
97:2 185:24 249:2 250:10	2000 [1] 200.20	35 [1] 273:19		accumulate [1] 270:3
10 1 H1 250.12	2002 [1] 11.18	350 [1] 291:13		accuracy [1] 275:6
10-1 [1] 230:15	28:10.18	360 [1] 34:19	9 [4] 126:16 215:11	accurate [4] 275:12,18
10-2 [1] 230:14	2004 [1] 291.5	37 [2] 144:12,14	242:24 244:10 00 m 25:10	275:25 279:19
100 [3] 40:13 107:7 285:5	2005 [10] 71:24 213:10	375 [1] 43:16	90 [1] 55:10	achieve [2] 141:24 288:8
10:04 [1] 2/3:8	213:14 218:23 219:3	38 [3] 80:13 144:13,18	90-uay [2] 219:24 220:1	achieved [2] 11:18 287:9
10:30 [2] 276:5,9	225:1,4 231:22 240:23	39 [2] 144:13,21	928 [1] 221:5	acknowledges [1]
11 [13] 56:24 57:2,15 58:2 58:3 24 59:1 76:4 150:19	242:11	3:30 [1] 248:10	950 [1] 12:2 0:30 202 24 202 1 7	233:13
152:7 205:17 213:1	2006 [10] 71:24 72:2 74:3		9:50 [3] 292:24 293:1,7	acronym [3] 128:22
217:12	100.2 213.17 220.22	-4-	9th [1] 233:14	acronyms (2) 45:15
11-year [1] 213:7	2007 [10] 213.18 214.4 5	4 [3] 44:5 50:10.20		279:1
11.1 [1] 205:20	214:10,12 219:2 229:23	40 [7] 57:18,18 59:5 76:6	-A-	act [9] 129:5,6,24,25
11.2 [1] 208:10	230:21 241:5 242:11	76:25 207:23 218:10	a.m [1] 206:16	130:2,6 144:14 145:21
11th [1] 56:13	2007-037 [1] 230:25	400 [1] 8:10	A1 [1] 81:19	145:22
12 [2] 34:6 110:15	2008 [4] 228:11,18	4500 [2] 185:13 186:1	abandon [2] 211:2,7	acting [1] 264:22
126 [1] 4:14	236:19 291:5	46 [1] 144:7	abandonment [1] 211:1	action [18] 56:21 85:21
12th [32] 5:10,24 9:4	2009 [12] 5:24 40:17,22	47 [1] 146:9	ability [17] 17:6 48:3	98:16 101:14 108:16,18
11:11 74:14 159:1 207:23	/4:23 213:10 220:23	491 [5] 5:13 29:16 276:24	92:21 93:8 134:12 202:10	154:11 217:4 220:24
209:20 230:20 235:1	236:21 249:6 290:23	279:24 281:15	221:1 241:20 257:19	228:12,14,16 231:1,5
249:6 253:21.23 254:9	2009-101 [1] 233:6	4:30 [1] 2:14	266:23 269:21,22 294:7	233:7
256:5 265:7,13 269:4	2010 [3] 1:1 294:4.10		able [16] 34:25 65:17	actions [12] 54:20 71:11
271:19 274:2,19 276:5	2034 [1] 12:12		87:10 96:3 101:14 138:19	243.8 246.6 8 253.19
2/7:8 281:2,20 287:2	21 [5] 63:16 72:14,14,16	5 [7] 44:6 84:10,12 104:23	195:22 203:17 205:23	283:10
13 [6] 34·7 35·13 152·2 2	72:16	104:25 105:2 142:21	234:16 273:22 282:11,16	activate [10] 266:23
152:2 205:11	21-on-21-off [1] 33:17	5,000 [2] 16:11 40:16	abnormality [1] 17:6	269:5,6 271:6,7,11,14
130 [1] 3:8	212 [1] 8:14	50 [2] 103:10 196:7	aboard [1] 31:25	272:23 286:25 287:3
131 [2] 3:11 43:15	2121 [2] 35:19,25	50-100t [1] 14:3	above [4] 17:23 25:7 35:2	activated [8] 221:13
132 [3] 4:13 205:5,7	213 [1] 294:5	51 [2] 162:13 166:15	40:6	249:3 2/1:12,1/ 2/3:8
133 [1] 4:14	214 [1] 8:15	52 [3] 166:17,19 168:19	abseilers [1] 22:19	activation [3] 269.11
135 [3] 4:16 229:18,19	22.8 [2] 17:25 18:1	525 [1] 11:24	absolutely [8] 28:24	271:3 286:14
136 [4] 3:12 4:17 229:18	220 [1] 35:8	54 [1] 170:23	40:15 74:14 78:24 99:20	activities [19] 22:5 41:21
232:14	223 [3] 57:16 60:14 76:5	5:30 [2] 277:12 283:18	208:8 241:23 268:19	53:23 68:10 69:22 71:16
13th [2] 277:9 281:22	22nd [1] 233:4	5th [1] 263:8		105:3 106:22 120:12
14 [1] 152:8	230,000 [1] 11:19			131:8 163:19 167:6 169:5
140 [1] 20:1	24 [5] 50:3 57:19 110:14	-6-		267:4 274:4 279:5
149 [2] 17:20,21	206:6 255:24	6 [5] 59:24 162:14,18	access [15] 21:9 27:8 63:7 63:17 64:1 98:10 99:18	activity [10] 31:12 32:15
15 [3] 8:19 131:5,9	24-hour [2] 206:25	163:7 215:6	99:20 122:24 256:2	32:17 35:8 39:22 81:18
150,000 [1] 11:20	269:10	600 [1] 18:11	266:25 268:25 269:1,3	83:4,16 86:17 210:5
15th [2] 40:22 230:21	24/ / [3] 206:10 207:9	60N [3] 35:17,24 36:1	290:5	acts [2] 129:4 130:13
16 [2] 14:4 57:20	290.2 240 m 35.8	61 [1] 241:15	accessible [1] 251:15	actual [9] 17:3 63:23
16,000 [1] 18:2	2-10 [1] 55:0 7/1th (1) 222.4	64 [3] 57:16 58:23 76:5	accident [7] 200:7	103:18 120:11 129:24
18 [1] 1:1		650 [1] 11:21	229:12 233:14 236:20,21	101.4,0 2/0:10 2/0:0

ad [2] 41:11 196:15 add [2] 56:9 76:1 added [4] 83:13 93:7,8 98:4 adding [1] 55:22 addition [1] 3:11 additional [9] 2:16 12:18 83:9 104:6 189:25 241:3 252:18 256:25 266:20 Additionally [3] 22:4 107:21 136:14 address [8] 62:7,12 63:21,24 112:25 120:20 231:4 276:11 addressed [7] 157:19 196:4 232:4,9,16 262:12 262:13 addresses [1] 106:6 adequacy [1] 251:18 adequate [1] 20:25 adequately [1] 263:1 **adhere** [1] 150:13 adhered [2] 150:25 151:9 adherence [2] 49:13 169:8 adjacent [1] 261:25 adjourned [1] 293:1 adjusted [1] 192:12 admin [2] 117:1 182:22 **administer** [1] 1:13 administration [2] 135:17 202:24 admit [1] 3:7 adopt [2] 26:16 97:22 adopted [5] 27:19 45:5 165:3.5 167:9 advance [2] 195:2 261:11 advantage [1] 3:19 advantages [2] 47:4,5 adverse [1] 90:19 adviser [1] 212:4 advisor [28] 72:17 213:19 216:2,10,18,25 217:6,9,21 218:1 219:4 220:14 221:24 225:5 226:21 229:5,8 230:16 231:5 232:3 233:13.22 236:7 237:6,14,25 272:13 273:1 advisor's [2] 227:11 237:9 advisors [3] 167:23 234:13 236:23 affairs [1] 265:16 affect [2] 44:14 216:11 affected [3] 5:15 69:25 70:7 affiliates [2] 27:6 267:1 affirmed [2] 9:22 237:4 afraid [2] 120:25 121:1

afternoon [7] 2:10,14 153:19 166:14 248:9 281:24 283:18 afterwards [1] 253:2 again [18] 7:17 57:7 94:24 97:7 103:8 130:15 133:13 135:8 147:7 162:13 164:3 190:24 195:1 221:22 230:11 232:19 236:12,14 against [4] 36:22 65:25 83:14 290:25 agencies [2] 197:20 279:17 agenda [2] 107:5 111:25 **ago** [6] 8:5,19 156:15 167:17 195:10 238:13 agree [2] 99:13 154:9 agreed [2] 247:7,10 agreement [3] 27:5 35:23,25 ahead [1] 274:23 aid [2] 87:14 211:12 air [6] 167:5 171:20 207:23 208:16 224:13 280:5 aircraft [49] 87:15 100:9 101:1 103:18 168:2 171:6 171:9,13,15 176:24 185:2 188:7,17 190:1,12 192:6 192:7 193:3 197:14 202:19 203:9,10,10,13 203:14,15,16,19 219:4 219:11,16 220:12 221:4 221:10,14 223:12 238:19 238:20 241:1,5,6 242:17 245:16 259:4 271:20 272:4 288:23,24 289:6 airframe [7] 11:5 99:24 214:7 223:20 227:16 241:15,21 airframes [2] 220:17 223:17 airport [1] 203:25 alarm [2] 116:19,20 alarms [1] 189:16 Alaska [1] 8:12 alcohol [3] 228:19,22 229:2 alert [4] 100:25 101:6 111:5 240:3 alerts [3] 114:15,18 115:5 aligned [2] 218:25 219:6 Alliance [3] 29:13,18 31:12 allow [6] 3:22 63:7,13 101:19 202:7 223:14 allowed [1] 27:22 allows [2] 47:11 54:20 almost [4] 18:2 34:7 96:8 225:22 **alternate** [11] 87:16 88:10 154:17 203:21 204:1,2,5,9,14 205:13 266:13

alternately [1] 155:2 **altitudes** [1] 101:8 always [18] 7:12 66:14 94:14 100:10 111:17,19 185:22,22 200:13 252:23 253:2,10,18 258:17 263:1 266:11 276:12 292:4 among [2] 7:14 218:10 amongst [2] 154:16 274:20 amount [2] 160:25 291:11 ample [3] 80:7 122:17 122:21 **analysis** [7] 40:7 42:22 51:2 199:15,18,19 246:5 analyzed [2] 243:7 244:9 announcement [3] 191:3,5,7 announcements [2] 134:9 257:20 annual [11] 21:23 22:2 41:10 64:20,22 91:6 212:25 213:4.21 252:8 289:3 **annually** [3] 40:3 148:22 212:7 anonymously [3] 122:22 125:9,10 answer [6] 98:18 161:22 227:22 282:11,17,19 anti-collision [1] 188:4 anticipate [1] 170:9 **anticipation** [1] 261:12 AOG [8] 167:1,6,12,14 168:5,11 174:5 219:22 **API-RP-2L** [1] 17:17 apparatus [2] 191:14 294:8 appendicitis [1] 210:14 applicable 181 44:8 53:18 55:23 101:1 133:14 169:3 197:18,19 applied [2] 46:25 69:19 applies [1] 79:24 apply [3] 4:1 52:5 168:13 appreciation [2] 136:6 136:21 approach [10] 14:5 52:23 53:9 80:22 96:9 136:25 137:1 188:6.13 286:15 approaches [1] 96:20 appropriate [9] 9:24 44:16 85:9 86:4 113:8 114:19 123:12 193:18 289:22 approval [8] 2:19 26:22 39:15 43:6 85:11,17,20 249:10 **approvals** [2] 39:22 238:22 approve [4] 38:4 77:21 77:25 229:7 approved [14] 39:23,25

Multi-PageTM

261:6

104:2

193:3

284:15

171:15

236:8

73:15 74:2,10,11,16,18

ad - authorizations **Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry**

40:2,3,5 42:19 43:5 74:20,22 80:17,21 81:7 84:18,24 98:15 101:15 84:17 85:18,21 94:10 123:16 163:13 191:15 97:13,19 98:20 100:2,6 198:20 199:18,25 239:7 **approving** [1] 217:7 assessments [13] 39:5 **approximate** [1] 190:20 50:11,22 51:8 64:21 April [2] 194:5,20 67:21 68:9 70:2 71:16 area [26] 9:21 16:25 19:2 84:16,23 126:13 287:16 21:6.15.16 22:13 25:5 asset [2] 106:11,14 31:20 38:19 63:25 67:16 assets [1] 256:8 82:5 87:20 89:1 126:2 126:20 149:5 188:23 assign [2] 109:20 283:9 189:4 203:20 211:10 assigned [5] 85:9 109:18 221:16 245:5 246:16 118:22,25 189:14 assignment [1] 98:25 areas [19] 38:17 44:25 assist [2] 192:10 273:17 47:20 56:20,21 65:13 assistance [2] 273:22 113:8 114:25 126:19 279:13 135:12 155:21,23,25,25 assisted [1] 279:5 156:5 233:16 234:6 259:13 282:24 **assisting** [1] 208:16 arising [1] 261:13 assists [1] 167:4 Arm [2] 13:25 14:11 **associated** [17] 14:14 armband [2] 102:16 22:10 46:3 52:14.17.25 57:19,20 67:21 69:22 83:5,8 142:2 173:21 arrange [1] 235:20 216:20 227:12 243:17 arranged [1] 279:7 **assurance** [6] 60:24 arrangement [3] 169:23 90:10 91:3 163:9.24 170:14 185:12 164:4 array [1] 157:20 assure [1] 100:21 arrival [5] 141:4 186:9 at-risk [1] 142:1 187:10 189:3 190:12 Atlantic [4] 8:13 19:3 arrivals [2] 10:25 184:18 22:13 291:18 arrive [4] 36:10 116:15 attach [1] 222:3 139:8 182:17 attached [8] 14:21,23 arrived [1] 280:16 102:16 203:7 231:1,5,25 arrives [3] 186:8,20 233:6 attempts [1] 175:15 arriving [3] 184:9 attend [1] 149:12 188:22 189:17 **attendance** [1] 150:10 AS332L [1] 18:4 attended [3] 145:17 ascribed [1] 268:2 148:25 149:2 **Asia** [1] 8:11 attention [4] 109:12 aside [3] 187:15 224:1 119:14 172:25 235:2 attract [1] 109:12 asks [1] 37:25 audit [17] 41:10 56:23 asleep [1] 134:4 57:4 60:15 66:25 108:20 aspect [1] 83:23 213:17 214:5 220:23 225:4.21 229:9.22 230:1 aspects [7] 41:21 94:25 232:9,13 235:11 106:7 116:18,23 146:17 auditing [2] 56:19 235:4 auditor [1] 236:3 **ASRAP** [3] 231:1 233:7 audits [18] 39:5 41:5,9 **ASRT** [1] 236:22 41:19 43:8 65:22 212:20 212:25 213:1,4,6 217:12 **assembly** [1] 240:5 217:22 229:16 235:12,13 assess [4] 47:23 54:17 235:20 240:12 219:19 237:1 authorities [1] 239:6 assessed [4] 72:8 74:9 authority [6] 39:2,6 43:9 199:2 211:21 65:21 154:21,23 assessing [1] 68:3 authorization [13] 38:6 assessment [45] 50:17 39:1,15,23,25 40:1,21 50:18,19 52:13,16 55:5 40:25 41:8 43:5 172:20 56:15 59:17 64:22 65:1 173:4 230:24 67:19,23 69:21 71:3,8 authorizations [3] 40:6 71:10,21,25 72:5,6,9

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 2

40:18 206:5

Multi-Page[™]

authorize - carry Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				opter Surety Inqui
authorize [1] 173:11	191:9,11 192:5,6 244:25	belt [1] 14:3	291:12	burn [1] 93:11
authorized [2] 26:15	bags [1] 178:12	Ben [2] 13:8 88:24	Board's [3] 43:6 149:6	business [12] 6:20 24:5
230:23	Baker [3] 29:12 30:18	bene [1] 287:3	149:14	26:17 27:4 62:10 68:21
auto [8] 222:9,24 223:3	31:10	benefit [2] 102:22 104:1	boards [4] 70:19 114:22	106:3,20 198:17 263:11
223:7,9,10,13,23	balance [1] 86:4	benefits [3] 39:18 48:15	114:25 115:1 hoot m 117 2 157 (buy (1) 156:14
automatic [1] 17:4	balancing [1] 86:3	199:19	279.9	buy [1] 130.14
101.6	ball [1] 138:12	berm [1] 14:1	hook 171 119.23 238.19	
availability 11 194.8	bargaining [3] 153:4,6	best [12] 2:13 7:1,5,14	244:14,15,17,17,19	-C-
available [25] 3.17 64.6	horrola = 11.10.20.22	233.23 242.16 287.14	boosting [1] 134:18	$\frac{C}{C}$ (n. 94.11 146.22 246.10
64:8,11 89:14 94:20	11.25 12.2	294:7	boots [3] 123:15 140:25	249.9
122:23 150:17 163:14	barrier [2] 126:2.3	better [6] 2:15 83:3 99:10	141:2	C-NLOPB [9] 38:23
202:15 225:25 243:3	base [3] 14.6 72.23 24	121:14 151:13 291:2	bottom [7] 13:4 71:12	39:6,14 43:8 65:23
251:15 259:24 201:5	baseball (1) 136.4	between [32] 12:1 16:12	125:20 175:10 245:5	122:23 148:19,21 272:15
274:13 276:1,21 277:1,7	based [33] 11:23 12:14	16:19,21 25:6 35:8 59:13	bowl (1) 240.4	Cabot [3] 263:8 284:13
287:14	12:16 17:10 27:10 42:21	173:5 198:24 201:19.24	bow $[1] 240.4$	285:1
Avalon [1] 13:9	47:19 65:23 66:22 74:22	202:6 213:10,12 229:5	245:1.5.6.8.9	cal [1] 167:2
average [2] 131:5 185:20	78:16 83:13 86:15 94:16	242:10 259:14,19 260:1	boxes [5] 23:24 71:12	calls [3] 48:5 264:21
averages [1] 290:23	113:23 128:5 136:11.25	265:8 266:1 272:6 274:10	124:24 125:19 131:24	camara (2) 125.12
aviation [86] 10:21 11:1	159:18 201:24 221:8	291:4.7	brand [1] 189:6	187:21
49:15 51:7,7 52:12 67:21	229:11 241:1 247:8	bid (6) 199:9.13.16	breach [1] 208:6	cameras [1] 186:19
86:23 97:12,19 98:6,20	263:15 269:19 272:24	200:13,17,20	break [10] 75:10,17,19	campaign [1] 274:3
100:22 164:12,19,24	hasic 151 94.2 128.16	bidder [2] 200:9,11	75:21 149:17 166:7,12	Canada [17] 17:15 26:8
165:1 166:25 167:1,3,23	157:21 289:19,19	bidders [4] 200:22,25	193:17 248:10,12	26:18,18,19 27:3,5 29:13
167:24 168:10 169:11 184:19 21 197:6 203:6 7	basics [3] 118:6 120:10	201:4,6	breakout [1] 149:18	38:22 191:15 197:20
211:24,25 212:3,6,8,10	169:16	big [6] 121:16 148:7	Dreaks [1] 161:5	201:19 223:11 240:23
212:15,22 213:1,3,19	basin [4] 88:25 202:4,12	160:25 181:19 188:10	breatning [1] 191:14	Canada's 121 219:25
216:2 217:5,18,20,21	204:7	higger [2] 125.23 152.14	DFIEI [7] /:18 11:/ 10/:19 111.22 118.11 124.8	267:7
218:1 219:3,20 220:14 221:24 224:18 225:5	basis [16] 10:9 22:11 43:8	higgest (1) 22.17	242:23	Canada-Newfoundland
226:21 227:10 228:4	44:5,6 50:10 110:5	billion (1) 12.2	briefly [1] 242:21	[1] 39:17
229:5,8 230:16,19,25	176:6 206:7 252:8 254:17	binder [2] 115.6.9	briefs [1] 115:17	Canadian [2] 18:21,22
231:2 233:2,7 234:15	255:12 291:9	bio [1] 7.16	bring [7] 45:21 48:11	Canadians [1] 121:14
230:5,22,25,24,25 237:5	bathroom [1] 20:2	bit [33] 1:25 23:20 37:15	65:10 86:21 116:10	cancel [2] 177:18,19
241:2 243:23 245:14	beacon [2] 94:8 191:13	46:1,7,8 48:16 51:10	122:13 201:16	cancelled [1] 175:14
247:20 289:2,9	beams [1] 23:2	56:18 70:16 112:22 114:3	broad [2] 106:20 157:20	cancels [1] 177:14
Aviations [1] 174:6	bearing [5] 82:14,17,25	116:22 117:25 125:20	broader [1] 5:17	cannot [1] 85:14
avoid [2] 243:4 246:19	83:7 96:6	157:17 170:24 180:21,24	broadest [1] 247:4	capabilities [3] 171:12
avoiding [1] 44:21	became [2] 2/1:21 2//:1	182:25 184:17 205:21	brought (m. 24.22, 102.8)	1/1:21 198:20
award [3] 136:15 199:21	become [1] 278:21	212:4 229:16 238:13	133.7 8 262.13	206.1 12 210.18 223.3
199:25	87·11	240:12 255:0,12 205:12 block (11) 91.11 16 92.5	BST [2] 94·2 160·19	223:13 269:11 271:13
awarucu [1] 199:20	becoming [1] 203:16	82:7.9 83:12.21 84:4	bud (1) 112:23	289:12
122:7 169:22.22 219:9	beds [3] 20:1 34:22.23	86:12,15,19	build (1) 48:18	capable [2] 16:17 87:15
240:9 261:15,17 269:7	beeswax [1] 159:23	blanket [1] 92:23	building [5] 19:17 55:21	captain [1] 178:9
271:21	began [1] 219:2	blast [6] 15:14,19,21,22	263:7,10 267:8	capture [1] 47:11
awareness [7] 55:9	begin [1] 162:4	16:3 258:1	built [4] 13:25 14:10,17	captured [1] 283:7
233:15 235:1 249:3 250:1	beginning [1] 114:7	blocked [1] 127:2	34:11	car [1] 139:7
away [8] 5:4 16:23 17:2	begins [2] 57:7,9	blow [1] 17:8	bulk [1] 185:1	card [11] 124:6,16,18
150:20 234:5 235:7	behaviour [4] 113:23	blue [12] 49:18,20 94:1	bulky [1] 160:6	125:13,15 127:13 128:7
273:10,21	128:5,9 142:1	101:5,10,13,18,21,25	Bull [2] 13:25 14:11	cards 131 131 1 133 18
	behaviours [1] 132:18	board [53] 5:13.24 17:9	bullet [10] 62:18 66:5	135:25
-B-	behind [2] 148:8 186:18	20:3,5,7 31:11,16 32:11	126:13 128:5 135:1.19	care [1] 163:3
B [2] 84:9 246:9	belief [2] 237:9 238:6	34:19,22,25 35:4,7 37:22	167:18	career [2] 5:18 172:13
back-to-back [1] 9:2	believes [1] 233:22	37:25 38:4,23 39:21 40:5	bulletin [6] 70:19 114:21	careful [1] 111:9
background [1] 236:14	believing [1] 288:3	43:5,10 63:16 108:21	114:22,25 115:1 240:4	cargo [8] 169:16 171:16
backup [1] 87:12	Bell [2] 8:14,15	114:22 115:3,15 127:22	bullets [1] 168:9	171:19 188:15 189:25
bad [2] 133:20 180:19	belonging [1] 47:7	128:1 149:3,16 152:15	bunch [1] 218:10	191:8,19 202:24
bag _[1] 245:1	below [6] 23:24 30:11	181:24 192:6 197:19	bunker [2] 178:21	carriage [1] 171:20
baggage [11] 179:4,9,15	10/:14 1/8:11 195:6	257:12 258:22,23 265:11	1/9:15	carrieu [2] 50:12 197:21
182:6 188:14 189:25	203.14	272:3 274:5 276:24 291:8	buraen [1] 278:14	Carry [4] 18:23 19:6

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

cascading - conducted Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Olishore Helic	copter Safety Inquir
233:8,11	check [7] 113:4 139:18	closes [1] 192:15	156:8,13,18 157:9,19	100:18 192:3 199:15
cascading [2] 58:7 76:24	140:2,24 181:20 190:5	closing [4] 11:13 287:5	158:3,4,6,10 159:19	212:25 213:18 220:23
case [10] 4:16 20:20 22:22	200:13	287:8 290:8	246:17	229:10 230:18 238:21
93:7 99:9 102:3 157:3	CHECK-IN [2] 102:18	closure [13] 54:20 56:21	Committees [3] 70:13	291:9.11
198:6 211:8 273:25	checked (1) 165.16	81:6 85:10,19 99:21	common (2) 241.5	completes [1] 252:9
Cases [3] 61:24,25 264:10	checking (2) 182.5 200.4	246:8.11	245:14	completing [1] 247:12
casually [2] 19:6 208:16	chef (2) 142.13 144.4	CNN [1] 275:20	communicate [11] 36:17	completion [1] 126:12
categories [1] 82:1	chest (1) 161.1	co [3] 23:7 278:12,16	70:12,21 90:25 158:13	compliance [14] 39:5
CCD m_{0} 250 10 15	Chevron [1] 26:7	co-chair [3] 153:15	187:13 246:18 258:24	41:4,5,6 43:11 47:23
CCK [2] 239:12,13	CHI [10] 230.20 231.3	154:8,15	239:14 278:13 281:19	53:18 54:18 56:17 65:14
control (273.4	231:22 233:4,17,22	co-venturer [2] 23:17	61:13 69:24 70:6 163:16	289:4
contro [19] 256.0 259.12	234:11 236:5,8,19	26:2	198:23 240:5 243:11	compliant [1] 240:20
259:6 260:5 262:20 263:3	chief [1] 249:9	co-venturers [4] 23:11	251:16 256:4 278:12	comply [3] 174:4 197:17
263:5 265:19 266:4	chlorine [1] 161:5	coast [10] 18:7 21 22 19:3	279:16	219:20
269:12 270:4,13 271:1,2	chock [1] 188:7	19:4 273:19 275:16	communicating [2]	component [12] 83:13
272:16 274:11 275:15	chocks [1] 192:21	276:18,21 280:17	communication [17]	84:1 104:24 133:3 145:25
centres (1) 259-19	choice [1] 136:20	cockpit [1] 87:11	35:16 90:23 171:8 178:9	14/:19 148:1,7 157:9
CEP (1) 152.24	Cindy [1] 294:11	cockpits [1] 220:17	246:12 257:18 259:4,5	components [4] 10.14
certain [13] 15:22 16:3	circle [2] 57:7,9	coffee [4] 114:23 115:9	259:10,18,25 265:8,21	22:25 36:15 37:18
63:2 119:17 123:16	circled [1] 17:24	115:11 117:8	265:25 2/5:14,17 2/7:2	composed [1] 26:2
124:25 126:20 145:14	circuit [1] 187:20	cold [2] 111:8 289:23	114:5 171:9 180:25 181:2	composition [2] 34:16
155:21 183:8 184:8	circumstance [2]	coloured [1] 102:16	257:20 259:11 260:2	144:19
107:11 245:24	195:10 210:11	combination [2] 250:3	263:24 265:9 274:10	comprehensive [4]
38:20 48:10 60:7 68:21	194:7 211:11 246:25	207.21 combine (1) 40.18	275:16 276:17 281:17	142:4 171:7,11 287:15
73:15 106:6 139:25 141:8	262:24 269:20 279:23	combined (1) 40.18	communities [1] 250:19	compressed [1] 2:19
173:2 194:3 199:7 203:2	281:15 285:24	comfort (a) 157.23	Community [6] 5:17	compressor [5] 56:9
253:1 256:4 276:11	City [1] 178:22	158:19 159:4 160:15	companies [6] 23.17	compressors [2] 82:11
CERTIFICATE [1]	civil [1] 239:6	161:10,20	31:24 68:18 236:25 269:2	82:19
294:1	clarification [2] 80:11	comfortable [1] 161:14	269:6	comprised [1] 23:16
certified [8] 43:9 145:15	244:5	coming [9] 96:12 97:19	company [23] 1:9 6:19	computer [3] 114:8,10
171:3,4 223:10 288:18	clarity [2] /0:1,4	107:20 110:14,18 118:15	7:10 22:1 23:9,10 26:3	275:4
288:22 289:21	290.4	134:24 245:10 250:19	27:11 28:2 52:5 47:8 64:20 114:16 128:11	computerized [1]
certify [1] 294:2	classes [2] 132:12.25	257:9	167:7 230:23 236:2 237:7	191:22
certifying [3] 39:1,6	classification [1] 224:25	comment [8] 3:7 42:12	237:16 238:18 243:14	concept [5] 37:11 40:6
cetera (1) 90·1	classified [3] 163:13	79:23 158:18 217:3	269:17 286:9	40.11 42.21 J1.1
chain (1) 77.17	245:24 246:1	229:11 234:9 244:7	company's [1] 200:2	conceptual (1) 50.25
chair [4] 154.17 18 21	clear [7] 100:16 103:9	comments [1] 164:18	compared [1] 290:24	concern [10] 2.5 7 8 11
154:23	188:3,12 189:24 192:17	Commission [3] 145:13	83:14	3:18 79:13 122:13 160:13
chaired [2] 154:13 155:1	210.5 clearance (1) 196.25	Commissioner (25) 1.2	compartment [1] 245:1	274:7,20
challenge [4] 22:17	$clearly _{171} 5.14 167.15$	1:5.21.24 3:4.25 5:8 7:21	compartments [1]	concerning [1] 246:13
234:1 235:24 275:7	167:17 251:16 280:2	9:13 75:21 83:22 85:23	188:15	concerns [10] 66:12
challenges [2] 22:14	287:18 288:24	86:1,7 166:6,8,14 229:9	compatible [1] 198:16	116:9 133:16,20 146:19
194:4	clerk [5] 181:16,17,20	248:7,13 290:8 292:14	competence [1] 91:3	160:14 279:11
chance [2] 109:16 293:6	191:20,21	commitment [17] 7.6 8	competencies [1]	concluded [1] 241:13
33.23 48.3 4 5 13 17	clock [2] 206:25 291:16	10:7 36:7,14,18,22 42:22	143:25	conclusion [1] 103:9
56:1,1,3,7,11 75:6 77:14	Close [22] 85:12,14,20	49:8 50:1 54:12 60:20	competency [3] 183:10	concrete [2] 14:3 86:22
77:21,25 78:16,20 80:8	125:22 174:7 184:11	61:1 94:18 120:3 290:11	competent (1) 183.0	concurrently [1] 234:15
82:17 102:23 151:3 240:4	187:6,11,16,20,23 192:14	commitments (5) 33.22	competing [1] 165.9	condensed [1] 186:10
changed [2] 35:7 290:17	220:13 222:4 225:21	43:9 49:12 65:24 66:1	competitive (2) 3.10	condition [3] 168:2
56:6 78:2 147:1	245:16 253:18 276:9	committed [1] 287:23	199:9	202:22 210:14
channel (1) 275.20	101.12 102.23	committee [53] 10:19	competitors [1] 3:19	conditions [8] 41:7
characteristics III	closed [11] 85.19 99.15	25:22 26:2,15 39:10	compilation [1] 167:2	155:19 177:12 181:4,8
62:14	100:23 101:8,14 124:18	115:2,22 116:10 143:8,9	complaint [1] 137:8	conduct 191 43:1 167:5
charge [4] 106:14 178:4	127:17 221:17 225:11	144:22 145:3.12.24.25	complaints [1] 146:19	167:23 212:20 213:4
179:12 266:4	227:8 286:18	146:5,10,16,21 147:5,16	complete [3] 21:25	234:14 251:21 253:1
charity [1] 136:20	CIOSELY [4] 150:13 151:9	147:22,25 148:4,11,13	102:20 233:2	203:18
chart [4] 29:3 244:10	closer [1] 95.19	148:1/150:4,5,/151:18	completed [21] 22:3,10	71.18 169.2 212.3 236.23
231:22,23		10 1.0,0 100.0,10 100.2	42:15 51:2,0 97:20	, 1.10 107.2 212.3 230.23

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

251:17 255:25 274:12 **conference** [2] 108:13 264:2 **conferences** [1] 277:8 confident [1] 292:10 **confidential** [2] 3:13 4:6 configuration [1] 223:21 **configured** [1] 224:1 **confirm** [1] 211:21 **confirmed** [1] 272:10 confused [1] 45:11 **conjunction** [1] 169:11 consequence [3] 81:2 81:25 82:1 consequences [3] 44:17 67:25 91:25 consider [4] 48:12 227:3 235:10 239:3 200:17 consideration [2] 69:13 257:10 205:24 considered [8] 4:6 81:11 81:12.14 140:11 195:15 212:15 228:25 288:25 **consistency** [1] 100:21 consistent [6] 27:15 62:8 62:10,13 198:16 234:11 consistently [1] 46:25 consists [5] 14:3,9 43:24 106:12 199:17 constituents [1] 153:14 constructing [1] 17:18 construction [6] 10:3 55:15,20 59:8 106:22 64:10 152:13 consultants [2] 234:14 236:23 consultation [1] 241:1 consumption [1] 19:9 contact [3] 228:13,16 269:21 contacted [3] 265:11 271:25 272:12 **contained** [3] 37:20 78:6 250:9 **containing** [1] 44:22 contains [2] 19:25 77:13 249:17 context [6] 44:9 46:10 120:21 232:24 244:1,2 18:16 **contingency** [1] 249:13 continually [2] 105:4 252:15 continue [5] 36:22 92:25 93:11 281:6 286:2 **continued** [3] 231:3 236:6 292:7 continues [1] 253:17 continuous [12] 27:24 39:3,4 47:14 53:5,19 54:21 64:17 71:13 195:21 212:10 287:12 contract [35] 11:1 23:18

31:23 34:1,9,11 72:20 91:8 116:14 123:19 167:24 169:3 197:6 198:24 199:20,21 200:23 201:8.10.13.18.21.23 202:6,8,22 203:2,8 204:23 205:12,18 206:15 207:6 208:6 228:21 contracted [3] 32:18 213:3 266:19 contracting [1] 22:1 contractor [10] 31:13 34:5.6 60:17 118:15 200:15 206:3 208:14 272:3 281:23 **contractors** [15] 6:24 32:11 33:21 35:13 60:15 123:19.21 197:15.17 198:4,10 265:4 272:9 276:25 279:6 contracts [4] 34:2,8,10 **contractual** [2] 94:17 contractually [2] 208:2 **contradict** [1] 76:14 **contribute** [1] 122:12 **contributed** [1] 136:17 control [21] 26:5 50:15 59:13 66:10 67:11 71:1 71:6 154:25 163:24 164:1 164:4,15,25 166:2 184:23 241:20 258:6 259:6,12 259:17 268:8 controlled [4] 63:3,4,11 controlling [1] 68:2 **controls** [1] 26:17 **convince** [1] 34:25 coordinate [1] 83:3 coordination [4] 256:3 257:15 270:25 271:2 coordinator [8] 72:12 235:17 265:14,15,16,17 265:17,20 copies [6] 63:4,10 64:6,8 64:11 148:19 **copy** [4] 64:10 77:10,11 core [2] 206:15 207:13 **Cormorant** [3] 18:6,10 corner [2] 17:20 81:11 corporate [7] 72:18 165:1 200:19 213:3 240:22 256:8 269:3 Corporation [1] 26:8 correct [48] 12:20,24 13:18 21:22 25:13 33:14 38:4 39:13 46:24 52:21 57:1 58:10 59:1 61:20 73:24 74:6 77:3 86:6 90:15 98:23 101:21 103:14 104:17 168:15 201:23 205:17 209:16 coworkers [2] 138:21

213:25 215:13 216:8,16 216:23 218:2 222:13 223:20 224:3,7 227:19 230:3,8,18 232:6 248:23 249:25 268:4 277:25 278:24 294:3 corrected [2] 199:4 211:24 **correction** [1] 142:3 **corrective** [3] 243:8 246:6,7 correctly [3] 192:12,12 280:4**cost** [9] 69:3,5,7,12,13 173:20 221:13,15 241:8 costs [3] 68:25 217:1 226:17 Cougar [92] 11:2 21:22 60:16 72:22 90:6,13 91:8 94:17 98:4.7.9 99:11 101:6 102:1,6 163:3 165:16 169:19 174:8,14 176:2,3 177:5,16 183:17 183:18 197:10,23 199:21 200:25 201:8,20,21,24 202:7 203:8,10 206:11 207:21,25 212:21 217:4 218:24 219:9 220:2,8,16 221:4,13,19 222:15 225:1 225:8,10,22 226:22 227:11 228:15,19,23 229:6 230:19 231:6 233:3 233:8,14,20 234:2 235:6 235:13 236:5 237:4,10 238:7 239:2,3,9 240:3,8 240:19 247:23 261:1 271:10.22 279:15 280:11 280:13,23 281:3,10,13 288:2 Cougar's [6] 11:4 197:12 204:2 210:16 228:12 235:2 **counsel** [5] 2:6,25 3:3 45:20 73:8 counselling [1] 279:7 counsellor [2] 277:10 279:9 counsellors [1] 285:13 couple [15] 17:12 36:15 112:21 122:16 155:19 164:10 172:10 182:25 195:23 214:21 224:22,23 224:24 228:11 289:11 course [11] 3:15,18 4:1 4:12 8:17 128:1 145:20 240:3 247:25 273:9 280:11 **courses** [1] 183:8 courtesy [1] 4:11 **Cove** [1] 14:2 cover [2] 229:11 287:4 coverage [1] 278:11 **coveralls** [2] 117:12,12 covered [6] 11:15 17:14 57:17 73:21 172:4 250:20 covers [2] 41:21 169:5

Multi-PageTM

conference - delivering **Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry**

291:17 145:1 crack [1] 140:6 **deal** [6] 55:1 99:23 154:3 157:12 171:12 251:13 craft [3] 209:3 210:23 dealing [2] 67:15 97:11 211:10 crash [3] 254:18 282:15 deals [2] 176:6 257:6 283:16 dealt [1] 211:17 crashed [2] 280:3 281:16 debate [2] 281:5,9 created [2] 13:25 168:23 debrief [13] 246:20,21 credentials [3] 5:5 218:4 246:23 253:2,10 277:13 218:15 282:21,22 283:1,2,3 284:3 285:20 credible [1] 218:19 **debriefings** [1] 283:14 crew [29] 93:23 110:12 110:13 168:3,5 171:14 **December** [1] 40:22 178:3,6,17,18 179:1,8 decide [1] 82:24 183:17 186:22 187:1,7 decided [4] 156:3 202:6 188:6,8,14,22 189:10,13 261:24 285:17 192:5,7,9,15,19 244:25 decision [9] 28:18 97:24 255:13 176:4,16 221:17 268:17 crews [4] 91:6 100:8,17 272:22 280:1 281:13 288:19 decisions [3] 6:3 175:11 criteria [3] 50:18 198:19 176:13 211:22 deck [6] 20:21 22:18 cross [1] 3:1 178:4 189:10,12 245:7 crosscheck [2] 74:18 Decker [1] 103:16 96:9 Decker's [1] 5:14 crosshatched [1] 20:19 decks [1] 111:8 CSA [1] 123:16 **declaration** [1] 191:10 culture [6] 7:3 36:25 **declaring** [1] 191:10 37:8 120:22 148:1 245:15 decline [1] 35:6 currency [2] 219:21,22 dedicated [17] 28:2 92:9 current [10] 11:25 12:6 114:10 115:1 196:8 202:8 35:7 50:25 89:3 97:24 223:17 249:21,23 257:16 201:20 220:24 227:3 257:22 258:8 263:13 251:16 265:19 267:8,21 270:16 customer [6] 233:20 **deep** [1] 15:2 234:1,12,13 239:4,12 deeper [1] 13:8 customers [1] 239:13 **Defence's** [2] 94:20 cut [1] 82:23 290:6 cycle [4] 35:6 54:21 74:4 defer [2] 9:19 86:16 141:6 deficiencies [2] 199:3 211:23 -Ddeficiency [1] 226:4 **D** [1] 84:13 **define** [1] 72:3 **D'Arc** [1] 88:25 defined [7] 62:15 84:6,8 daily 61 41:20 42:3.9 95:16 198:23 204:22 110:5 175:17 291:9 255:23 Dallas [3] 222:3 269:4,7 defines [4] 169:7 206:15 damage [1] 83:9 208:10 212:9 dangerous [1] 171:20 **defining** [2] 80:23,23 **definition** [2] 216:1 database [5] 112:19 125:4 126:11 132:10,14 226:17 date [11] 11:22 41:17 **definitions** [2] 243:19 85:10,12,13,15,17 246:25 243:21 247:22 278:18 282:9 deflecting [1] 14:5 Dated [1] 294:9 degree [1] 95:10 day's [1] 291:20 degrees [4] 95:25 96:1 day-to [1] 141:17 96:17 97:2 day-to-day [4] 130:22 deiced [1] 87:14 142:11 174:11 176:6 delayed [1] 137:21 daylight [1] 220:4 delaying [1] 83:14 days [12] 50:4 89:4,6,7 delays [1] 177:15 146:1 149:8 194:13 **delivered** [1] 184:25 195:23,25 220:5 277:9

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 5

delivering [1] 16:17

Multi-PageTM

delivery - element Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Unshore nend	copter Safety Inquir
delivery [2] 185.1.2	desks (1) 258·17	67.20 87.24 153.12 154.1	74.3 19 22 77.16 78.21	Dupont (1) 128.11
		248.25	04.10 133.5 135.16	
delude [1] 16:16	destination [1] 292:9	240.23	127.16 17 25 165.12	auring [62] 6:2 20:17,17
demand [3] 233:18.20	detail 191 50:8 58:24	discussed [10] 13:16	137:16,17,25 165:12	20:18,22,23,25 40:9 41:2
233.23	80.25 102.7 108.14 109.7	23:6 39:10 78:10 88:22	171:11 172:14 178:13	41:18 50:12 51:2 71:14
	162.16 170.24 100.3	109:19 111:17 149:19	213:6 214:4,5,20 215:6	71:20 83:16 95:8.12.15
demonstrate [3] 160:4	102.10170.24190.3	154.10 184.11	217:12 220:8,22 225:10	95.20 110.20 111.12
220:9 225:24	detailed [6] 21:23 38:24	1	227:7 228:18 229:23	170.25 104.3 10 206.7
demonstrated m	43:23 50:19 199:10,15	discussing [2] 54:15	232.14 235.16 238.12	179.23 194.3,10 200.7
207.21	details 13.15 60.13	55:10	240.2 246.10 247.16 24	200:14 207:1,12,19 213:7
207.21	165.10 14 160.10	discussion [30] 11:7	240.2 240.10 247.10,24	215:19 220:3,4,22 230:20
dense [1] 195:17	105:10,14 109:10	54.25 76.2 80.18 86.22	284:5	233:4 235:13,15 242:10
depart [3] 140:3 188:16	detect [1] 17:5	107.1 10 110.10 24	door [6] 141:4 188:18,18	251:7 256:5,6 257:21
192.23	detectors [2] 16.10 40.17	107.1,19 110.19,24	188:19 192:15 264:11	258:18,23 265:6 266:21
domente deve 102.4		111.19,21,22 112:10	doors 111 183.22	266:24 269:4 270:1,6
departed [1] 193:4	determine [2] 21:4 71:3	115:20 120:15 123:25		271:19 276:11 277:3.9
departing [4] 184:9	determined [4] 98:6	128:23 144:23 147:21	doubled [1] 19:2	278.14 279.15 284.6
190:13 191:9 192:3	203:5 241:11 273:14	149:17,18 150:15 151:11	down [50] 17:8 21:3	285.20 200.0 201.7 14
department (10) 24.2.2	Determining (1) 91.1	153:21,25 159:3 177:6	45:22 58:2 59:5 13 79:25	205.20 200.0 201.7,14
		197:13 272:6 281:5	82.16 18 24 83.13 84.2	duties [7] 95:20 144:21
24:3,9,12 /2:18 94:19	devastated [1] 277:5	discussions (2) 140.22	86.22 02.9 114.24 116.6	145:21 187:3 252:25
108:1,3,6,11 110:17	develop 171 23.13 97.22	247.0	80.22 93.8 114.24 110.0	263:18 268:2
112:17,18 131:23 132:15	102.13 100.11 251.10	247:9	110:24 117:22 119:18	duty 121 147.22 184.7
135:16 178:22 290:6	252.1 254.9	dispatch [2] 101:6 176:3	124:18 129:6 130:14	292.1
denartmental 121 70.14	232.1 234.8	dispatched 131 280.12	134:24 153:12,16,18	282.1
110.5	developed [6] 36:7 98:3	280.21.23	160:3 161:6,17 178:11	
110.5	128:11 155:10 163:9,13	200.21,23	179:25,25 180:5,6 189:2	-E-
departments [4] 23:25	developing 121 76.13	dispatchers [1] 203:4	189:3 195:5 236:17 248:7	_
24:6 25:18 151:19	79.12	disruption II1 82:3	259:8 261:19 270:3.9	E [1] 84:14
departure (4) 1/1.5	/8:15		272.16 274.1 8 277.12	e-mail 121 63.21 24 222.2
100.14 102.17 102.2	development [10] 1:9	distance [4] 17:2 188:9	272.10 274.1,0 277.12	C-man [5] 05.21,24 222.2
190.14 192.17 193.2	7:9 23:10 39:16,17 51:3	222:21 273:20	277.20 283.4 284.2	E-PERBS [1] 289:15
departures [3] 10:25	76:11 167:4 230:23 239:4	distant [2] 187:4 273:15	download [1] 46:14	E45 [1] 158:25
184:18 190:11	deviate in 106.14	districting to 224.5	downman [4] 260.24	E452 (a) 157.00 159.10
depend (1) 180.21	deviate [1] 196:14		261:4 5 16	
	deviation [1] 101:7	distress [1] 18:24	201.4,5,10	Earle [1] 35:19
dependant [1] 190:24	device 71 101.1 220.25	distribute m 81.5	downmanned [1]	early 11 45.19
depending [18] 34:17	221.3 5 9 224.10 12		261:25	
35:8 46:6 60:9 63:20	221.3,3,7 224.10,12	aistributea [1] 259:16	dramatic 11 91:17	ECC [4] 259:6,15 260:1
71.2 6 77.19 84.19 22	devices [3] 16:11 220:16	distribution [1] 63:11	drown (0.4 (125.22	271:2
87.25 80.8 110.16 111.22	239:1	ditched (11, 280.3	UIAW [6] 00:4,0 135:22	ECC-CCR [1] 259:11
182.2 261.7 270.0 271.15	diagram [1] 238:23		135:25 172:24 179:18	acho (1) 122.24
183.3 201.7 270.9 271.13	diatata (1) 200120	ditching [3] 209:1	drawing [1] 71:5	echo[1] 122.24
depletion [1] 39:19	uictate [3] 48:22,25 78:6	210:20 263:19	dressed 111 178.21	economic [1] 199:19
deployable 11 208.16	died [1] 5:13	divided [2] 126.18 152.9		edge [3] 244.16 288.14
domth 111 01	difference (1) 173.5		drill [13] 8:7,8 138:25	280.0
		uividenus [1] 284:9	252:1,3,5 253:2,4,11	
describe [9] 17:12 38:10	differences [2] 237:7,15	document [39] 37:12	254:1,16 255:10 264:13	educated [1] 123:2
58:13 67:18 119:19	different [14] 35:20	43:1.13.21.23 45:21 46:4	drilling [42] 8.8 14.14	effect [4] 9:5.9 28:22
125.19 197.8 226.9	81.25 92.13 114.12	46.19 52.10 11 56.3	24.2 26.12 20.22 24 22.4	233.23
242.22	141.13 158.7 159.24	57.13 63.3 14 76.17	24:5 20:12 29:22,24 52:4	200.20 effe efference a 26 14 241 0
	224.0 10 12 235.15	70.11 1/3.5 6 13 15	32:4,5,10 34:4,5 39:18	effective [4] 26:14 241:9
described [2] 112:10	224.9,10,12 233.13	150.9 164.25 165.24	39:24 40:19 41:22 51:19	251:10 284:7
160:14	245:25 240:4 254:25	150:8 104:25 105:24	57:21 87:25 88:1,6,7,9	effectively [2] 53:1
describes [5] 44:11 45:3	difficult [8] 5:12,16,17	166:1,3 168:23 202:14	106:21 138:25 139:2,4	199:1
50:11.14.17	6:2 48:4 159:6 194:20	204:20 216:9,17,24	151:16 152:11,11,12,15	offoctivonoss (2) 52.21
describing (1) 120.22	220:2	230:13 248:3 249:21,23	152:17 202:5 208:21	252.2 270.20
	direct [10] 23.16 52.8	251:20 253:3,16 288:25	210:6 254:13.13 259:20	255:5 270:20
description [7] 44:1,10	195.2 199.15 222.12	documentation 131	262.1.2.3	effects [1] 44:23
45:1 124:8 125:16 199:10		55.24 66.2 100.20	drilla son 051 17 00	efficiency [2] 217.1
242:24	259:5 262:21 265:9,13	J	urins [8] 251:17,22	226.10
design (201 10:4 4 16:24	273:15	documented [4] 131:11	252:12 254:8 255:25	220.19
uesign [20] 10:4,4 10:24	directing [1] 52:4	144:3,6 251:15	263:18 265:3 284:6	efficient [2] 167:5 174:9
1/:1,13 20:11 23:19 40:7	direction 171 21.5 58.8	documenting [1] 287:18	drive [3] 139:6 210:24	effort [5] 142:11 187:22
40:13 44:12,13,18 50:12	0(112007.22.221.2	documentaria 2:20	287.12	291.24 292.1 7
50:25 51:2 55:15,20 59:8	96:18,20 97:25 221:2			2)1.2+2)2.1,7
142:25 163:19	224:15	3:13,20,21 4:5 40:4	driver [4] 54:13 69:13	efforts [7] 247:16 274:16
designate 121 125.2	directives [1] 239:5	46:14,18 48:19 49:12	148:8,14	275:1 276:22 279:12
262.23 266.12	directly (a 6.11 35.12	52:9 65:20 90:8 164:10	drives [1] 53:19	281:11 284:15
202.23 200.12	195.7 0 197.12 265.24	168:21	driving (1) 297.10	eight [2] 206.20 213.13
designated [6] 21:24	185.7,9 187.15 205.24	doesn't [17] 6.19 48.22		aight
124:12 125:1 126:10	disadvantages [2] 47:6	18.25 77.25 85.22 112.1	drop [1] 124:24	eignity [3] 193:22,24
204:2 220:17	48:2	120.10 125.0 120.1	drug [3] 228.19 22 229.2	195:6
designed [13] 11.20 14.4	discern 121 237.6 15	120:10 133:8 139:1	drydool = 14.1	either [5] 35:11 85:12
15.9 21 16.2 17.14 16	diaginity - 100 10	141:15 142:/ 154:21,23	uryuuck [1] 14:1	90:12 120:20 267:21
21,10 40.16 51.14 15 17	aiscipline [1] 122:10	165:14 170:16 176:12	due [11] 85:9,12,13,15	alacted 13, 142, 10, 145, 1
21:10 40:10 51:14,15,17	discovered [1] 228:21	245:13	85:17 195:14 209:21	
104:13	Discoveries 121 204.12	donation [1] 136:19	213:18 220:3 225:3	151:18 153:/ 154:14,16
designing [2] 6:25 17:18	20/11/	done (42) 27.7 40.7 62.24	291:20	electronic [2] 62:23 64:5
desire (1) 239.23	274.14		dunk m 160-24	element [37] 55.23 57.2
	aiscuss [8] 11:2,9 60:19	04:25 07:2,2 71:25 74:2	uulik [1] 100:24	0.25 57.2

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

elements - extensions Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

employment [1] 147:10 57:3 59:6,9,16,17,19,24 60:19,19 61:5,7,15,17 enable [1] 222:19 61:19 67:23,24 104:23 encompassing [1] 51:21 104:25 105:2 142:21 encourage [6] 122:11 162:14.18 163:7 197:8 126:1 135:21 141:8,17 198:12,13,14 212:21 153:25 242:24 244:10 249:2 250:9,12,21 251:8 encouraged [1] 286:4 encourages [1] 66:19 elements [13] 46:1,7 54:10,14,23 57:15 58:2 end [15] 16:11 21:14 34:9 58:3.24 59:1.14.21 76:5 82:7 110:7,11,16 112:2 elevated [1] 233:24 114:7 127:14 132:15 153:15 236:25 248:7 elevation [1] 17:21 277:14 eleven [2] 54:10,23 ended [1] 40:15 eliminate [3] 217:1 endorse [2] 217:6 222:1 226:18 287:17 endorsed [1] 220:14 eliminated [3] 52:25 endorsement [7] 84:20 68:5 156:6 84:21,22 85:20 222:2,4 embedded [1] 106:10 229:7 EMCETO-019 [1] ends [1] 141:4 230:22 Energy [3] 29:14 31:14 EMCETO-029 [1] 35:16 233:5 enforce [1] 147:24 emergencies [4] 171:13 257:7 264:9 267:2 engage [1] 66:15 engaged [7] 35:13 emergency [120] 11:8 11:10 17:4 21:6 44:24 160:15 175:16 177:6 50:5 51:20 55:9 94:7,14 277:16 287:24 290:20 116:19,22 117:5,6 119:12 engagement [2] 7:7,8 119:13,15,21,23 120:6 engine [2] 87:8 289:7 161:20,21 168:6 171:12 engineer [1] 72:11 171:17 186:22 189:15 228:12,15 248:23,25 engineering [2] 24:1 249:3,4,14,16,18,20 168:3 250:1,9,15,18 251:7,8 engineers [3] 203:13,14 251:10.13.14.17.19.21 288:24 252:10,15,25 253:7,10 engines [1] 87:9 253:15 254:15,23 255:4 enhance [2] 227:8 241:7 255:21 256:6,11,13,17 256:20,24 257:5,6,10,11 enhanced [1] 155:10 257:15,17,21,23 258:13 ensure [21] 8:2 41:5 258:15,18,24 259:6 260:4 44:13,19 49:11 62:9 260:15,16,21 262:8,18 64:17 69:22,24 100:7 262:20 263:3,5,14,17 151:20 163:17 169:1.8 264:5,7,23 265:10 266:4 170:25 198:14 218:24 266:18,24 267:4 269:9 228:5 229:6 251:10 256:1 269:12 270:25 271:1,9 **ensured** [1] 279:19 271:16 272:13,23 273:1 ensures [5] 52:25 53:17 273:2 274:11 275:14 146:12 167:6 192:8 276:3 282:21 284:4,9,10 284:11,23 286:7,25 ensuring [2] 72:7 174:4 289:13 290:1 entered [3] 23:12 27:4 emphasis [1] 114:4 126:6 **emphasize** [1] 127:8 entire [4] 36:14 83:2 119:10 277:21 employed [1] 35:11 entirely [3] 217:2 226:18 **employee** [4] 64:4 72:14 243:25 119:8 122:8 entity [1] 28:15 **employees** [28] 6:24 **environment** [32] 10:8 29:12 30:9 31:21 32:11 36:9 63:16,22 64:11 10:10 24:4,19,23,24 33:2 120:16 121:16 122:11 36:8,11,19,24 38:11 137:8 139:9 141:9 144:15 44:19 49:8 53:10 62:7 144:16 272:3 277:10,11 84:22 108:5,10 119:25 279:6.6 284:13.17.22 142:2 143:2 151:17 285:1,11 286:4 216:14 243:16 256:7 257:13 288:4,6 289:8,22 employer [1] 276:23 289:23 employers [5] 29:5.8 environmental [8] 30:13,14 32:23 39:20 44:7 53:18 82:2

115:19 199:18,24 243:5 environmentally [4] 37:2 42:23 44:7 198:21 EOC [29] 262:23 264:22 265:14.19 266:22 268:1 269:12,22 270:4,11,13 271:3,6,11,15 272:23 273:12 276:5,18 277:12 277:22 278:8,15,22 279:4 283:2 284:2,16 285:21 EOCT [1] 263:15 EP [1] 272:25 equal [2] 150:9,25 equipment [39] 17:1 20:12 22:23 55:22 83:9 83:25 87:7 89:23,25 92:8 94:5 113:25 123:13 124:5 124:5 127:1 143:17,20 163:10,17 168:7,11 178:25 186:23 202:20 206:4 208:17 216:9,17 216:24 222:15 243:6,18 251:11 257:18 273:16 286:14 289:17,24 **equipped** [6] 88:17 93:15,18 94:7 208:15 223.22 equivalent [3] 14:7 93:4 220:9 erecting [1] 14:1 **ergonomics** [1] 132:25 escalation [1] 50:16 escape [5] 44:25 94:4 102:21 191:14 289:21 escorted [1] 192:4 escorts [1] 188:22 ESG [15] 266:19 267:7 268:2 269:2,3,6,7,23 271:17 278:7,8,15,20 283:2 284:16 especially [1] 118:16 essential [1] 72:7 essentially [3] 19:2 27:1 209:20 establish [4] 35:25 140:6 148:10 234:3 established [8] 61:13 62:12 78:3 157:3 201:25 211:22 251:11 263:24 establishes [1] 60:21 establishing [1] 157:9 estimate [3] 195:6 221:14,15 estimated [1] 187:9 estimates [1] 11:25 et [1] 90:1 ETA [1] 187:9 Eurocopter [1] 18:4 evacuation [2] 103:12 103:18 evacuations [1] 210:5 evaluate [2] 56:17 253:3 evaluated [2] 198:11,19 evaluating [1] 68:2

evaluation [9] 47:13,14 54:16 56:13,15 71:1,6 167:21 199:5 evening [2] 110:22 274:19 event [13] 44:23 116:21 203:15 240:7 244:11 245:22 256:15 265:18 271:4 272:14,25 274:8 290:15 events [6] 5:10 9:4 50:5 249:15 254:25 278:10 eventually [2] 100:4 134:18 everybody [42] 33:16 102:25 104:3 118:4 119:24 122:24 128:15 137:16,25 142:11,13,14 142:16 143:22 144:3 146:4 147:1 148:15 149:12,13 150:21 151:12 159:25 160:3 163:22 179:20 181:24 183:6 188:25 189:2,9 190:18 192:11,13,21 193:11 271:8 275:3,4 276:7 283:5 287:2 everybody's [1] 154:10 evervday [2] 138:15,20 everywhere [1] 167:7 evidence [3] 222:8 225:2 225:8 evident [1] 5:15 evolved [1] 35:5 evolving [1] 149:14 exact [2] 102:24 255:11 exactly [7] 86:8 160:21 208:11 210:21 226:11 245:18 262:3 examination [4] 1:16 3:2,2 4:13 example [56] 19:7 21:4 23:2 32:4,12 33:1,4 34:4 40:17 42:7,14 51:24 52:9 52:13 55:25 56:10 59:6 59:16,24 60:15 62:17 63:5,22 66:8,24 70:18 76:15 77:7.20 82:9.10 83:20 88:5,16 89:24 93:1 102:16 113:21 156:21 168:9 197:21 209:16.19 211:2 228:25 246:21 252:21 256:12 259:11 260:24 264:2 265:20 266:13 268:24 269:19 291:4 exceed [1] 207:22 exceeding [1] 288:20 exception [1] 234:16 Execution [1] 54:13 **Executive** [3] 25:21 26:1 26:15 exercise [9] 26:4 252:9 252:15 253:12 255:3,18 263:22 264:14,18 exercises [4] 252:17

254:20,24 263:25

exercising [1] 254:13 **exhibit** [13] 3:8,9 4:13 4:14,16,17 43:15 171:25 201:15,18 205:1 229:19 232:14 exhibits [11] 1:25 2:1,3 2:9,16 3:8,11,12,13 4:9 229.18exist [1] 54:21 existing [2] 80:24 86:25 exits [1] 218:25 expands [1] 58:4 expect [6] 12:9 37:22 52:3 123:18 221:16 289:4 **expectancy** [1] 12:6 expectation [5] 61:11 61:15,17,19 207:12 expectations [25] 48:18 57:16 58:5,23 60:2,14 60:23 61:25 62:9,11,13 65:14,19 76:5 78:5 118:3 118:3,4,5,12 140:1 200:10,14,15 219:10 expected [1] 216:19 **expecting** [1] 12:11 expeditiously [1] 179:21 **experience** [9] 7:19 121:4 122:1 160:19 161:21 195:9 198:2 218:10 263:16 **experienced** [11] 27:8 38:21 74:11,23 121:9,20 195:11 236:20 291:5,19 291.22 **experiences** [1] 288:8 expert [1] 132:24 experts [1] 65:16 expire [2] 225:3,7 expires [1] 225:23 explain [2] 120:23 250:5 explained [1] 58:18 explanation [4] 55:17 99:18 164:18 193:1 explanations [1] 158:12 exploration [1] 39:16 exploratory [1] 202:5 **explosion** [1] 263:20 exponentially [1] 233:21 exposed [2] 103:2 139:25 exposure [4] 44:21 103:11 217:2 226:18 expressed [3] 2:6,11,11 **expression** [10] 25:22 68:15.17.20 69:19 200:11 206:25 237:14 245:13 277:20 **expressions** [2] 243:22 243:24 extend [2] 85:12,17 extended [6] 18:20 83:18 220:3 225:9 227:1 270:18 extension [2] 34:3,10 extensions [1] 201:12

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

extensive - fully Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Onshore Hend	copter Safety Inquir
extensive [2] 45:23,25	100:9 167:25	firefighters [3] 178:21	flown [2] 8:10,14	foundation [1] 52:15
extent [2] 3:23 196:6	families [7] 5:12,19 9:7	178:24 179:13	fly [22] 18:22 19:5 87:10	four [9] 29:8 81:7,9,25
external [3] 64:24 212:3	279:7 282:1,2 285:12	firefighting [5] 20:12	87:12,18 96:1 176:4,5,8	93:15 185:17,23 186:2
256:2	family [4] 9:5 276:9,15	22:23 171:17 178:25	176:8,10,13,18 177:2,2	292:20
extinguish [1] 93:2	277:5		1//:16,1/221:/2/6:14	fourth [1] 231:21
extinguishers [1] 93:5	far [15] 5:19 16:14 41:3	firewall [1] 16:19	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	frame [5] 134:2 231:9
extra [2] 34:23 173:13	53:14 64:15 72:4 180:5	firewalls [1] 16:21	100.3 10 173.21 174.17	273:4 283:13,19
extremely [3] 84:15	211:19 238:17 244:23	first [58] 10:2 34:20,22	194:13 220:7.11 238:12	framework [12] 42:25
218:17 245:2	farthest (2) 16:23 17:2	40:24 43:25 60:19 /1:1	foam [11] 16:16 20:12	49:7 /6:7,15 /8:3,8
Exxon [3] 46:21 47:1	fat in 200.2 210.22	104:14 106:23.24 110:25	92:9,14,17,21,23,23 93:1	frankly (2) 2:12 249:11
217:24	211:9	111:17,19 115:16 138:16	93:8,12	Frager $[144]$ 1.12 12 15
ExxonMobil [36] 26:7	fastened (2), 192.8,11	154:2 155:20 156:23	focal [1] 229:5	1.19 20 4.15 21 5.2 4 22
26:17,18,19 27:3,5,10	fastest (1) 208.1	160:22 166:24 189:18	focus [10] 130:2,6 137:9	7:18,20,22 9:20 24:9
27:10 28:0,19 30:10,12	fatal 11 236:20	190:15 202:25 204:20	234:6 235:2,12 236:2,25	37:5 54:16 104:11,18,21
164:21 165:1 201:19	fear (1) 121.2	208:12,19 209:6,20 210:4	256:5 291:24	104:22 105:17,22 107:6
202:1,3,7,8 218:1 240:20	fosturo (2) 101.18 222.0	210:17 214:25 223:18,21	IOCUSED [6] 6:1/1/:11	108:4,9 109:15 110:4,10
256:23 266:19,23 267:1	footures (4) 10:5 15:11	229:19 230:14 231:18	281:11	117:20 122:15 123:10
267:7,17,18,19,22,22	17.13 20.11	240:24 250:3 251:23	focusing [1] 286.5	124:22 125:14 128:4
	February (4) 213-18	272:17 273:5,7 280:12 280:18 20 21 23 281:1	f_{00} [9] 42.8 100.15 157.1	129:14,21 130:5 131:3
EXXONIVIODII S [11] 27:20 23 28:3 45:6 53:14	214:4 229:24 230:21	290:3,5	194:4,6,21,24 195:14,17	131:17,22 132:2,7 133:23
213:3 240:22 256:24	feedback [16] 47:14 53:5	fit [2] 48:19 202:20	fogged [2] 100:13 203:25	
266:18 269:3 289:2	57:24 64:16,18,20 66:13	fitness [1] 39:2	folks [15] 109:16.21	140:22 141:21 145:11
eye [3] 69:18 113:10,21	67:4 71:12 78:15,17	fitting [1] 160.16	110:12,14,18 113:7	147:12 149:1 151:5 152:1
.	133:9 159:18 199:3,8	five [28] 14.9 11 34.3	115:10 120:2 122:18,25	152:6 153:1,5 154:22
-F-		43:24 70:3 71:18.20 74:8	127:20 135:21 137:15	155:3,7 156:20 157:14
face (2) 5:19 127:10	Tell [3] 245:6,7,9	74:25 75:4,6,16 81:8,8,8	138:24 178:18	157:18 158:20 159:2,13
f_{0}	felt [2] 99:10 100:4	81:9 84:5 121:6,6 162:3	IOHOW [8] 56:11 60:18	163.23 164.2 8 22 165.4
facilities (1) 47.2 55.15	Iew [9] 105:6,24 117:22	185:23 213:9,12 215:1	253.18 283.10	165:8,25 166:14,16,20
14CHILLES [12] 47:2 55:15 55:20 88:3 24 114:16	264.18 285.21	219:25 220:0 291:4,18	follow-up (1) 71.10	167:16 168:14,18 169:25
149:5 170:4 203:23 204:6	Field (1) 88.25	five-year [1] 215:19	following [12] 11:17	170:6,11,18,22 172:3,9
261:6 287:14	fields (1) 14.8	92.12	39:14,21 49:17 64:16	1/3:1,/,19,25 1/4:24
facility [39] 7:1 11:19	fifteen (2) 248.14 16	92.12 flare (1) 82.22	72:10 93:25 106:7 150:9	177:10.24 178:16 179:11
12:9 13:24 15:7 30:4	fifth (1) 100.22	flaching (1) 199.4	171:3 282:22 287:10	180:3,12,17 181:11,15
56:2,4,10 59:7 64:11	figured (a) 15(-12)	flashlight (1) 126.4	foot [1] 245:10	182:15,23 183:14 184:4
85:2 84:8,11,15,14,10 88:8 9 104:8 15 122:11	fil og (m. 55-25		football [1] 14:7	184:15 185:8,15,25 186:5
133:21 160:12 171:8	files [1] 55:25	flat [1] 25:4	Force [2] 158:5,5	180:15 187:17 188:1
175:8 184:24 194:16	fill [2] 252:18,25	flavour [1] 155:19	foregoing [1] 294:3	193:5,14,23 196:5,11
203:9 209:23,25 260:24	filled [1] 102:24	Hexibility [1] 202:10	foremost [2] 237:10	254:22 255:9 257:8
261:4,25 272:9 280:9	filter [1] 240:4	files [2] 6:6 1/6:24	238:7	271:24
fact (261, 17:10, 27:10)	filtering [1] 185:4	111 gnt [48] 5:13 29:16	forgetting [1] 156:7	Fraser's [1] 54:5
56:23 66:25 73:21 75:24	IINAI [4] 2:14 96:9 186:25	93:25 95:11.22 98:8.9	forgotten [1] 128:20	free [1] 191:11
86:15 87:7,10 89:21	financial (4) 82.4 6	99:11 100:12 102:17	form [7] 98:14 101:12	freezing [1] 90:21
103:4 104:3 129:17 202:2	83:12.21	168:2 173:9,10,11 176:18	102:23 146:22 222:4	frequencies [1] 41:9
204:10 210:23 229:12	financially 11 86.14	176:19 177:13,17,18,19	formal (2) 69.9 71.7	frequency [2] 157:21
258:5,11,25 247:8 251:4	finding [8] 4.10 216.7	180:14 190:20 193:14,22	112.11 127.14 199.13 15	255:11
290:23	216:15,22 218:23 220:13	203:4,23 247:9,9 272:8	formalize (1) 97.23	frequent [1] 73:1
factor [2] 69:5,8	226:9 239:2	276:24 279:24 280:8,10	formalized (3) 42.22	frequently [2] 121:18
factors [1] 26:13	findings [26] 41:17 69:23	280:11,13 281:15 288:19	145:10,12	255:19 Enidourum 2 10 14
factual [1] 236:14	213:8,11,11,15 214:20	289:12,14	formation [1] 13:10	F Fluay [10] 2:10,14 41.24 152.19 153.10
fail [1] 84:1	215:1,18 216:2 217:3	Ingnus [18] 8:11 42:8,13	forms [2] 99:21 229:7	173:9 174:16 195:13,13
failed [1] 87:9	226:14.20 227:11.12	175:14 185:24 193:17.19	forth [13] 3:21 9:23 122:4	196:13
failure [3] 82:18 83:7.17	228:10 229:6 231:11,13	194:2,4 195:12 196:8,12	130:22 154:17 155:2,4	front [4] 43:14 186:19
fairly (1) 255:12	238:17,25	238:11 279:22 280:4	156:25 157:5 158:12	230:10 248:8
fall [4] 23:25 244:17.17	fine [2] 205:22 293:1	floatation [2] 93:18,20	173:14 259:14,19	fuel [16] 19:9,11 93:1
244:20	finished [2] 141:3 166:15	floats [1] 175:9	Iortunate [1] 213:5	171:6179:15180:21
familiar [7] 4:25 65:16	fire [21] 16:10,12 40:17	flooded [1] 15:3	torward [7] 231:6 236:7	184:19,21,24 185:2,5,12
100:17 119:10 122:2	92:20,23,24,25 93:2,4,5	floor [5] 17:22 244:18	257:1270:2277:18 282:6	full (5) 82.11 196.19 21
163:22 210:21	93:10,13 120:6 178:22	263:8 284:13,19	foster (2) 36.25 37.7	223:13 263:23
familiarity [2] 64:4	259:10.17 263:19	floors [1] 284:21	found (4) 12:18 155:22	fully [12] 7:10 28:22
200:20	fired [3] 92:11.11.12	flow [2] 251:22,23	221:23 245:1	53:21 93:21 187:2 240:20
12100 121 122 121 121	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1		1

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

health [37] 10:7 24:4,19 273:12 276:8 280:25 4:20,22 54:8 78:11 80:11 159:4,21 279:10 285:14 284:16,16 287:24 106:4 120:19 130:11 24:22,24 33:1 36:7,11 133:14,20 136:9,12,12 36:18,24 49:7 53:10 62:7 **function** [3] 91:7 128:2 -H-136:21 137:6 149:25 82:2,5 84:22 86:18 89:17 181:23 H1N1 [2] 148:15,16 108:5,10 116:22 119:25 153:25 156:21 163:1 functions [1] 181:18 166:5,14 187:25 190:8 120:7 143:2,7 144:9,11 half [8] 6:16 95:9 96:7 **funnelled** [1] 158:3 248:11 285:4 144:14 145:13 147:24 106:25 134:1 180:18 **future** [4] 202:11 216:12 148:10 150:7 151:16 goods [2] 171:20 197:15 184:13 193:9 219:17 221:18 216:13 243:5,16 249:12 govern [1] 120:12 hall [6] 274:17,24 275:23 hear [5] 116:19 134:13 281:18,21,22 government [3] 278:13 134:15 177:4 230:12 -G-278:17 279:16 halls [3] 70:17 121:23 heard [10] 35:19 49:17 282:7 galley [4] 114:9,23 117:9 governs [2] 143:8 180:1 69:11 81:8 123:9 140:12 117:12 hallway [1] 114:24 gradually [1] 134:16 159:5 288:9 289:11 294:4 gallons [1] 16:17 hand [8] 7:17 9:23 13:5 graph [1] 33:5 hearing [11] 1:6 2:18 81:10 104:17 192:4 256:9 gas [13] 8:5 16:10.12.25 grassroots [1] 130:23 137:12 155:11,18,22 286:6 40:16 68:20 82:10,14,18 156:1,6,8,11 294:4 gravity-based [2] 13:24 handbook [4] 36:11 82:20 118:23 246:3 hears [1] 259:8 15:13 259:17 119:25 120:14 143:3 great [4] 14:2 148:18 heavy [2] 245:2 288:21 gather [3] 4:25 50:8 handed [1] 131:15 190:3 290:16 HEC [1] 26:9 94:25 handle [3] 179:15 182:5 greater [2] 9:20 212:11 HEC's [1] 26:22 GBS [5] 14:2,6 15:2,4,4 200:5 greatest [1] 288:13 height [2] 223:1,6 gear [4] 130:10 178:21 handlers [1] 179:9 green [6] 21:16 131:2 179:13 227:23 heightened [2] 233:15 handling [1] 171:16 227:4,5,5 253:16 234:25 general [16] 106:2 handover [4] 110:6.9 grey [2] 81:12,17 107:18 109:6 120:8 **held** [6] 185:12 274:24 112:5 187:22 126:24 127:3 137:25 grief [4] 277:9 279:7,8 277:8 281:18 282:22,25 handovers [2] 114:6 149:18,24 150:15 151:10 285:13 heli [3] 117:1 182:11,21 133:8 153:21 154:4 165:15,19 ground [2] 100:24 101:3 heli-admin [13] 116:17 handrail [1] 134:24 169:18 group [16] 73:12,14 181:16,17 182:12,19,24 hands [2] 90:3 178:4 generally [9] 82:23 107:24 115:23 136:16 188:23 189:13,19 190:13 102:25 116:17 133:19 hands-off [1] 178:7 149:21,22 152:14 239:9 191:8,20,21 153:24 243:13 259:1 256:24 264:1 266:18,24 hangar [1] 203:9 heli-admin's [1] 189:3 266:10 267:17 267:7 271:17 272:24 hanger [1] 183:21 helicopter [216] 6:4 8:11 generate [2] 108:25 groups [6] 149:19,20,24 Hansen [2] 182:10,11 10:20,22,23,24 11:3 132:16 152:14,16 234:2 17:11 18:7 20:20 21:2,7 happening [5] 91:17 generated [4] 28:13 90:7 growing [1] 150:2 21:10,19,20 22:6 41:15 113:16 259:9 264:7,22 134:25 154:7 41:18 42:2.7.12 44:9 growth [1] 35:5 happy [1] 154:10 generation [3] 240:17 49:11,13,14 50:2,22,23 guard [10] 18:7,21,22 harassment [1] 118:10 289:7,16 52:9,14,17 60:3,8,18 19:3,4 261:11 275:17 hard [10] 63:10 64:10 70:4,8,8 71:17,21 72:1 gentleman [1] 221:24 276:18,21 280:17 119:5,7,8,12 142:9 76:15 77:7,9,9 78:21 gentleman's [1] 217:15 guess [17] 80:12 133:25 203:24 285:22 288:5 79:2,4 87:4,13 88:18 gentlemen [3] 1:3 4:18 145:18 147:17 149:15 89:23 90:1,22,24 91:1,4 hardware [1] 2:21 140:20 158:16 159:15 162:12,15 91:5 93:22 94:3,6,16 harness [1] 93:16 167:19 177:17 186:19 **geoscience** [1] 24:2 95:6,9,12,15,23 96:1,12 195:25 222:19 223:1 harsh [1] 289:7 97:4 98:5,11 100:7 **given** [8] 91:1 161:24 238:11 245:15 hat [6] 104:10 119:5,7,8 102:21,25 103:12,24,25 192:2 200:12,16 207:18 guidance [7] 97:24 168:5 119:13 136:4 106:1,5 123:22 133:17 273:13 285:11 168:6 169:1.20 179:1 134:2.4.5.23 139:15 hats [1] 138:12 giving [1] 181:21 249:18 140:10 157:24,25 162:21 haul [1] 171:24 glad [1] 162:1 164:5,9,12,13 165:9 guide [18] 10:22 49:15 hazard [31] 50:11,20 glasses [7] 113:8 123:17 166:23 167:22 168:20,25 52:12 100:22 164:13,20 70:25 71:5,14 72:7 75:7 128:18,20,25 129:7 130:8 169:1,6,14,23 170:23 166:25 167:1 169:12 80:22 87:2 111:1 113:1 171:1,14,24 172:12,17 global [1] 199:14 174:6 203:6.7 211:24 114:14 118:7 124:2,6,15 173:21 174:4,5,9,12 212:9,22 219:20 228:4 globally [2] 53:13 287:11 124:15 125:17 126:10 175:2 177:1,25 178:1,4 240:21 gloves [1] 130:10 127:12.12 131:4 134:6 178:10,20 179:2,5,19,20 guideline [3] 60:9 135:9 136:7 142:2 155:16 goal [6] 141:23 234:11 179:24 180:5,6,25 181:2 164:24 165:1 156:7 244:14,16 245:3 237:10,12 238:7 292:5 184:8,18 185:5 186:8,9 guidelines [24] 17:16 hazardous [2] 44:21 186:11,20,21,24,25 187:3 goes [25] 9:6 41:3 72:5 38:24 46:5 48:18 57:16 191:11 187:5,6,9,10 188:5,10 103:1 114:24 115:8,15 59:3 60:2,8,14,16 62:5,9 188:11,13,19,20 190:7 115:19 120:4 132:10 hazards [11] 44:13,22 62:11.13.18 65:19 76:6 190:16,18 191:13 192:10 135:11 139:2 165:11,21 44:23 50:16 52:24 53:12 78:5 144:2 155:15 156:3 192:14,16,22 193:12 183:17 186:18 187:22 68:2,5 72:3 142:1 287:17 156:22 157:3 174:7 194:8,13 195:12,14 211:19 224:14 246:20 head [2] 18:25 263:2 guides [2] 176:9 178:6 197:10,21 198:3 199:20 255:22 269:25 276:4 headed [1] 179:21 202:18 203:1,5 204:21 Gulf [1] 8:12 281:9,18 headset [1] 134:8 207:24 208:25 209:19 gone [2] 110:20 118:20 guy [2] 121:16 130:12 210:20 211:12 218:11 headsets [2] 134:7,19 guys [6] 22:19 111:12 good [29] 1:3,5 2:14 4:18

function - Hibernia Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

223:22,25 227:13,15 228:3 233:19 235:3 244:8 244:23,24 254:11,18 255:2,4,14 258:25 260:16 263:19 271:22 272:2 273:18 279:21,22 280:3 280:12,14,24 282:14,15 283:1 287:7 288:15 289:8 289:10,16,20,25 290:3 helicopter's [2] 22:5 188:3 helicopters [49] 8:15,16 18:4 51:14,18 52:1,4,5 73:2,16 87:8,8 89:19 90:4 93:17 134:7 147:20 162:20.24 170:3 175:4 184:22 194:9 196:19 197:24 201:20 227:17 230:19 231:7 233:3,8 234:21 235:9 236:6 240:17 260:13,23 261:2 261:10 271:10 280:15,18 280:21 281:2,3,6,14 288:2 289:14 helideck [68] 10:4,5 14:20 17:13,24 20:11,13 21:5,16,23 22:3,7,10,15 22:22 23:1 45:1 87:14 88:17 91:5 92:10,14 93:22,24 96:6,21 100:8 100:12 134:25 164:14 165:20.22 171:3.14 174:22,23 175:1 178:3,6 178:17,18,19 179:8 183:17 186:22 187:1,21 188:6,8,8,9,14,22 189:24 192:4,5,7,9,15,19,22 203:19 227:3 244:24.25 245:5 255:5,13 helidecks [2] 70:9 87:21 helifuel [2] 164:15 166:3 heliport [11] 139:19 140:23 141:1,5,5 147:14 147:14 160:2 165:12,13 191:17 heliports [1] 17:18 Helly [2] 182:10,11 help [6] 18:12 119:9 279:9 285:15,16 292:10 helps [2] 124:9 127:13 hereby [1] 294:2 hey [2] 128:24 132:16 Hibernia [127] 1:8 2:24 5:23,24 6:14 7:3,9,23,25 8:19,24 9:1 10:2,18 12:1 13:6,7,10,23 15:9 17:13 18:19,22 23:7,9,13,19 25:21 26:1,8,15 28:1 34:14,15,16 35:15 37:10 37:16 40:8,22,24 42:18 42:18 49:6,14 50:3,13 50:14,24 51:18 71:25 72:9.21 76:16.18 81:7 87:18 88:16 89:3 94:15 94:23 98:2,4,7,15 99:12 100:20 101:16 103:5 105:9 106:9,15,20 117:25 128:12 143:22 144:8 146:9 150:5 155:9 158:3

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 9

162:15 164:11,23 165:10

Multi-PageTM

Hibernia's - information Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Oliphore Hene	opter surety inquiry
168:20,23 171:1 172:18	HOL [1] 186:24	hyflodraulics [1] 29:15	101:12	10:4,17 11:11 18:4 39:14
175:21 181:12,18 186:20	hold [3] 125:12 186:1	hygiene [1] 120:7	impressed [2] 218:14	41:8 49:13 54:16 71:17
189:17 190:11 196:9,14	274:17		218:17	94:3 143:17 155:11
202:9 213:1 227:10	Holding (1) 26.9	T	improper (2) 122:12 17	157:21 167:25 171:19
230:22 246:13 249:4,15		-1-	improper [2] 152.15,17	179:8 197:18 218:11
249:16,20 252:8 262:21	holds [1] 252:12	ice [3] 14:2.4 20:21	improperly [1] 127:10	232:1 279:17
267:9 269:10 270:3	holistic [1] 227:16	iceherg 11 15:13	improve [12] 7:13 36:23	incoming [6] 95:10 96:3
271:15,21 272:25 273:14	home [10] 6:16 141:11		47:18 216:8,16,23,25	99:17 186:24,25 276:11
273:21 276:5,18,25	141:12,13,15 191:4	Icebergs [1] 14:5	226:19 241:7 243:3	incorporate 131 220.16
279:17 282:21,24 287:9	193:12,12 285:12,17	icing [1] 87:16	286:13 292:4	253.9.15
287:25 291:5,19 292:8	homing [8] 220:16.25	ID [7] 63:25,25 124:6	improved [2] 74:17	incorporated (a 22.0
Hibernia's [22] 10:11	221:3.5.9 224:9.12	126:10 131:4 136:7	253:14	23.11 28.2 230.20 23.3
10:23 11:7,10,17 36:17	238:25	155:17	improvement [36] 27:24	23.11 28.2 230.20 235.3
38:12,15 42:22 50:17	hood [1] 160:4	idea [6] 128:16,23 130:21	47:15 53:6,20 54:19,21	230.0
67:19 72:1 77:8 168:24	hookod (1) 114.0	156:13 189:9 234:16	56:16,20 57:5,25 64:17	incorporates [1] 15:10
169:2 248:25 255:21		identification [7] 70:25	66:14 67:4 71:13 72:4	incorporation [1] 28:14
266:22 267:4 284:4,10	hop [1] 270:8	71:5.14 102:15 104:14	77:15 81:4,5 85:8,14,18	increase [2] 83:10
287:6	hope [1] 207:12	124:2 142:3	97:20 98:13 99:4,5,7,15	202:10
high [5] 53:15 70:25	hoping [1] 35:24	identified [25] 29.9	99:21 101:23 253:19	increased [2] 233:21
107:18 167:7 289:19	horsenlay 11 118-10	44.15 50.20 61.24 63.10	282:24 283:6,9 285:17	291:13
higher [4] 78:1 79:24	hose (4) 124-11 12 14	65:19 72:8 85:8 97:21	286:17 287:12	increasing [2] 35:1
84:20 216:13	1050 [4] 124.11,13,14	98:1.14 99:3 100:6	improvements [4]	82:15
highest [5] 15:10 81:10	127.0	101:11 104:2.7 133:10	66:16 163:14 240:18	incredible (1) 236-1
81:12 167:12 259:2	hoses [2] 93:5 127:10	133:17 163:8.12.16 243:9	242:15	
highlight (6) 11.17 32.23	hotel [5] 19:18,25,25	246:7 254:10 259:23	improving [1] 105:5	Indeed [1] 189:22
36.15 114.1 199.24	181:19,19	identifies (2) 52.24	in-house (1) 21.24	independent [1] 70:14
226.21	HOTF [5] 217:15 218:6	199.25	inocourato (1) 200.12	indicate [1] 4:11
highlighted (2) 42.11	218:8 247:20 253:21	identify [15] 54.18 56.10		indicated [8] 2:7 4:8
213.8	hour [18] 106:24.25	60.1 72.2 110.0 120.13	Inc [3] 201:20 294:12,14	9:18 82:13 102:22 193:10
bishing 160,105,15	134:1 180:18 190:12.22	120.15 20 22 24 100.12	incapacitated [1] 87:12	195:2 222:10
111g111y [5] 16:9 195:15	190:22 191:6 193:2,9	199.16 221.11 243.8	incentive [1] 137:1	indicates III 188.2
287:25 288:18 289:19	206:7,9,10 207:2,9,22	287:17	incident [76] 5:19 11:6.7	indication (2) 125.12
hindrance [1] 80:8	208:3,5	identifying (5) 53.11	18:10 42:10 51:20 55:8	226.23
hires [2] 23:17 197:14	hours [16] 50:4 110:15	68.1 80.22 81.3 146.17	74:9 92:15 112:19 113:2	
hiring [1] 287:25	110:15 206:8,16,20,21	ID a reg. 111 1 124 6 125 0	113:6,19 115:4 125:21	Indications [1] 219:5
history 121 10.3 200.19	207:1,13 220:4,7 223:14	IDS [3] 111:1 134:6 135:9	135:4 145:5 146:1,6	indicator [3] 132:19
history [2] 10.5 200.19	255:24 270:2,6 278:2	ignition [1] 93:12	158:1,25 200:3 208:15	135:5,11
IIII [3] 207:24 244:18,20	house [2] 19:18.18	ignore [2] 69:3,7	230:1,6 236:1 242:22,24	individual [15] 30:15
hits [2] 76:8 80:6	housekeeping (2) 125.5	immediate 11 133:9	243:17,17,19 244:6,12	31:11 37:3,19 41:19
HLO [13] 22:5 179:1,12	125.7 126.25	immediately (10) 17:6	244:14,21 245:11,23,24	211:11 213:5 217:20
186:21 187:1,3,4,7,12		34.20 82.24 84.3 3 118.7	246:2,2,3,17,19,23 247:1	221:12 233:24 234:17
187:23 188:5 190:6	Houston [2] 269:2,6	126.2 271.24 272.12	247:3,7,11,13,18,23,24	235:21 244:20 284:19,21
192:20	hover [7] 222:9,24 223:3	280.24	253:24 254:10 255:2	individuals [5] 6:11
HMDC [97] 3:9,14 6:3	223:7,10,13,23	impact (12) 6:10 12	256:5,15 259:7 261:13	63:13 77:14 234:5 270:2
23:14,22 25:8,11,25	Howard [1] 40:25	12.22 60.3 8 82.3 4 20	265:7 266:25 269:5,8,18	indorsed [1] 240:21
26:15,20 27:2,6,8,14	HUEBA [5] 94:9 168:12	83.5 87.3 194.16 239.8	269:20 2/1:11,16 2/3:13	induction [3] 181.25
28:2,12,12,14 29:11 30:8	168:13 182:18 289:25	250.19	2/4:25 2/8:12 2/9:5,18	182.1 189.10
30:13,17,24 31:1,21	HUET [1] 94·4	imported (2) 5,10 6,2	280:15 282:25 285:1	industrias (2.22
35:12,13 37:13 39:22	Hughes 121 20:12 31:10	200.17		200.25 201.3
41:5 45:5 53:6 62:23	humon (2) 25.12 51.10	200.17	Incldent-free [1] 141:24	200.25 201.5
65:9,11 /2:11 /6:8,10	Human [1] 265:15	impacts [1] 53:22	incidents [20] 68:1 84:7	IIIUUSLI'Y [14] 5:16 /:14
/8:3,12 /9:1 84:18 85:11	HUMS [2] 89:17 289:10	impeded [1] 286:12	84:10 93:23 107:11,13	8:5 38:25 45:14 08:17
158.24 164.19 20 165.3	hundred [1] 185:17	implement [5] 26:16	107:14,16 108:14,16	2/1.13 2/3.23 288.1 20
165.5 19 24 166.1 3	hundreds [3] 46:18,19	36:17 56:20 102:13 151:3	115:17 146:4 206:6 243:1	241.15 245.25 200.1,20
171.2 175.17 177.7	46:19	implementation [1]	243:6,13 244:8 246:15	industry?gray 200.11
197.14 201.24 212.20	hurt [12] 117.24 138.8	43:7	254:5 200:21	200:24
217:7 225:24 227:2	138:14.17.21.21 139:3	implemented [11] 101:4	inclined [2] 117:10	290:24
228:14,17 230:23 231:6	141:25 142:18 288:9,11	101:9,15,19 102:18 103:4	120:24	Inform [2] 271:5,25
233:6 234:17,22 236:7	292:6	227:9 228:23 243:9 246:7	include [12] 30:17 44:4	information [48] 21:22
241:13 247:5,16 249:23	Husky [12] 88:6 89:6	286:16	50:21 71:8 87:4 115:23	29:14 41:19 42:2 46:12
253:8 256:10,11 262:22	241:6 247:8.10.11.12.21	implementing [4] 7:1	198:20 200:2 208:20	47:16 55:23 63:6,12 64:2
266:19,22 267:2,19,23	248:1 272:7 276:19	37:3 105:4 148:17	223:16 226:14 249:1	100:20 114:14 115:7,8
272:3,9 276:9 277:11	279:15	importance 121 215.23	included [8] 72:10,22	115:18,19 125:3 135:4,9
279:5 281:23,25 284:8	Husky's [3] 247:23	239:8	80:22 98:2 100:20 120:14	100:24 1/0:19 1/0:2
285:1 288:13 289:2	265:9 275:14	important 181 6.22	202:23 210:16	197.1 212.1 191.24
HMDC's [11] 10:6 45:3	hydrocarbon 121 34.24	40.12 68.4 117.0 137.18	includes [11] 6:23 15:12	239.4 12 24 243.2 255.20 254.4
53:22 197:10 198:10,16	92:22	282:8 285:14 290.14	16:9 45:1 51:1 53:2	274:13.21.25 275.6 13
200:10 219:15 242:22	Hyflodraulie (2) 276-22	imposed (1) 41.7	150:9 209:6 249:13	275:25 276:22 277:1
276:20 284:12	277.3 11	imposed[1] 41./	257:17 289:24	278:6,12 279:20 282:4
hoc [2] 41.11 196.15	211.3,11	Impossible [2] 84:15	including [22] 3:11 10:3	,

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

informed - learned fshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Offshore Helio	copter Safety Inquir
285:23	48:13 49:1 51:9 53:8	issues [51] 41:14 66:12	journey [2] 292:9,11	laid [3] 123:23 124:12
informed [9] 123:2	56:15 60:25 61:12 66:3	96:2 106:5 108:22 109:5	JRCC [5] 265:5,10	173:8
176:7 187:8 269:18	257:13 287:13	113:14 115:2.16 116:2	276:19 279:14 280:16	LAN [1] 63:25
284:14	intend (1) 11:14	125:5 126:9 127:15,17	Judy [1] 294:13	land [12] 18:23 21:10,20
initial [5] 167:24 212:1	intended [2] 29:3 32:24	127:18,25 133:15 134:5	Jump [2] 5:2 229:15	117:8 161:15 186:25
239:7 272:5 286:14	intensive [1] 291:11	134:10,12 146:19,20	June [2] 194:5,20	188:11 244:18
initiate [6] 113:3,9,11	intent [4] 98:16 99:5	153:13.17 154:4 157:6	Jurisdiction [2] 149:6	land-based [2] 93:4
114:1 124:9 271:3	101:13 129:2	157:20,23 158:2,11,12	200.25	204:14
initiated [3] 159:21	interaction [2] 130:19	158:19 159:24 160:2,5,7	-K-	landed [3] 18:17 244:24
243:24 275:2 initiatives (1) 155:11	145:24	213:19 223:18 260:14	keen (9) 60-18 1/2-16	243.9 landing 1241 22:6 77:0
iniect (2) 82.22 123.7	Interest [7] 3:14 66:23	282:23	146:23 176:7 202:14	87:13,17 88:10 91:5
injured (5) 18.12 19.1	200:12 233:15	it'll [4] 106:4 109:16	240:8 282:9 284:14	93:22 95:9,13,15 96:3
113:20 210:13 244:21	interested [2] 100:4	114:12,14	keeps [3] 154:6 187:7	100:8 171:14 178:1,1
injuries [4] 118:8 135:14	240:25	Italy [1] 14:10	191:23	203:21 204:5.9.11.15
288:4,7	interesting [1] 109:13	Item [9] 48:9 107:4	Kept [9] 143:11 161:13	205:13
injury [5] 155:17 245:10	interests [1] 86:8	216:23 221:17 225:10	274:13,14,15 278:17	landings [2] 219:23,25
246:2 290:21 291:21	interface [3] 251:6	items [15] 11:14 105:16	key [26] 10:14 26:20	lands [3] 162:21 179:2
Input [2] 66:6 111:11	263:22 275:18	108:16,18,20 109:8 154:9	36:15 53:20 54:17 63:9	180:7
9:8.9 17:10 260:13 290:9	internal (2) 65.1 67.9	158:7 231:4,14 232:2,3	87:5 89:20 104:24 106:7	large [14] 15:10 18:3
292:10	67:11	252:9 250:10 258:14	106:22 125:2 155:5	47:8 57:13 63:20 114:8
insert [1] 188:7	internationally [1] 27:9	227:13	148:17 156:9,13 157:9	122:2 162:16 196:18
inside [1] 16:5	interpret [1] 237:22		168:24 181:5 251:8 252:7	285:7
insights [1] 113:24	interrupt [1] 123:6	-J-	285:18	larger [2] 16:15 51:15
inspect [4] 22:22 23:2	interruptions [1]	iacket (1) 141·1	kius[1] 194:12	largest [3] 13:12 15:8
126:24 186:22	193:21	James [1] 230:16		1951 1261 5:0 7:16 17:15
inspecting [1] 22:17	intervention [1] 125:25	January [4] 1:1 26:14	kind [37] 28.7 9 32.14 17	18:10 34:3 40:23 41:12
22:1.2.7 31:15 41:9	introduce [2] 5:4 38:13	294:4,10	60:4,6 63:18 109:3,13	49:17 71:24 89:16 93:19
89:22 90:12 126:23	introduced [1] 214:13	jargon [1] 245:14	113:12 115:7 117:13	102:13 107:13 123:9
127:16,23 226:8 236:15	introduction [1] 43:25	Jean [1] 88:25	120:8,21 123:18 124:3	184:5 206:9 213:8 220:20
inspections [8] 21:25	investigate [1] 146:4	job [13] 5:25 78:11 121:2	145:8 147:18 157:6,7,8	220:22 231:21 236:19
22:9,20 41:4,11,11 65:22 65:23	Investigated [2] 243:7	130:11 136:12 137:17,21	175:15 178:7 180:18	287:4 289:11
inspector [1] 21:24	investigation [12] 11:8	270:19 286:6	183:22 186:18 187:21	lastly [1] 198:10
install [2] 100:24 223:12	55:8 145:6 146:2,6 200:7	jobs [2] 172:13,14	254:7 261:11	late [6] 2:10 34:21 141:2
installation [23] 5:23	242:22,25 244:6 246:5	John [23] 1:12,15,16,20	kinds [5] 42:2 133:18	latest (2) 289.7 16
7:23,24 8:23 18:19 22:21	247:24 248:1	5:21,24 6:2,5 7:22 36:12	160:14 186:13 209:7	laws [1] 53.18
24:15 44:2,11,11,15	279:19	265:24 271:4 272:6.10	kit [1] 21:5	lav [2] 45:22 117:8
73:17 77:12.20 89:14	invite [2] 120:20 292:21	272:11 274:13,14,21	kitted [1] 280:25	laver [1] 92:25
105:14 172:15 195:10	invited [1] 282:1	275:23 279:10	knew [8] 100:3 262:3	
249:13	involve [3] 255:4,5 265:4	John's [18] 6:15 50:2	272:72/5:18 277:4	layperson's [1] 222:20
Instance [6] 106:17	involved [13] 9:3,7 34:13	178:22 193:4 194:11.15	knocked [1] 79:25	lays [5] 42:24 105:8
135:5	91:3 146:13,15 158:10	203:25 267:20 285:2	knowledge [9] 9:21	123:14 144:5 145:13
instances [1] 150:22	210:21 217:16 243:14	290:4 294:5,9	27:23 105:21,23 111:4	lead [12] 3:10 5:1 8:21
instead [1] 235:14	involvement [1] 53:16	JOHS [51] 10:18 70:13	158:23 201:5 232:8 280:6	162:9 247:11 255:16
institute [5] 72:19	involves [2] 151:12	115:2,2,22 116:3,9	KNOWN [5] 12:14,16 66:20 193:3 195:20	256:17,21
113:22 161:4 183:16,25	264:15	127:19 145:3,16 146:5	knows [3] 148.15 190.18	leaders [1] 6:12
instructed [1] 189:16	involving [1] 263:19	146:10,12,21,24 147:2,5	193:11	leadership [15] 29:4,6
instrument [2] 118:24	isolated [1] 84:9	148:13.16 149:4.6 150:5	Korea [1] 14:10	32:25 54:12 60:20 61:1
instrumentation III	issuance [2] 76:11 98:8	150:15 151:17 154:3,5		115:21 126:16 258:5
82:12	ISSUE [31] 42:6 82:6 87:17	155:9,9 156:1,8,12 157:8	-L-	263:16
insurance [8] 225:3,6,9	122:19 123:3 125:23	159:19 246:16	labour [2] 121:11 291:11	leading [5] 132:19
225:18,23,25 226:23	126:8 127:5,6,7 128:8	joint [19] 5:9 11:16 13:3	Labrador [5] 38:19,22	1 5 5 5 1 1 2 8 6 11 1 2 8 7 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
1227.1 integrated (6) 22.15	151:6 162:1 176:23,24	13:20 23:6,12 26:5 39:11	144:13 291:1 294:6	leak 11 161.6
46:12 47:7 51:13 53:2	194:24 234:23,25 240:12	143:7 144:8 150:6 196:5	Labradorians [1] 35:11	learn [1] 288.7
53:22	255:14 261:23	236:24 239:22 256:3	lack [2] 133:16 134:12	learned 181 11.12 47.11
integrity [18] 10:15	issued [4] 40:21 98:9	264:14	laules [1] 1:3	243:3,10 246:13 247:17
38:14 44:15 45:6 47:19	191:12 248:4	jointly [1] 154:13	agging [1] 155:5	247:21 282:20

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

learnings - media Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Olishore Hend	opter Safety Inqui
learnings [6] 70:1 253:9	lined [1] 219:13	19:16 69:3,5 109:10	69:21 116:4,5 255:16	236:21 240:7 247:3,7
253:15,20,22 285:19	link [2] 108:13 260:7	112:17 159:23 215:15	managed [5] 53:1 68:6	249:6 253:21,23 254:9
least [5] 2:6,9 179:14	linking [1] 275:5	239:9 282:6 292:4	98:7 99:11 199:1	250:5 205:7,13 209:4
196:7 209:6	links [1] 276:17	IOOKS [2] 19:17 259:20	management [120] 1:8	281:2.20.22.287:2.290:16
leave [5] 116:24 141:1	list [13] 34:13 63:3 100:24	loose [2] 113:2 125:23	7:2,9 10:12,13,15,16	291:23
101:18 280:10,11	117:15 154:11 232:2,3	lose [2] 121:2 291:23	25.6 19 25 26.4 28.16	Marine [3] 161:3 183:16
lea [1] 217:19	238:14 252:1 269:24	loss [2] 155:12 290:16	36:24 37:13 38:14.15	183:24
left [2] 81:10 190:16	270:23 272:2 292:23	lost [1] 291:6	42:25 44:3,4 45:5,6 46:2	marked [1] 245:2
legal [1] 45:20	listed [1] 54:11	lots [4] 123:24 142:10	46:12,25 47:7,19 48:14	markets [1] 12:8
legislated [1] 144:10	listen [2] 134:8 275:10	148:12 183:20	49:2,6 51:9,13 52:22,24	marks [1] 36:3
legislation [2] 147:3	listening [4] 5:13 6:1	lounge [1] 190:14	55:6 25 56:11 57:3 18	massive [1] 14:1
		low [8] 35:1 68:11,15	57:18.21 59:5.9.14.15	material n 191:12
107.18	listing [1] 239:5	69:3,6 216:20,22 238:23	59:16,18,23 60:3,20,21	materials [2] 163:11.18
logitimate (1) 2.7	lists [2] 148:20 158:4	Iower [12] 52:11 213:13	60:25 61:12 62:14 63:6	mating in 15:5
loiguno (d. 115.11	litres [3] 185:13,17 186:1	213.22 224.20,22,23,23	63:12 64:2,19 66:3,10	matrix 171 81.3 8 14
length in 147.92.10	live [2] 17:3 36:17	290:22	00:25 07:10,19,25 08:7	97:23,25 98:1,3
119.17 212.11	lived [1] 207:7	lowest [1] 81:14	79:3 81:18 97:7,9 104:25	matter [7] 86:2 139:1
longthy (2) 2.2 42.21	lives [1] 290:18	lubricant (1) 159:22	105:7 106:8,21 141:22	141:15 161:20 195:25
loss (2) 80.5 207.22 225.1	living [5] 14:15 15:16	lunch [2] 166:12.21	142:9,24 145:18,19 146:5	240:2 273:9
less [3] 89:3 207:22 223:1	43:1 201:8 252:14	luncheon (1) 166.6	147:23 149:7,20 150:10	matters [1] 249:11
	Lloyd's [4] 22:3 39:7		152:21 155:9 108:22	mature [3] 53:12 146:10
10230018 [7] 11:12 47:11	65:21 108:21		243:1 246:24 250:10.12	287:10
243.2,10 247.17,21	load [1] 89:15		250:13,16,22 282:24	maximum [4] 34:19
lets (1) 101·2	loaded [2] 2:21 192:6	-141-	284:12 287:11,13,16	35:3 151:20 208:2
letter (2) 229.11 232.25	loading [2] 89:11 210:12	M10 [2] 14:12 16:21	290:19 292:3	may [45] 42:13 46:10
level (30) 30.11 48.25	local [6] 35:17,23,25 36:1	M20 [1] 14:13	manager [16] 5:23 7:23	47:20 00:10 01:25 71:7 82:6 7 14 24 25 83:8 18
52:11 53:16 61:14 68:11	63:25 168:12	M30 [1] 14:14	7:24 24:15 45:12 72:23	84:19 86:14 89:15 95:19
70:25 76:9 79:25 81:10	locally [1] 143:1	M40 [1] 14:15	105:14 172:15 195:10	100:11 111:4 113:10
84:19,20,23 102:20 103:1	locate [1] 211:10	M50 [1] 14:16	266:3,22	119:10 121:7,15 132:22
103:22 104:4 106:11,14	located [6] 17:1,19,25	machine [2] 180:9	managerial [2] 26:20	132:23 138:24 146:18
216:20 220:9 226:19	222:3 259:15 203:7	183:19	84:20	152:17 105:21 194:5
258:4.5 259:2 287:20	locating [1] 208:15	magnitude [1] 16:14	managers [4] 8:23 62:9	211:9.12 217:14 227:21
levels 151 25:7 58:7 61:3	10Cation [12] 45:2 95:16	main [5] 29:5 44:17	72:16 73:22	233:25 243:25 246:2,15
84:6 106:9	209.1 2 210.22 221.7 11	74:19 159:3 172:16	manages [2] 27:16	250:16 258:20 262:24
leverage [2] 27:22,25	270:10 273:13	maintain [10] 43:4 55:24	262:23	265:4
liability [8] 225:2,6,9,18	locations [3] 16:18	62:0,18 146:20 162:17	managing [6] 52:23	MCH [1] 238:19
225:23,25 226:22 227:1	163:14 184:8	maintained (2) 123.12	53:12 56:3 68:3 141:23	mean [25] 22:21 48:8
liaison [1] 174:7	locator [3] 94:8 191:13	163:9 251:12	mandated (1) 144.12	52:8 60:7 66:5 69:2
license [2] 40:3 183:5	289:13	maintaining [3] 78:14	manuaccu [1] 144.12 manifest [2] 182.7	123:6 132:1 134:12 145:8
licensed [2] 203:13	logistically [1] 241:16	105:4 287:13	191:20	159:12 207:16 226:16
288:24	logistics [7] 8:9 72:12	maintains [1] 223:5	manifested (1) 169.17	228:2 238:5 254:13
life [10] 12:6 84:9,11,13	175:3 229:3,4 235:17	maintenance [49] 8:9	manifesting [1] 182.2	262:11 264:13 268:23
84:14,16 117:2 138:1,20	205:10	10:21 22:8,15 24:3 29:8	manner [5] 27:15 42:24	277:13 280:25
272:22	212.6.9.15	29:10,11 30:4 31:2,5	68:4 198:15,22	meaning [1] 195:15
210:22 211:7	longer [7] 75.4 126.7	32:3 51:19 55:7 68:10	manual [25] 10:23,24	Ineans [7] 22:18 44:24 90:3 184:12 194:12
lifting (4) 132.13 17 22	180:21 208:5 212:13	118:15,16,16 125:24	16:12 49:14 52:10 76:16	277:21 294:7
133:1	234:2 277:22	126:6,8 131:7 151:15	77:8 78:21 79:2 98:3,5	measure [7] 36:21 43:11
light [5] 94:7 188:4.5	longest [1] 195:10	152:11,12 162:14,19	98:12 164:14 165:7,9,10	65:14,18,25 221:7 222:20
235:25 241:11	look [36] 3:23 36:22 63:8	163:8,12,15,18 171:7	171.25 174.5 186.11	measured [1] 87:1
lighting [2] 20:14 227:4	82:1,25 99:13 107:1,10	203.12 233.18 259.25	203:6 228:4	measurement [3] 53:5
lights [7] 22:8,22 87:13	107:14,15 108:19,23	264:20 265:22 271:5	manually [1] 92:11	57:24 64:20
90:1 116:20 227:4,6	109:1,14,22 112:18,22	274:3 288:23	manufacturer [2]	measures [3] 17:25
likelihood [1] 91:16	174:2 183:20 204:22	major [12] 22:14 50:20	233:18 239:6	44:16 135:7
likely [1] 84:13	214:24 219:4 227:25	69:5,8 70:3 71:16 74:8	manufacturer's [1]	mechanism [1] 47:14
limitation [2] 18:2 34:22	228:2,5 230:5 235:18	193:21 252:9 265:4 274:3	203:12	medevac [3] 208:23
limitations [1] 45:3	239:2 254:19 260:13	291:9 majority on 07 1 21 20	map [4] 143:23 144:5	209:16 210:8
limited [3] 1:9 208:20	2/0:22 2/4:23	34.12 133.24 194.2 8	183:7 259:23	medevac'd [1] 210:15
220:7	100Keu [6] 48:10 52:1	196:9.12	March [38] 5:10,24 9:4	medevacs [6] 208:21,22
limits [2] 97:25 98:6	277:18	man [1] 211:8	11:11 74:14,23 158:1,25	208:24 209:21,23 210:7
line [7] 55:17 60:4,6	looking [12] 4.12 7.12	manage ist 56.1 68.10	207:25 209:20 229:15,23	media [6] 18:9 276:9
219:11,18 231:18 259:5	[12] T.12 /.12		230.1 233.17 233.1 230.1	2/1:/2/8:11 2/9:20

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-Page[™]

medical - now Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Onshore men	copier Sarety inquiry
290:10	232:19 237:21 292:22	285:19 289:2,10	123:20 132:19,20 144:5	nominate [2] 26:20
medical [2] 210:5,14	293:6	monitors [2] 89:18 92:9	144:16 153:23 159:20	143:10
medium [11] 81:13	mile [3] 95:10 96:8	month [10] 40:23 106:16	165:15,16 1/3:13 204:9	nominated [2] 136:18
213:11 215:1,16,18,18	184:13	107:12,13,18 108:15	223.24 233.18 230.14	145:1
215:22 216:15 224:18	miles [1] 273:19	113:10 132:15 136:16	259:13 271:6.7	non-core [3] 206:7,14
238:25 239:2	million [3] 11:21,24 12:2	238:12	needed [10] 16:19 43:2	207:1
meet [18] 15:5 78:4,9	mimicking [1] 264:2	monthly [2] 107:12,22	48:17 74:17 78:20 185:5	non-critical [1] 274:4
101:13,22 105:7 123:21	mini [1] 117:1	months [12] 20:17,18,23	262:11,25 273:25 277:22	non-essential [3] 260:25
163:19 167:11.17 200:10	minimal [2] 102:23	20:24,25 /5:6 83:1,15	needs [10] 48:9,12 100:7	261:24 262:5
200:15 220:2,13 233:23	104:1	morning (1):1:2:5:2:17	142:14,15 223:10 251:25	non-management [1]
meeting [53] 26:13 42:20	minimize [1] 44:17	4:18.20.22.78:10.115:13	253:14 259:18 260:11	non-moving (1) 22:24
49:7 65:18 98:16 105:11	minimizing [2] 44:20	115:20 116:6 139:6 171:4	net [2] 20:15,19	non-moving[1] 22.24
106:17,24,25 107:8,12	44:22	189:20 283:17 292:23	netting [1] 20:17	172·20 173·4 6 196·16
107:22,24 108:12 109:5	minimum [4] 43:3 70:2	293:7	network [1] 63:25	non-skid (1) 20:16
111:23 112:5.11 115:13	/1:18 200:1	Mosquito [1] 14:2	never [5] 5:19 16:13	non-slip (1) 20:24
115:22 116:6 118:2	minute [1] 16:18	Moss [1] 294:13	69:12 156:24 195:17	non-snp[1] 20.24
126:21 127:14,20 146:25	minutes [25] 75:16 105:6	most [16] 5:17 7:24 13:11	Nevis [2] 13:9 88:24	
146:25 147:2,5 149:10	105:25 106:25 109:4,6	38:19,20 125:1,10 134:3	new [30] 13:4 36:9 37:11	
149:10 150:11,18 152:18	143:11 146:22.23 148:19	13/:19 154:2 1/2:13,14	55:21 56:9 104:7 107:20	NOFMAI [7] 31:2 35:2
153.8,11,14,15,18,22	148:20 154:6,7,18 162:3	motto (1) 129.14	117:21 119:6.7 121:8.16	271:23
272:15 274:18 281:21	180:18 190:22,23 207:24	motto [1] 136.14	127:18 151:3 159:9,12	normally [11] 30.10
282:25	248:14,16 273:9	124.14 157.17 173.13	159:14,16,16,16 161:1,2	31:10,16 83:19 137:19
meetings [20] 26:10	miss [9] 155:17 244:12	179:4 192:21 197:6 202:6	189:6 214:7 225:25 264:5	141:2 177:17 180:6
70:15 109:11,20 110:6,7	244:13,19 245:7,13,15	214:17 219:1,7 240:13	Newfoundland [22]	194:12 222:1 248:9
111:16,20 112:1,5 133:7	240.1 291.20 missod tu 74.21	252:20 257:1 292:10	8:13,18 13:25 14:18	norms [1] 288:20
200.5 281.19 22 284.13	missions (4, 208, 10	moved [2] 195:17 262:2	29:15,17 50:18 51:11	North [4] 8:12,13 22:13
meets (3) 37.16 202.21	missions [1] 208:19	moves [1] 252:22	175:13 195:19 202:4,12	291:17
211:22	hillgale [4] 50:16 67:25	moving [1] 241:5	234:20 242:17 273:20	northwest [2] 96:13,18
mombon at 102 7	•••	mud [1] 14:13	289:22 291:1 294:6	note [4] 68:4 213:17
member [1] 192:7	$\mathbf{minoginon}$ [2] $(2) \cdot (2)$			000 7 0 10 0
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14	multi-chaired [1]	Newfoundlander [1]	222:7 248:8
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5	multi-chaired [1] 255:22	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1
Interfiber [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5
Interfiber [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13 13
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2.11	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mentione [19] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 25:12 29:16 41:12 52:6	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 152 21 55 6 14:05	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17 19 170:21	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notified [1] 272:4
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10.22 174:1	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 35:12 38:16 41:12 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 25:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 270:14 281:20	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5.10.13	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18.25
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12, 13, 13	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 177:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 -N- name [11] 1:18 7:22 124:21 129:8,8 130:17,19,20 130:17,19,20 130:17,19,20 130:17,19,20 136:1,20	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 17:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 296:1,23
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 moders [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1]	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 -N- name [11] 1:18 7:22 124:21 129:8,8 130:17 130:17,19,20 136:1,20 named [1] 47:4 names [3] 115:6 130:15 191:25 National [2] 94:19 290:6 nature [7] 33:24 77:19 113:5 215:21 224:24	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:23 26:3 27:10 43:14
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17 19
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 17:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11.20	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 02:18 155:14 181:0	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 -N- name [11] 1:18 7:22 124:21 129:8,8 130:17 130:17,19,20 136:1,20 named [1] 47:4 names [3] 115:6 130:15 191:25 National [2] 94:19 290:6 nature [7] 33:24 77:19 113:5 215:21 224:24 271:15 272:24 near [13] 155:17 216:11 216:12 221:18 234:1 244:11,13,19 245:7,13 281:20 - 281:	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 107:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 107:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 107:7 1
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 must [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1 Mexico [1] 8:12	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modern [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2 monitored [7] 29:6	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10 Noble [3] 32:4,10 34:4	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:23 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16 192:25 195:14 196:7
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1 Mexico [1] 8:12 middle [1] 291:17	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [2] 117:24 134:7 model [1] 8:15 model [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2 monitored [7] 29:6 198:11 199:2 211:20	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10 Noble [3] 32:4,10 34:4 nobody [9] 103:17 117:24 129:14 17	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:23 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16 192:25 195:14 196:7 197:3 201:9 204:19
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 265:3 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1 Mexico [1] 8:12 middle [1] 291:17 might [16] 12:22 46:13	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 modern [1] 275:3 modes [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:52 modified [1] 101:52 modified [1] 4:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Monday [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2 monitored [7] 29:6 198:11 199:2 211:20 278:10,11 279:11	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10 Noble [3] 32:4,10 34:4 nobody [9] 103:17 117:24 138:8,14,17 141:25 258:15 267:25	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16 192:25 195:14 196:7 197:3 201:9 204:19 205:22 211:16 212:25 214:17 225 15 2:05 25
member [1] 192:7 members [11] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1 Mexico [1] 8:12 middle [1] 291:17 might [16] 12:22 46:13 52:13 60:3 79:2 121:2 137:10:20	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Monday [4] 41:25 173:9 174:16 196:13 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2 monitored [7] 29:6 198:11 199:2 211:20 278:10,11 279:11 monitoring [12] 39:3,4 90:10 21:01 02:02	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10 Noble [3] 32:4,10 34:4 nobody [9] 103:17 117:24 138:8,14,17 141:25 258:15 267:25 292:5	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16 192:25 195:14 196:7 197:3 201:9 204:19 205:22 211:16 21:25 214:17 215:15 218:25 211:19 227:2 228:23
member [1] 192:7 members [1] 115:21 116:9 151:17 152:24 188:22 263:15 269:13 276:14,15 282:2 285:20 memo [3] 98:9,10 99:12 mention [1] 54:25 mentioned [29] 15:12 16:20 23:14 32:24 34:18 35:12 38:16 41:12 53:6 55:12 59:7 71:15 86:14 138:7 170:14 192:25 205:13 223:9 240:23 242:14 251:21 255:25 266:17 277:25 278:7 279:14 281:20 286:9 mentor [2] 118:22 119:1 message [1] 156:17 messages [2] 114:12 134:16 met [3] 1:10 99:5 105:10 methodologies [1] 237:12 methodology [1] 80:21 methods [3] 70:11,20 124:3 metres [6] 17:21,21,22 17:23 18:1,1 Mexico [1] 8:12 middle [1] 291:17 might [16] 12:22 46:13 52:13 60:3 79:2 121:2 127:10 132:12 180:20 186:17 200:13 22:12 180:20	mitigation [2] 72:11 249:14 mobilization [1] 253:5 mobilize [3] 203:17 269:22,23 mobilized [1] 276:6 mobilizing [2] 269:9 286:10 model [2] 117:24 134:7 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 8:15 models [1] 92:10 modified [1] 101:22 modified [1] 101:22 modify [3] 101:5,10,13 module [16] 14:12,13,13 14:15,16,16,17 15:17 16:5,22,22,23,24 17:2 19:24 258:3 modules [6] 14:9,11,21 14:23 16:20,21 moment [1] 204:19 Mondays [1] 41:24 monitor [10] 11:3 33:8 82:12 92:18 155:14 181:9 181:10 197:12 270:19 286:2 monitored [7] 29:6 198:11 199:2 211:20 278:10,11 279:11 monitoring [12] 39:3,4 89:18 90:19 181:3 199:7 211:10 240:19 271:20	multi-chaired [1] 255:22 multiple [4] 58:2 59:23 233:16 281:18 multiplied [1] 33:12 Murphy [1] 26:8 must [6] 39:13 64:23 68:6 109:12 217:6 249:10 muster [5] 117:3,4 189:14,15 252:12 -N- name [11] 1:18 7:22 124:21 129:8,8 130:17 130:17,19,20 136:1,20 named [1] 47:4 names [3] 115:6 130:15 191:25 National [2] 94:19 290:6 nature [7] 33:24 77:19 113:5 215:21 224:24 271:15 272:24 near [13] 155:17 216:11 216:12 221:18 234:1 244:11,13,19 245:7,13 245:15 246:1 291:13 necessarily [4] 31:24 133:13 235:11 275:11 necessary [4] 3:24 27:6 144:19 203:22 neck [1] 161:13 need [30] 3:23 4:9 22:18 48:3,12 63:23 92:25	Newfoundlander [1] 35:10 newly [1] 120:2 news [2] 148:16 277:8 next [57] 2:16 8:25 10:13 38:10 54:15 57:11 67:15 76:9 85:24 99:23 104:18 105:1 114:3 116:2,11 118:13 123:11 124:1 126:12,12 128:5 135:1 142:19 144:7 146:8 153:22 155:8 162:5 165:20 168:17,19 170:21 170:23 172:10,22 174:1 177:25 178:17 180:22 181:16 182:25 184:17 185:10 186:7 190:9 214:21 224:19 231:16 234:8 236:12 240:16 248:6,23 260:2 264:11 270:22 277:17 night [9] 21:3 219:21,21 220:7 222:21 223:14 275:24 277:16 278:2 nine [1] 15:7 nip [1] 112:23 NL [1] 294:9 NLOPB [2] 146:24 249:10 Noble [3] 32:4,10 34:4 nobody [9] 103:17 117:24 138:8,14,17 141:25 258:15 267:25 292:5 noisy [2] 155:21.25	222:7 248:8 noted [1] 272:2 notes [1] 283:1 nothing [7] 6:21 75:5 113:16 127:2 129:19 290:13,13 notice [1] 81:6 noticed [2] 225:6 228:12 notification [2] 244:6 245:23 notified [1] 272:4 notwithstanding [1] 235:24 Nova [10] 8:14 87:18,25 88:5,8,16 100:10,14 280:9,13 Nova's [1] 89:5 November [7] 225:3,5 225:21,23 226:1 232:14 236:19 now [57] 8:25 26:25 27:14 28:22 36:3 37:10 43:14 62:17 67:15 75:17,19 77:7 78:19 80:12 83:1 86:21 88:5 89:1 94:23 97:11 104:17 108:11 121:15 133:14 134:20 144:7 151:22 152:23 164:17 170:21 172:16 192:25 195:14 196:7 197:3 201:9 204:19 205:22 211:16 212:25 214:17 215:15 218:25 221:19 227:2 228:23 229:1 230:10 232:13

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

nozzle - orientations Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				copier barety inquiry
247:3 252:16 279:1	odd [1] 250:4	oilfield [1] 23:13	ongoing [8] 68:9 70:3	175:3 186:11 202:9,9
292:22 293:5	off 1601 8.6 18.11 20.20	OIM [25] 8·2 24·14 33·2	71:16 112:15 114:5 212:6	203:3,5,6,7,23 204:3
nozzle (1) 92.20	20.23 21.9 20 27.22 25	63.5 64.9 151.14 154.13	233:18 284:14	211:24 212:7,8,11,22
NTL 43 00 17	72.15 16 85.1 96.17 97.2	160.11 172.17 18 174.3	online 121 63.8 13	216:12 219:20 227:13
	98.13 99.1 14 103.5	257.7 258.19 259.15 23	omahomo rem (14.9.21	228:3,4 235:3 237:8,9
number [42] 2:1 10:1	104.17 110.13 115.8	264.10 271.23 24 272.4	Olishore [35] 6:14 8:21	238:6 240:21 243:3
11:15 15:11 22:9 23:23	124.25 126.3 120.0 10	204.19 271.23,24 272.4	33:372:12106:13,18	244:23 249:15.19 250:10
24:22 25:18 31:7 32:10	124.25 120.5 125.5,10	272.4 273.14 274.11,15	109:16,18 131:24 132:23	260:4 262:20 263:3.5
32:14 35:3 38:17 46:1,2	152.14 147.5 152.5,6	274.17 201.20	133:4,4 135:16 159:19	265:17.20 266:4 269:12
46:5 47:20 54:13,14	172.18 178.12 12 170.20	OIM'S [2] 115:13 138:16	169:15 204:10 229:4	274:11 276:4 279:21
63:13,20 65:15 70:20	1/5.10 1/0.12,15 1/9.20	OIMS [48] 45:7,9,15,20	246:22,23 252:10,17	287:12
97:20 143:6 162:16	100.7 102.10 104.12	47:13,23 48:18 49:6 52:2	253:11 256:20 260:7	operator (20) 7.9 22.14
173:12 205:1,9 214:17	102.22 105.18 221.22	52:11 53:21,21 54:10	262:18 264:16 270:25	20.12 40.24 00.25 162.22
220:7 232:1 238:20	192.22 193.10 221.23	56:17 57:13 58:5 62:5,8	271:16 273:24 274:10	175.20 21 21 177.9 11
240:17 242:15 252:24	222.3 224.13 236.22	62:11,12,15 64:21 65:14	276:3 279:8 281:23	179.11 190.22 191.1 0
254:15 277:14 278:1	240.12 200.23 201.12	65:16,20,25 66:9 67:22	285:11 290:21	1/0.11 100.23 101.1,9
284:17 285:8 291:12	202:0 270:2,24 275:19	67:24 76:14 78:6,6 79:12	onto [3] 29:24 32:4 245:7	105:4 107:7,15 190:15
numbers 61 16:14	2/0:13/202:1	79:15,17 104:23 105:8	open [5] 188:17.18	208:19 227:10 251:4
135.11 195.4 228.13 14	offending [1] 12:7	112:16 114:4 123:11	220.24 258.17 265.25	255:21 259:1 2/1:21
228.17	offer [3] 234:17 273:15	126:14 162:13 197:8	opened (1) 199-10	272.1,10 288.17
220.17	273:22	198:12,13,14 244:10	openeu [1] 188:19	operator's [2] 183:5
Humerous [1] 155:10	offered [2] 240.17	249:2	opening [1] 232:19	253:23
	277.10	OIMS' 11 162.18	operate [16] 10:11 38:11	operators [14] 13:21
-0-	277.10 aff: an area 07.0.114.00		42:23 76:7 79:17.19 82:4	25:5 39:11 212:1 221:16
	Office [19] 27:2 114:20	older [1] 134:7	82:8 84:4 86:12,14,19	221:19 235:4,19 249:7
O'CIOCK [1] 126:16	115:13,14,24 117:15,19	on-site [1] 178:2	162:17 167:8 208:25	265:6.8 286:7.10.20
oath [1] 1:13	117:21 132:9 138:16	on-the-committee [1]	263:10	oninion (4) 38.18 216.10
objective [12] 44:18	156:4 263:7 267:8 270:3	145:9	operated (1) 23.7	216:18 25
138:15.18.22.23 141:22	270:8 273:11 277:15	on-the-job (1) 183-15		210.10,25
142:5.17 163:11 198:18	278:2 284:24		operates [2] 47:8 143:9	opportunities [16] 27:24
243:4 251:14	officer [11] 22:6 72:24	once [16] 74:25 89:15	operating [6] 27:25 40:3	34:8 36:23 41:13 47:17
objectives (4) 57.22	77:10 91:5 100:8 171:14	104:7 106:16 116:23	163:7,11,15 164:5	54:18 67:5 72:4 81:4,6
62.10 69.9 109.17	178:1,2 186:21 192:16	135:22 136:16 165:13	operation [19] 32:6 51:7	85:8 86:9 97:21 283:7,9
02.10 08.8 198.17	249:9	187:15 188:12 189:24	52:19.21 74:8 88:6 90:3	285:18
observation [6] 96:5	officers [1] 93:22	192:2 224:13 236:14	90:4 92:10 170:16 181:6	opportunity [39] 2:25
135:10 136:9,12 155:13	offices (1) 259.4	270:13 281:12	197:16 212:5 10 16 214:8	7:15 9:11 19:6 47:15
155:24		one [142] 1:9 2:6,9 4:17	227:17 234:21 261:11	54:17 64:1 66:14,15 67:3
observations [4] 111:1	official [1] 143:5	7:5 8:23 10:13 13:4 14:5	operation's (1) 174.5	77:15 80:7 83:3,20 85:15
131:10 171:10 175:23	offset [4] 95:10,25 96:2	14:10,20,23 23:7 24:5		85:18 86:16 98:13 99:4
observed [7] 129.4 5 6	149:12	25:7 30:13 31:10 35:13	operational [30] 36:8	99:6,7,15,21 101:23
130.13 14 132.18 219.13	offshore [108] 5.22 6.7	38:19 46:21 47:12 55:17	37:10,20,21 38:1,5,13	109:23 116:8 122:18,21
obtoin (2) 40-24 (4-16	6.14 7.22 24 8.4 7 10 23	57:12 58:19 60:16,17	42:19 43:3,7 50:13,15	133:6,9 158:18 161:25
ODIAIII [2] 40:24 64:16	9.1 10.18 24 15.7 17.19	61:17 62:1 64:24 66:8	51:4,24 89:19,21 90:6,7	162:2 200:13,16 204:11
obtaining [1] 39:15	19.25 24.15 29.4 12	71:24 72:15 75:9 79:3	90:11 98:6 106:9 173:22	252:22 256:22 286:17
obvious [1] 92:17	30.10 32.25 34.15 16	80:9 82:1,2,3,3 85:25	212:2 249:17 261:20,22	opposed [2] 196.10
obviously 1281 5.11	38.23 45.11 66.23 67.6	87:9,11 91:18 92:21	261:23 276:8 288:16,25	198.4
107.10 110.1 20 111.21	70.4 19 72.14 15 73.3	93:24 95:1 100:24 101:4	Operationally [1] 93:21	0000
113.19.22.115.7.123.24	73.17 77.12 20 82.19	102:13 114:25 115:21	operations [176] 7.5 8.8	ops [1] 65:24
135.6 141.23 144.17	87.17 89.23 105.10 13	120:1,21 121:17 124:4	10.9 14 21 22 22 23 24.2	option [1] 285:12
154.1 6 167.8 169.10	105.14 106.11 13 19	126:20 127:19 131:1,2	24.12 14 26.21 27.7 21	options [2] 82:16 261:5
170:10 172:15 173:20	119.24 121.5 6 7 8 18	132:11,12 135:24,25	29.7 11 30.4 31.2 5 32.3	order 16: 16:14 18:25
174.14 176.25 180.19	121.18 122.2 3 133.4 5	137:5 143:4 146:14 147:4	33.9 36.6 37.16 38.6 14	223.5 227.7 230.21 233.5
224.25 274.7 19 279.10	135.18 138.1 141.18	147:16 149:2,9,10,10,21	39.23 40.1 9 19 20 21	ordinary (1) 74.4
282.14.18	143.2 146.16 147.15	152:15,17 161:2,13	41.7 18 42.12 43.4 10	orumary [1] 74:4
202.14,10	148.18 155.20 156.23	162:10 164:20 165:20	43:24 44:6 8 45:6 47:19	organization [27] 23:19
	165.13 169.7 170.13	166:24 168:3,9,21 174:2	49.1 11 14 15 50.10 51.1	25:4 44:3 47:22 61:2,14
occupants [1] 15:23	172.5 14 178.23 184.24	184:17 186:1 190:4,12	51.5 8 17 52.10 12 15	62:6 64:24 65:11 106:8
occupational [6] 120:7	195.22 203.15 18 204.11	192:9 205:3 206:9,10	52:17 53:8 14 22 55:6	106:10 120:25 237:2,4
143:7 144:9,11,14 150:7	204.12 229.3 252.10 11	207:2,9,22 208:3,23	60.4 9 18 24 25 61.12	252:19 253:1 256:11,13
OCCUP [2] 84.13 15	254.20 256:11 16 257:5	212:11,13 213:6,14 215:6	66.2 67.22 68.9 70.3	256:17,21 264:6,15 268:1
occur [2] 01.13,15	257.14 16 258.4 260.1	219:19 220:15,20,22	71.22 72.9 23 24 76.16	268:15 287:21,25 292:8
02:01 04(:16 047:1	260.14 263.23 264.3 15	221:3,4 223:25 224:5	77.7 9 78.21 79.2 4	organization's [1]
25:21 240:10 247:1	264.16 269.12 18 271.1	227:2 230:5,6 233:13,23	80.17 20 87.4 20 90.22	251:25
occurrence [4] 44:17	271:4 273:24 274:15	235:14 242:1,6 245:16	91:4 94:18 95:13 97:12	organizational 141 10.6
87:6 91:17 125:18	275:21 279:8 9 10 280:25	246:10 251:3 253:20	98:2.5.8.9.12.20.99.11	45:4 53:3 168:1
occurrences [1] 44:21	281.25 282.3 285.7	254:19 255:1 260:3,15	100.22 106.1 12 134.23	organizations
occurring [2] 84.12 87.2	290:21.24 291.16	261:15 265:21 270:18	152:10.11 15 162:14 18	UI gamzations [7]
0001179 [2] 07.12 07.2	ofton (7) 19:04 22 01	275:22 280:23 281:23.25	163.18 164.10 12 13 13	198:25 252:11,16 253:8
OCCUIS [4] 4/:13 180:10	98.21 22 106.14	284:7 285:18,25 286:8	164.14 20 24 165.7 9 20	203:3 208:3 270:20
244:11 245:22	00:21,23 190:14	286:11 288:9,11 290:19	166:23.25 167.1 168.20	orientation [5] 103:3
Ocean [1] 19:3	011 [13] 8:4 11:22 13:12	onerous (11 219·24	168:25 169:1 6 12 170:9	103:21 116:12 118:13
October [2] 229:10	16:25 27:11 34:20,23		170.24 25 171.1 22 24	189:18
1				
233:5	68:20 88:15 198:1 210:12	55 :10 12 167:20	172:6.12.18 174:4 6 12	orientations [1] 116:13

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

$\boldsymbol{Multi-Page}^{^{\mathrm{TM}}}$

original - platform Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Olishore Helic	copter Safety Inquiry
original [7] 12:3 23:18	paragraphs [2] 230:14	7:2 17:3 20:19 23:1	291:14	phones [1] 257:19
28:14 34:14 51:3 98:16	236:13	30:17 32:14 34:12 35:3	permission III 188:6	photograph [3] 19:16
103:2	parked (1) 21:19	46:10 63:2,9 104:2	permit [2] 67.9 9 127.22	21:12.14
originally [4] 11:20.23	$\mathbf{parking}_{(2)} 21.6 203.10$	107:25,25 109:19 110:15		nick (2) 136:0 10
23:16 201:23		113:20,24,25 114:19	permits [3] 67:1,1 206:4	pick [2] 150.9,10
otherwise (1) 237.22	Part [58] 22:2,24 24:14	115:23 117:6,6 120:23	permitting [1] 66:11	picked [1] 124:25
Ours (1) 81.0	24:23 23:19 27:23 30:10	121:5,8,9,14,19,25 122:3	perplexed [2] 121:24	picture [2] 13:4 17:25
	74.17 88.24 01.8 04.17	123:2 124:7 125:1,10	122:14	pictures [1] 76:24
ourselves [1] 2/5:15	100.6 105.1 10 106.6 15	126:1,1 128:13,19 130:21	person [41] 24:20 73:11	piece [8] 51:15 83:25
outline [3] 9:17 118:11	110:6.23.25 115:12 119:4	131:8,10 132:12,21,25	85:9 104:14 105:15	106:23 115:16 117:14
172:11	119:15 123:23 125:3	133.1 137.14,19,24	108:11 118:14,24 124:20	124:5 126:12 148:4
outlined [2] 74:17	133:21 138:1 139:16	152.24 153.4 6 8 155.1	129:13,15,19,20,22 130:2	pieces [1] 117:9
143:20	140:11 141:17 142:10	155:22.24 156:7.10.25	130:6 136:2,16 174:11	Pike (1) 41:1
outlines [7] 65:25 142:24	170:16 171:22 173:17	157:4.6 159:7.8.8 162:22	174:21 175:16,22 178:4	nile III 51:25
143:15,23 144:15 145:21	182:1 183:17 189:9	170:13 172:11 173:13	1/8:/ 181:5,10,12,14,19	pilot (1) 0(.5 124.0
169:13	191:24 210:17 219:3	174:17,25 178:12,20	180:13 189:0 217:10,19	PHOU [11] 90:5 1:54:9
outside [10] 47:22 65:11	227:24 228:2 235:20	179:4,7,9,14,17,18	223.4 234.20 242.0	$218.12\ 223.4\ 5\ 228.24$
79:12 114:16,22,23	246:14,16 247:23 254:12	180:22 181:21 182:3	259.12 208.1,8 270.22	210.12 223.4,5 220.24
119:12 120:24 156:4	254:20,25 250:22 207:25	183:1 188:25 189:12	personal 1171 7:16 04:5	pilots 141, 87,10,01,17
198:4	2/1:9 2/8:21 280:2	191:7,23 192:10 196:22	94.7 105.5 20 23 115.8	98 .10 168.5 176.3 100.4
outstanding [6] 5:25	204.25	205:23 211:7 227:23	123.13 141.24 143.17 20	190.4 192.2 17 18 203.4
108:15 109:8 110:21	126.22 22 125.21 150.21	228:17 230:12 235:7,7	160.19 161.7 168.4	219.21.22
127:18 238:14	120:22,22 135:21 150:21	252:18,20,24 255:0 250:7	191:12 200:19 289:24	nin (2) 105.1 2
overall [6] 26:4 51:17	participated [1] 148:13	265.18 269.25 270.16 20	nersonally 121 85.1	piii [2] 193:1,5
231:1 257:9 267:3 268:11	participates [1] 127:20	205.18 209.25 270.10,20	173.18	place [30] 16:15 28:10
overboard [1] 211:9	participating [2] 7:11	278:1 285:15.16.21	norsonnol (m. 10.16.17	35:23 36:1 56:2 /0:7
overlap [2] 89:16 251:6	136:6	290:17 291:12.15 293:5	20.3 7 24.23 26.20 27.1	123.7 125.6 127.1 120.19
overlying 11 78.8	participation [6] 53:20	Der 181 6.8 16.18 145.2	20.3,7 24.23 20.20 27.1	133.14 137.23 147.10
overnight (1) 2.1	53:25 136:22 151:12,21	230.21 233.5 269.10 11	34.21 35.6 44.14 20	163.11 166.5 169.24
	155:15	271:22	47:22 54:4 55:6 65:9	190:1 198:6.8 229:2
oversignt [2] 41:3 289:1	particular [9] 9:21 76:1	nercent 191 35.10 184.12	72:22 91:3 94:2 102:19	263:8 284:14 285:2
overview [5] 7:19 10:2	76:9 98:12 120:12 158:9	193:22.22.22.24.25 195:6	104:24,25 106:13 117:1	290:20 292:3 294:5
106:4 186:18 214:25	236:15 242:1 290:9	196:7	127:21 142:21 171:5,18	placed [4] 84:1 235:5,13
own [18] 28:12,15,16,17	particularly [5] 57:12	percentage [4] 13:12	189:17 203:1,18,22	285:19
48:19 59:16 76:13 78:4	136:9 193:1 243:23 293:4	122:3 193:17.19	204:21 206:4 208:17	placement [1] 88:21
/8:13 /9:15,16,20 90:6	parties [4] 3:16 69:25	perform [3] 68.8 198.15	209:2,4 228:24 229:1	places 131 8:16 62:25
150:20 255:4 250:11,21	70:6 233:16	198:21	255.22 257.10 258.7	196:18
204.21	partners [1] 268:24	nerformance 1281 7.12	249.12 251.12 257.12	nlan (55) 7.17 10.11 36.6
owner-specific [1]	narts (1) 182.21	7.13 11.4 26.11 36.21	262.5 267.17 18 20 22	36.9 37.10 16 17 19 20
200:0	party (11) 11:2 10:1 55:7	64:15 89:18 105:5 135:2	267:23 272:9 273:16	37:21.23 38:1.2.5.12.13
oxygen [3] 92:24 93:12	197.8 198.13 15 18 22	135:15 168:2 197:12	274:18 281:7,9,10,21,24	39:17,18,18,19,20 40:8
93:13	199.2 6 211.20	198:22 199:2,7 200:3	284:4 285:9 289:18 291:8	41:8 42:18,19,21 43:7
	PAs (1) 134.20	211:19,20,22 212:20,23	persons [7] 20:5 30:3	43:10,24 51:4,6,24 56:21
P		240:13 242:12,14 287:6	34:19 160:12 177:5	65:24 94:18 110:22
D.m [2] 206:16.20		290:25 291:2 292:5	258:23 290:1	170:17 174:16 203:3
Dace $11 48.16$	passenger [8] 94:6	performed [4] 34:18	perspective [34] 14:8	228:12,14,16 231:1,5,6
$\mathbf{pace}[\mathbf{r}] = 10.10$	101.10 202.23 218.24	74:12 203:12 284:5	25:8 29:7 60:22 76:9	255.7 249.9,10,10,17,19
Package [1] 199.10	272:2	performing [1] 32:15	77:18 78:12 80:7 84:5	259:21
$204.24\ 205.9\ 11\ 11\ 12$	nassengers [18] 93.17	performs [1] 41:4	89:20 91:2 92:8 106:3	nlanned 151 83.1 16 19
215:2 222:8 224:19	94:5 102:15 169:17	perhaps [16] 14:25 19:10	111:3,10,13 122:0 148:9	101:7 284:12
230:11 231:25 236:17	171:19 180:7,8 188:15	54:25 69:10 102:6 103:16	200.1 219.15 235.16	nlanning 181 17.18 36.13
248:20	188:18,23 189:13,24	205:23 208:10 230:10	249:7 252:11 254:18	116:1 167:4 168:7 214:19
pages [6] 4:13 43:16	190:13 191:8,9,12 192:3	236:12 240:14 243:21	257:6 262:19 282:20	223:11 278:9
46:13,19 172:1 224:23	276:24	248:6 250:4,5 254:17	285:18 288:16 289:6,18	plans 191 39:14 41:1
pagination [1] 205:11	past [7] 8:10 71:20	perimeter [4] 20:13,14	pertaining [1] 172:17	163:16 249:14 251:10,14
paid [2] 66:23 235:2	107:11,18 108:15 288:8	227:4,0	pertinent [11 167:20	251:18 276:2 282:6
nains $(1, 150)$?	292:20	period [23] 6:2 140:10	Petro [1] 240.23	plateau [1] 35:6
nanel (2) 1.7 5.0 11.16	path [2] 95:11,23	213.7 0 215.10 210.24	PetroCanada (11, 210-2	platform [145] 5:23 6:15
13.4 20 23.6 196.5	pattern [2] 195:16 221:7	220.1 225.14 230.20		7:23,25 8:3,20,22 12:1
223:10	Paul [8] 1:9,15 105:1	233:4 234:13 236:10	167·3	13:6,13,15 14:6 15:9
nanels 121 1.6 250.17	128:24 142:20 155:8	242:10 252:2 270:1,18	nhoso m 40.7.0.51.2	16:12 17:7,20 18:16,25
nanar (1) 64.5 0	254:24 271:7	277:3 279:16 291:7,10	phase [3] 40:7,9 51:3	21:10 22:24 28:1 29:5
paper [2] 04:3,8	pays [1] 284:9	periodic 141 70:1 71:15	pnases [2] 50:13,24	29:16 33:9 35:15 36:10
paperwork [1] 85:16	peak [1] 11:17	167:24 212:2	philosophy [3] 44:12,18	40:8,13,16 41:22 44:13
Paperworkers [1] 35:16	Peet [1] 294:5	periodically III 211:21	118:9	55.21 66.10 73.5 22.11
paragraph [4] 231:16	people [126] 5:10 6.13	periods 121 207:19	phone [4] 122:23,24	90:23 94:15 24 95.19
232:17,20 234:8	r r () 5.1.5 5.15	I [-] -0,	2/1:13 2/5:4	

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

platforms - purchase Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				copier barety inquir
96:8,10 106:4 108:13	32:25 33:12 132:11	104:19 110:1 116:16	69:22 71:2,13,15 93:20	proposals [1] 199:13
114:20 116:15,16,18,23	228:20 252:19	202:16 239:23	97:24 102:18 114:17	proprietary [3] 3:14
116:25 117:2,17 118:10	positive [4] 9:9 237:17	presentations [2] 68:16	119:4,5,16 120:15,17	101:25 146:3
118:17,21 119:4,6,11	237:19 238:1	70:18	124:9 149:15,25 164:15	protect [5] 15:22 16:4
120:2,5 122:5 124:24	possesses [1] 216:13	presented [2] 5:8 220:12	166:2 1/9:3 180:15 182:2	17:8 256:6,7
120:10,18,20,24 127:24	possibility [5] 84:7,9,11	presenters [4] 4:2,4	101.25 102.18 107.0	protected [1] 15:14
136:17.23 140:3 143:14	100:10 140:16	69:11 73:7	199:8.9 200:6.7.12 216:9	protection [16] 16:19
143:15 146:9,11,14	possible [6] 150:22	presenting [1] 5:21	216:17,24 222:2 234:3	39:20 93:16 113:11,21
151:20,22 152:10 154:4	241:16 273:18 279:13	president [18] 23.22	238:22 242:23 243:6,18	120:6 123:17 155:12,18
155:13,16 161:16,16	288:3 292:6	25:11.17.25 84:18 98:15	244:7 247:4,22 249:1	155:22 156:1,6,8,11
162:17,21 165:22 166:2	post [1] 279:4	99:1,12,17 101:16 103:5	251:19 252:14 271:3	257:12 289:24
166:24 169:14 171:1,13	posted [1] 70:19	217:7 252:21 256:10	274:12 278:18	protective [4] 94:5
171:18 172:12,18 174:1	nosters (1) 132.22	262:22 267:2 268:7,8	processes [18] 28:4	123:13 143:17,20
1/4:25 1/5:3 1/6:12	posters [1] 152.22	President's [2] 85:11	37:13 47:12 49:10 52:2	protocol [2] 262:5
184.9 21 185.3 186.9 20	posting [2] 2.8 02.24	136:15	52:5 58:3 66:17 105:3	271:23
187:4 189:11 190:11.17		press [3] 275:9,11,19	142:20 163:10 164:9	protocols [1] 269:9
208:20,21 209:17 210:6	potable [1] 157:22	pretty [5] 90:24 137:6	237.11 284.11 287.16	proud [3] 7:3,11 292:1
211:3 213:1 227:13	potential [19] 44:20,22	149:25 157:1 181:5	processing (2) 16:25	provide 1301 7:18 11:6
246:14 252:12 255:3	47:21 50:19 68:1 72:2	prevent [6] 44:16 50:15	171.19 188.24	31:15 35:14 38:25 39:3
257:7,9,14 261:1 262:4	87:3 112:22 199:12 200:9	67:24 87:1 125:18 243:9	produce (2) 45.20 46.4	41:20 49:15 66:13 67:4
262:6,14,21 264:3,10	200.11 202.3,5 208.19	preventative [2] 87:5	produce [2] 45.20 40.4	83:3 92:14 93:23 101:11
265:22 2/1:20 2/3:14,21	203.1,3 244.10 203.20	89:20	produced [2] 11:21	122:6 148:19 171:8
2/4:1,5,18 281:21	notentially (5) 60.8 88.0	prevention [1] 155:12	82:21	177:11 206:3,5 221:14
platforms [2] 17:19	89.13 100.12 135.13	previous (2) 116-1 284-5	produces [4] 13:6,12	225:2 234:3 239:23
149:4	nower (1) 124.10	previous[2] 110.1 204.5	156:19,21	249:11 252:17 264:6
play [1] 69:14		38.16 59.7 279.13	producing [9] 12:11	200:20 284:18,21
players [1] 264:24	poweriui [1] 134:21	nrimorily (7) 110-11 20	13:7,11 34:24 35:3 47:2	provided [21] /:16 2/:/
PLB [5] 182:18 191:13	PowerPoint [4] 2:9 3:9	110.22 160.11 176.0	88:1 280:20 291:23	183·12 10/·7 108·3 100·3
221:1,13 224:14	/0:18 114:11	nrimory (c) 8.1 40.4	Production [20] 8:22	211.23 221.13 225.8
PLBs [1] 289:25	PPE [4] 123:15 129:11	pi mai y [6] 8:1 40:4	11:18 20:12 29:10 39:10	234:16 274:24 276:22
plot [1] 259:21	130:9,15	285.25	57.20 82.20 23 83.5 89.3	277:1 278:9 279:12,14
plotting [1] 81:2	practicable [6] 68:12	nrint (1) 46.15	89:8 151:14 152:9.10	284:6
nlus ₁₂₁ 31.7 107.25	08:15,25 09:4,7 210:21	printing (2.24	269:2,5	provider [8] 11:3 72:20
plus [2] 31:7 107:25	practically [1] 84:14	printing [1] 62:24	269:2,5 productive (1) 293:5	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2 7 196:18 258:21	practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [30] 31:25 34:24	practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [20] 39:10.24	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15	b :15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1 3 9	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2	b :15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11.22,23 114:1.3	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15	b :15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105 20:167 16 25
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1]	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 160:8 171:2 107:15
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 9 problem [5] 4:9 261:13,20,22 9 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 286:5 procedure [12] 286:5 procedure [13] 286:5 procedure [14] 286:5 procedure [14] 286:5 procedure [15] 286:5 procedure [16]	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-gualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 200:22	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 261:13,20,22 77:19 79:01 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 112:14 128:6	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 91:13,20,22 problems [1] 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 261:13,20,22 procedure [11] 261:13,20,22 procedure [12] 261:13,20,22 procedure [12] 261:13,20,22 procedure [14] 265:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10 22 136:22 142:3	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 40:10 57:4 57:22	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11 12 155:12 16	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5 polices [1] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 100 12 077 10	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10 12 13	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 province [1] 5:11 province [1] 778:13
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4 7 14 15 79:16	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progress [1] 200:11	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 predefined [1] 95:18	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progress [1] 200:11 progressed [1] 221:18	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preface [1] 4:18	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:47,714,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressed [1] 221:18 progressed [1] 221:18	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 prefered [1] 199:16	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 91:13,20,22 problems [1] 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 91:13,20,22 procedure [11] 91:13,20,22 procedure [11] 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 261:13,20,22 procedure [11] 261:13,20,22 procedures [11] 261:13,20,22 procedures [11] 261:13,20,22 procedures [47] 21:14 143:8 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 48:25 49:10 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 76:14 78:47,714,15 79:20,25 80:9 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progress [1] 200:11 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pool [3] 160:23 161:5	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 91:14,16 problem [5] 91:13,20,22 problems [1] 92:61:13,20,22 problems [1] 92:61:13,20,22 procedure [11] 91:13,20,22 procedure [11] 92:61:13,20,22 procedures [11] 92:61:13,20,22 procedures [11] 92:61:14:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 91:16:20:16:16:3:4 164:14 165:21:16:10:12:13 76:14 76:14:14:10 14:2:0,23:4 14:2:0,23:5 89:10 90:12,20:120:7,11:141:10 142:20,23:25 14:2:16:16:163:8,12:15 164:9	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 22:15 25:5 50:25 50:12	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 provisions [2] 34:4,10
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pool [3] 160:23 161:5 179:18	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preformed [1] 171:2	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 26:16 163:8,12,15 164:9 166:23 169:8 199:4	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pool [3] 160:23 161:5 179:18 pooled [1] 170:3	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 27:1:10 284:11 287:19 200:1	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 poole [3] 160:23 161:5 179:18 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 preferred [1] 195:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2 prepare [2] 3:1 249:8	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooled [1] 170:3 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 preferred [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2 prepare [2] 3:1 249:8 prepared [3] 17:12	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promote [1] 148:10	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooled [1] 170:3 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 162:16 163:8,12,15 164:9 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promote [1] 148:10 promotes [1] 37:1	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [1] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 prepared [8] 55:9	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progress [1] 200:11 progressing [1] 221:18 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [1] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 pooling [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5 14:20 19:17 147:9 183:23	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preferred [1] 199:16 preflight [1] 102:22 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 prepared press [6] 55:9 249:4 250:1 251:9 272:13	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceedings [1] 2:4	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progress [1] 200:11 progressing [1] 221:18 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15 proper [6] 72:5 129:11	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23 pull [3] 21:8 159:6 229:17
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pool [3] 160:23 161:5 179:18 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5 14:20 19:17 147:9 183:23 197:3	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preface [1] 4:18 preformed [1] 171:2 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 preparedness [6] 55:9 249:4 250:1 251:9 272:13 273:1	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressing [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15 proper [6] 72:5 129:11 130:10,10 133:1 243:1	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23 pull [3] 21:8 159:6 229:17 Puma [6] 8:16 18:5
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 policies [1] 63:5 policies [1] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5 14:20 19:17 147:9 183:23 197:3 position [7] 7:25 8:24	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preface [1] 4:18 preformed [1] 171:2 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 prepared [55:9 249:4 250:1 251:9 272:13 273:1 prerequisites [1] 40:5	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceed [79] 3:22 4:25 11:8 14:12 16:22 36:24 28:4 8:4 14 20	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressing [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15 proper [6] 72:5 129:11 130:10,10 133:1 243:1 properly [5] 67:2 72:8	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23 pull [3] 21:8 159:6 229:17 Puma [6] 8:16 18:5 240:18 241:14 242:13,16
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5 policies [19] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5 14:20 19:17 147:9 183:23 197:3 position [7] 7:25 8:24 29:4 33:5 72:13 73:20	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preface [1] 4:18 preformed [1] 171:2 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 precautions [6] 55:9 249:4 250:1 251:9 272:13 273:1 presentation [15] 2:23	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 45:20 18:6 48:48,8,11,4,20 50:17 53:6 56:2 3 6:11	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressing [1] 200:11 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15 proper [6] 72:5 129:11 130:10,10 133:1 243:1 properly [5] 67:2 72:8 192:8 218:25 245:3	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23 pull [3] 21:8 159:6 229:17 Puma [6] 8:16 18:5 240:18 241:14 242:13,16 pumping [1] 185:4
plus [2] 31:7 107:25 POB [7] 20:2,5 34:21 35:2,7 196:18 258:21 point [20] 31:25 34:24 66:8 77:13 79:21 93:15 116:11 123:11 124:2 126:13 128:5 135:1,19 221:22 229:5 238:15 260:11 274:22 282:12,15 points [4] 16:13 21:1 167:18 224:15 polices [1] 63:5 polices [1] 26:16 27:9 27:19 28:3,6,7,9,12,17 28:20 37:7 46:5 49:1 53:4 62:6,19 141:9 198:17 287:19 policy [5] 28:8,8 60:22 63:9 104:10 Pond [3] 204:2,15,17 pool [3] 160:23 161:5 179:18 pooled [1] 170:3 pooling [2] 169:23 241:12 poorly [1] 175:10 portion [7] 5:2 13:5 14:20 19:17 147:9 183:23 197:3 position [7] 7:25 8:24 29:4 33:5 72:13 73:20 219:7	68:15,25 69:4,7 210:21 practically [1] 84:14 practice [4] 17:17 180:1 252:5,7 practices [7] 28:7 37:1 37:7 141:9 167:3 169:5 169:10 pre [1] 199:13 pre-flight [1] 191:15 pre-qualifications [1] 199:11 pre-start [1] 51:4 preamble [1] 200:22 precautionary [3] 261:4 261:16,19 precise [1] 195:4 predefined [1] 95:18 preface [1] 4:18 preface [1] 4:18 preformed [1] 171:2 preparation [1] 274:2 prepared [3] 17:12 187:2 191:20 precaution [1] 272:13 273:1 prerequisites [1] 40:5 presentation [15] 2:23 3:9 9:17 23:6 36:13 37:5	printing [1] 62:24 prize [1] 136:19 proactive [1] 113:15 probability [6] 81:2 84:5,6 87:6 91:14,16 problem [5] 4:9 135:13 261:13,20,22 problems [1] 286:5 procedure [11] 26:16 67:5 76:20,22 77:19 79:5 123:14 143:8 164:14 165:21 167:9 procedures [47] 2:22 27:10,20 28:17,20 46:5 48:25 49:10 53:4 57:22 58:3 66:17 76:10,12,13 76:14 78:4,7,14,15 79:16 79:20,25 80:9 89:22 90:12,20 120:7,11 141:10 142:20,23,25 143:4 145:2 166:23 169:8 199:4 271:10 284:11 287:19 289:1 proceed [3] 1:24 50:8 190:8 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 2:4 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 45:19 proceeding [1] 45:24:25 11:8 14:12 16:22 36:24 38:6 48:48,8,11,14,20 50:17 53:6 56:2,3,6,11 56:13 23 57:2	269:2,5 productive [1] 293:5 profiles [1] 89:8 program [30] 39:19,24 40:19 102:14 113:1,3,9 113:11,22,23 114:1,3 124:6 125:6 126:6,8 127:22 128:6 132:21 135:20 136:6,14 137:6 148:16 155:13,14,18,24 229:2 233:19 programs [17] 107:20 108:25 109:2 112:15,21 112:24 113:14 128:6 135:10,22 136:22 142:3 148:11,12 155:12,16 200:4 progressed [1] 221:18 progressing [1] 239:1 project [6] 11:22 12:3 23:15 35:5 50:25 59:13 projects [1] 68:9 prolific [1] 13:11 promotes [1] 37:1 promotes [1] 37:1 promoting [1] 155:15 proper [6] 72:5 129:11 130:10,10 133:1 243:1 properties [3] 26:18	provider [8] 11:3 72:20 197:11,22,23 199:17 286:9,13 providers [8] 145:14 167:22 198:15 199:6,12 199:14 288:2,14 provides [19] 31:13 38:24 49:6 52:15,22 54:17 60:22,23 91:8 105:2,3 167:18 168:25 169:8 171:2 197:15 233:17 262:20 266:25 providing [6] 44:24 70:17 79:19 146:11 177:8 198:25 province [1] 5:11 provincial [2] 278:13 290:23 provision [2] 174:8 203:21 provisions [2] 34:4,10 proximity [4] 95:8 100:25 184:11 187:6 prudent [1] 68:4 public [6] 3:8,17 4:5 62:6 82:3 265:16 publish [2] 62:19,23 pull [3] 21:8 159:6 229:17 Puma [6] 8:16 18:5 240:18 241:14 242:13,16 pumping [1] 185:4 pumps [1] 185:5

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

purpose [10] 33:7 67:24	154:
111:23 163:7 198:14	157:
251:9 257:23	162:
purposes [3] 239:4	164:
257:17 262:25	166:
put [45] 2:3 6:25 14:8	170
20:18 46:10 64:25 76:17	172:
78:3 79:11 91:12 92:22 93:8 115:5.9 125:6.9	174:
126:5 127:12 128:20	176:
129:1,6,7,8 130:16,17	181:
130:19,20 132:25 137:22	184:
159:25 160:1,1 180:8	186:
209:18 219:10 221:9	189:
248:8 273:17,23,24 280:4	195:
291:25	197:
puts [1] 92.25	201:
putting [2] 113.7 139.22 pyramid (1) 268.25	204.
pyrumu [1] 200.23	207:
-0-	209:
0 C [477] 1.4 16 22 2.6	211:
4:3.23 9:15 12:5.13.17	215:
12:21,25 13:14,19 14:19	217:
14:24 15:18,24 16:6 18:8	220:
18:15 19:8,15,21 20:4,8	224:4
24:13,18 25:1,9,14,20	226:
27:12 28:5,21,25 29:19	228:
29:23 30:2,16,21,25 31:6	231:
33:10,15,20 35:18 36:2	234:
37:9,24 38:7 39:8 40:10	237:
42:1,15 43:12,20 45:8 45:13 18 46:9 20 47:3	241:
48:1,21 49:3,19,23 50:6	243:
51:12,22 52:18 53:24	247:
54:7,22 55:11,16 56:5	252:4
58:11,17,22 59:2,10,20	256:
59:25 60:10 61:4,8,16	258:
61:21 62:2,16,22 63:15	261:
67:7,14 68:13,23 69:9	267:
69:17 70:5,22 71:19 73:6	268:
73:19,25 74:7,24 75:8	270:
77:4,22 78:18,25 79:8	278:
79:22 80:3,10,16 81:15	281:
81:22 84:25 85:5,22	285:
90:2,9,16 91:10,15,21	OA/
92:1,5,16 93:3 94:11,22	quad
95:4,14,21 96:11,16,22	qual
99:16,22 101:17,24 102:5	168:
102:10 103:7,15 104:5	qual
104:12,20 105:12,19	199: aual
110:2,8 111:14,24 112:12	quan
113:13 117:18 120:18	136:
123:5 124:19 125:11	163:
129:12,10 150:1,25	288:
133:12 134:11 136:24	quar
137:7 138:6 139:5,14,20	quar
140:4,9,15,19 141:19 145:7 147:6 148:24 151:1	011ar
151:24 152:4,22 153:3	39:4

20,24 155:5 156:16 11,16 158:15,22 11 160:10 161:23 8,25 163:4,20,25 6,16 165:2,6,23 4,10,13,18 167:13 8,16 169:21 170:2,8 15.20 171:23 172:7 23 173:3,16,23 20 175:6,24 176:11 20 177:3,22 178:14 6,23 180:10,14 181:7 13 182:9.20 183:11 2,10 185:6,11,21 3,12 187:14,24 189:5 21 190:19,25 192:24 7,16 194:14,19,25 24 196:3,20 197:2 25 198:7 200:18 1,7,14 202:13 204:4 13,18 205:2,6,10,19 13,19,24 207:5,11 17 208:4,9 209:5,10 22 210:1.19 211:4 14 212:12.17 213:20 1,6,11,16,23 215:5 10,14,20 216:4 217:8 13,23 218:3,7,13,18 19 221:21 222:6,14 18.25 223:15.24 4,8,17 225:12,17 2,7,12 227:14,20 7 229:14.25 230:4.9 10,15,24 232:7,12 18,23 233:10 234:7 19 235:23 236:11 13,20 238:2,9 239:11 17.21 240:10 241:10 19,24 242:4,18 12,20 245:12,19 2,15 248:5,15,18 22 250:2,23 251:2 4 253:25 254:6 255:7 14 257:2.24 258:7 12 260:6,10,20 261:9 18 262:7,15 263:4,9 8,25 266:2,7,14 10,14,24 268:6,12 16,20 269:14 270:5 12 272:18 273:3 2 277:19 278:3,19 25 279:25 280:19 4 282:10 283:12,20 24 284:25 285:6 19,24 292:12,16,25 QC [2] 163:16,21 lrant [1] 81:19 ifications [2] 144:2 ified [4] 167:23 14 212:3 289:19 ities [1] 263:17 ity [13] 59:13 136:11 12 157:22 163:9.24 24 164:1,4,4 184:23 14 289:19 ntity [1] 185:23 ter [2] 231:22 20terly [6] 26:10,13 39:4 41:10 65:22,23

quarters [2] 14:15 15:16 questioning [1] 73:8 questions [10] 85:24 109:17 121:23 158:14 282:7,11,17,18 292:17 292:22 quick [1] 93:15 quickly [6] 96:4 157:1 221:11 262:12 276:17,22 **quiet** [2] 155:25 183:21 quite [9] 2:2,12 18:24 205:21 218:19 248:11 255:19 285:7 292:5 **quotation** [1] 36:3 -Rradio [24] 90:25 171:7 175:20,21,21 177:8,11 178:5.9.10 180:23 181:1 181:1.9 183:4.4 187:7 187:15 190:14 259:1,1 271:21 272:1,10 radio's [1] 259:10 radioed [1] 187:4 rain [1] 90:22 raised [3] 15:4 147:11 147:16 random [5] 135:22 136:11 228:18,22 229:1 randomly [1] 135:25 range [5] 106:20 183:24 187:11 190:23 243:18 ranged [1] 213:12 rapid [1] 93:23 rapidly [1] 4:10 rare [1] 196:19 rarely [1] 150:24 rate [2] 89:3 200:3 rather [8] 19:18 23:8 29:4 96:23 133:21 138:3 157:12 268:13 rating [2] 16:4 84:17 **RCMP** [2] 256:3 265:6 re [1] 82:21 re-injected [1] 82:21 **reach** [2] 18:20 19:2 reached [1] 103:9 **reactive** [1] 113:14 read [16] 11:14 36:13 99:9 115:10 154:18 205:24 208:11 210:2 216:3 229:11 230:13.13 231:17 232:17,19 237:24 readiness [2] 51:4 256:1 reading [1] 51:23 **ready** [8] 138:4 186:23 192:13,19 237:2,5 273:24 280:10 real [8] 120:10 130:23 254:1,4,5 264:7,23 275:12 reality [1] 288:9 realize [3] 67:3 290:15

Multi-PageTM

purpose - relationship Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

reducing [1] 141:25 290:16 realized [2] 73:1 157:2 refer [1] 35:19 really [8] 86:2 159:5,6 reference [4] 94:8 223:7 159:10,17 160:24 188:10 223:9 249:19 260:14 **references** [3] 51:25 reason [9] 21:7 74:10 52:3 249:16 85:14 99:10 101:9 173:14 referred [2] 215:1 196:22,25 236:17 239:14 reasonable [2] 231:8 **refers** [2] 120:9,10 236:9 refinery [1] 250:18 reasonably [7] 68:11,15 reflect [2] 43:2 162:1 68:24 69:4,6 216:19,21 **refresher** [1] 160:20 reasons [3] 121:17 **refuel** [4] 18:23 162:22 173:12 275:22 179:4 180:8 rebid [1] 34:9 **refuelling** [12] 10:24 receipt [1] 198:25 89:24 171:5,6,16 178:13 receive [3] 41:23 145:4 184:18,22,24 190:1,9 146:19 192:2 received [5] 40:23 **refuellings** [1] 185:14 229:22 240:3 273:7 284:6 **refuge** [4] 15:14,15 recent [1] 151:7 119:15 128:21 recently [3] 69:12 148:14 **refuse** [2] 120:15 151:8 220:23 regard [1] 237:8 **reception** [1] 188:23 **regarding** [4] 49:12 **RECESS** [2] 75:22 97:25 174:8 219:21 248:17 regardless [1] 84:17 recognition [1] 135:20 regime [1] 33:17 recognize [2] 121:7,15 **regimented** [1] 48:8 recognizes [1] 37:1 **regimes** [1] 58:14 recognizing [1] 102:19 **Register** [4] 1:13 22:4 **recommend** [6] 66:16 39:7 65:21 72:4 168:11 220:16 227:2 **Registrar** [8] 1:17 4:7 239.3 201:16 204:23,25 205:4 recommendation [8] 205:8 229:19 98:1 102:17 216:7,15,22 **regular** [7] 63:17 64:19 231:2 236:3 238:18 173:17 254:16,23 255:12 recommendations [3] 263:18 6:10 57:5 147:23 regularly [3] 26:10 recommended [8] 17:17 36:21 274:12 85:19 168:10 221:9 regulated [3] 20:15 228:15 235:10 236:5 38:19,20 240:19 regulation [1] 167:14 recommends [4] 219:23 regulations [9] 38:24 231:3,6 236:7 53:19 145:22 167:11,15 record [3] 124:17 148:2 167:17 169:9 174:7 287:10 288:22 recordable [1] 200:3 **regulatory** [15] 10:10 recorder [2] 259:7 10:17 11:9 37:17 38:11 265:18 41:6 75:1,1 169:4 197:20 records [2] 55:24 146:20 202:21 249:1,7 251:24 289:5 recover [1] 19:6 **reinforce** [1] 113:17 recoverable [2] 11:24 related [18] 87:4 121:11 11:25 121:12 122:9 124:5 recovered [1] 282:16 141:10 147:19 164:9,11 recovering [1] 208:17 166:23 180:25 233:16 recovery [5] 209:1,3 243:6 244:8 249:11 250:6 274:16,25 281:11 253:8 291:21 **rectangular** [1] 21:15 relates [1] 95:5 recurrence [2] 243:4 relating [2] 147:9 169:5 246:19 relation [2] 239:25 red [1] 131:1 257:25 reduce [8] 87:2,5 91:14 relations [1] 121:12 91:24 169:9 216:19 217:1 relationship [5] 68:24 226:17

Multi-PageTM

relative - Roil Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				opter Sarcty Inqui
95:22 201:25 256:23	114:14 115:4 131:4	resistant [1] 15:13	restrictions [3] 90:21	67:16,19,21,23 68:3,7,8
267:5	174:13 175:2 213:22	resolutions [1] 146:21	90:21,22	68:10 69:6,21,25 70:1
relative [2] 215:23 239:8	229:17	resource (5) 57.22	result [3] 233:14 247:17	70:12 71:3,8,8,9,15,25
relay [2] 244:22 275:24	represent [1] 23:25	168:24 241:12 277:23	261:19	72:5,6,9,11,18,20,73:14
relaved [2] 47.16 176.2	representation [6] 72:6	278:20	resulted [1] 291:6	74:2,8,10,11,15,18,20
release (2) 03:15 246:3	72:10 146:11 150:9,25	resourced [1] 251:15	results [6] 57:4 71:2.7	
relevant (0.25 70.6	151:21	resources [7] 6.25 60.23	97:12 106:22 135:18	81.18 82.7 7 83.5 8 12
100.21 174.6	representative [2]	94:20 256:2 265:15	retain [2] 223:1 267:3	83:21.21 84:2.4.16.17
noliobility (n. 241.9	73:11 154:14	266:25 273:23	retains (1) 268.8	84:19,23,23 85:4,18,21
	representatives [12] 1:8	respect [8] 41:17 103:12	return (c) 157.24.25	86:12,15,19,23 94:9 97:7
reliable [1] 6:23	26:3,6 72:19 73:10	105:13 130:7 133:16	158.9 231.8 236.9 237.2	97:9,12,19 100:2,6 147:7
relieve [1] 270:17	144:25 145:4 149:21,22	145:4 205:25 247:3	returned (1) 280.25	160:17 169:9 216:13,20
reluctance [2] 121:9,21	151:18,23 154:15	respiratory [1] 123:17	noturning (a) 202.20	217:1 226:18 287:15
reluctant [1] 121:25	represented [2] 35:15	respond [5] 50:4 96:4	280.8 13	risks [8] 50:23 69:24 70:6
rely [1] 26:19	152:13	119:23 208:15 280:14	200.0,15	70:21 72:3 81:5 82:9
relving [1] 287:15	reps [11] 116:5 126:21	responded [1] 281:1		
remains [3] 110.21	135:24 145:16 150:17,20	response [106] 11.8 10	Feview [33] 6:9 /:1/ 10:1	FOAD [6] /6:8 80:6 105:11
237:10 238:7	151:25 152:18,20,25	11:11 51:20 93:23 94:14	20:11,11 30:21 34:19	143:23 144:5 183:7
remarks [3] 11.13 287.5	roputation (1) 256.9	168:7 171:12,17 186:23	162.18 109.4,0 133.5	Kobert [1] 103:16
287:8		202:25 204:20 205:14,25	217:18.20 219:3 230:19	robust [3] 27:9 290:19
remember 161, 160.21	request [6] 4:741:14	206:6,8,10,11 207:1,9	230:25 233:3,7 236:19	292:2
188:21 255:10 272:19.21	251:7 250:8,24 271:18	208:12,19 209:6,21 210:4	236:22,24 237:1,3,5	Koll [482] 1:3,4,16,22,23
272:21	requested [2] 199:13	210:17 223:18,22 231:8	238:18 246:15 247:13	3:6 4:3,23 5:7 9:15 12:5
remind [3] 132:21	200:21	230:9 248:24,25 249:4	282:23,25 289:4	12:13,17,21,25 13:14,19
225:22 226:22	requests [1] 209:21	250.15 251.7 9 10 14 17	reviewed [5] 50:24	18.8 15 19.8 15 21 20.4
remove [3] 188:14.16	require [12] 22:25 43:6	251:18.20.21.25 252:10	199:22 212:7 228:11	20:8 21:11.17 22:12 23:3
192:21	79:3 84:19 85:11 124:20	252:16,25 253:7,11,16	272:1	24:8,13,18 25:1,9,14,20
removes [3] 93:13 223:3	197:17 209:12,13,17,18	253:23 254:15,21 255:21	reviewing [2] 200:2	27:12 28:5,21,25 29:19
223:8	required (2011)	255:23 256:1,1,11,13,17	221:15	29:23 30:2,16,21,25 31:6
removing [2] 245:4.8	A1.12 A8.10 51.8 68.7	256:20 257:5,6,10,11,17	reviews [8] 51:4 64:15	31:17,22 32:7,13,19
render 11 234.17	71.4 11 78.16 100.23	257:23 258:15,19 260:19	167:25 212:2,20,23	33:10,15,20 35:18 36:2
renewable (1) 225.2	125:24 143:24 151:2	260:21 202:18,25 205:14	234:12,15	37:9,24 38:7 39:8 40:10
	165:12 197:16 203:20	267.4 269.10 271.9 19	revisit [1] 74:15	45.13 18 46.9 20 47.3
renewais [2] 201:9,12	206:5 234:4 246:21 249:8	272:13 273:1.8 275:15	rewards [2] 137:1,4	48:1.21 49:3.19.23 50:6
reoccurrence [1] 243:10	251:16 253:17 257:18	276:10 280:12,20,21	rid [1] 124:15	51:12,22 52:18 53:24
rep [3] 115:24 116:3	262:22 269:24 286:15	282:22 284:4,9,11,23	ride [1] 139:15	54:7,22 55:11,16 56:5
127:19	requirement [15] 20:15	285:20 286:8,11,13,25	rig [5] 8:7 95:1 121:1	56:12,22 57:6,10 58:6
repair [7] 83:11,14 84:3	37:17 39:1 75:2 94:17	290:3,5	262:1,3	58:11,17,22 59:2,10,20
203:15 216:8,16,23	95:12 114:4 126:15	responses [1] 249:6	right [87] 6:18,19,20 13:4	59:25 60:10 61:4,8,16
repeated [1] 84:7	205.25 223.8 228.20	responsibilities [16]	18:14,19 19:14 24:17	64:3 12 65:2 6 66:4 18
repeatedly [1] 289:11	205.25 225.8 228.20	53:3 57:23 118:1,2	26:22 33:19 36:19 43:14	67.7 14 68.13 23 69.9
repetitious [1] 147:8	11.9 37.21 <i>A</i> 1.6 <i>A</i> 2.20		43:17,19 45:17 56:9	69:17 70:5,22 71:19 73:6
replace [1] 82:25	79:16 105:8.9 123:14	146:1/169:/234:6235:8	57:15 58:16,21 59:11	73:19,25 74:7,24 75:8
replaced [1] 134:17	143:21 144:25 169:4	255:25 205:19 270:19	80.20 81.21 83.25 86.25	75:14,20,23 76:19,23
replacement [2] 163:10	197:18 198:23 200:1	responsibility (11) 9.2	88:5 90:10 91:20 92:4	77:4,22 78:18,25 79:8
163:17	211:25 219:22 220:2	36.16 20 175.5 182.13	93:7 96:15,20,25 97:4	79:22 80:3,10,16 81:15
replacing [1] 227:3	249:2 251:24 288:21	187:12 210:17 267:3	97:15,17 100:1 103:21	81:22 84:25 85:5,22
replete [1] 45:14	289:5	268:9,11 288:13	112:7,13 120:15 125:8	90:2.9.16 91:10 15 21
report [28] 8.1 24.20	requires [8] 60:25	responsible [26] 6:13	130:4,7,23 132:13 137:16	92:1.5.16 93:3 94:11.22
26:9 29:9 33:2 41:20	102:14 112:16 123:11	26:3 37:2,4 42:24 44:7	138:3 140:2 142:6 143:1	95:4,14,21 96:11,16,22
42:4.9 57:1 115:15.16	210.15	76:10,12 78:13 79:19	151:6,22 152:5 154:19	97:1,6,10,16 98:17,24
117:4 122:22 124:4,7		105:16 108:17 126:19	173.20 22 174.21 178.11	99:16,22 101:17,24 102:5
127:25 132:16 135:4		160:11 172:19 174:3,11	178:13 179:22 190:24	102:10 103:7,15 104:5
136:7 174:19 181:8	rescue [17] 21:5 1/1:1/	1/4:22 1/5:11 1/8:2,11	194:15 206:23 209:9	104:12,20 105:12,19
190:13 191:7 213:22	208.18 209.3 12 13	258.21 287.21	211:15,16 215:9 223:16	107.5 108.2,7 109.9 110.2 8 111.14 24 112.12
218:0,8 229:20,22 231:25	210:22 211:9 276:21	rest 171 6:20 138:20	226:16 242:3 243:16	113:13 117:18 120:18
234.10 237.3 243.4,23	279:12 281:11 284:14	174.17 18 178.25 195.7	256:9,19 260:23 263:13	123:5 124:19 125:11
253:21	290:3,7	272:22	203:1 200:15 280:23	129:12,16 130:1,25
reported 131 158.6 243.7	Research [1] 72:19	restarted in 21.8	201.2 273.1 migorous m 100.11	131:14,19,25 132:5
244:8	reserves [6] 11:24 12:1	restarting 11 190.4	289·1	133:12 134:11 136:24
reporting [10] 107.15	12:14,16,18 19:12	rostata (1) 102.0	rige (2) 0.0 00.7 10	137:7 138:6 139:5,14,20
118:6 124:3 155:17	reservoir [3] 13:8 39:19	nostricted as 07 12	nigo [0] 0:0 00:7,10	140.4,9,10,19 141:19 145.7 147.6 148.94 151.1
171:10 181:3 199:8 244:7	106:21	restricted [2] 95:12	TISK [94] 10:12 35:1 50:17	151:24 152:4.22 153:3
245:25 247:23	reservoirs [4] 13:5.7.10	nostriction as 25.2	50.21 51:7 52:15,10,25	154:20,24 155:5 156:16
reports [9] 33:3 113:6	13:11	1 esuricuon [1] 35:2	55.12 55.5 57.13,17	157:11,16 158:15,22

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

$\boldsymbol{Multi-Page}^{^{\mathrm{TM}}}$

role - section Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquirv

			Onshore men	copier Safety Inquir
159:11 160:10 161:23	root [2] 243:8 246:5	77:2.6.24 78:23 79:6.10	171:2	Saturday (1) 41:25
162.8 25 163.4 20 25		80.1 5 14 19 81.20 24	cofor (1) 170.17	Saturdaya in 126.17
162.6,25 165.7,20,25	ropes [1] 22:19	83.24 85.3 7 86.5 10 24	saler [1] 1/2:1/	Saturuays [1] 126:17
104.0,10 105.2,0,25	Rose [2] 87:19 88:9	03.24 03.3,7 00.3,10,24	safety [264] 6:13,17,19	saw [1] 120:3
166:4,10,13,18 167:13	rote 11 116.4	88:4,14 89:2 90:5,14,18	6:22 7:1 3 12 8:2 9 21	COVE (9) 122.10 120.4
168:8,16 169:21 170:2,8		91:13,19,23 92:3,7,19	9:9 10:4 5 7 11 12 15 16	140.9 169.0 221.21 22.9
170:15,20 171:23 172:7	rotation [3] 6:6 63:17	93:6 94:13 95:2,7,17,24	15.11 17.13 24.4 19 22	149:8 108:9 251:21 258:8
172:23 173:3,16,23	72:15	96:14,19,24 97:3,8,14	24.24 26.11 29.9 16 22.1	246:9 276:5
174:20 175:6,24 176:11	rotations (1) 152.9	97:18 98:22 99:2,19,25	24.24 20.11 20.0,10 35.1	scan [1] 205:21
176:20 177:3,22 178:14		101:20 102:2,8,12 103:13	55:5,6 50:7,11,16,25	scant 121 238.10 10
179:6.23 180:10.14 181:7	rotors [2] 180:11,13	103:20 104:9 16 21	37:4,8,17,19,23 38:1,12	Scant [2] 258.10,10
181.13 182.9 20 183.11	roughly [2] 207:24 278:8	105.10 106.14 115.14	38:15 39:18 40:4,6,8,12	scary [1] 279:2
184.2 10 185.6 11 21	roughneck [2] 142.13	120.13 121.3 122.20	40:12 41:8,22 42:11,18	scenario [4] 80:23 87:2
186.3 12 187.14 24 180.5	144.4	120.13 121.3 122.20	42:20,21 44:4,9,12,14	210:23 252:3
180.21 100.10 25 102.24	144.4	120.2 9 122.2 120.24	44:18 45:4 46:25 49:7	cooporio bacad 11
189:21 190:19,25 192:24	route [1] 238:18	130:3,8 133:2 139:24	50:11 51:2,19,21 52:22	
193:7,16 194:14,19,25	routine [2] 255:25	140:17 141:7 142:12	52:23.23 53:1.7.10.17	80:21
195:24 196:3,20 197:2	271.20	167:20 184:19 194:1,17	54.5 62.7 66.24 67.2	scenarios [7] 72:7 75:7
197:25 198:7 200:18	271.20 man ti m again 22.0	194:23 195:8 196:1,5,24	69.14 70.14 72.23 82.2	252:1 254:16,19 255:15
201:1,7,14 202:13 204:4	routines [1] 22:8	197:4,5 198:5,9 200:24	07.14 70.14 72.25 02.2	255:17
204:13,18 205:2,6,10,19	rubber [3] 76:8 80:6	201:3,11,22 202:17 204:8	02.3,9 03.0,23 04.1,4,21	20000 (m) 200-16 19 201-2
206:13.19.24 207:5.11	105:11	204:16 205:16.24 206:2	86:11,18 94:3 104:25	scene [3] 280:16,18 281:2
207:17 208:4.9 209:5.10	ml o m 150,12 190,1	206:17.22.207:3.8.15.20	105:2,5 106:3,7,8,9	scenes [1] 186:19
209.22 210.1 19 211.4	Tule [2] 150:15 180:1	208.7 13 209.8 15 24	107:1,4,8,9,19,23 108:5	schedule (9) 2.19 83.15
209.222210.1,19211.4 211.14212.1217213.20	rules [6] 81:16 117:11	210.10 25 211.6 18	108:10,24 109:19 110:6	130.2 173.10 18 104.10
211.14 212.12,17 213.20	120:5 136:25 180:4	210.10,25 211.0,18	110:24 111:1,3,4,10,13	139.2 175.10,18 194.10
214:1,0,11,10,23 215:5	255:23	212:14,19 213:24 214:5	111:17.19 112:1.15.17	203:12 235:11 254:24
215:10,14,20 216:4 217:8	run [10] 25:22 27:14 14	214:9,14,18 215:3,8,12	112:18.24 113:7.23.25	scheduled [13] 26:10
217:13,23 218:3,7,13,18	240.25 241.2 4 255.19	215:17,25 216:6 217:11	114.4 12 15 18 115.4 16	41:4 85:15 173:6,8
220:19 221:21 222:6,14	240:25 241:5,4 255:18	217:17,25 218:5,9,16,21	115.17 24 116.2 5 8 12	176:19 177:2.13 193:19
222:18,25 223:15,24	264:16 273:10 277:5	220:21 221:25 222:12,16	115.17,24 110.2,5,0,12	194:3 196:12 247:9
224:4,8,17 225:12,17	running [1] 180:9	222:23 223:2,19 224:2,6	110:16,25 117:24 118:5	276.14
226:2.7.12 227:14.20	rung (1) 32.5	224:11.21 225:15.19	119:25 120:8 121:2,11	
228.7 229.8 14 25 230.4	1 uns [1] 32.3	226.5 10 15 227.18 228.1	122:9,12 123:16 126:13	schedules [1] 232:1
230.9 231.10 15 24 232.7		228.9 229.21 230.2 7 17	126:21 127:1 128:6,14	scheduling [1] 213:19
230.9 231.10,13,24 232.7	-S-	231.12 20 232.5 10 15	128:18,20 129:7 130:22	scone (3) 34.17 100.10
232.12,10,225.232.10		231.12,20232.3,10,13	131:10,12 133:7,15,16	202.19
234:7,19 235:25 230:11	S [1] 221:4	252:21 255:1,12 254:10	135:1,15 136:15,17,22	202:18
237:13,20 238:2,9 239:11	S-61 [1] 18:5	234:24 236:4,16 237:18	137:9,18 138:11,14 140:1	Scotia [1] 8:14
239:17,21 240:10 241:10	S-618 (1) 8.17	237:23 238:4,16 239:15	141:10.13.16.24 142:7.8	screen [1] 114:9
241:19,24 242:4,18		239:19 240:1,15 241:17	143.2 7 14 16 144.9 10	20m00ming.co 100.05
243:12,20 245:12,19	S-76s [1] 8:17	241:22 242:2,8,20 243:15	144.12 14 145.13 146.14	screening [2] 199:25
247:2,15 248:5,15,18	S-92 [22] 11:5 18:6 100:3	244:3 245:17,21 247:6	144.12,14 145.15 140.14	200:9
249:22 250:2,23 251:2	100.4 5 9 11 11 17 21	247:19 248:19,22 249:24	14/.24 146.1,2,10 150.7	sea [3] 8:12 87:19 259:22
252:4 253:25 254:6 255:7	134.20 214.7 12 218.24	250:7.25 251:5 252:6	150:15,17,19 151:11,10	seehed in 17.22
256.14 257.2 24 258.7	210.1 2 222.10 240.16	254.3 14 255.20 256.18	151:23 153:7 155:11,13	scabcu[1] 17.22
258.12 260.6 10 20 261.9	219.1,2 233.19 240.10	257.4 258.2 10 14 260.8	155:16 168:1 179:5,8	seals [1] 160:8
261.18 262.7 15 263.4 9	240:19,24 242:10 289:8	260:18 22 261:14 21	181:22 189:18 191:16	seaman [1] 18:12
201.18 202.7,15 205.4,9	S-92's [1] 242:14	260.10,22 201.14,21	199:17,24 200:5,6 216:13	soarch (a) 194-20 206-11
204.8,25 200.2,7,14	S-92A [2] 99.23 197.14	202.10,17 205.0,12	217:18,20 228:19,24,25	Scal CII [6] 164.20 200.11
207:10,14,24 208:0,12		204:12 205:2 200:5,9,10	230:19.25 231:18 233:2	211:13 279:12 290:3,6
268:16,20 269:14 270:5	5-928 [2] 8:17 134:17	267:12,16 268:3,10,14	233.7 234.12 236.22 24	season [4] 193:18 194:4
270:12 272:18 273:3	Sacuta [381] 1:10,15 4:14	268:18,22 269:16 270:7	237.1 3 8 9 238.6 241.7	194:20,21
275:2 277:19 278:3,19	4:19,24 5:6 7:21 8:1 9:16	270:15 272:20 273:6	243:5 16 246:14 247:20	seat 131 41.15 15 103.25
278:25 279:25 280:19	9:25 12:10.15.19.23 13:2	275:8 277:24 278:5,23	240.8 0 10 11 257.11	seat [5] 41.15,15 105.25
281:4 282:10 283:12,20	13.17 22 14.22 15.1 20	279:3 280:7,22 281:8	249.0,9,10,11 297.11	seatbelt [1] 192:11
283:24 284:25 285:6	16.1 8 18.13 18 19.13	282:13 283:15,22 284:1	205.15 267.0,0,9,11,16	seatbelts [2] 188:16
286:19.24 290:8 292:12	10.10 23 20.6 10 21.13	285:3.10 286:22 287:1	287:20,22,22 288:12,16	192:8
292:16.25	21.21 22.16 22.5 24.11	292:13.15	289:6,16,18 290:12,14	cont e roj 02.14 219.24
mal a star 24 15 105 14	21:21 22:10 25:5 24:11	Sourto?gray 110 4	290:19,25 291:1,25 292:3	Seats [8] 95:14 218:24
FOIE [10] 24:15 105:14	24:16,21 25:3,12,16,24	Sacuta S[3] 118:4	292:9	219:5,7,10,11,13,18
118:21 143:24,25 144:1	27:18 28:11,23 29:2,21	122:25 164:18	saltwater [1] 22:14	second [12] 44:1 62:17
183:3 252:24 264:23	29:25 30:7,19,23 31:4,9	sad [1] 291:22		100:18 117:14 219:19
286:1	31:19 32:2,9,16,21 33:13	safe 1281 6.23 7.1 10.0	sample [3] 190:0,0,8	220:20,22 227:2 228:10
roles 151 169:7 174:18	33:18,25 35:22 36:5	Sale [26] 0.23 7.1 10.3 15.14 15 22.9 27.1 42.22	sanction [1] 12:3	230:5 280:14.24
268.4 284.5 285.23	37:14 38:3,9 39:12 40:14	13:14,13 55:8 57:1 42:25	sanctioned [2] 11.23.23	200.0 200.1 1,2 1
2001120113203123	42:5.17 43:18.22 45:10	44:5,13,19 49:11 50:10	SAD 04 20 200 17	Seconded [2] 267:19,23
1 00111 [29] 3:16 20:1	45:16,24 46:17.23 47:10	07:12 119:15 128:21	SAN [5] 94:20 220:17	secondees [5] 23:17
112:8 115:10 117:13	48:7.24 49:5 21 25 50.9	129:4,25 130:13 132:21	223:17,21,22	26:23 27:2 30:11,12
181:1,22 182:16 191:23	51.16 52.7 20 54.3 9	138:2 142:16 167:5 169:4	SAR-type [1] 210:4	secretary in 154.5
201:17 257:16,22,25	55.3 1/ 10 56.9 1/ 25	169:10 174:8 198:21	sat (1) 282.2	
258:6,8,16,16,18,20	57.9 14 59.0 15 20 25	290:18	Sat [1] 203.3	section [32] 10:9 38:10
259:2,12 263:13 264:2	50.4.12.22.00.5.12.01.0	safeguard 121 89.20	satellite [1] 257:19	42:11 43:25 44:1,2,5,6
264:11,19 267:8.11.13	39:4,12,22 60:5,12 61:6	256.7	satellite-based m	44:10,25 45:3 49:9 50:10
283:4	61:10,18,23 62:4,20 63:1	2.50.7	49:16	50:20 54:6 67:15,18
2001 moom ² 0 res 057 00	63:19 64:7,14 65:4,8	sateguards [9] 72:3	acticfo atomicie 11.21	104:11 135:19 144:18.21
FUOLIE S [1] 257:22	66:7,21 67:10,17 68:19	80:24 86:25,25 87:3,5	sausiaciory [1] 44:24	162:5 197:7 205:17.20
rooms [3] 20:1 114:23	69:1,15,20 70:10,24	91:11,24 157:7	satisfied [3] 242:9,11,13	238:23 242:21 248:6.24
189:14	71:23 73:13,23 74:5,13	safely 131 21.20 36.20	saturated (11, 137-12	266:3.22.287.4
	75:3,11,18,24 76:3,21			

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

sections - spilled **Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry**

			0	
sections [5] 10:1 30:15	49:13 55:7 72:13 73:3	256:9 267:5	274:16 276:12 283:23	100:14 111:20,2
43:24 104:18 144:12	73:16 77:10 91:9 151:15	shut [8] 82:16,18.24 84:2	situations [7] 240:9	134:15 137:14,2
securing [1] 287:14	152:10,12,17 167:22	179:25,25 180:6 274:1	251:13 254:8 256:6	141:1 175:8,9,1
security [7] 24:20 53:11	174:1,10,10,12,19 176:5	shutdown [8] 17:4 21:2	258:19 291:6,19	185:18 196:15,
62:8 108:10 191:10 243:5	1/0:12 1//:19 19/:9,16	21:7 83:2,18 131:7	six [5] 3:12 26:24 89:4,7	204:10
263:20	202:18.19.23.25 209:7	155:13 291:14	115:23	somewnat [1]
see [41] 9:23 16:7 17:24	209:11,13 213:4 231:2	shutdowns [1] 291:10	six-month [1] 220:1	somewhere [3]
29:7 52:3 63:14 64:9	233:17 234:15 236:5	shutting [3] 17:7,7 180:5	sixth [1] 101:4	190:23 285:5
67:22 69:19 74:16,21	240:22 241:2 258:20	shuttle [2] 88:13,15	size [4] 14:8 15:22 34:16	Sooley [1] 294:
100:15 109:1 110:19	266:21 277:10 289:3	shy [1] 123:3	45:2	soon [1] 2:13
127:12.25 130:8.9 138:7	servicing [1] 64:5	side [10] 15:23 16:2 21:9	sketchy [1] 175:13	sorry [19] 29:24
141:14 178:22 183:22	session [4] 149:25 282:4	30:5 96:23 161:13 177:7	skid [1] 185:4	51:7 71:24 88:2
186:14,17 191:16 204:22	283:2,3	188:12 189:7 256:9	skilfully (1) 284:5	110:9 128:22 1.
205:23 213:9 220:18	sessions [4] 149:3 158:6	sides [1] 129:1	skilled [4] 287.23 288.19	206.20 223.18
227:10 235:18,19 238:1	282:21,22	sight [1] 291:23	288:23 290:1	237:24 247:20
241:2 244:10 248:7	set [12] 28:15 54:15 63:21	sign [11] 85:1 99:14	skills (1) 263:16	sort [15] 33:164
249.23270.20	64:21 95:25 96:7 145:2	124:20 125:1,10 126:5	Sky [11] $49.18\ 20\ 94.1$	55:17 58:7 60:1
113.1 25 200.4 6	199:11 214:21 224:1	154:8 173:18 191:10	101:5,10,13,18.21.25	107:18 109:10
113.1,23 200.4,0 2000 [2] /2.17 10 120.22	220.10 2/0.17	222:5 238:22	202:25 289:14	164:17 179:10
voloct m 252:2 204 19	SULS [2] 00:22 220:0	signal [4] 192:20 221:1,2	sleep [1] 17:3	197:13 273:4 2
velocted == 107 10	80.67115.23206.16	221:8	slide [46] 11:15 13:3	sought [1] 222:
Selected [5] 197:10	291:16	signed [5] 98:13 99:1	54:11 57:11 75:9,12,15	sound [2] 198:2
198:11,19 214:20 263:15	SH&E [13] 108-1 3	103:5 221:23 246:11	75:24 80:13 97:11 105:1	sounds [2] 116
Selection [4] 11:4 197:13	109:21 131:23 132:15	significance [2] 226:20	105:6 114:11 120:4	source [2] 93:1
177.0,7	135:16,23 136:8 200:1.8	240:6	122:17 138:7 142:19	sources [1] 64:
65:3 5	200:10,14 255:16	significant [21] 5:1 6:25	144:7,7 140:8,9 155:8	Southeast m
Selling (1) 156.12	shall [5] 206:3,8 207:2	15:11 41:17 83:4,7	168:19.19 170:21 23 23	southwest
ond (a) 116.5 125 17	208:14,20	215.11 215:21 210:7	172:16,21,22 178:17	Snace [1] 186.7
145:16 150:20 261:2 7	shallower [1] 13:9	236:10.20 237:6.15	180:22,23 181:16 185:10	space [1] 100.2
143.10 130:20 201:2,7	shalt [1] 79:4	246:22 271:4 285:8	186:7 190:9 202:15	121:4 195.9 28
chung [1] 133:3	share [4] 2:12 36:16	291:10	211:17 214:24 240:14	sneakers 11 1
Semor [6] 7:25 127:21	100:13 253:19	significantly [4] 18:20	244:5	speaking a 9
1/4:21 254:20 2/2:12,25	shared [2] 70:1 275:1	195:5 234:4 291:2	Slides [13] 17:12 54:15	speaking [2] 8
247.4	shareholders m 23:12	Sikorsky [6] 8:17 18:5,6	81:1 10/:/ 1/2:10 182:25 212:6 24 213:16 214:22	speaks [1] 238:
271.4	sharing [2] 3:15 241.12	233:19,21 240:16	248:20 256:19 265:12	special [2] 22:2
228-20 24 220-1	shelf 11 244.15	similar [3] 4:4 128:7,8	slinnery 121 20.22 111.0	specialists [2]
220.20,27 227.1	shift [1] 244.13	simple [3] 6:21 46:3	slogan [2] 128.0 11	65:12
$\frac{1}{213.24}$	110:14.16.19.114.67.8	124:10	slogan [2] 150.9,11	specialized [7]
50111 [4] 41:25 132:8	133:8 142:14 147:3	simplistic [3] 71:4	SIUWIY [2] 15:4 82:14	185:5,25 197:1:
133.4 217.4	149:10,11 152:2,8	244:13,22	siowness [1] 79:23	spacialty on 2
213.21 250.22 24 250.12	shifts [1] 151:25	simply [1] 292:5	small [5] 2:1 115:23	specially [2] 3:
267:11,13 268:4.5 282:25	ship [2] 18:24.25	simulate [3] 255:13	130:5 14/:18 160:25	specific ran 20
separately [2] 23.8	shirt (1) 136.5	264:19,20	smaller [2] 74:19 152:16	54:14 60.13 76
264:4	shon [2] 117.8 10	simulated [1] 91:6	smile [1] 193:10	77:8 78:22 79:7
separates [2] 92:24	shong (1) 115.0	simulator [2] 220:10,11	SMO [1] 167:8	102:7 106:1 11
93:13	shore m 19:11 100 C	single [5] 40:20 48:22	smoke [6] 16:10,12 40:16	127:4 149:19 1
September [1] 213:2	260:1	66:23 181:12 234:13	114:23 115:10 117:10	165:10,24 166:
sequence (1) 74·12	short in 4.16 174.15	sit [9] 108:17 117:22	snack [1] 115:12	168:25 169:19
serial (1) 238.19	short [2] 4:10 1/4:15	119:18 138:3 153:12	snail's [1] 48:16	201:5 249:6 25.
Series $[1] = 2.30.17$	SHOFICUL [1] 138:5	160:3 185:3 188:19	SNOW [1] 194:11	specifically [8]
25:10.15 65·12	snorter [2] 207:14,19	284:12	snowed [1] 111:8	99:6 107:23 17
25.10,15 05.12 Serves [1] 43.7	shortly [1] 160:20	site [17] 78:22 87:17	software [2] 2:22 102:4	specification
$\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{r}} \mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{r}} \mathbf{v}$	show [14] 29:3,5 32:24	97:22 116:13 118:20	sole [2] 33:7 257.22	specification
29.13 17 31.11 13 39.2	105:9 114:11,11,12,14	127:24 128:17 171:9,11	solely 131 26:19 258:8	163.19
72:20 87:20 88:7 101:11	11/:2,5 120:4 140:23	285:8,13 290:2	263:14	snecifice an 24
145:14 157:24,25 158:9	130.10 171.17	sites [3] 88:2 10 204.11	soliciting (1) 78.15	107:14 165.18
162:20 167:22 197:11,22	snoweu [2] 125:4 143:3	sits [2] 156.18 175.10	solution (1) 221.22	Snectral 103.10
197:23 198:15 199:6,12	snowing [3] 119:2,3	sitting (2) 06.22 250.16	solved 121 09.10 20	special [2] 29
199:14,16 203:20 237:2	200.17	situation (m) 26 25 82 8	SOLVEU [2] 90:19,20	specu [2] 97:23
240:4 242:17 280:8,11	5110WII [6] 21:12,14 33:5 36:9 191:15 220:24	87.16 121.20 122.8	sometime [1] 259:14	spen [2] 2/0:24
200.13,21 200.1,14	showe (12) 12.5 50.1	160:15 211:1 216:10 17	sometime [2] 172:13	spend [5] 21:3
SET VICE S [1] 1/4:2	5110WS [13] 13:3 38:1 105:25 114:9 10 116:17	216:24 251:7 253:5 261:8	219:17	154:1,5 185:19
SETVICES [52] 8:20 11:2	116:20 117:5.6.7 11	261:15 262:11 272:1	Sometimes [24] 2:23 4:8	spent [1] 121:6
24.3 21.4 31.13,13 33:14			43.1 04.7 17:23 73:7	spilled [1] 93:1

00:14 111:20,21 132:6 34:15 137:14,20,21 41:1 175:8,9,13 185:18 85:18 196:15,17 264:14 64:16 mewhat [1] 45:22 mewhere [3] 54:1 90:23 285:5 oley [1] 294:11 on [1] 2:13 rry [19] 29:24 31:7 :7 71:24 88:25 108:5 0:9 128:22 132:3 58:21 185:12,22 205:3 06:20 223:18 229:4 37:24 247:20 271:1 rt [15] 33:16 46:15 5:17 58:7 60:1 68:18 07:18 109:10 117:8 64:17 179:10 195:4 97:13 273:4 283:13 ught [1] 222:11 und [2] 198:22 294:7 unds [2] 116:19 250:4 urce [2] 93:12,14 urces [1] 64:16 utheast [1] 8:11 uthwest [1] 17:20 ace [1] 186:2 eak [5] 1:25 112:24 21:4 195:9 286:5 eakers [1] 134:21 eaking [2] 89:1 243:13 eaks [1] 238:5 ecial [2] 22:25 119:14 ecialists [2] 23:16 5:12 ecialized [7] 31:13 83:3,25 197:15,22,23 88:1 ecialty [2] 35:14 38:25 ecific [30] 28:13 37:6 4:14 60:13 76:16,17 7:8 78:22 79:7,16 97:22 02:7 106:1 118:20,21 27:4 149:19 164:19 65:10,24 166:1,3 168:22 68:25 169:19 171:10 01:5 249:6 253:5,7 ecifically [8] 14:4 9:11 51:14 52:14 67:20 9:6 107:23 172:5 ecification [1] 169:3 ecifications [1] 63:19 ecifics [5] 34:1 78:7 07:14 165:18 169:13 ectral [2] 29:14 31:14 eed [2] 97:23 98:3 ell [2] 270:24 286:3 end [5] 21:3 133:25 34:1,3 183:19

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

$\boldsymbol{Multi-Page}^{^{\mathrm{TM}}}$

spirit - telling Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

				opter Safety Inquit
spirit [1] 129:2	status [9] 108:22 153:23	183:23 275:9,19	supervisors [5] 23:24	
spoke [2] 210:8 239:22	158:7 220:24 238:13	style [1] 261:11	25:18 148:6 150:19 154:2	-T-
spot [6] 125:2,20 130:13	stav 121 70.14 241.14	subcontract [1] 29:17	supervisory [3] 30:9,11	T [1] 136:4
130:16 195:17 279:4	270:14	subcontractors [1] 33:6	sunnlemented (1) 20.16	t-shirts [1] 138:13
spray [2] 92:21 93:9	staved [2] 242:12 285:16	subject [4] 26:21 107:4	supplemented [1] 20.10	table [4] 252:13,17
sprays [1] 92:20	stays [2] 81:19 259:1	193:8 212:1	supplied [1] 279.20	263:25 264:17
spread [1] 235:14	step [5] 71:1,3 118:13	submerged [2] 15:4	208:23	tabulated [1] 231:4
spreausneet [1] 239:5	192:13 251:23	submit 151 37.25 39.13	support [27] 9:10 27:6	takes [10] 85:19 162:21
Square [1] 21:15 St (17) 50:2 04:16 122:1	steps [1] 141:10	85:16 125:9 249:8	197:16 203:14,23 208:12	103:5 109:23 189:2 190:1
St [17] 50:2 94:16 152:1 132:3.4.9.9 178:22 193:4	steward [1] 85:13	submitted [4] 38:1 136:2	208:22 210:6 237:12	taking [7] 62:17 83:12
194:11,15 203:25 267:20	stewarded [3] 85:10	158:4 248:2	265:5266:18.20.24267:2	89:15 103:25 119:2
285:2 290:4 294:5,9	246:8,11	submitting [1] 247:13	268:13,15 271:16 272:24	186:14 235:7
staff [4] 4:7,11 23:18	stewards [1] 216:2	subsequent [5] 81:1	273:15 276:19,21 278:9	talks [6] 44:1,2 156:18
189:19	stewardsnip [3] 53:15	212:5,24 213:16 236:21	279:14 290:7	162:18 165:11 169:15
Statied [6] 208:14 267:17	stiff (5) 150.5 10 17 17	substitute [1] 98:25	supported [2] 61:13	tank [1] 186:1
stage (2) 40.13 137.11	161:12	SUCCESS [1] 148:18	sunnorting (2) 37.3 66.1	tanker [10] 88:19,23 89:4
273:5	still [17] 21:9 28:1 81:18	SUCCESSIUI [2] 60:24	208:24	210:8,12
stages [1] 45:19	81:23 87:9 93:11 127:17	such [17] 21.18 47.8 48.2	supports [1] 7:10	tankers [9] 87:19,20,22
stair [3] 113:2,4 125:23	159:15 187:18 220:23	70:4 84:20 87:9,11 95:25	supposed [2] 116:21	88:12,13,15,22 89:10
stairs [3] 189:3 270:9,9	226:9 247:25 248:1 264:22 284:17 24 290:18	196:18 198:24 230:16	145:23	208:24
stand [4] 123:8 126:4	stock (1) 12.7	245:4 246:8 250:17 256:2	surface [3] 17:23 20:16	tanks [6] 184:25 185:1,3
188:11 263:2	stood [3] 274.8 277.12	205:5 200:2 sufficient (1) 195:22	20:24	185:7,9 180:2
standard [9] 123:16,18	277:20	sufficient [1] 165.25	surprised [1] 4:8	$\mathbf{Tape}[1] 120.3$
123:21,22,23 124:1	stop [14] 68:14 75:5 121:9	234:12	surrounded [1] 22:13	TapKOUI $[2]$ 140.3,0 Tara (1) 204.5
standards 181 15.10	128:6 130:11 133:6	suggestion [1] 125:18	surrounding [2] 133:15	$fask_{151} = 138.22 = 158.5 = 5$
143:19 145:2 167:7 168:3	155:16 166:6 176:25	suit [11] 102:17 157:23	SURVEV [1] 127.24	230:21 233:5
168:10 169:9 202:21	231:17 234:8	158:19,25 160:6,16,22	survival (5) 94.2 157.22	TD [1] 272:16
standby [27] 50:2,3	storage [1] 89:9	160:23 161:1,7 182:16	168:7 289:20,21	teaches [1] 145:20
94:14,16,23,24,25 95:1	store [1] 184:21	Suite [1] 294:5	suspect [2] 2:24 3:1	team [40] 23:15,23 24:7
178:24 179:5 184:5.6.7	stored [1] 127:10	suited [1] 187:2	suspended [2] 274:5	24:25 25:6,19 26:1 56:18
187:1 203:1 204:20 210:7	storm [1] 194:11	Suits [18] 94:6 123:22	279:21	64:23 65:1,10,15 72:5,6
273:16,17,22 290:1,2	strain [1] 235:5	159:16 160:21 161:1.4.9	sustainment [1] 53:15	106:11.15.15 112:9
standing [1] 284:2	strategic [1] 278:9	182:11,13,14 227:23	switching [1] 188:3	115:21 121:14 127:9
stands [5] 178:5,7 179:1	stream [1] 276:13	228:6 289:21	sworn [4] 1:11,15,16	187:22 217:19 236:22
187:15 188:8	Street [1] 294:5	summarizes [2] 49:10	9:22	237:1,3 256:1,12,17
Start [11] 9:1/51:66/:13	strength [2] 27:23 221:8	50:18	synergies [1] 241:7	269:13 270:20 273:2
213:2 261:3 293:5	stress [2] 233:24 285:19	Summary [4] 11:12 50:21 213:15 287:5	System [78] 7:2 10:12,15 10:16 16:16 17:5 5 8	285:20
started [7] 2:17 8:4,19	stressed [3] 270:21	summer [4] 20:24 25	28:16 37:4 38:14,15	teams [10] 126:18 252:13
28:19 160:20 217:10	285:22 286:2	220:3,4	42:25 44:5 45:5,7 46:25	255:24 256:2 259:10
291:25	stretch [2] 195:11,21	sun [1] 220:5	47:7,19 48:14 49:2,17	284:23 286:8
starts [1] 114:6	streicher [1] 209:18	Suncor [2] 26:7 241:6	52:22,24 53:2,7,8,13	tech [1] 118:25
state [2] 1:18 259:22	striving [1] 288:7	Sunday [1] 41:25	65:17 66:3,9,11,11 89:17	technical [7] 26:21 84:21
289·23	structural (207.9	super [9] 8:16 14:9,11	89:18 93:16,25 94:1	199:18 212:2 240:18
statement [11] 10:7 36:3	22:25	14:17 18:5 240:18 241:14	100:23 101:3,0,10,22	242:15 265:14
49:8 61:5,7 120:3 121:24	structure [14] 10:6 11:10	superintendent (2)	119:3 128:9 134:16,17	technique [2] 96:5 146:7
122:25 237:17,19 238:1	13:24 15:13 45:4 53:3	229:3.4	134:22 141:22 142:5,9	techniques [3] 132:17
statements [4] 102:24	79:24 105:3 150:4 168:1	supervises [1] 178:6	142:24 146:2,3 164:25	technologies (1) 287.15
122:14 290:10,12	245:25 246:15 249:5	supervision [2] 26:5	191:22 199:7 250:11,24	technology [2] 288.15
states [1] 211:25	structured [5] 53:9 68:3	178:3	255:22 287:13 289:10	289:9
stating [1] 207:10	106:7 150:6 286:15	supervisor [38] 8:21,22	290:5 291:21 292:3	teetering [1] 244:15
189:15 223:5	structures [1] 22:18	24:6,24 29:10 33:4 64:9	systematic [2] 52:22	teeth [1] 14:4
stations [1] 189:14	struggled [1] 283:6	109:21 111:4 118:14.18	systems (20) 26.17 AA-2	teleconference [2]
statistics [10] 26:12	studies [2] 50:12,21	118:18 120:11 122:19	46:2,11,12 50:15 57:18	106:18 174:15
107:15 108:23,25 109:1	stuff [18] 105:23 109:3	126:19 151:14,15,15,16	57:19,21 59:6,9,15,23	Telelink [5] 269:17,21
112:18 114:13 115:18	112:10 113:12 115:6	174:1,5,10,15,19 175:1	60:3 61:12 62:11,14 66:9	209:25 2/1:14 280:10
Statoil (1) 26:0	134:19 135:10 137:16.23	259:20,25 264:20 265:22	237:11 250:12.13.17.22	276:10
5 (41011 [1] 20.7	157:8 179:15 182:8	271:5	259:17 287:11 290:19	telling [2] 207:6 241:25
	1	i la		

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Multi-PageTM

tells - underneath **Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry**

187:12

tells [2] 117:11 120:9	thoughts [1] 5:20	tomorrow [5] 3:3 89:12	transcribed [1] 294:6
temporary [2] 15:14,15	thousands [3] 16:9,17	292:23 293:2,7	transcript [1] 294:3
ten 191 6:8 117:15 144:15	131:12	tone [1] 232:25	transit 151 133:22 185:1
144:16 150:19 156:15	threats [1] 263:20	tonight [1] 111:8	185:3 203:18 204:12
184:12 206:16 220:6	three [41] 6:5 39:24.25	too [8] 101:2 119:23	transition [3] 28:19.22
tend [4] 133:18 155:4	40:2 43:4 59:8 71:11	132:6,8 137:5,9 210:20	242:9
161:6 210:3	73:4 83:1,15,17 89:10	273:15	transitioned [1] 241:4
tends [1] 154:3	92:9,10,13 99:23 111:16	took [5] 8:5 158:11 219:4	transitioning [1] 100:5
term [5] 126:7 212:13	133:25 146:24 147:1,4,5	278:14,15	transmitters [2] 289:13
216:11 234:1,2	185:16 201:4.6 213:14	tools [1] 37:7	289:15
terminal [1] 202:23	213:14 214:21 218:22	top [10] 21:14,15 58:4	transport [15] 6:24
terms [27] 4:10 22:15	219:23 221:3,4,10 235:3	81:10 97:5 112:1 252:17	17:15 95:6 133:17 147:9
30:5 44:9 57:12 70:7	235:15 253:22 286:20	205:25 204:18 288:15	156:24 157:4 158:19
88:21 109:11 159:10,15	291:9	tops[1] 252:15	202.24 219.25 223.11
177:7 179:24 184:12		topsides [3] 14:9 15:3,5	288:18
185:13 188:10 194:21	three-week-on [1] 6:5	101a1[5] 30:6 31:2,7	transportation [23] 6:4
210:4 215:22 235:6	througn [62] 2:21 3:10	tote (1) 184-25	17:11 42:3,7 50:22,23
238:11 241:25 260:14	32:22 35:5 53:13 70:13	touching (2) 54:24 55:4	70:4,8 71:17 72:1 94:6
$\mathbf{T}_{0000000000$	70:14,16,17 73:8 77:16	touching [2] 54.24 55.4	140:11 143:18 147:15
88.8 16 89.5 100.10 13	77:17 80:25 98:8 99:11	tours 116.25 117.1	133.14 130.22 174.9
280:9,13	103:1,17 105:7,25 106:17	tour [2] 116:25 117:1	233:17 287:7 288:15
test 151 119:16.19 251:18	106:19 108:14 109:3	LOW [2] 15:6 34:14	travel [5] 6:7 73:4.22
252:9,13	117:15.16.23 118:18.20		122:4 182:13
tested [4] 27:9 53:13	120:4 127:15 136:8 140:2	104:13 272:16	travelled [1] 198:2
286:16 287:11	155:23 162:9,15 166:22	towed (4) 15:2 3 7 34:5	traveller [3] 73:21
testified [1] 206:9	172:1,10,25 174:15 179:2	town [2] 70:16 121:22	103:10,10
testimony [2] 5:14 41:2	240.14 248.20 255.1	131.23 132.1 3 6 8	travelling [2] 160:12
testing [5] 89:22 171:6	274:12 277:16,17 278:18	179:21 181:2 182:4,5	239:25
228:19,23 229:2	292:23	190:16 203:21 260:5	tread [1] 125:23
thank [34] 1:5 3:5 5:7	throughout [9] 62:5	261:7 263:7 274:17,24	treads [2] 113:2,4
16.7 20.9 23.4 54.8	90:24 116:3 131:13	275:25 281:18,21,22	treat [2] 141:13,16
64:13 80:12 104:21 123:6	151:19 190:17 198:2	TP-4414 (1) 17:16	tremendous [1] 9:4
166:11 170:21 172:8	Thursday (2) 283.17.18	TOG (1) 144:1	trend [1] 82:13
173:24 177:23 178:15	tick (5) 125-10 120-0 10	track (9) 54:20 56:21	trending [2] 135:2,15
184:3 197:3 211:16 218:8	131:24 132:13	117:6 125:4 126:9 127:13	trends [2] 112:19 114:13
262:16 292:11.13.15.20	tie [2] 21:2 86:17	191:23 221:1	triangle [2] 267:5,6
Thanks (1) 9:11	tie-down [1] 21:1	tracked [3] 126:11 217:5	triangles [1] 58:13
That'll (1) 112:7	tied [3] 66:2 222:7 250:17	229:6	tried [1] 134:18
theme [3] 113.10 127.4	tight (1) 160.8	tracking [7] 49:16 93:25	triggers [1] 242:6
127:11	timeframe (2) 180-19	101:5 124:9 202:25	tripping [1] 124:15
themes [1] 127:3	194:6	289:12,15	trouble [3] 159:7,9
themselves [7] 34:8	timely [2] 69:23 279:19	trageuy [1] 291:23	271:22
76:12 90:4 116:4 152:20	times [17] 6:8 69:2 82:6	tragic [2] 9:3 290:15	true [1] 294:3
154:16 278:16	84:8,10,12 86:13 111:15	train [1] 131:21	try [9] 85:13 86:16 91:12
there'll [3] 4:5 26:6	156:11 189:1 194:8,10	LFain [4] 252:15 264:3,4	112:25 125:25 1/9:16
32:10	203:24 235:15 250:16	trained [15] 93.21 146.6	trying (5) 57.12 140.5
Inerealter [1] 281:12	timing (2) 2.58 234.12	159:25 171:5.15.18	211:10 226:13 287:3
	tiny (1) 205.21	178:23 179:17 183:8	TSB [3] 247:25 248:4
(ney ve [9] 9:4 19:1	tired [2] 137.12 270.21	203:13 251:12 252:23	279:17
149:14 154:16 200:5	titles (1) 250.2	263:2,17 275:10	TSR [2] 119:21 128:21
thick (1) 14.3	to dow m 146.15 172.12	trainers [1] 184:1	tugboats [1] 15:8
thinking [1] 45.21	today [2] 140:15 172:12	training [47] 7:2 10:17	turbine [1] 87:7
third [15] 11.2 44.2 55.7	4.13 5.21 7.15 9.12 10.1	102·20 103·1 11 23 104·4	turn [3] 179:19 182:4
64:23 65:9 100:18 197:8	55:10 89:12 177:14	104:24 128:16 142:22	197:4
198:13,14,18,22 199:1,6	285:14 287:4	143:21,24 144:2,6,20	turned [2] 182:18 187:12
211:20 220:15	together [15] 36:25 64:25	145:4,8,9,10 146:1	turning [2] 180:11,13
thirty [1] 190:22	74:15,20 76:17 78:4	157:22 168:4 183:2,4,5	TV [1] 187:20
thou [1] 79:4	112:8 126:16 156:2 231:7	251:25 252:18 263:21.22	TVs [1] 275:21
thought [5] 104:1 207:18	253:13 283:8	264:6 284:6 288:19,21	tweaking [1] 149:15
242:16 282:7 285:14	token [3] 136:5.13.21	289:20,21	twenty [4] 106:24 180:18

190:23 193:22 twice [2] 12:3 148:21 twin [3] 87:7,8 289:7 two [69] 1:7,7 8:23,24 13:7,10,11 14:7,9,10 20:1 29:15 31:16 33:12 42:13 63:2 64:25 82:16 87:10 88:2,6,9 94:25 104:18 106:23 111:15 114:24 124:3,3 146:1 149:8,8,9 151:25 155:1 172:16 178:19,20 179:12 181:17 190:4 193:21 195:12 213:14 221:6,6 221:14 229:16 230:14 231:25 236:12 238:24 245:15 250:13,16 259:13 259:19 260:14 263:21 272:2 276:23 277:9 280:15,18,20 281:1,22 291:5,19 two-week [1] 195:21 type [17] 42:10 47:17 74:12 108:13 114:20 118:8 127:4 128:8 130:23 135:10 170:14 174:17 182:7 241:6 246:2,3 276:16 **types** [6] 111:10,16 115:5 118:11 169:18 200:8 typical [2] 53:1 114:20 typically [10] 109:17 153:14,17 179:16 190:14 195:23,25 196:13 255:2 255:16 -Uugly [1] 133:20 Uh-hm [2] 95:3 175:25 ultimate [2] 131:21 141:23 **ultimately** [3] 6:12 105:15 262:8 **Um-hm** [1] 206:18 **unable** [2] 237:6,14 unauthorized [1] 191:11 **unavoidable** [1] 233:25 uncomfortable [3] 161:10,12,18 uncommon [2] 18:21 19:4 under [41] 22:17 23:25 29:7,16,22 30:14 31:1 35:9 42:25 52:2,16 57:17 59:9,18 60:18 61:15,19 62:18 70:11 76:7 79:18 83:10 87:6 92:13 94:2 98:19 149:6 179:1 194:6 194:9 205:17 230:24 231:11,18 247:1 250:9 250:20 265:13 279:24 281:15 288:22 **undergo** [1] 103:22 undergoes [1] 104:3 underneath [12] 23:1 32:3 33:6 48:17 57:15

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

viulu-Page	ige [™]	Л
------------	------------------	---

undersigned - works Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

			Oliphore Hend	copier burety inquit,
59:15,23 61:11 76:25	278:17 280:18,25 282:9	57:23 64:19 183:10	157:22 160:25 207:25	98:3 195:18,19
250:12 256:10 258:19	283:10 286:5	verify [1] 190:7	221:12 222:21 224:14	window [3] 218:25
undersigned [3] 230:18	upcoming [1] 252:2	version [2] 164:23	289:23	219:14 278:14
233:2 294:2	update [7] 79:20 98:11	186:10	waveu [1] 188:20	windows [3] 219:6,12
55.2 85.2 4 104.6 108.19	109:24 228:15 251:19 284·20 22	versus [1] 97:23	92.22 263.21 273.10	219:18 windgoolyg (m. 21.4
120:23 131:20 137:18	undated (5) 43.2 253.17	vessel [22] 50:3 94:15,23	292:4	windsocks [1] 21:4
140:20 193:10 220:25	265:11 272:5,11	95:16 96:7 97:5 155:14	wear [8] 94:6 102:15	windy [1] 111:9
242:5 244:2 248:19	updates [3] 43:6 51:5	175:8 184:5,6 208:21,22	155:22 156:5,10 178:23	WINCEF [4] 20:17,18,23
251:24 258:25 280:9	276:25	210:7 254:11 273:16,23	227:23,24	wise (1) 146.14
3·18 235·25	updating [2] 76:11	289:25 290:2	wearing [1] 155:25	wish [2] 9.19 293.6
inderstood [3] 78:12	268:24	vessels [9] 89:9 175:4,9	weather [29] 90:19,19	wit [1] 242:9
163:5 219:15	upgrades [1] 286:14	208:25 210:0,8 258:24	97.25 171.10 175.12,12 175.19 22 176.9 23 25	within [16] 37.20 49.1
undertake [2] 56:7	upgrading [1] 93:20	vibration [2] 82:12.15	177:12,14,21 180:19	52:10 57:21 79:14 83:16
203:14	uploaded [1] 2:17	vice-presidents [1]	181:4,8,9 183:5 185:16	85:15 149:23 184:13
undertaken [4] 72:2	upstairs [1] 259:2	25:15	190:24 193:8,21 194:15	187:6,11 231:8 236:9
81:23 216:11 247:5	usage [3] 89:17 185:13	video [10] 102:22 103:3	259:22	without (12) 12:7 60:12
inderwater [3] 94:4	209.10 used (27) 19.11 27.20	103:22 108:13 116:16	web (1) 275:6	83:4 101:15 113:25 129:7
191.14 209.20 inderway (1) 248.1	44:12 46:6.21 49:10 62:5	182:1 189:12 191:16,16	website [5] 62:25 63:7	129:11 153:9 193:20
undesirable 11 67.25	68:18,20,21 96:5 130:16	Viotnam (1) 218-12	63:12,18 64:2	195:13,22 234:4 288:4
indesir abic [1] 07.25	142:4,21 160:22,23	view (2) 47.18 227.15	week [22] 5:9 7:16 8:25	withstand [1] 15:22
inhealthy 11 1/6-18	163:18 167:9 219:16	244:13	17:15 18:10 41:12 49:18	witnesses [3] 9:18,22
inion [2] 35.16 152.25	261:10 263:14 273:25	visibility [6] 20:14 87:14	50:4 89:15,16 93:19	161:25
1000[2] 55.10152.25	275:13 277:22	90:20 222:22 227:6,8	131:5.9.12 135:23 136:10	wondering [1] 140:16
init [2] 153.167	useful [1] 57:12	visible [2] 61:1 102:15	206:10 269:11 291:17	word [2] 94:24 182:11
iniversity (1) 8.6	user [3] 66:6 236:25	vision [2] 155:20 156:24	week's [1] 127:16	worded [1] 237:21
inless (1) 153.10 176.23	239:8	visit [2] 231:21 234:14	week-off [1] 6:6	WOFUS [7] 27:13 81:17 99:8 113:15 200:21
177:14 266:11	users [3] 64:18 73:2,15	visitor [1] 119:7	weekend [2] 41:24	203:17 208:22
unlikely [1] 84:15	uses [1] 288:13	visitors [1] 116:13	277:17	worked [15] 7:4,6 8:8
Unlimited [2] 294:12,14	using [10] 21:24 47:20	visual [3] 22:6 223:6,8	weekly [2] 252:12 254:20	8:20 16:15 38:17 150:1
unloaded [1] 190:1	134:24 160:20 198:19	visualize [1] 57:13	weeks [9] 73:5 131:6	150:3 198:6 253:13
unplanned [1] 101:7	228:5 279:1	volume [1] 46:15	133:25 140:24 147:1,5	277:15 283:5 284:3,12
unredacted [1] 43:16	usually [14] 22:18 34:2	volumes [1] 89:9	weighed [3] 165:16	worker [22] 73:9.11
unsafe [7] 129:5,5,24	41:24 65:11 126:17 136:2	vote [3] 150:12,23 151:2	169:17 191:9	117:16,19,21 127:19
132:17 146:19 244:11	153:18,21 176:18 177:20		weighing [2] 182:3,6	129:6 130:14 135:24
245:22	270:8	-W-	weight [2] 18:1 45:2	144:25 146:5 149:22
unserviceable [1]	utilities [1] 14:15	WAF [2] 230:24 233:6	weights [1] 192:1	152:23 154:14.14 155:15
203.10	utilize [3] 28:3 141:11	wait [5] 19:5 137:24	Welcome [1] 104:21	291:20
100 waru [1] 10.25	256:24	138:3,4 157:5	well-established [1]	workers [15] 104:7
in [2] 195.15,19	utilized [1] 47:1	waiting [3] 137:22 191:4	146:10	105:13 116:14 139:10
6:8 40:15 45:22 48:11	utilizing [1] 287:10	248:3	wellbeing [1] 136:18	145:17,18,19 146:20
51:6 63:22 64:21 65:15		Walk [4] 20:19 124:13	wellheads [2] 14:13,16	152:19 153:25 158:24
68:16 73:9 75:25 77:17	-V-	walked (1) 128.21	wells [4] 5:8 17:7 229:9	233:25
107:20 108:20.21 109:2	vacation [2] 266:11,12	walking [1] 272:16	290:9 wot 11 160.24	workforce [57] 6:1,5,22
109:5 111:3 114:10 115:3	validated [2] 22:2	walkway [3] 124:11.13	wei [1] 100.24	7:7 31:25 34:15,17 35:10
116:3,10 122:8,13 124:14	199:22	127:7	wheel $[1]$ 198.7 102.21	66:5.15.20.22 69:14 84:2
124:16,25 125:12 126:5	valuable [1] 243:2	walkways [2] 124:11,12	wheels (5) 206.8 10	90:10 111:6,11 114:2
131:20 133:7.8 134:5	varies [1] 34:17	wall [9] 14:2 15:15,19,21	207:1.9.23	123:20 128:13 133:10
138:25 140:23 144:1	various [18] 8:15,16	15:21,23 16:3 258:1,1	white [4] 19:17 81:13.17	136:18 143:22 146:13
150:18 151:7 152:9	16:18 30:14 31:23 46:6	wander [1] 189:6	88:8	157:20 158:2.14 161:9
153:13,19 156:2 159:6	170:4 172:1 213:12	wants [1] 137:17	whole [9] 51:25 55:2	239:16,18,24 240:6,9
161:15 174:19 179:17	228:17 252:25 255:15	warning [2] 100:25	126:24 142:5 181:5	246:18 262:13 274:6,15
185:5,24 188:17 193:18	265:8 269:25	101:3	190:17 218:10 231:17	2/4:20 2/5:1,25 281:18 281:19 25 282:9 287:24
201:16 205:3,21 206:8	vary [1] 31:14	watch [3] 102:21 103:21	wide (4) 146.11 154.4	288:12 290:15,20 292:2
200:10 207:1,10,23				l '
	vast [3] 133:24 196:9,12	watches [2] 178.8 187.21	155:16 243:18	workplace [9] 6:15
219:18 220:6 229:17,19	vast [3] 133:24 196:9,12 venture [2] 23:13 26:5	watches [2] 178:8 187:21 watching [2] 6:1 187:19	155:16 243:18 widely [1] 142:4	workplace [9] 6:15 114:21 124:2 130:14
219:18 220:6 229:17,19 236:22 246:25 247:22	vast [3] 133:24 196:9,12 venture [2] 23:13 26:5 venturers [3] 23:8 279:13 17	watches [2] 178:8 187:21 watching [2] 6:1 187:19 water [19] 15:2 16:16 18	155:16 243:18 widely [1] 142:4 winch [6] 208:18,18	workplace [9] 6:15 114:21 124:2 130:14 141:25 144:16 145:13 146:18 147:24
219:18 220:6 229:17,19 236:22 246:25 247:22 248:23 253:18 255:17	vast [3] 133:24 196:9,12 venture [2] 23:13 26:5 venturers [3] 23:8 278:13,17	watches [2] 178:8 187:21 watching [2] 6:1 187:19 water [19] 15:2 16:16,18 17:22,23 20:12 92:9,14	155:16 243:18 widely [1] 142:4 winch [6] 208:18,18 209:12,14,17 223:14	workplace [9] 6:15 114:21 124:2 130:14 141:25 144:16 145:13 146:18 147:24

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

		o monor e mene	opter surety mqung
114:3 119:3 128:16			
143:22 169:11 workshop (1) 203:0			
worksite [3] 67.12 119.3			
126:13			
world [18] 7:4 12:8 27:11			
27:17,21 38:17 47:9,12			
114:17 167:10 198:3			
275:3 288:17 290:4			
world_class 11 13.23			
worldwide [7] 27:23			
46:22 47:2,18 48:14			
53:14 275:6			
worse [1] 195:20			
write [6] 79:15 119:18			
124:16,17 130:14 237:24			
writing [1] 259:8			
written [3] 231:8 232:25 236:9			
-Y-			
year [16] 6:8,16 64:23,24			
131:13 149:16 195:7			
212:11,13 214:5,12 215:7			
235:15 vearly 121 22:11 235:20			
vears [26] 8:5.10.19 34:3			
34:7,7 39:24 40:1,2 43:4			
70:371:18,2074:8,25			
195:10 213:9,13 217:12			
218:10 291:4,18			
119:7,8 227:3,7			
yet [1] 37:11			
yourself [1] 125:22			
-7.			
7ero (1) 213:12			
zipper [3] 160:1.4 161:12			
zippered [2] 161:11,15			
zippers [3] 159:5,17,23			